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Message from Managing Director

Dear Shareholders,

The year 2017-18 has been a crucial year of change and 

challenges for the banking sector. Major reforms initiated by the 

Government have encouraged a digital environment which, in 

turn, has given the much-needed thrust to the vision of a 

cashless economy. Against this backdrop, your Bank has 

executed new propositions to enhance customer convenience 

basis responsive innovation. The year 2017-18 was also marked 

by your Bank’s desire of ‘Bringing India to Bharat’ by extending 

the benefits and features of digitisation (India) to Bharat (rural 

India) as they are an integral part of a progressive economy.  

 

To elucidate further, the urban parts of our country are 

sufficiently exposed to Banking and Fintech - making many 

tenured customers familiar with digital banking and mobile 

apps. In contrast, there are many individuals in semi-urban and 

rural India who are yet to experience the benefits of a structured 

financial system. At IndusInd Bank, we are committed to change 

this scenario for the better. Towards this, we have begun 

introducing the combination / benefits of Finance and 

Technology to the poor and hitherto the unbanked masses – 

leading to financial inclusion and sustainable livelihood creation.

In fact, the decision to merge Bharat Financial Inclusion Ltd. 

(BFIL) into IndusInd Bank, announced in October 2017, was 

prompted by the same endeavour: Bring India to Bharat and 

create a stronger and more sustainable platform for Financial 

Inclusion. The merger is a good fit to your Bank’s rural banking 

and microfinance theme, and has provided the Bank with 

access to best-in-class micro-lending capabilities and domain 

expertise in microfinance. BFIL has 1,408 branches across 347 

districts which complement IndusInd Bank’s 1,400-strong 

branch network (including ~250 rural branches) and 999 

vehicle finance outlets. Post the merger, the  Bank will have 

3,600-plus banking points (excluding ATMs) serving more than 

16.8 million customers.

 

Another notable initiative of your Bank has been the journey 

towards Customer Experience (CEX) transformation, and the 

‘Customer First’ philosophy that has made good progress in 

integrating the business and behavioural mindsets of employees 

towards customers. We have tried to redefine the Customer 

Journeys across the Bank, and have focussed on embedding the 

principles of convenience - Seamless, Easy, Fast, Transparent, into 

the core of our organisation.

 

The year 2017-18 has also been a year of major partnerships           

and collaborations with well established brands to offer a 

personalised Customer Convenience. In its endeavour to stitch 

up the fragmented but fast growing payment ecosystem,  your 

Bank entered into partnerships with Fintech and Government 

entities, viz., MobiKwik and Delhi Metro, to offer co-branded 

mobile wallets and cards in order to provide seamless payment 

experience between the customers’ bank accounts and their 

wallet / transit cards.

 

That’s not all. Your Bank collaborated with a leading app 

aggregator, to launch the 'All-in-One Store' that allows users to 

access multiple m-commerce services via native API 

integrations. With this, the customers are now experiencing 

seamless and highly personalised services of ordering food, 

booking movie tickets or getting a cab. And all this using the 

IndusMobile app.

 

At IndusInd Bank, we remain focused on running our business in 

a way which generates value for our customers, employees and 

other stakeholders. We realise that we need to extend our sphere 

of activities beyond business. One such initiative is harnessing 

the power of Sport for Change, through our ‘IndusInd For Sports’ 

initiative. This year, we launched our third marquee programme 

under the Sports Vertical - The Girl Power Programme - an 

initiative in partnership with Inspire Institute of Sport, the 

sporting arm of JSW Steel.

 

Our Net Profit rose 26 per cent in the year to `3,606 crores. Net 

Interest Income was up 24 per cent at ̀ 7,497 crores. Non-Interest 

Income rose 14 per cent, to `4,750 crores. The Return-on-Assets 

stood at 1.90 per cent. Total Advances and Deposits grew by 28 

per cent and 20 per cent respectively.

 

It is gratifying to see that our hard work throughout the year was 

acknowledged and rewarded by numerous accolades. We were 

honoured by 'The Forrester Indian Mobile Banking Benchmark 

Report 2017' as the 3rd Best Bank amongst the participating 

banks for IndusMobile App. We were mentioned amongst the 

winning category for the Best IT Risks and Cyber Security 

Initiatives, Best Payment Initiatives. We bagged the runner-up 

category for the Best Financial Inclusions initiatives and for the 

Best Technology Bank. 

 

I would like to thank the regulatory authorities and agencies for 

their constant support. Finally, my sincere appreciation to my 

colleagues and members of the Board for guiding and 

supporting the management team in its endeavours.
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The Board of Directors of the Bank have pleasure in presenting the Twenty-fourth Annual Report covering business and 

operations of the Bank, together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018.

The financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2018 is summarized as under:

          (` in crores)

Particulars As on  

March 31, 2018

As on  

March 31, 2017

Deposits 151,639.17 126,572.22

Advances 144,953.66 113,080.51

Operating Profit (before Depreciation and Provisions and Contingencies) 6,867.75 5,641.71

Net Profit 3,605.99 2,867.89

During the year under review, despite the disruption in growth rate in the Indian economy and a persistently challenging 

macroeconomic environment, the Bank improved its business, with Deposits growing by 19.80% and Advances by 28.19% 

over the previous year.

The Bank continued to focus on increasing earnings from its core banking business, strengthening the fee income streams, and 

maintaining control on operating costs.

Operating Profit (before Depreciation and Provisions and Contingencies) rose by 21.73% to ` 6,867.75 crores, as compared to 

` 5,641.71 crores in the previous year.

The Net Profit of the Bank, after considering all expenses and necessary Provisions and Contingencies, was higher by 25.74% 

at ` 3,605.99 crores, as against ` 2,867.89 crores in the previous year.

Appropriations

The Directors recommend appropriation of Profit as under:

 (` in crores)

Operating Profit before Depreciation and Provisions and Contingencies 6,867.75

Less: Depreciation on Fixed Assets 211.64

Less: Provisions and Contingencies inclusive of Income Tax 3,050.12

Net Profit 3,605.99

Profit Brought Forward 7,118.38

Amount available for Appropriation 10,724.37

Transfer to Statutory Reserve 901.50

Transfer to Capital Reserve 7.62

Dividend (including Tax on Dividend)  

(23rd Annual General Meeting of members held on July 26, 2017 approved the payment of Dividend 

for the year 2016-17 for the Equity Shares outstanding as on that date.)

432.24

Deduction during the year 71.52

Total Appropriations 1,412.88

Balance carried over to Balance Sheet 9,311.49

Dividend

The Earning Per Share (EPS) of the Bank rose to ` 60.19 during the year 2017-18, from ` 48.06 in the previous year.

In view of the overall improvement in performance as well as the need to conserve Capital for continued growth, the Directors 

recommend Dividend of ̀  7.50 per Equity Share of ̀  10 each for the year ended March 31, 2018. (Dividend for the year 2016-17 

was ` 6.00 per Equity Share of ` 10 each).

Considering the Equity Shares outstanding as at March 31, 2018, the total amount of dividend payable including Taxes to be 

borne by the Bank amounts to ` 542.70 crores. In accordance with the revised AS 4 – ‘Contingencies and events occurring after 

the Balance Sheet Date’, this amount is not accounted as liabilities as at March 31, 2018.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Financial Performance and State of Affairs of the Bank

The year under review was the first year of the new Triennial Planning Cycle of the Bank, (Planning Cycle 4, for Financial Years 

2017-20) with the theme of “Digitize to Differentiate, Diversify and Create Domain Leadership (4D)” with a strategy to gain 

‘Market Share with Profitability’.

Backed by improved volumes, the Total Income of the Bank for the year under review grew by 18.59% to ` 22,030.85 crores 

from ` 18,577.16 crores.

The healthy rise in profitability was the result of growth in Net Interest Income (NII) as well as Non-Interest Income. Net Interest 

Income improved by 23.67% to ` 7,497.45 crores from ` 6,062.60 crores while Non-Interest Income rose to ` 4,750.10 crores 

from ` 4,171.49 crores, registering growth of 13.87%.

Core Fee Income such as commission, exchange, loan processing and account management fees, fees on Investment Banking 

and distribution of third-party products, and earnings from foreign exchange business grew by 19.73% to ` 4,176.75 crores 

from ` 3,488.59 crores earned during the previous year.

Yield on Advances dropped to 11.21% during the year, as against 11.71% in the previous year, while the Cost of Deposits fell to 

5.98% from 6.41% in the previous year. The Bank was able to maintain its Net Interest Margin at the same level as of previous 

year at 3.99%.

The Bank expanded its branch network steadily to reach 1,400 branches, as against 1,200 branches at the beginning of the year. 

Revenue per employee during the year improved significantly to ` 48 lakhs.

The Net Non-Performing Assets ratio of the Bank stands at 0.51% in current year. The Provisioning Coverage Ratio (PCR) stands 

at 56.26% as compared to 58.39% in the previous year.

The year under review witnessed a number of significant events, some of which are listed below:

 On April 18, 2017, the Bank issued Basel III-compliant Additional Tier 1 Bonds (AT1/ PDI) for ` 1,000 crores, in addition to 

` 1,000 crores mobilized during March 2017.

 On October 14, 2017, the Board of Directors of the Bank and the Board of Directors of Bharat Financial Inclusion Limited 

(BFIL) (formerly known as SKS Microfinance Limited) approved Amalgamation of BFIL with the Bank through a Composite 

Scheme of Arrangement.  The Competition Commission of India has granted approval to  the proposed Scheme, and the 

RBI has accorded their “No Objection” for the Amalgamation.

In this regard, as on date of this report:

 The Scheme has ‘no adverse remarks’ in the Observation Letters from the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) / 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited vide letter dated June 1, 2018 and BSE Limited vide letter dated June 4, 2018.

 RBI vide letter dated June 8, 2018 conveyed their approval for incorporating of the Wholly-Owned-Subsidiary to act as 

Business Correspondent of the Bank as part of Bank’s Amalgamation with BFIL.

 The Scheme is awaiting, approval from the respective Shareholders and Creditors of the Bank and BFIL, the National 

Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), and is subject to compliance with the conditions specified by RBI.

 Equity Shares of the Bank have been included in the bellwether 30 Member BSE Sensex Index.  They have been part of 

Nifty 50, the bellwether index of NSE since April 2013.

 RBI have granted approval on April 3, 2018 for the proposed acquisition of IL&FS Securities Services Limited, the 

securities services arm of IL&FS, as a Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of the Bank. This transaction is conditional on definitive 

agreements and other regulatory approvals.

Performance of Subsidiary and Associate Company

The Bank does not have a subsidiary.

IndusInd Marketing and Financial Services Private Limited (IMFS) is an Associate Company of the Bank and is engaged in the 

business of providing manpower services. Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Bank has drawn up a Consolidated Financial Statement including the Financial Statement of its 

Associate Company, which also forms a part of this Annual Report.
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During FY 2017-18, IMFS earned Revenue of ` 243.09 crores as against Revenue of ` 217.21 crores in the previous year. IMFS 

earned Profit of ` 0.44 crores in FY 2017-18.

Statement containing the salient features of the financial position of the Associate Company in Form AOC-1 is enclosed as 

‘Annexure’ to the Financial Statements.

Share Capital

The Paid-Up Equity Capital of the Bank as at March 31, 2018 consisted of 60, 02,23,187 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each.

During the year under review, the Bank allotted 20,74,482 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each pursuant to Exercise of Options under 

its Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2007.

The Bank has not issued any Equity Shares with Differential Voting Rights.

Debentures

On April 18, 2017, the Bank allotted, on Private Placement basis, 10,000 Rated, Listed, Non-Convertible, Perpetual, Subordinated 

& Unsecured Basel III-compliant Additional Tier I Bonds (“AT1”) in the nature of Debentures of Face Value of ̀  10,00,000 (Rupees 

Ten lakhs each) for cash at par amounting to ` 1,000 crores.

In compliance with Regulation 53 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the names 

of the Debenture Trustees with their contact details are given below:

Trustee I:

Name of Debenture Trustees :  Catalyst Trusteeship Limited (formerly GDA Trusteeship Ltd.)

Address      :  GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony  

(Right), Kothrud, Pune – 411 038, Maharashtra, India.

Website     :  www.catalysttrustee.com

E-mail     : dt@ctltrustee.com

Trustee II:

Name of Debenture Trustees :  Beacon Trusteeship Limited

Address     :  Prabhat Kunj, Prabhat Colony 3, Santracruz (East), Mumbai – 400 055

Website    :  www.beacontrustee.co.in

E-mail     :  info@beacontrustee.co.in

Tier II Capital

The Bank did not issue any Tier II Capital instruments during the year. As on March 31, 2018, the value of outstanding Tier II 

Capital instruments is Nil.

Deposits

The Bank is a banking company governed by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, and as such, the provisions in the Companies 

Act relating to acceptance of Public Deposits are not applicable.

Capital Adequacy

The Bank continues to be adequately capitalized. The Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Bank, calculated under the Basel III Capital 

Regulations mandated by RBI, is set out below:

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

i)  Capital Adequacy Ratio (CRAR) 15.03% 15.31%

ii)  CRAR- Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 13.42% 14.02%

iii)  CRAR- Tier 1 Capital 14.58% 14.72%

iv)  CRAR- Tier 2 Capital 0.45% 0.59%
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Credit Ratings

Instruments Rating Rating Agency

Infra Bond program  AA+ CRISIL

Additional Tier I Bond program AA CRISIL

Certificates of Deposit  A1+ CRISIL

Senior Bonds program  AA+ India Ratings and 

Research

Additional Tier I Bond program AA India Ratings and 

Research

Short Term Debt instruments  A1+ India Ratings and 

Research

Directors

The Bank’s Board comprised eight Directors as on March 31, 2018, viz., Mr. R. Seshasayee, Non-Executive Part-time Chairman, 

five Independent Directors, Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale, Non-Executive Non-Independent Director, and Mr. Romesh Sobti, Managing 

Director & CEO.

(a)  Non-Executive Independent Directors

 All Independent Directors have given Declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under sub-

section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. In compliance with Regulation 16 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Declarations were placed before the Board of Directors in their meeting 

held on April 19, 2018, and based on the Declarations, the following Non-Executive Directors continue to be identified 

as Independent Directors as on March 31, 2018:

 (i)  Mrs. Kanchan Chitale

 (ii)  Mr. T. Anantha Narayanan

 (iii)  Mr. Ranbir Singh Butola

 (iv)  Mr. Shanker Annaswamy

 (v)  Dr. T. T. Ram Mohan

(b)  Woman Director

 In terms of the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, and Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, specified companies are required to have at least one Woman Director in their Board.

 Mrs. Kanchan Chitale (DIN: 00007267), who joined the Board on October 18, 2011, is an Independent Woman Director 

in the Board, and Chairs some important Committees.

(c)  Chairman of the Board

 Mr. R. Seshasayee, (DIN: 00047985) has been Non-Executive Part-time Chairman of the Bank since July 24, 2007.

 Shareholders of the Bank had, in the 23rd AGM held on July 26, 2017, approved the re-appointment of Mr. R. Seshasayee 

as Non-Executive Part-time Chairman for a period of 2 years.

 RBI have conveyed approval for the re-appointment of Mr. R. Seshasayee as a Non-Executive Part-time Chairman for a 

period of 2 years, i.e., up to July 24, 2019.
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(d)  Managing Director & CEO

 Mr. Romesh Sobti, (DIN: 00031034) has been Managing Director & CEO of the Bank since February 1, 2008.

 Shareholders of the Bank had, in the 21st AGM held on August 17, 2015, approved the re-appointment of Mr. Romesh 

Sobti as the Managing Director & CEO for a period of three years with effect from February 1, 2015.

 Reserve Bank of India have conveyed their approval for re-appointment of Mr. Romesh Sobti up to March 23, 2020.

(e)  Details of Directors seeking Appointment / Re-appointment / Directors retiring by rotation at the forthcoming 

AGM

 Appointment

 Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale (DIN: 00013782), completed his tenure in the Board on November 3, 2017. Reserve Bank of 

India have, vide their letter dated December 20, 2017, conveyed approval for continuance of Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale in 

the Board upto April 15, 2019.

 The Board of Directors had, in their meeting held on January 11, 2018, accordingly approved the appointment of 

Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale as ‘Additional Director’ in the category of ‘Non-Executive Non-Independent Director’ in the Board.

 Approval of the shareholders is being requested for the appointment of Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale as Director in the Board 

of the Bank.

 Re-appointment

 Mr. Romesh Sobti (DIN: 00031034) has been the Managing Director & CEO of the Bank since February 1, 2008.

 Shareholders of the Bank had, in the 21st AGM held on August 17, 2015, approved the re-appointment of Mr. Romesh 

Sobti as the Managing Director & CEO for a period of three years with effect from February 1, 2015.

 The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board had recommended to the Board of Directors the re-

appointment of Mr. Romesh Sobti as Managing Director & CEO with effect from February 1, 2018.

 Reserve Bank of India have, vide their letter dated January 16, 2018, conveyed their approval for the re-appointment of 

Mr. Romesh Sobti as ‘Managing Director & CEO’ from February 1, 2018 until March 23, 2020.

 Approval of the shareholders is being requested for re-appointment of Mr. Romesh Sobti as Managing Director & CEO of 

the Bank upto March 23, 2020.

 Retirement by Rotation

 Section 152 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that not less than two-thirds of the total number of directors of a 

public company shall be liable to retire by rotation, and that one-third of such directors as are liable to retire by rotation 

shall retire from office at every Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the company.

 In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, out of the Non-Independent Directors, Mr. R. Seshasayee 

(DIN: 00047985), Non-Executive Part-time Chairman of the Bank, being longest in Office, retires by rotation, and 

being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment at the AGM.

 Approval of the shareholders is being requested for re-appointment of Mr. R. Seshasayee as Non-Executive Part-time 

Chairman of the Bank.

 As required under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations, particulars of the Directors seeking appointment, re-

appointment, and retirement by rotation are given in the Explanatory Statement and attached to the Notice of the 

forthcoming AGM.

 None of the Directors have been disqualified from being appointed as ‘Director’, pursuant to Section 164 of the 

Companies Act, 2013.
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(f)  Cessation of Director

 Mr. Vijay Vaid, (DIN: 00219709), who had been a member of the Board as ‘Non-Executive Independent Director’ since 

October 18, 2011, ceased to hold office with effect from February 3, 2018.

 The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the valuable contributions made by Mr. Vijay Vaid towards 

the deliberations in the Board Meetings during his tenure as Director of the Bank.

Board and Committee Meetings

During the year, ten meetings of the Board and ten meetings of the Audit Committee were held, the details of which are given 

in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms an integral part of this Report.

The Board has constituted the Audit Committee with Mr. T. Anantha Narayanan as Chairman and Mrs. Kanchan Chitale, 

Mr. Ranbir Singh Butola, Mr. Shanker Annaswamy and Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale as Members. There have not been any instances 

during the year when recommendations of the Audit Committee were not accepted by the Board.

Details of the composition of the Board and all its Committees and of the Meetings held and attendance of the Directors at 

such Meetings are provided in the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the 

period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations.

Performance Evaluation of the Board

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

of the Board had laid down the criteria for Performance Evaluation of the Board as a whole, Committees of the Board, Directors 

individually, and of the Chairman, as well as the process of evaluation.

The Bank has aligned its Board Evaluation Framework in line with the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by SEBI, under 

their Circular dated January 5, 2017.

The Board of Directors have carried out the annual evaluation of the performance of the Board as a whole, Individual Directors 

including Independent Directors, Non-Independent Directors, the Managing Director & CEO and the Chairman and the 

Committees of the Board.

The performance of the Board as a whole, Committees of the Board, Directors individually, and of the Chairman has been 

evaluated / reviewed by the  Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Committee of Independent Directors and by the Board 

of Directors in their meetings held on May 8, 2018.

The Statement indicating the manner in which the evaluation exercise was conducted is included in the Report on Corporate 

Governance, which forms an integral part of this Annual Report.

System for Internal Financial Controls and its Adequacy

The Bank operates in a fully computerised environment, with a Core Banking Solution, supported by diverse application 

platforms for handling special businesses, such as, Treasury, Trade Finance, Credit Cards, Retail Loans, etc. The process of 

recording of transactions in each of the application platforms is subject to various forms of controls such as in-built system 

checks, Maker – Checker authorisations, independent post-transaction reviews, etc. The Financial Statements are prepared 

based on computer system outputs. The responsibility of preparation of Financial Statements is entrusted to a dedicated unit 

which is completely independent of business, risk, audit or other functions. This unit does not originate accounting entries except 

for limited matters such as Share Capital, Taxes and Transfers to Reserves. The Bank has implemented adequate procedures and 

internal controls which provide reasonable assurance regarding reliability of financial reporting and preparation of Financial 

Statements, and that such internal financial controls were adequate and were operating effectively during the year.
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Conservation of energy and technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo

Conservation of Energy:

Considering the nature of its activities as an entity in the Financial Services sector, the Bank has voluntarily taken steps towards 

conservation of energy and details of which are furnished in Principle 6 of Section E of the Business Responsibility Report.

Technology Absorption:

The Bank has made optimum use of Information Technology in its operations. Details pertaining to Technology Absorption 

have been explained in the Management and Discussion Analysis Report, which forms an integral part of the Annual Report.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

The provisions relating to 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, on particulars relating to Foreign Exchange Earnings and 

Outgo are not applicable to a Banking company, and as such no Disclosure is being made in this regard.

Risk Management

The Bank has an Enterprise-wide Risk Management (ERM) framework in place. The Risk Management Department covers Credit 

Risk, Market Risk, Assets-Liabilities Management (ALM), Operational Risk and Information Security Risk across all verticals, 

independent of business functions.

Risk Management functions in the Bank have been aligned with best industry practices, supported by advanced risk 

measurement and analytical systems which enable proactive risk management and monitoring. Risk Management is 

continually enhanced in line with changes in operating environment and regulations.

The Bank has a comprehensive framework of Risk Management Policies which specify the risk appetite, risk measurement 

methodologies, and monitoring and control measures for the respective business segments. The policies have been designed 

keeping risk appetite as the central objective, and business strategies have been aligned to risk policies.

The Bank has set up a Board-level Committee, viz., ‘Risk Management Committee’ to examine risk policies and procedures 

developed by the Bank and monitor adherence to risk parameters and prudential limits set for different portfolios / products / 

segments.

Details of Risk Management Models and Frameworks implemented by the Bank are mentioned under ‘Management Discussion 

and Analysis’.

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

The Bank has in place the “Whistle Blower Policy” since 2009.

The said Policy is in compliance with RBI Guidelines, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Vigil Mechanism at the Bank requires submission of Quarterly Reviews 

before the Audit Committee of the Board, and placing of Annual Reviews before the Audit Committee and the Board of 

Directors.

The Policy also incorporates suggestions of the Protected Disclosure Scheme for Private Sector and Foreign Banks, instituted 

by Reserve Bank of India.

The Board of Directors of the Bank have constituted a Board-level Committee, viz., the Vigilance Committee, which conducts 

overview of cases of vigilance nature arising out of actions of the employees of the Bank. The Committee meets at least twice 

a year.

The Bank has been awarded the ‘Certificate of Commitment’ by Central Vigilance Commission.

The Bank’s Whistle Blower Policy is in synchrony with all statutory and regulatory guidelines on Vigil Mechanism.

Further details about the Vigil Mechanism are furnished in the Report on Corporate Governance, and the current Whistle 

Blower Policy of the Bank is available on the Bank’s website at the under-mentioned link:

http://www.indusind.com/important-links/other-useful-information.html
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Statutory Auditors

M/s Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, (PW), Mumbai (Firm Registration No. 012754N / N500016), Statutory Auditors 

of the Bank have Audited the accounts of the Bank for the Financial Year 2017-18 and will retire at the conclusion of this Annual 

General Meeting.

M/s Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP have been associated with the Bank as Statutory Auditors for the past three 

years.

Independent Auditors’ Report

M/s Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Statutory Auditors of the Bank, have audited the accounts of the Bank for 

the year 2017-18 and their Report is annexed. Pursuant to Section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory Auditors 

have also reported on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls system over financial reporting, 

which has been enclosed as ‘Annexure A’ to the Independent Auditors’ Report.

Significant Audit observations, if any, and corrective actions taken by the Management are presented to the Audit Committee 

of the Board from time to time.

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made in the Auditors’ Report.

Secretarial Audit

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Bank has appointed M/s Bhandari & Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice, to undertake 

Secretarial Audit of the Bank for the FY 2017-18. The Secretarial Audit Report submitted by M/s Bhandari & Associates is 

furnished at Annexure I, and forms an integral part of this Report.

The Secretarial Audit Report submitted by Bhandari & Associates for FY 2017-18 does not contain any qualification, reservation 

or adverse remark.

Statutory Disclosures

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo pursuant to 

Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is given in the 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report. Also, the other Statutory Information / Disclosures required to be given under 

the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable to the Bank, have been laid out in the Schedules 

/ Notes attached and form part of the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account.

Details pursuant to remuneration of Directors and Employees in terms of Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 including the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016, are given at Annexure II and form an 

integral part of this Report.

The information relating to employees required to be furnished under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder 

is given under the head ‘Particulars of Employees’ later in this Report.

Employees Stock Option Scheme

The Bank had instituted the Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS-2007) to enable its employees, including Whole -time 

Directors, to participate in the future growth of the Bank. Under the Scheme, Options can be granted, which upon exercise 

from time to time could give rise to the issuance of a number of shares up to 7% of the issued Equity Capital of the Bank. The 

eligibility and number of Options to be granted to an employee is determined on the basis of criteria laid down in the Scheme 

and is approved by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors.

An aggregate of 4,16,33,300 Options, comprising 6.94% of the Bank’s Equity Capital, have been granted under the Scheme. 

Statutory disclosures as required by SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 are given at Annexure III, and 

form an integral part of this Report.
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The Annual Certificate on compliance with SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014, issued by Statutory 

Auditors of the Bank is being placed before Members in the ensuing AGM.

The Employees Stock Option Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board.

Disclosure on compliance with Secretarial Standards

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards 

and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them, the Directors 

make the following statement in terms of Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013:

(a) that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2018, the applicable Accounting 

Standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

(b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements have been selected and applied 

consistently and that judgments and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank as at March 31, 2018 and of the profit of the Bank for the year ended on that 

date;

(c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and for preventing and detecting 

frauds and other irregularities;

(d) that the Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis;

(e) that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and operating 

effectively; and

(f ) that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were adequate and 

operating effectively.

Extract of Annual Return

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9, as required under Section 92(3) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, are included in this Report as 

Annexure IV and form an integral part of the Annual Report.

Particulars of Employees

The Bank had 25,284 employees on its rolls as on March 31, 2018.

59 employees who had been employed throughout the year were in receipt of remuneration of ` 1.02 crores per annum or 

more, and only 1 employee employed for part of the year was in receipt of remuneration of ` 8.50 lakhs per month or more.

The information containing particulars of employees pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) 

of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms part of this Report. However, 

the above Annexure is not being sent along with this Annual Report to the Members of the Bank in line with the provision 

of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013. Members who are interested in obtaining the particulars may please write to the 

Company Secretary at the Secretarial and Investor Services Office of the Bank. The aforesaid Annexure is also available for 

inspection by Members at the Registered Office of the Bank up to the date of this Annual General Meeting during business 

hours on working days.

None of the employees hold (by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children) more than two percent of the Equity 

Shares of the Bank.
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Policy on Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors

Until the Financial Year 2015-16, all Non-Executive Directors, including the Non-Executive Part-time Chairman, received 

remuneration only by way of Sitting Fees for attending the meetings of the Board and of various Board Committees.

In line with the guidelines contained in RBI Circular dated June 1, 2015 on compensation of Non-Executive Directors of Private 

Sector Banks, the Board of Directors, on the basis of the recommendations of the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee 

(since re-named as ‘Nomination & Remuneration Committee’), in their meeting held on May 12, 2016, approved the payment 

of remuneration of ̀  25 lakhs per annum with effect from April 1, 2016 to Mr. R. Seshasayee, Non-Executive Part-time Chairman 

(subject to approval of Reserve Bank of India, which has since been received) and to the Non-Executive Directors (other than 

the Non-Executive Part-time Chairman) in the form of Profit-related Commission of ` 10 lakhs per annum for each Director, in 

such manner as may be decided by the Board of Directors.

Shareholders had, in the 22nd Annual General Meeting of the Bank held on July 1, 2016, accorded their approval for payment 

of the above-mentioned remuneration in the form of Profit-related Commission to the Non-Executive Directors, including 

to the Non-Executive Part-time Chairman, for FY 2016-17. The Non-Executive Directors, including the Non-Executive Part-

time Chairman, accordingly received remuneration in the form of Profit-related Commission, in addition to Sitting Fees for 

attending meetings of the Board and of various Board Committees.

No Stock Options were granted to the Non-Executive Directors.

During FY 2016-17, the Board of Directors have, on the recommendations of the HR & Remuneration Committee (since 

re-named as ‘Nomination and Remuneration Committee’) formulated the ‘Policy on Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors’, 

including the Non-Executive Part-time Chairman.

During the Financial Year 2017-18, the Board reviewed the ‘Policy on Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors’. The Policy is 

hosted on the Bank’s website at the link given below:

http://www.indusind.com/important-links/other-useful-information.html

The Board of Directors have also formulated a Policy in relation to Key Management Personnel and Senior Management 

personnel of the Bank. The said Policy is given under ‘Disclosure on Remuneration’ at Note No. 12.6 of the Notes in Schedule 18 

to the Financial Statements, which forms an integral part of this Annual Report.

Details on compensation to Whole-time Directors are given under the Report on Corporate Governance, that forms an integral 

part of this Report.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments outstanding

Section 186(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 mandates that the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, except 

sub-section (1), do not apply to a loan made, guarantee given or security provided by a banking company in the ordinary 

course of business. The particulars of loans made, guarantees given and investments made by the Bank are disclosed in the 

Financial Statements as per the applicable provisions of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties

All transactions entered with ‘Related Parties’ during the year under review were on ‘arm’s length basis’ and in the ‘ordinary 

course of business’ and therefore do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Further, there are no materially significant Related Party Transactions during the year with any of the Related Parties, viz., 

Promoters, Directors and Key Management Personnel and other related entities including IMFS, an Associate Company, which 

may have potential conflict with the interest of the Bank at large.

In view of the above, the disclosure under Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Bank.

The Policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board of Directors is hosted on the Bank’s website at the below 

given link:

http://www.indusind.com/content/home/important-links/other-useful-information.html
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Consolidated Financial Statements

In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Act, Consolidated Financial Statement of IndusInd Bank Limited (‘the Bank’) and 

IndusInd Marketing and Financial Services Private Limited (“the Associate”) has been prepared and is included in the Annual 

Report.

In terms of AS 23, the Bank has prepared the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018, wherein 

the Standalone Financial Statements of the Bank as of that date are consolidated with that of IMFS, an associate in which the 

Bank has a 30% stake, by adopting ‘Equity Method’.

Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) issued Circular No. DBR.BP.BC.No.76/21.07.001/2015-16 on February 11, 2016, requiring 

scheduled commercial banks to comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) for accounting periods beginning from 

April 1, 2018 onwards, with comparatives for periods ending on or after March 31, 2018.

RBI, on April 5, 2018, through announcement in its first Monetary Policy Statement for FY 2018-19, deferred Ind AS 

implementation for the scheduled commercial banks (excluding RRBs) by one year such that the implementation of Ind AS 

would begin from April 1, 2019 onwards, with comparatives for the year beginning April 1, 2018.

Pursuant to the RBI Circular dated February 11, 2016, the Bank formed a Steering Committee, comprising members from cross-

functional areas, for the purpose of reviewing and monitoring the progress of implementation. The Bank set up a Working 

Group under the guidance of the Steering Committee to conduct Gap Assessment to identify the differences between the 

current accounting framework and Ind AS, including the identification of the accounting policy options provided under Ind AS 

101, First Time Adoption. Besides augmenting skilled resources within the Financial Reporting team, the Bank also engaged 

the services of leading professionals with international experience to assist in the project. Training programs were organized 

for the team members in the Business, Credit and Finance Teams. The Bank is in the process of identifying the changes required 

to be made to its systems and processes and is evaluating technology solutions.

The Audit Committee of the Bank’s Board of Directors oversees the progress of the Ind AS implementation process.

Some of the areas of significant accounting impact pursuant to the application of Ind AS are summarized below:

(a)  Accounting impact on account of application of Ind AS at the date of transition, i.e. April 1, 2018 will be recognized in 

equity or other components of equity. 

(b) The classification and measurement of financial assets will be driven by the Bank’s business model for managing 

those assets and the characteristics of the contractual cash flows of the assets. All financial assets will be classified 

as subsequently measured at amortised cost, Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) or Fair Value 

through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). 

(c) Financial Instruments would be derecognised on transfer of significant risks and rewards, and not based on the legal 

form of the arrangement.

(d) Interest will be recognised in the Income Statement using the effective interest method and any directly attributable 

fees and costs would be considered to be an adjustment to the effective interest rate. 

(e) All Derivatives would be required to be fair-valued and recognised on the Bank’s Balance Sheet. 

(f ) Expense for Stock Options will be recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss based on the Fair Value of the Options. 

(g) Impairment requirements for financial assets carried at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 

income, including certain off Balance Sheet items are based on an Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model. The Bank will be 

required to recognise either a 12-months’ or lifetime ECL, depending on whether there has been a significant increase in 

Credit Risk since initial recognition. This will be significantly different from the current methodology for calculating the 

provision for Standard Assets and Non-Performing Assets (NPAs). The Bank has developed models for computation of 

ECL and is testing the same. 
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 In addition to the above, as per Reserve Bank of India directions, the Bank submitted Standalone proforma Ind AS 

financial statements along with other computations to the RBI for the half-year ended September 30, 2016 in FY 2016-

17 and for the quarter ended June 30, 2017 in FY 2017-18, as required.

Corporate Social Responsibility

In line with its CSR focus areas, the Bank has committed to various long term community development projects that have a 

large positive impact. Consistent with the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and CSR Rules 2014, the 

Bank has set up a Board-level CSR Committee to review the CSR initiatives. The Committee is headed by Mrs. Kanchan Chitale 

as the Chairperson,  Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale (inducted in the Committee on March 26, 2018) and Mr. Romesh Sobti as Members. 

Mr. Vijay Vaid ceased to be a Member, on his retirement from the Board on February 3, 2018.

The composition of the CSR Committee is in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Bank’s CSR Policy and strategy direct and govern the Bank’s activities in focus areas, namely, Environmental Sustainability, 

Rural Development and Inclusiveness, Preventive Healthcare and other areas of special interest that include Education, Sports 

and Heritage.

In FY 2017-18, in line with the agenda on digitization, the Bank pledged support to the PM’s initiative of digitizing Rural India 

by reaching out to 2 lakh candidates across 275 districts in 11 Indian states of Haryana, Punjab, Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh, 

Maharashtra, Gujarat, Jharkhand, Chhattisgarh, West Bengal, Odisha and Uttar Pradesh. The Bank has also initiated a flagship 

solid waste segregation and management programme in partnership with the Government of Uttarakhand. Adding on to the 

two on-going flagship sports projects namely the Para-Champions and the Blind Cricket Programme, the Bank introduced the 

IndusInd Girl Power Programme in FY 2017-18 that supports woman athletes across Judo, Boxing and Wrestling to represent 

India in reputed sports tournaments.

During the year under review, the Bank has also introduced a unique project involving the rehabilitation and skill development 

of women rescued from trafficking in Bihar.

The CSR Initiatives / Projects undertaken by the Bank are in accordance with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

Companies, on the basis of criteria prescribed under Section 135 of the Act, are required to spend at least Two per cent of 

their Average Net Profits made during the three immediately preceding financial years, in pursuance of their Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy. Accordingly, the Bank spent ` 20.47 crores towards various CSR activities specified in Schedule VII of 

the Companies Act, 2013. The programmes are of large scale and hence the absorption of funds is milestone-linked for larger 

impact.

The Bank also recognises and addresses environmental issues like climate change and global warming and measures its carbon 

footprint. The Bank currently features in the ‘A’ list of the CDP, a platform that is widely referred by global Investors. The Bank 

is also a front-runner, investing in on-site solar energy solutions and LEED-Certified green buildings. While these investments 

have not been considered as part of our reported spend this year, it has had substantial impact on the environment, in line with 

global targets of the UN Sustainable Development Goals.

The Report on CSR activities undertaken by the Bank is set out at Annexure V and forms an integral part of this Report.

Details of the CSR Policy and initiatives adopted by the Bank on CSR are available on Bank’s website at the link given below:

http://www.indusind.com/content/csr-home/our-approach/csr-policy.html

Business Responsibility Report (BRR)

The Securities & Exchange Board of India have, vide their Circular dated December 22, 2015, mandated Top 500 Listed entities 

to include the ‘Business Responsibility Report’ (BRR) as part of the Annual Report, describing the initiatives taken by the listed 

entity from an environmental, social and governance perspective, in the format as specified by SEBI.

In view of the above and in compliance with Regulation 34(2) of the Listing Regulations, BRR of the Bank has been furnished at 

Annexure VI and forms an integral part of this Report.
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance is essentially a set of standards, systems, and procedures aimed at effective, honest, transparent, and 

responsible management of a company within the applicable statutory and regulatory structures.

The Bank has adopted the industry best practices of Corporate Governance and aims to continue banking on the highest 

principles of governance and ethics. At IndusInd, Corporate Governance is more than just adherence to the statutory and 

regulatory requirements. It is equally about focusing on voluntary practices that underlie the highest levels of transparency.

The Governance framework is driven by the objective of enhancing long-term stakeholder value, without compromising on 

Ethical Standards and Corporate Social Responsibilities.

The Bank’s guiding principles are also articulated through its Code of Business Conduct and various initiatives taken to maintain 

transparency by communicating with the Shareholders on developments in the Bank. The Bank has also set up various sub-

Committees of the Board to bring in more efficacy and transparency in its working.

The Bank continues to focus on better, complete and timely disclosures to the Stock Exchanges for dissemination to the 

Stakeholders.

Further complete disclosures regarding Corporate Governance are provided in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms 

an integral part of this Annual Report.

Certificate from M/s Bhandari & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries confirming compliance with the conditions of 

Corporate Governance stipulated under Schedule V of the Listing Regulations is attached as Annexure VII and forms part of 

this Annual Report.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report, as prescribed under Regulation 34(2) of the Listing Regulations, forms part 

of the Annual Report.

Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts

There are no significant and material Orders passed by the Regulators / Courts that would impact the ‘going concern’ status of 

the Bank and its futures operations.

Awards and Accolades

During the year under review, the Bank has received many awards and accolades for excellence in managing IT Risk, Marketing 

and Communications, CSR Initiatives, Safety and Security, Best Data Quality and Information Technology and for Innovations, 

etc.

Mr. Romesh Sobti, Managing Director & CEO, was awarded as the ‘Best Banker’ at the BW Businessworld Magna Awards 2017. 

He was also bestowed with the prestigious Business Today’s ‘Best CEO Award’.

Brief details of various awards are covered in the initial pages and in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report which 

forms an integral part of this Annual Report.

Cautionary Statement

Certain statements in the ‘Directors’ Report’ and in the ‘Management Discussion and Analysis’ describing the Bank’s objectives, 

estimates and expectations may be ‘forward-looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable Securities Laws and 

Regulations. Actual results could differ substantially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make 

a difference include economic conditions in the domestic and overseas markets, changes in Laws / Regulations, and other 

incidental factors.
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Material events that have happened after the Balance Sheet date

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Bank have occurred between the end of the 

financial year of the company to which the Financial Statements relate and the date of this Report.

Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace

The Bank has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace, in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at 

Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder.

The Policy aims to provide protection to women employees at the workplace and prevent and redress complaints of sexual 

harassment and for matters connected or incidental thereto, with the objective of providing a safe working environment.

The Bank has also constituted Internal Complaints Committees, to enquire into the complaints of sexual harassment and 

recommend appropriate action.

The Bank has received 7 complaints alleging sexual harassment at workplace during the financial year 2017-18. The status of 

the same is as under.

No. of cases  

received during  

the year

No. of cases  

closed during  

the year

No. of cases pending for  

investigation at the end of  

the year

7 7 NIL
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ANNEXURE I TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FORM NO. MR-3

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

INDUSIND BANK LIMITED

CIN: L65191PN1994PLC076333

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate practices by IndusInd Bank Limited (hereinafter called “the Bank”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 

that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion 

thereon.

Based on our verification of the Bank’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 

the Bank and also the information provided by the Bank, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct 

of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Bank has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year 

ended on March 31, 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Bank has proper Board-

processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Bank for the 

Financial Year ended on March 31, 2018 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 

Investment and External Commercial Borrowings. The Bank does not have any Overseas Direct Investment during the 

Financial Year.

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 

Act’):-

 a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

 b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

 c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

 d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

 e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

 f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 

regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

 g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009#; and

 h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998# ;

# The Regulations or Guidelines, as the case may be were not applicable for the period under review.

The list of Acts, Laws and Regulations specifically applicable to the Bank are given below:

vi. The Banking Regulation Act, 1949.
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
[“Listing Regulations”].

During the period under review, the Bank has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, 
etc. mentioned above, to the extent applicable.

We further report that -

The Board of Directors of the Bank is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive and 
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at 
least seven days in advance for meetings other then those held at shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

During the period under review, decisions were carried through unanimously and no dissenting views were observed, while 
reviewing the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Bank commensurate with the size and operations of 
the Bank to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the Bank has undertaken following events / actions –

1. Member’s approval has been obtained at the 23rd Annual General Meeting held on July 26, 2017, inter alia for:

 a) Approval for borrowing of monies pursuant to Section 180 (1) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the total amount of 
such borrowings outstanding at any time not exceeding ` 50,000 crores.

 b) Approval for Borrowings / raising of Funds by the Bank pursuant to the provisions of Section 42, 71 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in the Indian / Foreign currency, by way of issue of Securities in the nature of Bonds / 
Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) i.e. Long-Term Bonds including Infrastructure Bonds / Subordinated Non-
Convertible Debentures or Bonds eligible to be included in the Additional Tier I and Tier II Capital of the Bank 
aggregating upto an amount not exceeding ` 10,000 crores on Private Placement basis.

2. The Bank has issued and allotted 10,000 Rated, Listed, Non-Convertible, Perpetual, Subordinated & Unsecured BASEL 
III-compliant Additional Tier I Bonds (AT-1 Bonds) in the nature of Debentures of Face Value of ` 10,00,000/- each at par 
on April 18, 2017 for an issue size of ` 1,000 crores on Private Placement basis.

3. Board of Directors of the Bank at its meeting held on October 14, 2017, subject to requisite approval of the members and 
regulatory authorities has approved the Composite Scheme of Arrangement involving -

 a) The Amalgamation of Bharat Financial Inclusion Limited (formerly known as SKS Microfinance Limited) 
(Amalgamating Company) with the Bank.

 b) The transfer, pursuant to the Amalgamation, of the undertaking of the Business Correspondent business, as a 
going concern from the Bank to the Wholly Owned Subsidiary to be incorporated by the Bank by way of Slump 
Exchange.

 c) The Preferential allotment of Warrants to the Promoters of the Bank pursuant to the Scheme.

For Bhandari & Associates
Company Secretaries

S. N. Bhandari
Partner

FCS No: 761; C P No. : 366

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 5, 2018

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure ‘A’ and forms an integral part of this report.
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To,

The Members,

INDUSIND BANK LIMITED

CIN: L65191PN1994PLC076333

Our Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2018 of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Bank our responsibility is to express an 

opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 

are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis 

for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Bank.

4. Whereever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations, Standards is the 

responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Bank nor of the efficacy or effectiveness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Bank.

For Bhandari & Associates

Company Secretaries

S. N. Bhandari

Partner

FCS No: 761; C P No. : 366

Place : Mumbai

Date : May 5, 2018

ANNEXURE A TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
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ANNEXURE II TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The details pursuant to Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

 The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Bank for the Financial 

Year is given below:

Name Ratio

Mr. Romesh Sobti, Managing Director & CEO 127x

Mr. R. Seshasayee, Non-Executive Part-time Chairman 6.58x

 # The ratio of remuneration paid to Mr. R. Seshasayee is based on payment of Profit-related Commission of `25 lakhs per 

annum, and does not include the Sitting Fees paid.

 Details about Remuneration paid to the Managing Director & CEO are given in the Report on Corporate Governance, 

under the heading ‘Compensation to Whole-time Directors’, which forms an integral part of the Annual Report.

 From April 2016, in addition to the Sitting Fees paid for attending the meetings of the Board and of various Committees 

of the Board, all Non-Executive Directors (other than the Chairman) received remuneration in the form of Profit-related 

Commission of `10 lakhs per annum, in line with RBI Guidelines and on the basis of Members’ approval in the 22nd AGM 

held on July 1, 2016.

 Mr. R. Seshasayee, Non-Executive Part-time Chairman received remuneration of `25 lakhs in FY 2017-18 in the form of 

Profit-related Commission as approved by the Reserve Bank of India, and by Members in the 22nd AGM of the Bank.

 The ratio of remuneration to Non-Executive Directors to the median remuneration of the employees of the Bank for the 

Financial Year is 2.63x.

 Percentage increase in remuneration of Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary in the 

Financial Year :

Name Percentage

Mr. Romesh Sobti, Managing Director & CEO 7%

Mr. S. V. Zaregaonkar, Chief Financial Officer 27%

Mr. Haresh Gajwani, Company Secretary 13%

 The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year:

 The median of fixed remuneration of the employees in the Financial Year increased by about 7.47%.

 The calculation of % increase in median of fixed remuneration of employees covers only those employees who received 

increments in the Financial Year.

 The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Bank:

 There were 25,284 employees on the rolls of the Bank as on March 31, 2018.

 Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 

Financial Year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof 

and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

 - All employees in the Bank are under Managerial Cadre, categorized into Grade Bands of Top Management, Senior 

Management, Middle Management and Junior Management. Hence, this section is not applicable to the Bank.

 We affirm that the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Employees is as per the 

Remuneration Policy of the Bank.

 Note:

 Remuneration of KMPs is as per Form 16 (on an annualised basis), excluding Stock Options exercised, since Options do 

not form part of total cost to the Bank.



35

ANNEXURE III TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 D
is

cl
o

su
re

s 
R

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 E
S

O
P

s 
( 

F
o

rm
in

g
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 D
ir

e
ct

o
rs

’ R
e

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 M

a
rc

h
 3

1
, 2

0
1

8
)

S
l.

 

N
o

.

P
a

rt
ic

u
la

rs
E

S
O

P
 2

0
0

7
 

(U
p

to
 

M
a

rc
h

  

3
1

, 2
0

1
8

)

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

G
ra

n
te

d
 

o
n

 A
p

ri
l 

1
9

, 2
0

1
7

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

G
ra

n
te

d
 

o
n

 M
a

y
 

9
, 2

0
1

7

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

G
ra

n
te

d
 

o
n

 J
u

n
e

 

1
9

, 2
0

1
7

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

G
ra

n
te

d
 

o
n

 J
u

ly
 

1
1

, 2
0

1
7

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

G
ra

n
te

d
 

o
n

 

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

1
2

, 2
0

1
7

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

G
ra

n
te

d
 

o
n

 

Ja
n

u
a

ry
 

1
1

, 2
0

1
8

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

G
ra

n
te

d
 

o
n

 M
a

rc
h

 

2
7

, 2
0

1
8

1
N

o
. o

f 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
g

ra
n

te
d

4
,1

6
,3

3
,3

0
0

1
6

,0
0

0
6

9
,0

0
0

3
8

,5
0

0
3

5
,0

0
0

6
9

,0
0

0
4

3
,0

0
0

1
5

,2
3

,0
0

0

2
N

o
. o

f 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
su

rr
e

n
d

e
re

d
 (

ca
n

ce
lle

d
)

2
0

,8
7

,3
9

9
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

,0
0

0

3
P

ri
ci

n
g

 F
o

rm
u

la
O

p
ti

o
n

s 
g

ra
n

te
d

 a
t 

m
a

rk
e

t 
p

ri
ce

, e
xc

e
p

t 
so

m
e

 o
p

ti
o

n
s 

g
ra

n
te

d
 o

n
 J

u
ly

 1
8

, 2
0

0
8

, J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
8

, 

2
0

1
0

, F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 7
, 2

0
1

1
, J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

9
, 2

0
1

4
 a

n
d

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 1
2

, 2
0

1
6

 a
re

 a
t 

d
is

co
u

n
t 

to
 m

a
rk

e
t 

p
ri

ce
.

4
N

o
. o

f 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
V

e
st

e
d

3
,5

3
,3

7
,7

9
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

5
N

o
. o

f 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
E

xe
rc

is
e

d
2

,8
2

,2
6

,0
4

7
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
N

o
. o

f 
sh

a
re

s 
a

ri
si

n
g

 a
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt
 o

f 
e

xe
rc

is
e

 o
f 

o
p

ti
o

n
s

2
,8

2
,2

6
,0

4
7

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

7
O

p
ti

o
n

s 
La

p
se

d
2

,9
8

0
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

8
V

a
ri

a
ti

o
n

 in
 t

e
rm

s 
o

f 
E

S
O

P
N

.A
.

-
-

-
-

-
0

-

9
M

o
n

e
y 

re
a

lis
e

d
 f

ro
m

 e
xe

rc
is

e
 o

f 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
(`

 In
 L

a
k

h
s)

4
6

,8
0

2
.2

9
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

1
0

To
ta

l N
o

. o
f 

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

in
 f

o
rc

e
1

,1
3

,1
6

,8
7

4
1

6
,0

0
0

6
9

,0
0

0
3

8
,5

0
0

3
5

,0
0

0
6

9
,0

0
0

4
3

,0
0

0
1

5
,1

7
,0

0
0

1
1

E
m

p
lo

ye
e

-w
is

e
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
g

ra
n

te
d

 t
o

:

(a
) 

K
e

y 
M

a
n

a
g

e
ri

a
l 

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l, 

i.e
., 

M
a

n
a

g
in

g
 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

&
 

C
E

O
, 

C
h

ie
f 

Fi
n

a
n

ci
a

l 
O

ffi
ce

r 
a

n
d

 

C
o

m
p

a
n

y 
S

e
cr

e
ta

ry

5
4

,4
3

,0
0

0
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

(b
) 

A
n

y 
o

th
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
ye

e
 w

h
o

 r
e

ce
iv

e
s 

a
 g

ra
n

t 
in

 

a
n

y 
o

n
e

 y
e

a
r 

o
f 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

a
m

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 t
o

 5
%

 o
r 

m
o

re
 o

f 
th

e
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
g

ra
n

te
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r.

 

(R
e

fe
r 

Ta
b

le
 A

)

4
4

,6
0

,0
0

0
-

-
-

(c
) 

Id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s 
w

h
o

 
w

e
re

 
g

ra
n

te
d

 

o
p

ti
o

n
, 

d
u

ri
n

g
 

a
n

y 
o

n
e

 
ye

a
r 

e
q

u
a

l 
to

 
o

r 

e
xc

e
e

d
in

g
 1

%
 o

f 
th

e
 i

ss
u

e
d

 c
a

p
it

a
l 

(e
xc

lu
d

in
g

 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 w
a

rr
a

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

ve
rs

io
n

s)
 o

f 
th

e
 

B
a

n
k 

a
t 

th
e

 t
im

e
 o

f 
g

ra
n

t.

N
il

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

1
2

D
ilu

te
d

 E
a

rn
in

g
s 

p
e

r 
sh

a
re

 (
E

P
S

) 
p

u
rs

u
a

n
t 

to
 i

ss
u

e
 

o
f 

sh
a

re
s 

o
n

 e
xe

rc
is

e
 o

f 
o

p
ti

o
n

, 
ca

lc
u

la
te

d
 a

s 
p

e
r 

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 (
A

S
) 

2
0

- “
E

a
rn

in
g

 P
e

r 
S

h
a

re
”

T
h

e
 D

ilu
te

d
 E

P
S

 o
f 

th
e

 B
a

n
k 

ca
lc

u
la

te
d

 a
ft

e
r 

co
n

si
d

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 e

ff
e

ct
 o

f 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l e

q
u

it
y 

sh
a

re
s 

a
ri

si
n

g
 o

n
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
e

xe
rc

is
e

 o
f 

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

is
 `

 5
9

.5
7

.



36

Annual Report 2017-18

S
l.

 

N
o

.

P
a

rt
ic

u
la

rs
E

S
O

P
 2

0
0

7
 

(U
p

to
 

M
a

rc
h

  

3
1

, 2
0

1
8

)

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

G
ra

n
te

d
 

o
n

 A
p

ri
l 

1
9

, 2
0

1
7

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

G
ra

n
te

d
 

o
n

 M
a

y
 

9
, 2

0
1

7

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

G
ra

n
te

d
 

o
n

 J
u

n
e

 

1
9

, 2
0

1
7

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

G
ra

n
te

d
 

o
n

 J
u

ly
 

1
1

, 2
0

1
7

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

G
ra

n
te

d
 

o
n

 

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

1
2

, 2
0

1
7

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

G
ra

n
te

d
 

o
n

 

Ja
n

u
a

ry
 

1
1

, 2
0

1
8

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

G
ra

n
te

d
 

o
n

 M
a

rc
h

 

2
7

, 2
0

1
8

1
3

W
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
a

n
y 

h
a

s 
ca

lc
u

la
te

d
 t

h
e

 e
m

p
lo

ye
e

 

co
m

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
 c

o
st

 u
si

n
g

 t
h

e
 i

n
tr

in
si

c 
v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

st
o

ck
 o

p
ti

o
n

s,
 t

h
e

 d
iff

e
re

n
ce

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 e

m
p

lo
ye

e
 

co
m

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
 c

o
st

 s
o

 c
o

m
p

u
te

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 e

m
p

lo
ye

e
 

co
m

p
e

n
sa

ti
o

n
 c

o
st

 t
h

a
t 

sh
a

ll 
h

av
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

co
g

n
iz

e
d

 

if
 

it
 

h
a

d
 

u
se

d
 

th
e

 
fa

ir
 

v
a

lu
e

 
o

f 
o

p
ti

o
n

s,
 

sh
a

ll 
b

e
 

d
is

cl
o

se
d

. 
T

h
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
th

is
 d

iff
e

re
n

ce
 o

n
 p

ro
fi

ts
 

a
n

d
 o

n
 E

P
S

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

m
p

a
n

y 
sh

a
ll 

a
ls

o
 b

e
 d

is
cl

o
se

d

T
h

e
 B

a
n

k 
h

a
s 

ch
a

rg
e

d
 `

 1
.2

1
 c

ro
re

s 
to

 t
h

e
 P

ro
fi

t 
a

n
d

 L
o

ss
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
b

e
in

g
 t

h
e

 i
n

tr
in

si
c 

v
a

lu
e

 

o
f 

st
o

ck
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
g

ra
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

e
d

 M
a

rc
h

 3
1

, 2
0

1
8

. H
a

d
 t

h
e

 B
a

n
k 

a
d

o
p

te
d

 t
h

e
 B

la
ck

 

S
ch

o
le

s 
m

o
d

e
l 

b
a

se
d

 f
a

ir
 v

a
lu

a
ti

o
n

, 
co

m
p

e
n

sa
ti

o
n

 c
o

st
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 M

a
rc

h
 3

1
, 

2
0

1
8

, 

w
o

u
ld

 h
av

e
 i

n
cr

e
a

se
d

 b
y 

` 
6

8
.8

1
 c

ro
re

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
fo

rm
a

 p
ro

fi
t 

a
ft

e
r 

ta
x 

w
o

u
ld

 h
av

e
 b

e
e

n
 

lo
w

e
r 

b
y 

` 
4

4
.9

9
 c

ro
re

s.
 O

n
 a

 p
ro

fo
rm

a
 b

a
si

s,
 t

h
e

 b
a

si
c 

a
n

d
 d

ilu
te

d
 e

a
rn

in
g

s 
p

e
r 

sh
a

re
 w

o
u

ld
 

h
av

e
 b

e
e

n
 `

 5
9

.4
4

 a
n

d
 `

 5
8

.8
2

, r
e

sp
e

ct
iv

e
ly

.

1
4

W
e

ig
h

te
d

 
av

e
ra

g
e

 
e

xe
rc

is
e

 
p

ri
ce

s 
a

n
d

 
w

e
ig

h
te

d
 

av
e

ra
g

e
 

fa
ir

 
v

a
lu

e
s 

o
f 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

sh
a

ll 
b

e
 

d
is

cl
o

se
d

 

se
p

a
ra

te
ly

 f
o

r 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
w

h
o

se
 e

xe
rc

is
e

 p
ri

ce
 e

it
h

e
r 

e
q

u
a

ls
 o

r 
e

xc
e

e
d

s 
o

r 
is

 l
e

ss
 t

h
a

n
 t

h
e

 m
a

rk
e

t 
p

ri
ce

 o
f 

th
e

 s
to

ck

T
h

e
 w

e
ig

h
te

d
 a

ve
ra

g
e

 m
a

rk
e

t 
p

ri
ce

 o
f 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

e
xe

rc
is

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

is
 `

 1
,6

2
6

.0
8

  

G
ra

n
ts

 w
h

o
se

 E
xe

rc
is

e
 P

ri
ce

 e
q

u
a

ls
 m

a
rk

e
t 

p
ri

ce
: 

T
h

e
 w

e
ig

h
te

d
 a

ve
ra

g
e

 e
xe

rc
is

e
 p

ri
ce

 o
f 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

g
ra

n
te

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
is

 `
 1

,7
3

2
.2

0
 

T
h

e
 w

e
ig

h
te

d
 a

ve
ra

g
e

 f
a

ir
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
g

ra
n

te
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

is
 `

 5
9

3
.3

7
 

G
ra

n
ts

 w
h

o
se

 E
xe

rc
is

e
 p

ri
ce

 is
 le

ss
 t

h
a

n
 m

a
rk

e
t 

p
ri

ce
: N

.A
.

1
5

A
 

d
e

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
o

f 
th

e
 

m
e

th
o

d
 

a
n

d
 

si
g

n
ifi

ca
n

t 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
u

se
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

to
 e

st
im

a
te

 t
h

e
 fa

ir
 

v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

O
p

ti
o

n
s,

 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 w
e

ig
h

te
d

-

av
e

ra
g

e
 in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

:

T
h

e
 f

a
ir

 v
a

lu
e

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d

 u
si

n
g

 t
h

e
 B

la
ck

 S
ch

o
le

s 
O

p
ti

o
n

 P
ri

ci
n

g
 m

o
d

e
l.

R
is

k 
Fr

e
e

 In
te

re
st

 R
at

e
6

.7
8

%
6

.8
8

%
6

.5
4

%
6

.5
5

%
6

.6
6

%
7

.1
6

%
7

.2
3

%

E
xp

e
ct

e
d

 L
if

e
4

.5
2

4
.5

2
4

.5
2

4
.5

2
4

.5
2

4
.5

2
4

.5
2

E
xp

e
ct

e
d

 V
o

la
ti

lit
y

2
8

.9
4

%
2

8
.8

1
%

2
8

.3
6

%
2

8
.1

8
%

2
7

.4
2

%
2

6
.7

7
%

2
5

.6
0

%

D
iv

id
e

n
d

 Y
ie

ld
0

.3
1

%
0

.3
2

%
0

.3
0

%
0

.3
8

%
0

.3
5

%
0

.3
5

%
0

.3
4

%

P
ri

ce
 o

f 
th

e
 u

n
d

e
rl

yi
n

g
 s

h
a

re
 i

n
 t

h
e

 m
a

rk
e

t 
a

t 
th

e
 

ti
m

e
 o

f 
o

p
ti

o
n

 g
ra

n
t 

(`
).

1
,4

3
1

.7
5

1
,4

2
4

.8
5

1
,4

9
8

.9
0

1
,5

5
9

.8
0

1
,7

1
7

.2
5

1
,7

3
4

.1
0

1
,7

5
9

.7
5

T
a

b
le

 “
A

” 
A

n
y 

o
th

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

 w
h

o
 r

e
ce

iv
e

s 
a

 g
ra

n
t 

in
 a

n
y 

o
n

e
 y

e
a

r 
o

f 
O

p
ti

o
n

s 
a

m
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 t

o
 5

%
 o

r 
m

o
re

 

o
f 

th
e

 O
p

ti
o

n
s 

g
ra

n
te

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r

N
IL

N
a

m
e

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

g
ra

n
te

d
:

N
o

te
 t

o
 “

T
a

b
le

 A
”

N
IL



37

ANNEXURE IV TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2018

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. Registration and other details:

CIN L65191PN1994PLC076333

Registration Date January 31, 1994

Name of the Company IndusInd Bank Limited

Category / Sub-Category of the Company Company Limited by Shares 

 Indian non Government Company

Address of the Registered Office and Contact details 2401 General Thimmayya Road, Cantonment, Pune – 411001

Tel. No.: 020 – 2623 4000/10 

Email: investor@indusind.com

Website: www.indusind.com

Whether listed company Yes

Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and 

Transfer Agent, if any

LINK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg,

Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083

Tel No.: 022 – 49186280, 49186000

Fax : 022 49186060

Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Website: www.linkintime.co.in

II. Principal Business Activities of the company

 All the Business Activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company are:-

Sr. 

No.

Name and Description of main 

products / services

NIC Code of the Product/ service % to total turnover of the 

company

1. Banking Services 64191 100%

III. Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies

Sr. 

No.

Name and Address of the 

Company

CIN / GLN Holding/ 

Subsidiary/ 

Associate

% of shares 

held

Applicable 

section

1 IndusInd Marketing and 

Financial Services Private 

Limited

Address: No.115 & 116 G N 

Chetty Road, T Nagar, Chennai – 

600017, Tamil Nadu

U67190TN2002PTC048590 Associate 30 2(6)
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IV Share holding pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

 i) Category-wise Shareholding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year 

(April 1, 2017)

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 

(March 31, 2018)

% Change 

during the 

yearDemat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) State Govt.(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f ) Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total (A) (1):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs - Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Other Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) Bodies Corp. 8,95,97,767 0 8,95,97,767 14.98 8,98,27,767 0 8,98,27,767 14.97 (0.01)

d) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total (A) (2):- 8,95,97767 0 8,95,97,767 14.98 8,98,27,767 0 8,98,27,767 14.97 (0.01)

Total shareholding of 

Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)

8,95,97767 0 8,95,97,767 14.98 8,98,27,767 0 8,98,27,767 14.97 ( 0.01)

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds / UTI 7,09,13,804 3,150 7,09,16,954 11.86 5,60,86,525 800 5,60,87,325 9.34 (2.52)

b) Banks / FI 11,27,868 337 11,28,205 0.19 9,38,634 337 9,38,971 0.16 (0.03)

c) Central Government 50 0 50 0 50 0 50 0 0

d) State Government 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f ) Insurance Companies 15,72,600 0 15,72,600 0.26 18,36,600 0 18,36,600 0.31 0.05

g) FIIs / FPIs 25,92,49,511 0 25,92,49,511 43.34 27,88,10,014 0 27,88,10,014 46.45 3.11

h) Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

i) Alternate Investment 

Fund

0 0 0 0 9,43,345 0 9,43,345 0.16 0.16

j) Others (specify) 

Foreign Banks

42 0 42 0 42 0 42 0 0.00

Sub-total (B)(1):- 33,28,63,875 3,487 33,28,67,362 55.65 33,86,15,210 1,137 33,86,16,347 56.42 0.77
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Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year 

(April 1, 2017)

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 

(March 31, 2018)

% Change 

during the 

yearDemat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

2. Non- Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian 6,13,22,937 1,88,295 6,15,11,232 10.28 5,46,30,309 1,51,531 5,47,81,840 9.13 (1.15)

ii) Overseas 3,76,000 5,49,000 9,25,000 0.15 3,76,000 5,49,000 9,25,000 0.15 0

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders 

holding nominal share 

capital upto ` 1 lakh

2,20,50,989 59,35,574 2,79,86,563 4.69 2,27,82,253 46,79,930 2,74,62,183 4.56 (0.13)

ii) Individual shareholders 

holding nominal share 

capital in excess of ` 1 

lakh

1,06,32,947 1,21,247 1,07,54,194 1.80 1,01,76,204 26,247 1,02,02,451 1.70 (0.10)

c) Others (specify)

i) Clearing Member 9,80,307 0 9,80,307 0.16 22,34,987 0 22,34987 0.37 0.21

ii) Hindu Undivided Family 7,00,040 0 7,00,040 0.13 6,35,145 0 6,35,145 0.11 (0.02)

iii) Non-Resident Indians 

(REPAT)

16,10,124 8,09,800 24,19,924 0.40 17,11,885 7,46,100 24,57,985 0.41 0.01

iv) Non-Resident 

Indians(NON REPAT)

16,49,546 21,600 16,71,146 0.28 19,57,808 18,800 19,76,608 0.33 0.05

v) Foreign Nationals 335 0 335 0.00 415 0 415 0.00 0.00

vi) Foreign Portfolio 

Investor (Individual)

350 0 350 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 (0.00)

vii) Directors / Relatives 2,05,880 0 2,05880 0.03 4,08,528 0 4,08,528 0.07 0.04

viii) Trusts 38,47,041 0 38,47,041 0.64 49,62,826 0 49,62,826 0.83 0.19

ix) IEPF 0 0 0 0 10,49,591 0 10,49,591 0.17 0.17

Sub-Total (B) (2) :- 10,33,76,496 76,25,516 11,10,02,012 18.56 10,09,25,951 61,71,608 10,70,97,559 17.83 (0.73)

Total Public Shareholding 

(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

43,62,40,371 76,29,003 44,38,69,374 74.21 43,95,41,161 61,72,745 44,57,13,906 74.25 0.04

C. Shares held by Custodian 

for GDR’s & ADR’s

6,46,81,564 0 6,46,81,564 10.81 6,46,81,514 0 6,46,81,514 10.78 (0.03)

Grand Total (A+B+C) 59,05,19,702 76,29,003 59,81,48,705 100.00 59,40,50,442 61,72,745 60,02,23,187 100.00
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 ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sr. 

No.

Shareholder’s 

Name

Shareholding at the beginning of the 

year: (April 1, 2017)

Shareholding at the end of the year: 

(March 31, 2018)

% change in 

shareholding 

during the 

year
No. of 

Shares

% of total 

Shares 

of the 

company

% of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total share

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

Shares 

of the 

company

% of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total shares

1 IndusInd 

International 

Holdings Limited

6,57,97,767 11.00 0 6,60,27,767 11.00 0 0.00#

2 IndusInd Limited 2,38,00,000 3.98 100 2,38,00,000 3.97 100 (0.0.1)*

Total 8,95,97,767 14.98 100 8,98,27,767 14.97 100 (0.01)

# During the year under review, there was a change in shareholding of the Promoters due to purchase of shares from the 

market.

* The shareholding of Promoter has not changed in absolute numbers. The variation in terms of percentage is due to increase 

in Paid-Up Capital of the Bank on account of allotment of shares pursuant to exercise of options under the ESOS scheme 2007 

during the year ended March 31, 2018.

 iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sr. 

No.

Promoter Remarks Date *** Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 

(April 1, 2017)

Cumulative 

Shareholding during 

the year

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

company

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

company

1 INDUSIND INTERNATIONAL 

HOLDINGS LIMITED

At the beginning 

of the Year

01.04.2017 6,57,97,767 11.00 6,57,97,767 11.00

Increase 17.11.2017 1,22,171 0.02 6,59,19,938 11.00

Increase 24.11.2017 1,07,829 0.02 6,60,27,767 11.02

At the end of the year 31.03.2018 N.A. N.A. 6,60,27,767 11.00

2 INDUSIND LIMITED At the beginning 

of the Year

01.04.2017 2,38,00,000 3.98 2,38,00,000 3.98

Date-wise Increase / 

Decrease in Promoters 

Share holding during the 

year specifying the reasons 

for increase / decrease (e.g. 

allotment / transfer / bonus/ 

sweat equity, etc.):

There is no change in the absolute shareholding  

of the Promoter during the year.

At the end of the year 31.03.2018 N.A. N.A. 2,38,00,000 3.97*

*** (1) Date of purchase / sale of shares has been considered as the date on which the beneficiary position was provided by 

the Depositories.

* The shareholding of Promoter has not changed in absolute numbers. The variation in terms of percentage is due to increase 

in Paid-Up Capital of the Bank on account of allotment of shares pursuant to exercise of options under the ESOS 2007 during 

the year ended March 31, 2018.

Increase = Purchase of Bank’s Shares    Decrease = Sale of Bank’s Shares
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 iv) Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and 

ADRs):

Sr. 

No.

For Each of the Top 

10 Shareholders

Remarks Date * Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

Company

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

company

1 BRIDGE INDIA FUND At the beginning 

of the year

01.04.2017 2,10,13,458 3.51 2,10,13,458 3.51

At the end of the 

year

31.03.2018 N.A. N.A. 2,10,13,458 3.50

2 ICICI PRUDENTIAL 

LIFE INSURANCE 

COMPANY LIMITED

At the beginning 

of the year

01.04.2017 74,85,353 1.25 74,85,353 1.25

Increase 07.04.2017 11,878 0.00 74,73,475 1.25

Decrease 14.04.2017 (8,971) (0.00) 74,64,504 1.25

Decrease 21.04.2017 (1,48,050) (0.02) 73,16,454 1.22

Increase 28.04.2017 67,601 0.01 73,84,055 1.23

Increase 05.05.2017 42,434 0.01 74,26,489 1.24

Decrease 12.05.2017 (1,194) (0.00) 74,25,295 1.24

Decrease 19.05.2017 (9,891) (0.00) 74,15,404 1.24

Decrease 26.05.2017 (85,233) (0.01) 73,30,171 1.23

Increase 02.06.2017 64,883 0.01 73,95,054 1.24

Increase 09.06.2017 11,536 0.00 74,06,590 1.24

Increase 16.06.2017 11,405 0.00 74,17,995 1.24

Increase 23.06.2017 12,062 0.00 74,30,057 1.24

Decrease 30.06.2017 (1,49,168) (0.02) 72,80,889 1.22

Decrease 07.07.2017 (16,311) (0.00) 72,64,578 1.21

Increase 14.07.2017 3,18,085 0.05 75,82,663 1.27

Decrease 21.07.2017 (2,433) (0.00) 75,80,230 1.27

Increase 28.07.2017 89,435 0.01 76,69,665 1.28

Increase 04.08.2017 1,24,405 0.02 77,94,070 1.30

Decrease 11.08.2017 (40,788) (0.01) 77,53,282 1.30

Increase 18.08.2017 80,726 0.01 78,34,008 1.31

Increase 25.08.2017 31,827 0.01 78,65,835 1.31

Decrease 01.09.2017 (78,421) (0.01) 77,87,414 1.30

Increase 08.09.2017 1,24,794 0.02 79,12,208 1.32

Increase 15.09.2017 42,730 0.01 79,54,938 1.33

Increase 22.09.2017 5,617 0.00 79,60,555 1.33

Decrease 29.09.2017 (29,661) (0.00) 79,30,894 1.32

Increase 06.10.2017 2,77,929 0.05 82,08,823 1.37

Decrease 13.10.2017 (4,053) (0.00) 82,04,770 1.37

Increase 20.10.2017 2,31,258 0.04 84,36,028 1.41

Increase 27.10.2017 61,977 0.01 84,98,005 1.42



42

Annual Report 2017-18

Sr. 

No.

For Each of the Top 

10 Shareholders

Remarks Date * Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

Company

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

company

Increase 03.11.2017 3,65,764 0.06 88,63,769 1.48

Decrease 10.11.2017 (50,074) (0.01) 88,13,695 1.47

Increase 17.11.2017 1,73,192 0.03 89,86,887 1.50

Decrease 24.11.2017 (8,538) (0.00) 89,78,349 1.50

Decrease 01.12.2017 (95,724) (0.02) 88,82,625 1.48

Increase 08.12.2017 2,03,060 0.03 90,85,685 1.52

Decrease 15.12.2017 (1,137) (0.00) 90,84,548 1.52

Decrease 22.12.2017 (14,360) (0.00) 90,70,188 1.51

Decrease 29.12.2017 (1,23,692) (0.02) 89,46,496 1.49

Increase 05.01.2018 66,867 0.01 90,13,363 1.50

Decrease 12.01.2018 (1,57,816) (0.03) 88,55,547 1.48

Decrease 19.01.2018 (12,361) (0.00) 88,43,186 1.47

Increase 26.01.2018 38,890 0.01 88,82,076 1.48

Increase 02.02.2018 3,18,338 0.05 92,00,414 1.53

Increase 09.02.2018 2,00,889 0.03 94,01,303 1.57

Increase 16.02.2018 1,13,905 0.02 95,15,208 1.59

Decrease 23.02.2018 (1,25,671) (0.02) 93,89,537 1.56

Increase 02.03.2018 2,79,587 0.05 96,69,124 1.61

Decrease 09.03.2018 (90,668) (0.02) 95,78,456 1.60

Decrease 16.03.2018 (97,262) (0.02) 94,81,194 1.58

Increase 23.03.2018 2,737 0.00 94,83,931 1.58

Decrease 31.03.2018 (45,899) (0.01) 94,38,032 1.57

At the end of the 

year

31.03.2018 N.A. N.A. 94,38,032 1.57

3 AFRIN DIA At the beginning 

of the year

01.04.2017 90,96,463 1.52 90,96,463 1.52

At the end of the 

year

31.03.2018 N.A. N.A. 90,96,463 1.52

4 GOVERNMENT OF 

SINGAPORE

At the beginning 

of the year

01.04.2017 47,34,339 0.79 47,34,339 0.79

Decrease 02.06.2017 (21,001) (0.00) 47,13,338 0.79

Increase 30.06.2017 1,13,297 0.02 48,26,635 0.81

Increase 07.07.2017 2,00,634 0.03 50,27,269 0.84

Increase 21.07.2017 6,274 0.00 50,33,543 0.84

Decrease 18.08.2017 (2,67,057) (0.04) 47,66,486 0.80

Decrease 25.08.2017 (1,35,753) (0.02) 46,30,733 0.77

Decrease 01.09.2017 (6,723) (0.00) 46,24,010 0.77

Increase 08.09.2017 1,22,068 0.02 47,46,078 0.79
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Sr. 

No.

For Each of the Top 

10 Shareholders

Remarks Date * Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

Company

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

company

Increase 15.09.2017 2,22,734 0.04 49,68,812 0.83

Increase 22.09.2017 91,537 0.02 50,60,349 0.84

Increase 29.09.2017 3,67,339 0.06 54,27,688 0.91

Increase 06.10.2017 1,97,439 0.03 56,25,127 0.94

Increase 13.10.2017 2,53,205 0.04 58,78,332 0.98

Increase 20.10.2017 78,003 0.01 59,56,335 0.99

Increase 27.10.2017 20,648 0.00 59,76,983 1.00

Increase 03.11.2017 98,896 0.02 60,75,879 1.01

Increase 01.12.2017 21,149 0.00 60,97,028 1.02

Increase 12.01.2018 50,831 0.01 61,47,859 1.03

Increase 19.01.2018 14,158 0.00 61,62,017 1.03

Increase 02.02.2018 6,12,486 0.10 67,74,503 1.13

Increase 09.02.2018 13,46,425 0.22 81,20,928 1.35

Increase 16.02.2018 1,96,066 0.03 83,16,994 1.39

Increase 02.03.2018 1,19,757 0.02 84,36,751 1.41

Increase 09.03.2018 36,152 0.01 84,72,903 1.41

Increase 16.03.2018 81,527 0.01 85,54,430 1.43

Increase 23.03.2018 4,719 0.00 85,59,149 1.43

At the end of the 

year

31.03.2018 N.A. N.A. 85,59,149 1.43

5 UTI - EQUITY FUND At the beginning 

of the year

01.04.2017 91,92,322 1.54 91,92,322 1.54

Decrease 07.04.2017 (5,722) (0.00) 91,86,600 1.54

Increase 14.04.2017 10,074 0.00 91,96,674 1.54

Decrease 21.04.2017 (16,029) (0.00) 91,80,645 1.53

Decrease 28.04.2017 (13,138) (0.00) 91,67,507 1.53

Decrease 05.05.2017 (10,870) (0.00) 91,56,637 1.53

Decrease 12.05.2017 (10,169) (0.00) 91,46,468 1.53

Decrease 19.05.2017 (8,087) (0.00) 91,38,381 1.53

Decrease 26.05.2017 (1,26,914) (0.02) 90,11,467 1.51

Decrease 02.06.2017 (73,932) (0.01) 89,37,535 1.49

Decrease 09.06.2017 (14,601) (0.00) 89,22,934 1.49

Decrease 16.06.2017 (46,505) (0.01) 88,76,429 1.48

Decrease 23.06.2017 (11,393) (0.00) 88,65,036 1.48

Decrease 30.06.2017 (22,382) (0.00) 88,42,654 1.48

Decrease 07.07.2017 (8,960) (0.00) 88,33,694 1.48

Decrease 14.07.2017 (1,16,608) (0.02) 87,17,086 1.46

Decrease 21.07.2017 (8,817) (0.00) 87,08,269 1.45
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Sr. 

No.

For Each of the Top 

10 Shareholders

Remarks Date * Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

Company

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

company

Decrease 28.07.2017 (23,088) (0.00) 86,85,181 1.45

Decrease 04.08.2017 (292) (0.00) 86,84,889 1.45

Increase 11.08.2017 12,852 0.00 86,97,741 1.45

Increase 18.08.2017 7,653 0.00 87,05,394 1.45

Decrease 25.08.2017 (23,646) (0.00) 86,81,748 1.45

Decrease 01.09.2017 (7,667) (0.00) 86,89,415 1.45

Decrease 08.09.2017 (11,617) (0.00) 86,77,798 1.45

Increase 15.09.2017 78,148 0.01 87,55,946 1.46

Increase 22.09.2017 14,574 0.00 87,70,520 1.46

Increase 29.09.2017 50,913 0.01 88,21,433 1.47

Increase 06.10.2017 33,771 0.01 88,55,204 1.48

Increase 13.10.2017 15,198 0.00 88,70,402 1.48

Increase 20.10.2017 14,384 0.00 88,84,786 1.48

Increase 27.10.2017 75,718 0.01 89,60,504 1.50

Decrease 03.11.2017 (1,11,444) (0.02) 88,49,060 1.48

Increase 10.11.2017 22,162 0.00 88,71,222 1.48

Increase 17.11.2017 61,125 0.01 89,32,347 1.49

Decrease 24.11.2017 (3,37,551) (0.06) 85,94,796 1.43

Increase 01.12.2017 40,087 0.01 86,34,883 1.44

Increase 08.12.2017 21,376 0.00 86,56,259 1.44

Decrease 15.12.2017 (97,298) (0.02) 85,58,961 1.43

Increase 22.12.2017 1,16,734 0.02 86,75,695 1.45

Decrease 29.12.2017 (1,50,303) (0.03) 85,25,392 1.42

Increase 05.01.2018 21,403 0.00 85,46,795 1.43

Increase 12.01.2018 93,303 0.02 86,40,098 1.44

Increase 19.01.2018 40,250 0.01 86,80,348 1.45

Increase 26.01.2018 11,035 0.00 86,91,383 1.45

Decrease 02.02.2018 (2,06,067) (0.03) 84,85,316 1.41

Decrease 09.02.2018 (992) (0.00) 84,84,324 1.41

Increase 16.02.2018 12,090 0.00 84,96,414 1.42

Increase 23.02.2018 6,302 0.00 85,02,716 1.42

Decrease 02.03.2018 (4,132) (0.00) 84,98,584 1.42

Increase 09.03.2018 1,181 0.00 84,99,765 1.42

Decrease 16.03.2018 (41,039) (0.01) 84,58,726 1.41

Increase 23.03.2018 17,343 0.00 84,76,069 1.41

Decrease 31.03.2018 (54,498) (0.01) 84,21,571 1.40

At the end of the 

year

31.03.2018 N.A. N.A. 84,21,571 1.40
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Sr. 

No.

For Each of the Top 

10 Shareholders

Remarks Date * Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

Company

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

company

6 SBI-ETF NIFTY 50 At the beginning 

of the year

01.04.2017 59,42,780 0.99 59,42,780 0.99

Increase 07.04.2017 1,58,770 0.03 61,01,550 1.02

Decrease 14.07.2017 (92,218) (0.02) 60,09,332 1.00

Increase 21.07.2017 93,386 0.02 61,02,718 1.02

Increase 28.04.2017 2,07,341 0.03 63,10,059 1.05

Increase 05.05.2017 20,978 0.00 63,31,037 1.06

Increase 12.05.2017 52,843 0.01 63,83,880 1.07

Increase 19.05.2017 46,434 0.01 64,30,314 1.07

Increase 26.05.2017 5,069 0.00 64,35,383 1.08

Increase 02.06.2017 2,599 0.00 64,37,982 1.08

Increase 09.06.2017 21,469 0.00 64,59,451 1.08

Decrease 16.06.2017 (49,501) (0.01) 64,09,950 1.07

Increase 23.06.2017 1,63,913 0.03 65,73,863 1.10

Increase 30.06.2017 25,261 0.00 65,99,124 1.10

Increase 07.07.2017 25,057 0.00 66,24,181 1.11

Increase 14.07.2017 16,203 0.00 66,40,384 1.11

Increase 21.07.2017 12,022 0.00 66,52,406 1.11

Increase 28.07.2017 52,767 0.01 67,05,173 1.12

Increase 04.08.2017 59,960 0.01 67,65,133 1.13

Increase 11.08.2017 70,329 0.01 68,35,462 1.14

Decrease 18.08.2017 (2,157) (0.00) 68,33,305 1.14

Increase 25.08.2017 45,567 0.01 68,78,872 1.15

Increase 01.09.2017 11,499 0.00 68,90,371 1.15

Increase 08.09.2017 15,177 0.00 69,05,548 1.15

Increase 15.09.2017 60,556 0.01 69,66,104 1.16

Increase 22.09.2017 48,225 0.01 70,14,329 1.17

Increase 29.09.2017 44,594 0.01 70,58,923 1.18

Increase 06.10.2017 80,203 0.01 71,39,126 1.19

Decrease 13.10.2017 (68,128) (0.01) 70,70,998 1.18

Increase 20.10.2017 37,129 0.01 71,08,127 1.19

Increase 27.10.2017 29,987 0.01 71,38,114 1.19

Increase 03.11.2017 17,687 0.00 71,55,801 1.19

Decrease 10.11.2017 (1,69,076) (0.03) 69,86,725 1.17

Decrease 17.11.2017 (1,02,886) (0.02) 68,83,839 1.15

Increase 24.11.2017 43,851 0.01 69,27,690 1.16

Decrease 01.12.2017 (81,163) (0.01) 68,46,527 1.14

Increase 08.12.2017 2,53,090 0.04 70,99,617 1.18
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Sr. 

No.

For Each of the Top 

10 Shareholders

Remarks Date * Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

Company

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

company

Increase 15.12.2017 44,146 0.01 71,43,763 1.19

Increase 22.12.2017 12,59,460 0.21 84,03,223 1.40

Decrease 29.12.2017 (53,271) (0.01) 83,49,952 1.39

Increase 05.01.2018 96,590 0.02 84,46,542 1.41

Decrease 12.01.2018 (2,44,541) (0.04) 82,02,001 1.37

Decrease 19.01.2018 (3,42,084) (0.06) 78,59,917 1.31

Decrease 26.01.2018 (5,84,831) (0.10) 72,75,086 1.21

Decrease 02.02.2018 (21,205) (0.00) 72,53,881 1.21

Decrease 09.02.2018 (1,20,050) (0.02) 71,33,831 1.19

Increase 16.02.2018 2,764 0.00 71,36,595 1.19

Decrease 23.02.2018 (4,25,471) (0.07) 67,11,124 1.12

Increase 02.03.2018 11,82,367 0.20 78,93,491 1.32

Decrease 09.03.2018 (1,00,547) (0.02) 77,92,944 1.30

Decrease 16.03.2018 (58,767) (0.01) 77,34,177 1.29

Increase 23.03.2018 15,403 0.00 77,49,580 1.29

Decrease 31.03.2018 (93,976) (0.02) 76,55,604 1.28

At the end of the 

year

31.03.2018 N.A. N.A. 76,55,604 1.28

7 HINDUJA VENTURES 

LIMITED

At the beginning 

of the year

01.04.2017 86,68,196 1.45 86,68,196 1.45

Decrease 23.06.2017 (3,60,000) (0.06) 83,08,196 1.39

Decrease 08.09.2017 (2,80,000) (0.05) 80,28,196 1.34

Decrease 15.12.2017 (4,20,000) (0.07) 76,08,196 1.27

Decrease 16.03.2018 (4,07,000) (0.07) 72,01,196 1.20

Decrease 23.03.2018 (33,000) (0.01) 71,68,196 1.20

At the end of the 

year

31.03.2018 N.A. N.A. 71,68,196 1.20

8 ADITYA BIRLA SUN 

LIFE TRUSTEE PRIVATE 

LIMITED A/C ADITYA 

BIRLA SUN LIFE 

FRONTLINE EQUITY 

FUND

At the beginning 

of the year

01.04.2017 82,74,358 1.38 82,74,358 1.38

Increase 07.04.2017 1,06,200 0.02 83,80,558 1.40

Increase 21.04.2017 36,600 0.01 84,17,158 1.41

Decrease 28.04.2017 (61,591) (0.01) 83,55,567 1.40

Increase 05.05.2017 99,600 0.02 84,55,167 1.41

Decrease 19.05.2017 (17,074) (0.00) 84,38,093 1.41

Decrease 26.05.2017 (2,411) (0.00) 84,35,682 1.41

Increase 02.06.2017 90,413 0.02 85,26,095 1.43

Increase 09.06.2017 16,800 0.00 85,42,895 1.43

Decrease 16.06.2017 (31,500) (0.01) 85,11,395 1.42
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Sr. 

No.

For Each of the Top 

10 Shareholders

Remarks Date * Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

Company

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

company

Increase 23.06.2017 5,400 0.00 85,16,795 1.42

Increase 30.06.2017 30,000 0.01 85,46,795 1.43

Decrease 07.07.2017 (2,500) (0.00) 85,44,295 1.43

Decrease 14.07.2017 (1,200) (0.00) 85,43,095 1.43

Increase 28.07.2017 1,03,400 0.02 86,46,495 1.44

Decrease 04.08.2017 (1,31,920) (0.02) 85,14,575 1.42

Decrease 11.08.2017 (4,416) (0.00) 85,10,159 1.42

Increase 18.08.2017 2,25,913 0.04 87,36,072 1.46

Increase 25.08.2017 14,536 0.00 87,50,608 1.46

Increase 01.09.2017 4,895 0.00 87,55,503 1.46

Decrease 08.09.2017 (20,665) (0.00) 87,34,838 1.46

Increase 22.09.2017 2,15,000 0.04 89,49,838 1.49

Increase 29.09.2017 17,095 0.00 89,66,933 1.50

Increase 06.10.2017 3,53,400 0.06 93,20,333 1.56

Increase 13.10.2017 13,800 0.00 93,34,133 1.56

Decrease 20.10.2017 (2,400) (0.00) 93,31,733 1.56

Increase 27.10.2017 71,100 0.01 94,02,833 1.57

Decrease 03.11.2017 (1,99,300) (0.03) 92,03,533 1.54

Decrease 10.11.2017 (5,85,700) (0.10) 86,17,833 1.44

Decrease 17.11.2017 (2,24,744) (0.04) 83,93,089 1.40

Increase 24.11.2017 2,400 0.00 83,95,489 1.40

Decrease 01.12.2017 (26) (0.00) 83,95,463 1.40

Decrease 08.12.2017 (15324) (0.00) 83,80,139 1.40

Decrease 15.12.2017 (25,000) (0.00) 83,55,139 1.39

Increase 22.12.2017 11,816 0.00 83,66,955 1.40

Decrease 29.12.2017 (5,200) (0.00) 83,61,755 1.40

Decrease 12.01.2018 (221) (0.00) 83,61,534 1.40

Decrease 19.01.2018 (14,752) (0.00) 83,46,782 1.39

Decrease 02.02.2018 (5,28,500) (0.09) 78,18,282 1.30

Decrease 09.02.2018 (8,775) (0.00) 78,09,507 1.30

Increase 16.02.2018 173 0.00 78,09,680 1.30

Decrease 23.02.2018 (67,500) (0.01) 77,42,180 1.29

Decrease 02.03.2018 (1,190) (0.00) 77,40,990 1.29

Decrease 09.03.2018 (99,835) (0.02) 76,41,155 1.27

Increase 16.03.2018 4,749 0.00 76,45,904 1.27

Decrease 23.03.2018 (54,204) (0.01) 75,91,700 1.27

Decrease 31.03.2018 (4,28,156) (0.07) 71,63,544 1.19

At the end of the 

year

31.03.2017 N.A. N.A. 71,63,544 1.19
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Sr. 

No.

For Each of the Top 

10 Shareholders

Remarks Date * Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

Company

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

company

9 KOTAK SELECT FOCUS 

FUND

At the beginning 

of the year

01.04.2017 58,44,936 0.97 58,44,936 0.97

Increase 07.04.2017 1,06,847 0.02 59,51,783 1.00

Increase 14.04.2017 60,196 0.01 60,11,979 1.01

Increase 21.04.2017 39,852 0.01 60,51,831 1.01

Decrease 28.04.2017 (1,43,285) (0.02) 59,08,546 0.99

Increase 05.05.2017 25,934 0.00 59,34,480 0.99

Increase 12.05.2017 2,92,982 0.05 62,27,462 1.04

Decrease 19.05.2017 (1,53,510) (0.03) 60,73,952 1.02

Decrease 26.05.2017 (90,937) (0.02) 59,83,015 1.00

Decrease 02.06.2017 (13,938) (0.00) 59,69,077 1.00

Decrease 09.06.2017 (7,927) (0.00) 59,61,150 1.00

Increase 16.06.2017 29,544 0.00 59,90,694 1.00

Increase 23.06.2017 27,150 0.00 60,17,844 1.01

Increase 30.06.2017 1,54,716 0.03 61,72,560 1.03

Increase 07.07.2017 1,27,071 0.02 62,99,631 1.05

Decrease 14.07.2017 (23,061) (0.00) 62,76,570 1.05

Increase 21.07.2017 26,760 0.00 63,03,330 1.05

Increase 28.07.2017 1,34,885 0.02 64,38,215 1.08

Decrease 04.08.2017 (18,942) (0.00) 64,19,273 1.07

Increase 11.08.2017 30,138 0.01 64,49,411 1.08

Increase 18.08.2017 1,21,948 0.02 65,71,359 1.10

Increase 25.08.2017 1,16,837 0.02 66,88,196 1.12

Increase 01.09.2017 27,968 0.00 67,16,164 1.12

Decrease 08.09.2017 (74,309) (0.01) 66,41,855 1.11

Increase 15.09.2017 52,314 0.01 66,94,169 1.12

Increase 22.09.2017 1,18,321 0.02 68,12,490 1.14

Decrease 29.09.2017 (47,282) (0.01) 67,65,208 1.13

Increase 06.10.2017 87,026 0.01 68,52,234 1.14

Decrease 13.10.2017 (1,09,210) (0.02) 67,43,024 1.13

Decrease 20.10.2017 (55,980) (0.01) 66,87,044 1.12

Increase 27.10.2017 3,72,039 0.06 70,59,083 1.18

Decrease 03.11.2017 (1,37,476) (0.02) 69,21,607 1.16

Decrease 10.11.2017 (85,844) (0.01) 68,35,763 1.14

Decrease 17.11.2017 (8,979) (0.00) 68,26,784 1.14

Decrease 24.11.2017 (4,158) (0.00) 68,22,626 1.14

Increase 01.12.2017 11,766 0.00 68,34,392 1.14

Increase 08.12.2017 1,566 0.00 68,35,958 1.14
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Sr. 

No.

For Each of the Top 

10 Shareholders

Remarks Date * Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

Company

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

shares 

of the 

company

Increase 15.12.2017 36,658 0.01 68,72,616 1.15

Decrease 22.12.2017 (64,651) (0.01) 68,07,965 1.14

Decrease 29.12.2017 (11,912) (0.00) 67,96,053 1.13

Increase 05.01.2018 1,05,645 0.02 69,01,698 1.15

Decrease 12.01.2018 (1,76,570) (0.03) 67,25,128 1.12

Decrease 19.01.2018 (2,03,114) (0.03) 65,22,014 1.09

Decrease 26.01.2018 (6,335) (0.00) 65,15,679 1.09

Decrease 02.02.2018 (8,70,172) (0.15) 56,45,507 0.94

Increase 09.02.2018 1,61,494 0.03 58,07,001 0.97

Increase 16.02.2018 3,68,635 0.06 61,75,636 1.03

Increase 23.02.2018 2,37,498 0.04 64,13,134 1.07

Increase 02.03.2018 43,318 0.01 64,56,452 1.08

Increase 09.03.2018 26,292 0.00 64,82,744 1.08

Increase 16.03.2018 58,401 0.01 65,41,145 1.09

Increase 23.03.2018 2,09,947 0.03 67,51,092 1.12

Increase 31.03.2018 1,06,487 0.02 68,57,579 1.14

At the end of the 

year

31.03.2018 N.A. N.A. 68,57,579 1.14

10 TYBOURNE EQUITY 

MASTER FUND LTD

At the beginning 

of the year

01.04.2017 72,45,546 1.21 72,45,546 1.21

Decrease 22.09.2017 (1,98,044) (0.03) 70,47,502 1.18

Decrease 29.09.2017 (5,58,574) (0.09) 64,88,928 1.08

Increase 27.10.2017 2,18,545 0.04 67,07,473 1.12

Increase 03.11.2017 21,402 0.00 67,28,875 1.12

Increase 17.11.2017 47,253 0.01 67,76,128 1.13

At the end of the 

year

31.03.2018 N.A. N.A. 67,76,128 1.13

Note:

*(1) Date of purchase / sale of shares has been considered as the date on which the beneficiary position was provided by the 

Depositories.

(2) Shareholding is consolidated based on Permanent Account Number (PAN) of the shareholder.

(3) Increase = Purchase of Bank’s Shares    Decrease = Sale of Bank’s Shares
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 (v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. 

No.

For each of the Directors and KMP Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year 01.04.2017

Cumulative Shareholding 

during the year

No. of 

shares

% of total shares 

of the company

No. of 

shares

% of total shares 

of the company

1 Mr. T. Anantha Narayanan, Director 580 0.00 580 0.00

At the end of the year (31-03-2018) N.A. N.A. 580 0.00

2 Dr. T. T. Ram Mohan, Director 3,800 0.00 3,800 0.00

At the end of the year (31-03-2018) N.A. N.A. 3,800 0.00

3 Mr. Vijay Vaid, Director* 1,500 0.00 1,500 0.00

Add: 28.04.2017 Market Purchase 1,500 0.00 3,000 0.00

Add : 27.10.2017 Market Purchase 1,500 0.00 4,500 0.00

As on (03-02-2018) N.A. N.A. 4,500 0.00

4 Mrs. Kanchan Uday Chitale NIL N.A. NIL N.A.

Add : 09.02.2018 Market Purchase 998 0.00 998 0.00

At the end of the year (31-03-2018) N.A. N.A. 998 0.00

5 Mr. Romesh Sobti, Managing Director & CEO 2,00,000 0.03 2,00,000 0.03

Add – 29.12.2017 ESOP Allotment 2,00,000 0.03 4,00000 0.07

At the end of the year (31-03-2018) N.A. N.A. 4,00,000 0.07

6 Mr. S.V. Zaregaonkar, Chief Financial Officer 2,950 0.00 2,950 0.00

Add – 22.02.2018 ESOP Allotment 9,750 0.00 12,700 0.00

At the End of the (31-03-2018) N.A. N.A. 12,700 0.00

7 Mr. Haresh K. Gajwani, Company Secretary NIL N.A. NIL N.A.

Add - 06.09.2017 ESOP Allotment 2,000 0.00 2,000 0.00

Less - 06.09.2017 Market Sale (1,050) (0.00) 950 0.00

Less - 07.09.2017 Market Sale (950) (0.00) 0 0.00

Add - 26.10.2017 ESOP Allotment 300 0.00 300 0.00

Add - 09.11.2017 ESOP Allotment 200 0.00 500 0.00

Less - 11.12.2017 Market Sale (100) (0.00) 400 0.00

Less - 13.12.2017 Market Sale (50) (0.00) 350 0.00

Less - 15.12.2017 Market Sale (200) (0.00) 150 0.00

Less - 18.12.2017 Market Sale (150) (0.00) 0 0.00

Add - 27.12.2017 ESOP Allotment 100 0.00 100 0.00

Add - 09.01.2018 ESOP Allotment 200 0.00 300 0.00

Add - 17.01.2018 ESOP Allotment 100 0.00 400 0.00

Less - 18.01.2018 Market Sale (200) (0.00) 200 0.00

Less - 19.01.2018 Market Sale (200) (0.00) 0 0.00

Add - 08.02.2018 ESOP Allotment 200 0.00 200 0.00

Less - 08.02.2018 Market Sale (100) (0.00) 100 0.00

Less - 09.02.2018 Market Sale (100) (0.00) 0 0.00

Add - 16.02.2018 ESOP Allotment 200 0.00 200 0.00

Less - 16.02.2018 Market Sale (50) (0.00) 150 0.00

Less - 26.02.2018 Market Sale (150) (0.00) 0 0.00

Add - 08.03.2018 ESOP Allotment 200 0.00 200 0.00

Less - 12.03.2018 Market Sale (150) (0.00) 50 0.00

Less - 14.03.2018 Market Sale (50) (0.00) 0 0.00

Add - 15.03.2018 ESOP Allotment 200 0.00 200 0.00

Less - 15.03.2018 Market Sale (50) (0.00) 150 0.00

Less - 21.03.2018 Market Sale (150) (0.00) 0 0.00

At the end of the year (31-03-2018) N.A. N.A. NIL NIL

*   Ceased to be Director with effect from February 3, 2018 upon completion of tenure.
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V. Indebtedness

 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment

` in crores

Particulars Secured loans 

excluding deposits

Unsecured 

loans *

Deposits Total 

Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 

financial year:

i. Principal Amount - 1,49,026 - 1,49,026

ii. Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii. Interest accrued but not due - 948 - 948

Total (i+ii+iii) - 1,49,974 - 1,49,974

Net Change in Indebtedness during the 

financial year:

i. Addition - 40,742 - 40,742

ii. Reduction - - - -

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year:

i. Principal Amount - 1,89,928 - 1,89,928

ii. Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii. Interest accrued but not due - 788 - 788

Total (i+ii+iii) - 1,90,716 - 1,90,716

* A Bank is governed by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and duly licensed by Reserve Bank of India to operate as a Scheduled 

Commercial Bank in India, the entire amount of Client Deposits and other Borrowings are shown under ‘Unsecured Loans’.

VI. Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and / or Manager:  (in `)

Sr. 

No.

Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Romesh Sobti,  

Managing Director & CEO

1 Gross Salary

a. Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of IT Act, 1961. 526,20,806

b. Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of IT Act, 1961. 97,17,951

c. Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of IT Act, 1961. -

2 Stock Option* -

3 Sweat Equity -

4 Commission

- As % of profit

- Others -

5 Others, please specify (PF, Medical) 22,88,996

6 Total # 646,27,753

7 Ceiling as per the Companies Act, 2013 $ -

* Details of Stock Options have been disclosed in the ‘Report on Corporate Governance’ and Annexure III to the ‘Directors’ 

Report’, which forms an integral part of the Annual Report.

# Total Remuneration details do not include Stock Options.

$ In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Remuneration payable to the Managing Director & CEO shall 

not exceed 5% of the Net Profit of the Bank. The Remuneration paid to the MD & CEO is well within the said limit.
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B. Remuneration to other Directors:

Sr. 

No.

Particulars of Remuneration Fees for 

attending Board 

/ Committee 

meetings (in `)

Commission Others, (please 

specify)

Total

(A) Independent Directors:

(1) Mrs. Kanchan Chitale 21,60,000 10,00,000 - 31,60,000

(2) Mr. Vijay Vaid* 10,60,000 8,40,411 - 19,00,411

(3) Mr. T. Anantha Narayanan 19,50,000 10,00,000 - 29,50,000

(4) Mr. Ranbir S. Butola 15,30,000 10,00,000 - 25,30,000

(5) Mr. Shanker Annaswamy 17,60,000 10,00,000 - 27,60,000

(6) Dr. T.T. Ram Mohan 14,20,000 10,00,000 - 24,20,000

Total (A) 98,80,000 58,40,411 - 157,20,411

(B) Other Non-Executive Directors:

(1) Mr. R. Seshasayee 14,00,000      25,00,000 - 39,00,000

(2) Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale** 15,20,000 10,00,000 - 25,20,000

Total (B) 29,20,000 35,00,000 - 64,20,000

Total Remuneration (A+B) 128,00,000 93,40,411 - 221,40,411

Notes:(i) No Stock Options were granted to the Non-Executive Directors.

 * Mr. Vijay Vaid completed his tenure in the Board of the Bank on February 3, 2018.

 ** Mr. Kale’s tenure in the Board concluded on November 3, 2017. Reserve Bank of India have, vide their letter dated 

December 20, 2017, conveyed approval for continuance of Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale in the Board upto April 15, 2019, i.e., 

for a period of four years from the date of his last appointment, and remuneration has been paid to him accordingly.

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than Managing Director / Manager / Whole-time Director

Sr. 

no.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Haresh 

Gajwani, 

Company 

Secretary

Mr. S. V. 

Zaregaonkar, 

Chief Financial 

Officer

Total

1. Gross salary

a. Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 

Income-tax Act, 1961.

74,57,823 369,33,591 443,91,414

b. Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 1,65,455 74,60,019 76,25,474

c. Profits in lieu of salary under u/s17(3) of the Income tax 

Act, 1961.

2 Stock Options* - - -

3. Sweat Equity - - -

4. Commission as % of profit

Others, please specify - - -

5. Others, please specify 2,91,000 10,95,000 13,86,000

Total# 79,14,278 454,88,610 534,02,888

* Details of Stock Options have been disclosed in the ‘Report on Corporate Governance’ and Annexure III to the ‘Directors’ 

Report’, which forms an integral part of the Annual Report.

# Total Remuneration details do not include Stock Options.
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VII. Penalties / Punishment / Compounding of offences

Type Section of the 

Companies Act

Brief 

Description

Details of 

Penalty / 

Punishment/ 

Compounding 

fees imposed

Authority [RD / 

NCLT/ COURT]

Appeal made, 

if any (give 

Details)

A. Company

 Penalty

None Punishment

 Compounding

B. Directors

 Penalty

None Punishment

 Compounding

C. Other officers in default

 Penalty

None Punishment

 Compounding
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

Sr. 

No.

Particulars

1 A Brief outline of the Bank’s CSR Policy, including overview of Projects or Programs proposed to be undertaken and a 

reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and Projects or Programs.

Remarks

The Bank’s CSR Policy

CSR Mission Statement

At IndusInd Bank, we believe that ‘Good Ecology is Good Economics’. We will continue to create value for all our 

Stakeholders and emerge as a ‘Best-in-Class’ Bank that is committed to sustainable economic growth. We will ensure 

that the Bank’s business grows consistently and responsibly, benefitting those we directly serve while also promoting 

the well-being of our employees, our natural environment and the community at large.

Guiding Principles

We recognize our on-going commitment to engage with our Stakeholders to be a crucial and powerful tool for the 

way we conduct business. We will pursue a process of continuous improvement of our CSR Policy and practices and 

strengthen our governance framework with ethics, transparency and accountability.

The Bank’s CSR strategy identifies key focus areas and provides a clear methodology for Project Selection, 

Implementation, and Evaluation while taking into consideration the opinions of Stakeholders on the same. It also 

ensures that each project has significant socio-environmental impact and that the projects are considered vital by 

internal and external Stakeholders.

In line with our CSR Policy, the Bank has implemented several large scale projects in Environment, Rural Development, 

Preventive Healthcare, Education and Sports.

The Bank’s CSR Projects, Constitution of the CSR Committee of the Board and other relevant details can be viewed at 

the web link-

http://www.indusind.com/content/csr-home/our-approach/csr-policy.html

Details of the Bank’s CSR Projects and Sustainability Initiatives are given in the latest Integrated Report and can be 

viewed at the web link:

https://www.indusind.com/content/csr-home.html

ANNEXURE V TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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CSR Projects as per Focus Areas

2 The Composition of the CSR Committee.

1. Mrs. Kanchan Chitale (Chairperson)

2. Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale

3. Mr. Romesh Sobti (Managing Director & CEO)

3 Average Net Profit of the Company for last three Financial Years.

` 3,508.33 crores

4 Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent. of the amount as in item 3 above)

` 70.17 in crores

5 Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year – ` 70.17 in crores

b) Amount unspent – ` 49.70 in crores

c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Sr. 

No

CSR Project 

or activities 

identified.

Sector in 

which the 

Project is 

covered

Projects or 

programs 

(1) Local 

area or 

other (2) 

Specify the 

State and 

district 

where 

projects or 

programs 

was 

undertaken

Amount 

outlay 

(budget) 

project or 

programs 

wise 

(` In Lakhs)

Amount 

spent on the 

projects or 

programs 

Sub - heads: 

(1)Direct 

expenditure 

on projects 

or programs 

(1) 

Overheads 

(2) (3) (4) (5) 

(` In Lakhs)

Cumulative 

expenditure 

upto the 

reporting 

period 

(` In Lakhs)

Amount spent: 

Direct or through 

Implementing 

Agency

1. Environmental 

Sustainability

Nature 

Conservation 

& Water 

Stewardship

Pan-India 1,870 137 4,512 Both Direct and 

through Implementing 

Partners (Centre 

for Environmental 

Research & Education)

2. Preventive 

Healthcare & 

Contributions 

to various 

social causes

Preventive 

Healthcare, 

Imparting of 

Vocational 

skills, 

promoting 

culture and 

education

Pan-India 192 153 500 Both Direct and 

through Implementing 

Partners (SUPPORT, 

Bhagwan Mahaveer 

Cancer Hospital & 

Research Centre)

3. Rural 

Development

Rural 

Development 

& Inclusiveness

Pan-India 1,510 1,163 1,221 Both Direct and 

through Implementing 

Partners (CSC 

Academy, Justice & 

Care)

4. Sports Paralympic 

Sports, 

Sports for the 

Differently 

Abled

Pan-India 585 335 1,147 Through Implementing 

partners (Go-

Sports Foundation, 

Samarthanam-CABI, 

JSW Foundation)

5. Education Education Pan-India 235 182 386 Through 

Implementing partners 

(Samhita Development 

Network, Ashoka 

University, Nalandaway 

Foundation, Cashpor, 

Sahapedia)

6. Awareness 

& Capacity 

Building

Awareness 

& Capacity 

Building

Pan-India 100 77 248 Direct

Total 4,492 2,047 8,014
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6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or any 

part thereof, the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report.

 In FY 2017-18, the Bank has spent ` 20.47 crores on various Social and Environmental Projects.

 The Bank has deepened its efforts on community engagement by partnering with Government communities and Non-

Profits Organisations. Our programmes are of large scale and hence the absorption of funds is milestone linked for larger 

impact.

 The Bank has expanded its exposure to social projects in the CSR Spend portfolio by 40% while constantly investing in 

projects of scale. The Bank will be spending 20% of our spent towards projects in water stewardship including water 

revival, advocacy and security which will increase absorption of spend in the coming years.

 The Spend on Sports will also increase significantly with the advent of 2020 and 2024 Olympics / Paralympics, 

Commonwealth Games and Bilateral series in Blind Cricket.

 In line with the Bank’s agenda on Digitization, the Bank has pledged support to the PM’s initiative of digitizing Rural India 

reaching out to 2 lakh candidates across 275 districts in 11 Indian states of Haryana, Punjab, Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh, 

Maharashtra, Gujarat, Jharkhand, Chhattisgarh, West Bengal, Odisha and Uttar Pradesh. For our water conservation and 

solid waste management projects, the Bank has partnered with the State Governments of Maharashtra and Uttarakhand.

 The Bank has been consciously investing in Energy conservation and Carbon reduction initiatives as a responsible 

corporate. While these investments have not been considered as part of the reported spend this year, it has had 

tremendous impact on the environment, in line with global targets of the UN Sustainable Development Goals.

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance 

with CSR Objectives and Policy of the company.

 This note describes the CSR Policy, focus areas and Projects that the Bank has undertaken during the Financial Year 2017-

2018. We hereby acknowledge that this is in compliance with the CSR Policy and its Objectives.

Romesh Sobti Kanchan Chitale

Managing Director & CEO Chairperson – CSR Committee

(DIN: 00031034) (DIN: 00007267)
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ANNEXURE VI TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT  

(AS PER SEBI CIRCULAR CIR/CFD/CMD/10/2015 OF NOVEMBER 4, 2015)

SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1. Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company L65191PN1994PLC076333

2. Name of the Company IndusInd Bank Limited

3. Registered address 2401, Gen. Thimmayya Road, (Cantonment), Pune – 411001.

4. Website www.indusind.com

5. E-mail id csrsupport@indusind.com

6. Financial Year reported April 01, 2017 – March 31, 2018

7. Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial 

activity code-wise)

Division 64 – Code 64191 

IndusInd Bank Limited is a Company governed by the Banking 

Regulation Act, 1949.

8. List three key products / services that the Company 

manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet)

- All banking and para banking services including 

accepting of deposits such as Savings Accounts, Current 

Accounts, Fixed Deposits including banking solutions to 

large Indian and multinational corporates.

- Granting of Loans to various segments including 

Industries, Business and Retail Loans.

- Financing wide range of Vehicles / Equipment to 

individuals and Priority Sector Lending.

9. Total number of locations where business activity is 

undertaken by the Company

1,400 branches across India, Corporate Office, Back Offices and 

Representative Offices.

i.  Number of International Locations (Provide 

details of major 5)

Representative Offices at Dubai, Abu Dhabi and London.

ii.  Number of National Locations 1,400 branches across India, 43 Corporate Office and Back Office 

locations.

10. Markets served by the Company – Local / State / 

National / International

All

SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

1.  Paid up Capital (INR) -  ` 600.22 Crores

2.  Total Turnover (INR) -  ` 22,030.85 Crores

3.  Total Profit After Taxes (INR) -  ` 3,605.99 Crores

4.  Total Spending on Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR) as percentage of Profit 

After Tax (%)

The Bank has spent ` 20.47 crores on various social and 

environmental activities, in the areas of Rural Development 

& Inclusiveness, Environmental Sustainability, Preventive 

Healthcare, Education and Sports during the year 2017-18 which 

is 0.57 % of Profit After Tax.
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Environmental Sustainability:

 The broad areas of focus within Environmental 

Sustainability include Nature Conservation, Climate 

Change & GHG (Greenhouse Gas) Mitigation, Renewable 

Energy and Clean Technology. The Bank also supported an 

Afforestation Project in and around Mumbai and initiated 

a Waste Segregation project in Uttarakhand.

Preventive Healthcare:

 In FY 2017-18, in an ongoing project with SUPPORT, the 

Bank supported vocational skill development of drug 

rehabilitated street children in Mumbai capacitating them 

to take up employment.

 The Bank continued to support treatment of children 

affected with cancer, in partnership with the Bhagwan 

Mahaveer Cancer Hospital and Research Centre 

(BMCHRC), Jaipur.

Rural Development:

 In FY 2017-18, the Bank collaborated with CSC Academy, 

an SPV of Ministry of Electronics & Information Technology 

(MEITY) to implement the PMGDISHA (Pradhan Mantri 

Gramin Digital Saksharta Abhiyan), a Digital literacy 

programme in 11 states namely Haryana, Punjab, 

Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra, Gujarat, 

Jharkhand, Chhattisgarh, West Bengal, Odisha and Uttar 

Pradesh. A total of 2 lakh candidates have been trained 

through the programme.

 The Bank has also reached out to 2.7 million Women in 

the Base of Pyramid (BOP) segment, empowering them to 

be financially independent, improving their standard of 

living.

 In a new project initiated in FY 2017-18, the Bank has 

partnered with Justice & Care, to carry out rehabilitation 

and skill development of women rescued from trafficking 

across Gaya Nalanda and Nawada districts of Bihar.

Education:

 The Bank’s on-going programme on Legal Literacy 

for Women, in partnership with the Bank’s Business 

Correspondent, is now carried out in 10 districts of 

Madhya Pradesh and has benefitted 45,000 women since 

the inception of the programme. Besides training, the 

programme has built a cadre of ‘Community Catalysts’, 

identified from the training programme who demonstrate 

interest and involvement in taking up legal issues and are 

willing to advocate resolution of problems faced by their 

communities.
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 In another on-going programme, the Bank continued 

to support deserving, meritorious students of Ashoka 

University through the Young India Fellowship Programme, 

renowned for introducing several young entrepreneurs in 

the social sector. Through this programme, the Bank has 

supported 60 scholars over the past 3 years.

 The Enhanced Education Programme launched in FY 2017-

18, is in association with Cashpor Micro Credit, the Bank’s 

Business Correspondent and has been implemented in 

6 districts of Uttar Pradesh and Jharkhand. The Group 

Tuition centres are a place where support classes or tuition 

classes are conducted for several children, under one roof. 

More than 5,000 children have benefitted through 100 of 

these Education centres.

 The Bank continued to support the Education through Arts 

initiative at Coimbatore, in partnership with Nalandaway 

Foundation.

 In a new initiative launched in FY 2017-18, the Bank 

supported the Heritage Fellowship Programme in 

partnership with Sahapedia, extending support to 

photographers to research and document some of India’s 

less known, unique arts, traditions, cultural spaces and 

heritage.

Sports

 The Bank continues to support the ‘Para Champions 

Programme’ in association with Go-Sports Foundation. In 

FY 2017-18, the Bank provided comprehensive support to 

32 Para-Champions to compete at several national and 

international levels.

 In another flagship sporting initiative, the Bank continued 

to support the Indian Blind Cricket Team, in association 

with CABI (Samarthanam) helping them with coaching, 

training, nutrition and fitness trainings.

 In addition to the existing programmes, the Bank launched 

a 3rd initiative in FY 2017-18, the ‘IndusInd Bank Girl Power 

Programme’, supporting over 60 Girl athletes across 

disciplines of Boxing, Judo and Wrestling, in partnership 

with the JSW Foundation.

List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has 

been incurred:-

a.

b.

c.

Activities include:

a.  Environmental Sustainability

b.  Rural Development

c.  Preventive Healthcare and Social Causes

d.  Education

e.  Sports for the Differently-abled
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SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS

1.  Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company / 

Companies?

No.

2.  Do the Subsidiary Company / Companies participate 

in the BR Initiatives of the parent company? If yes, then 

indicate the number of such subsidiary company(s).

Not Applicable.

3.  Do any other entity / entities (e.g. suppliers, 

distributors etc.) that the Company does business 

with, participate in the BR initiatives of the Company? 

If yes, then indicate the percentage of such entity /

entities? [Less than 30%, 30-60%, More than 60%].

Not Applicable.

SECTION D: BR INFORMATION

1. Details of Director / Directors responsible for BR

a)  Details of the Director / Director responsible for 

implementation of the BR policy / policies

 DIN 00031034

 Name Mr. Romesh Sobti

 Designation Managing Director & CEO

b)  Details of the BR head:

 DIN Number (if applicable) ----

 Name Mr. Adwait Hebbar

 Designation Head - Corporate Services

 Telephone number 022-6106 9280

 e-mail id adwait.hebbar@indusind.com

2.  Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy / Policies (Reply in Y/N) 

S. 

No. 

Questions Business 

Ethics

Product 

Responsi-

bility

Wellbeing 

of 

employees

Stakeholder 

engage-

ment

Human  

Rights

Environ-

ment

Public 

Policy

Inclusive 

Growth 

and 

Equitable 

Develop-

ment

Customer 

Relations

P 1 P2 P 3 P4 P 5 P 6 P 7 P 8 P 9

1. Do you have a policy / 

policies for.... 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

2. Has the policy 

being formulated in 

consultation with the 

relevant stakeholders? 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

3. Does the policy conform 

to any national / 

international standards? 

If yes, specify? (50 words) 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

The Policies are in line with Reserve Bank of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) guidelines and other 

regulations / guidelines as applicable.
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S. 

No. 

Questions Business 

Ethics

Product 

Responsi-

bility

Wellbeing 

of 

employees

Stakeholder 

engage-

ment

Human  

Rights

Environ-

ment

Public 

Policy

Inclusive 

Growth 

and 

Equitable 

Develop-

ment

Customer 

Relations

P 1 P2 P 3 P4 P 5 P 6 P 7 P 8 P 9

4. Has the policy being 

approved by the Board? 

Is yes, has it been signed 

by MD / owner / CEO / 

appropriate Board 

Director? 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

5 Does the company have 

a specified committee 

of the Board / Director / 

Official to oversee the 

implementation of the 

policy? 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

6 Indicate the link for the 

policy to be viewed 

online?

Policies are on the intranet of the Bank. P7 & P9 related policy available on website.

http://www.indusind.com/content/csr-home/our-approach/csr-policy.html

http://www.indusind.com/content/home/footer/customer-care/grievance-redressal.html

7 Has the policy been 

formally communicated 

to all relevant internal and 

external stakeholders? 

Y - Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

8 Does the company have 

in-house structure to 

implement the policy /

policies? 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

9 Does the Company have 

a grievance redressal 

mechanism related to 

the policy / policies to 

address stakeholders’ 

grievances related to the 

policy / policies? 

Y - Y - Y - - - Y

10 Has the company carried 

out independent audit / 

evaluation of the 

working of this policy by 

an internal or external 

agency? 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y - Y
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2a.  If answer to Sr. No. 1 against any principle, is ‘No’, please explain why: (Tick upto 2 options)

Sr. 

No. 

Questions P 1 P 2 P 3 P 4 P 5 P 6 P 7 P 8 P 9

1 The company has not understood 

the Principles 

- - - - - - - - -

2 The company is not at a stage 

where it finds itself in a position 

to formulate and implement the 

policies on specified principles 

- - - - - - - - -

3 The company does not have 

financial or manpower resources 

available for the task 

- - - - - - - - -

4 It is planned to be done within 

next 6 months 

- - - - - - - - -

5 It is planned to be done within the 

next 1 year 

- - - - - - - - -

6 Any other reason (please specify) - - - - - - - - -

3.  Governance related to BR 

Indicate the frequency with which the Board of 

Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO to assess 

the BR performance of the Company within 3 months, 

3-6 months, Annually, More than 1 year.

Annually.

Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability 

Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this report? 

How frequently it is published?

Yes. Annually.

The Integrated Report can be viewed at:

https://www.indusind.com/content/csr-home.html

Section E: Principle-wise performance

Principle 1

1.  Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption cover only the company? Yes /  No.  Does  it extend to 

the Group / Joint Ventures / Suppliers / Contractors / NGOs / Others?

 Policy relating to Ethics, Bribery and Corruption cover the Bank and the Suppliers / Contractors / Others, and is 

embedded in the Bank’s Human Resources Policy, Code of Conduct and Discipline, Employee Service Rules as well as the 

Outsourcing Agreements with vendors and contractors. The Bank strictly ensures that none of its business processes or 

its vendors and suppliers, support child, forced or compulsory labour. 

2.  How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what  percentage was 

satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so, provide details thereof, in  about 50 words or so.

 12 complaints were received in the category of corruption and bribery, of which 9 complaints were not found to be true. 

1 case is under disciplinary action and 2 complaints are currently under investigation.  
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Principle 2

1.  List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has incorporated social or environmental concerns, risks 

and / or opportunities.

 Investment in Renewable Energy 

 The dedicated Project Finance unit of the Bank has consistently grown adding specialisation and traction in its businesses. 

As against the Green Commitment to finance 2,000 MW by the end of 2019, provided as part of the Renewable Energy 

Global Investors Meet and Expo (RE-Invest), the Bank has financed projects totaling 2,660 MW till date. 

 Impact Investing

 The Bank’s Impact Investing Group identifies and funds enterprises that are focused on making a positive impact, by 

addressing some of society’s critical issues like reducing gender inequality, education and enhancing social inclusion. In 

the spirit of nurturing these enterprises, and offering life-cycle solutions, the Impact Investing Group provides consulting 

services for financial management, to unlock access to equity and grants and to assist with other forms of fund-raising.

 Microfinance

 The Bank empowers the marginalized sections of the society by providing micro loans through the ‘Business 

Correspondent Model’ involving microfinance institutions that have a diversified geographic presence. These loans 

have helped individual borrowers, largely women, who use the funds for livelihood financing activities like running 

petty shops, livestock, education, high cost debt redemption, tailoring, ready-made garments and consumption. These 

activities have had a major positive social impact and has greatly empowered their lives.

2.  For each such product, provide the following details in respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material etc.) 

per unit of product (optional):

 i.  Reduction during sourcing / production / distribution achieved since the previous year throughout the 

value chain?

  Not Applicable.

 ii.  Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, water) has been achieved since the previous year?

  Not Applicable.

3.  Does the company have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing (including transportation)?

 The Bank’s Procurement Policy guides procurement of software and infrastructure-related hardware, whereby priority 

is given to suppliers that have local presence and ensures commitment to procuring raw material at a fair price from 

the suppliers. The Policy strives to strengthen processes to source from local suppliers, suppliers that adhere to human 

rights and workers’ rights policies and applicable environmental laws.

 i.  If yes, what percentage of your inputs was sourced sustainably? Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 

words or so.

  In FY 2017-18, the Bank conducted sustainability assessments for large volume suppliers that provide technology, 

equipment, IT Hardware, White goods, manpower, security and housekeeping services. These suppliers 

were assessed on their social and environment practices including Health & Safety, Employee Welfare, Water 

Management, Environment Health & Safety, GHG emissions management, etc.

4.  Has the company taken any steps to procure goods and services from local & small producers, including 

communities surrounding their place of work?

 If yes, what steps have been taken to improve their capacity and capability of local and small vendors?

 Not Applicable.
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5.  Does the company have a mechanism to recycle products and waste? If yes, what is the percentage of recycling 

of products and waste (separately as <5%, 5-10%, >10%) Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

 The Bank recycles electronic and toxic waste through authorized e-waste vendors. In 2017-18, the Bank recycled more 

than 20,000 kgs. of e-waste. The Bank also manages its paper waste through a Waste Collection Arrangement as part 

of the ‘Wealth-Out-of-Waste’ (WOW) initiative. Through this initiative, the Bank has recycled more than 12,000 kgs. of 

paper. Besides, the Bank’s Green Champions and Green Commandos conduct several e-waste and paper waste recycling 

campaigns throughout the year.

Principle 3

1.  Please indicate the Total number of employees.

 The Bank had 25,284 employees as at March 31, 2018.

2.  Please indicate the Total number of employees hired on temporary / contractual / casual basis.

 Total number of employees hired on temporary / contractual / casual basis is 5,696.

3.  Please indicate the Number of permanent women employees.

 The Bank had 4,723 permanent women employees as at March 31, 2018.

4.  Please indicate the Number of permanent employees with disabilities.

 The Bank had 8 permanent employees with disabilities as at March 31, 2018.

 Differently-abled employees form a part of the permanent workforce and are given special soft skills training on Growth 

Mind-set, Interpersonal Effectiveness, Stress Management and Business Communication skills. Infrastructure needs are 

also kept in mind to ensure their seamless integration into their system. Training in sign language is provided to fellow 

team colleagues and reporting managers of speech and hearing impaired employees. Special software converts text 

into voice for the visually-impaired employees to understand and respond.

5.  Do you have an Employee Association that is recognized by management?

 The Bank does not have any Association of Employees.

6.  What percentage of your permanent employees is members of this recognized employee association?

 Not Applicable.

7.  Please indicate the Number of complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual harassment 

in the last financial year and pending, as on the end of the financial year.

SI. 

No.

Category No of complaints filed during 

the financial year

No of complaints pending as 

on end of the financial year

1 Child labour / forced labour / involuntary 

labour

Nil Nil

2 Sexual harassment 7 Nil

3 Discriminatory employment Nil Nil

 The Bank has a well-defined and documented Board approved Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace. 

Each and every complaint is carefully examined by the Internal Complaints Committees which is headed by senior 

women employees. The complainant, respondent employees along with their witnesses are carefully examined to bring 

the guilty to book.
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8.  What percentage of your under mentioned employees were given safety & skill up-gradation training in the last 

year?

 Permanent Employees

 Permanent Women Employees

 Casual/Temporary/Contractual Employees

 Employees with Disabilities

 Skill Up-gradation Training

 During FY 2017-18, the Bank conducted 10,66,772 training man-hours for 388 participants through 1,400 programs, 

including 4,22,539 hours on skill-based training. Besides, new training initiatives on Business Communication skills, 

Leadership Development, Art of Collaboration and interpersonal effectiveness were also conducted in FY 2017-18.

 Employee Health & Safety

 The Bank has a ‘Security Policy Statement & Manual’ covering different aspects on threats, violence & risk control 

programmes. The security manual is published and is available to all employees for internal use. The Bank’s Workplace 

Health & Safety Policy puts into effect safety measures, escalation mechanisms and ways to handle emergency situations 

to ensure a safe work environment. The Bank’s E-learning module on ‘Workplace Safety’ creates awareness on various 

potential hazards and accidents at the workplace. About 14,450 employees have been sensitised about workplace 

safety through this module and classroom sessions.

 Training on Fire Safety

 The Bank ensures that its employees are prepared at all times in case of a fire emergency. Periodic fire evacuation drills 

and training programmes are conducted at various locations of the Bank. In FY 2017-18 the Bank conducted fire-safety 

training sessions for about 9,800 employees through 880 sessions.

 Training on Women Safety

 Training Sessions on Women Safety conducted for women employees, equipped them with several self-defense 

techniques in case of an emergency attack. They were also sensitized on common safety issues / incidents that could 

affect them. In FY 2017-18, 240 women employees were trained through 10 such sessions, achieving 720 man hours.

Principle 4

1.  Has the company mapped its internal and external stakeholders? Yes/No

 Yes, the Bank has mapped the internal and external stakeholders and has clear engagement processes with them to 

discuss sustainability issues that are material to the Bank.

2.  Out of the above, has the company identified the disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized stakeholders.

 Yes.

3.  Are there any special initiatives taken by the company to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and 

marginalized stakeholders. If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

 The Bank has a dedicated Inclusive Banking Group which supports the marginalized sections of the society by providing 

micro-loans. The Bank has provided loans to more than 2.7 million women across 17 states and 151 districts across 

the country. The loan size ranges from ` 1,000 to ` 55,000. The Bank’s Micro-finance program has an embedded 

component of financial literacy which educates the members on various components of financial services being offered. 

Additionally, as part of CSR, the Bank reaches out to weaker sections, beneficiaries, children from marginalized socio-

economic backgrounds and the differently abled, through long term CSR programmes. Thus, the Bank’s community 

development initiatives through Inclusive Banking channels and CSR contribute to a well-rounded engagement at the 

Base of the Pyramid.
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 Internally, the Bank engages with the differently-abled employees to identify their needs and concerns and ensure their 

seamlesss integration into the system. The Bank has also been conducting women safety awareness training sessions for 

its women employees.

Principle 5

1.  Does the policy of the company on human rights cover only the company or extend to the Group / Joint Ventures 

/ Suppliers / Contractors / NGOs / Others?

 The Policy on Human Rights covers only the Bank.

2.  How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percent was 

satisfactorily resolved by the management?

 The Bank has not received any complaints pertaining to human rights during FY 2017-18.

Principle 6

1.  Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the company or extends to the Group / Joint Ventures / Suppliers / 

Contractors / NGOs / others.

 While the Policy related to Principle 6 is applied across the Bank, the Bank’s endeavor is to empanel the vendors who 

follow best environment practices, including, Carbon Emissions, Water Management, Environment Health & Safety, GHG 

emissions management, Environment Management Systems, etc.

2.  Does the company have strategies / initiatives to address global environmental issues such as climate change, 

global warming, etc? Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for webpage etc.

 Yes, in line with the Bank’s focus on Environmental Sustainability, the Bank endeavours to recognise and address global 

environmental issues like climate change and global warming that will impact businesses in the long term. The Bank 

prepares a GHG Inventory in conformance with the ISO 14064-1:2006 standard and seeks external verification for the 

same. The Bank has been measuring its carbon footprint for the past six years and discloses its emissions through the 

Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP). The Bank currently features in the ‘A’ list of the Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP), a 

platform that is widely referred to by Global Investors. The Bank is also a front-runner, investing in on-site solar energy 

solutions and LEED certified green buildings. The Bank is directed by an Environment Policy and environment disclosures 

are reported in our Sustainability Report.

 The Bank’s Integrated report is available at the link: 

 http://www.indusind.com/content/csr-home/sustainability-report.html

3.  Does the company identify and assess potential environmental risks? Y/N

 The Bank identifies and assesses the Environmental and Social Risks associated with its business investments. The Bank’s 

investment proposals are screened against a basic set of criteria, including the Bank’s exclusion list and against a high-

risk industry list, in line with its ESMS (Environment and Social Management System) Policy and Framework. The system 

has encouraged the Bank’s borrowers to develop an understanding of E&S Risk in their own operations.

4.  Does the company have any project related to Clean Development Mechanism? If so, provide details thereof, in 

about 50 words or so. Also, if Yes, whether any environmental compliance report is filed?

 Not Applicable.

5.  Has the company undertaken any other initiatives on – clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy, 

etc. Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for web page etc.

 Details of the Banks’s initiatives on clean technology, energy efficiency, and renewable energy are available in the 

Integrated Report, available at:

 http://www.indusind.com/content/csr-home/sustainability-report.html
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 Paper Consumption and Recycling:

 The core of the Bank’s business operations is to document processes, promote products, communicate internally, store 

information, bill customers, etc., and hence the Bank recognizes the abundant use of paper in its operations. In an on-

going initiative, the Bank aims to move away from using fresh paper for customer statements, letterheads, to recycled 

paper. This project has so far migrated nearly 30,40,000 sheets or 13.68 metric tonnes of fresh A4 paper to recycled 

paper.

 In FY 2017-18, the Bank has channelized more than 12,000 kgs. of A4 paper for recycling through the Wealth-Out-of-

Waste (WOW) programme.

 E-waste:

 Given the reliance on electronic equipment in the services industry, especially banking, e-waste is significant and 

unavoidable component of waste generated through the Bank’s operations. The Bank has assumed responsibility for 

sustainable management and disposal of e-waste in accordance with government regulations. In FY 2017-18, the Bank 

has recycled more than 20,000 kgs. of e-waste through government authorized recyclers.

 Energy Conservation and Efficiency:

Energy Reduction Initiative 

Reduction

Scale Electricity Saved*  

(in MWh)

Emissions Reduced  

(in MT of CO2)

Virtual servers Pan-India 2,208.09 1,811.07

 Thin clients Pan-India 40.30 33.05

Solar energy generated at 

Karapakkam facility

Regional office 38.56 31.63

Timers Installed at Signages Pan-India 468.00 383.85

 LEED Certified Premise

 Adding to the pool of Green Buildings, the Bank is in the process of LEED-certifying its Corporate Regional Office at 

Karapakkam, Chennai. The project will comprise a total area of about 34,000 sq. ft. and will incorporate sustainable 

designs to supplement grid power with solar energy, using environmentally sustainable and regionally procured 

materials, encompass an efficient water management system with rain water harvesting and water efficient fixtures. The 

facility will also include energy efficient lighting and HVAC to reduce power consumption from the grid.

 Carbon Disclosure Project

 The Bank prepares an annual carbon inventory in accordance to ISO14064:2006 framework and obtains external 

assurance for the same. In FY 2016-17, the Bank was featured in the CDP India ‘A’ List.

6.  Are the Emissions / Waste generated by the company within the permissible limits given by CPCB / SPCB for the 

financial year being reported?

 Not Applicable.

7.  Number of show cause /  legal notices received from CPCB / SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to 

satisfaction) as on end of Financial Year

 Not Applicable.
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Principle 7

1.  Is your company a member of any trade and chamber or association? If Yes, Name only those major ones that 

your business deals with:

 The Bank is a member of various trade bodies and associations, viz.:

 a.  Bombay Chamber of Commerce & Industry (BCCI)

 b.  Indian Banks Association (IBA)

 c.  Indian Institute of Banking and Finance (IIBF)

 d.  Banking Codes and Standards Board of India (BCSBI)

 e.  Impact Investors Council

 f.  Microfinance Institutions Network

2.  Have you advocated / lobbied through above associations for the advancement or improvement of public good? 

Yes / No; if yes specify the broad areas (drop box: Governance and Administration, Economic Reforms, Inclusive 

Development Policies, Energy security, Water, Food Security, Sustainable Business Principles, Others).

 No.

Principle 8

1.  Does the company have specified programmes / initiatives / projects in pursuit of the policy related to Principle 

8? If yes details thereof.

 In line with the focus areas as per the Bank’s CSR Policy, the Bank has undertaken several projects that critically impact 

communities and the environment around us.

 Environmental Sustainability:

 Afforestation Projects – To implement the vision of a greener planet, the Bank has partnered with Centre 

for Environmental Research & Education (CERE) to promote ecological development through afforestation 

programmes. In FY 2017-18, the Bank supported the plantation of about 10,000 trees at 21 urban and peri-urban 

locations including agro-forested areas partnering with farmers in Bhiwandi, the Indian navy in Uran, and schools 

in the Mumbai metropolitan region. Native trees of about 48 species, were planted to conserve and promote 

regional biodiversity.

 Waste Segregation & Management - In a new programme in FY 2017-18, the Bank initiated a Waste Segregation 

& Management Project across 8 villages benefitting more than 19,000 villagers in rural Uttarakhand. Apart from 

creating positive environmental impact, this will also create livelihoods and empower the village community to 

generate revenue out of the waste.

 In FY 2017-18, the Bank invested in its fleet of Solar ATMs and IT initiatives to reduce significant carbon emissions. 

These initiatives have had a tremendous positive impact on the environment and are in line with the global 

targets of the UN Sustainable Development Goals.

 Green Champions Programme - The Bank’s flagship Outreach programme is an initiative developed to increase 

awareness and promote action on social and environmental issues amongst employees. In 2017-18, the Green 

Champions (GCs) involved their Green Commandos and peers by taking on the ‘12 Acts of Leadership’ campaign 

with each month corresponding to a national or international theme selected for its social or environmental 

importance. The GCs partnered with several NGOs across the country for various activities including nature walks, 

health camps, creating butterfly gardens, literacy workshops, and donation drives for the underprivileged.
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 Preventive Healthcare:

 The Bank has been partnering with SUPPORT, for vocational skill development of drug-addicted youth, 

encouraging them to take up skills like carpentry, welding etc., thus creating employment and making them 

financially independent.

 In an on-going project with Bhagwan Mahaveer Cancer Hospital and Research Centre (BMCHRC) in Jaipur, the 

Bank supports the treatment of children under the age of 14 who have been afflicted with cancer. These children 

belong to remote towns and villages in Rajasthan have no access to medication or treatment.

 Rural Development:

 In a flagship programme initiated in FY 2017-18, the Bank has partnered with CSC Academy (Special Purpose 

Vehicle of the PMGDISHA) to implement a digital literacy project across 11 states, including Maharashtra, 

Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh, Gujarat, Uttar Pradesh, West Bengal, Haryana, Punjab, Jharkhand, Chhattisgarh and 

Odisha. The Bank has trained 2 lakh candidates in FY 2017-18.

 In a new initiative introduced in FY 2017-18, the Bank has partnered with Justice & Care, (NGO working in the 

space of rehabilitation of women rescued from trafficking) for the rehabilitation and skill development of women 

rescued from trafficking in Gaya, Nalanda and Nawada districts of Bihar. The Bank will focus on education, 

preferably skill-based and margin / seed funding, to these women in order to enhance their livelihood prospects 

which will increase their income and decrease the vulnerability of possible victims and their families.

 During FY 2017-18, the Bank reached out to around 2.7 million households from the Base-of- the-Pyramid (BoP) 

Segment both, through Direct and Indirect Channels. The Bank’s initiatives have reached out to cover more than 

25,000 villages across 151 Districts and 17 States. The borrowers, all of whom are women, are primarily from 

unbanked or under-banked geographical areas and a majority of them are from below-average or low-ranked 

districts, as ranked by the CRISIL Inclusiveness Index. The Bank’s model has benefitted the BOP segment through 

financial and economic empowerment through establishment of micro-enterprises, enhancing quality of life and 

society, thereby enhancing education and healthcare status.

 Education:

 The Bank’s Legal Literacy Programme, in partnership with the Bank’s Business Correspondent, Samhita, benefits 

women in 10 districts of Madhya Pradesh. The objective is to train and educate women on their legal rights, 

entitlements, and protective laws on the issues of domestic violence and gender discrimination. Besides training 

them on their rights and entitlements, the programme also grooms community counselors who help their peers 

to bring their issues to light. The programme has, so far, benefitted 45,000 women.

 In partnership with Ashoka University, the Bank supports deserving meritorious students through the Young India 

Fellowship (YIF) programme, renowned for introducing young entrepreneurs in the social development sector. 

The Bank has, so far, supported 60 scholars, who have moved on to represent grassroots-level organisations 

working for education and development of marginalized agricultural and rural communities, arts and culture, 

policy-making and several leading corporates. The programme has provided them an opportunity to pursue their 

goals of bringing about societal and economic development.

 Starting FY 2017-18, the Bank has partnered with Business Correspondent, Cashpor, to implement an enhanced 

education programme. Under this initiative, support classes are conducted for children from underprivileged 

communities to help them pass out of school and move on to salaried employment thereby breaking inter-

generational poverty. The programme was implemented in Eastern Uttar Pradesh and Jharkhand and benefits 

around 5,000 children.

 In a new initiative launched during FY 2017-18, the Bank has supported the Heritage Fellowship Programme in 

partnership with Sahapedia, to support photographers to research and document some of India’s less known, 

unique arts, traditions, cultural spaces and heritage.
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 Sports:

 The Bank continues to support the Para-Champions Programme in collaboration with ‘Go Sports Foundation’. 

During FY 2017-18, 32 athletes were supported with Equipment, Nutrition, Training, Fitness, Mental conditioning 

and high performance trainings.

 In another on-going project with CABI (Samarthanam), the Bank supports coaching, training and nutrition and 

fitness trainings of the Indian Blind Cricket team. The team went on to win the ODI Blind Cricket World Cup held 

in January 2018 in Dubai. Potential players are identified from marginalized backgrounds at the grassroot levels, 

thus empowering them and elevating their economic status.

 As the Bank’s 3rd marquee programme in sports, the Bank launched the IndusInd Girl Power Programme, in 

association with the JSW Foundation. Through this initiative, more than 60 female athletes are supported 

across Wrestling, Boxing and Judo. This programme is set to be a pioneering Woman Athlete Development 

Programme in India. The athletes nurtured through this initiative are expected to represent India in the upcoming 

Commonwealth and Asian Games and in the 2020 Olympic Games.

 The Bank encourages its employees to volunteer and contribute to the charitable cause of their choice. 

Share2Care, the Bank’s Employee Payroll Giving Programme, allows employees to contribute to NGOs working on 

various social and environmental issues. In the past year, the employees raised funds for SUPPORT, Nalandaway 

Foundation, Samarthanam, Aaranyak, HelpAge India, and Prayas. Their donations have made a significant impact 

in the areas of education for children, women empowerment, biodiversity conservation and elderly care.

2.  Are the programmes / projects undertaken through in-house team / own foundation / external NGO / government 

structures / any other organization?

 The programmes / projects / initiatives are undertaken through an in-house team, NGOs, Implementation Agencies, 

environmental consultants and Business Correspondents.

3.  Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?

 The Bank monitors and assesses the impact of its CSR programmes to ensure effective implementation and impact. A 

gist of the same is provided below:

 For the Bank’s Digital Literacy programme, more than 25,000 beneficiaries were monitored and assessed to identify 

merits and impact from the programme; 74% of the beneficiaries responded that they were now confident of 

exploring and applying for jobs. 70% of them were inclined to start their own business and 83% felt confident 

about reaching out to contacts online.

 As a result of the legal rights training, 116 cases of violence were reported through legal channels in FY 2017-18. 

For many women, the training provided a common platform for the first time where social acceptance of violence 

was discussed and challenged.

4.  What is your company’s direct contribution to community development projects- Amount in INR and the details 

of the projects undertaken.

 The Bank has spent ` 20.47 crores on various social and environmental activities during FY 2017-18. The details of the 

community development initiatives have been highlighted in Point 1 of Principle 8.

5. Have you taken steps to ensure that this community development initiative is successfully adopted by the 

community? Please explain in 50 words, or so.

 We ensure the sustainability of the Bank’ CSR Projects by engaging with the community as they are our Stakeholders 

in community interventions; the Bank ensures that the Projects undertaken have complete co-operation from the 

community, thus ensuring that they are viable and generate the necessary impact.
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Principle 9

1.  What percentage of customer complaints / consumer cases are pending as on the end of financial year.

 During the Financial Year ended 2017-18, 1.56% customer complaints were pending, which were subsequently resolved.

2.  Does the company display product information on the product label, over and above what is mandated as per 

local laws? Yes / No / N.A. / Remarks (additional information)

 Not Applicable.

3.  Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible 

advertising and / or anti-competitive behaviour during the last five  years and pending as on end of financial 

year. If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

 No.

4.  Did your company carry out any consumer survey / consumer satisfaction trends?

 The Bank conducts monthly transactional surveys called ‘Voice of Customer’ conducted through net-banking portals, 

ATMs, and e-mails to gauge customer engagement and experience with day-to-day transactions. Additionally, to 

understand and analyze trends in customer satisfaction over extended periods, the Bank conducts an Annual Loyalty 

Survey which offers a deeper understanding of customer satisfaction, as well, as a way to identify process and product 

improvement opportunities. The Bank also undertakes regular customer service monitoring and assessment at the 

branch-level through random branch audits.
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CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members of IndusInd Bank Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by IndusInd Bank Limited (“the Bank”) for the year 

ended on March 31, 2018, as stipulated in Chapter IV of The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [“Listing Regulations”].

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited 

to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Bank for ensuring compliance with the conditions of Corporate 

Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial Statements of the Bank.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Bank has 

complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as specified in Chapter IV of the Listing Regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Bank nor the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Bank.

For Bhandari & Associates

Company Secretaries

S. N. Bhandari

Partner

FCS No: 761; C P No. : 366

Place : Mumbai

Date : May 5, 2018

ANNEXURE VII TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
(The Report on Corporate Governance forms part of the Directors’ Report for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2018)

Bank’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

The Bank believes that Corporate Governance is a reflection of its value system, encompassing its culture, its policies, and its 
relationships with the stakeholders. Responsible and ethical corporate conduct is integral to the way the Bank does its business.

The Bank also believes that consistent implementation of good Corporate Governance practices contributes towards 
developing and sustaining the best operating systems and procedures.

Integrity, transparency and accountability are the basic tenets of Corporate Governance. The Bank acknowledges the need to 
uphold the integrity of every transaction it enters into, and believes that honesty in its internal conduct would be judged by 
its external behaviour.

The Bank is committed to operate on commercial principles ensuring, at the same time, the need to remain accountable, 
transparent and responsive to its stakeholders and regulators.

The Bank’s Corporate Governance architecture has been strengthened through various Policies and Codes adopted by the 
Bank.

The Bank’s Board consists of eminent individuals having, on an average, industry experience of more than 30 years, and plays 
a crucial role in overseeing how the Management serves the short-term and long-term interests of various stakeholders and 
creates lasting value for its stakeholders, including its customers.

This belief is reflected in the Bank’s governance practices, under which it strives to maintain an effective, informed and 
independent Board.

Certificate on compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“Listing Regulations”), Certificate from M/s Bhandari & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, on compliance with the 
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations is annexed to the Directors’ Report.

Certification by the Chief Financial Officer and the Managing Director & CEO

Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, Certification by the Managing Director & CEO and the Chief Financial 
Officer of the Bank on the Financial Statements and Internal Controls relating to financial reporting for the year ended March 
31, 2018 has been obtained and placed before the Board.

Code of Ethics and Conduct for Directors and Senior Management

In compliance with Regulation 26(3) of the Listing Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013, the Bank has formulated a ‘Code 
of Ethics and Conduct for Directors and Senior Management’. (The term ‘Senior Management’ means personnel of the Bank who 
are members of its Core Management Team, one level below the Board of Directors. This comprises Members of Management 
who are of the level of Business Unit Heads).

The Bank has received confirmations from all its Directors and Senior Management Personnel regarding compliance with the 
Code for the year ended March 31, 2018. A declaration by the Managing Director & CEO to this effect on behalf of all Board 
Members and Senior Management for the year ended March 31, 2018 is enclosed as an Annexure to this Report.

The Code of Ethics and Conduct for Directors and Senior Management of the Bank has been hosted on the Bank’s website 

(www.indusind.com).

MISSION

“We will consistently add value to all our stakeholders and emerge as India’s most convenient Bank with Best-in-Banking 

financial parameters together with the doubling of our loan book, clients and profits within the next three years.”

VISION

“IndusInd Bank will be:

- A relevant business and banking partner to its clients.

- Customer Responsive, striving at all times to collaborate with clients in providing solutions for their banking needs.

- A forerunner in the marketplace in terms of profitability, productivity and efficiency.

- Engaged with all our stakeholders and will deliver sustainable and compliant returns.”

QUALITY POLICY

“IndusInd Bank is committed to meet and strive to exceed customer requirements through timely, error-free and 

responsive service. We shall continually improve the effectiveness of our work processes through training, customer 

feedback, innovation and digitization.”
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Board of Directors

The Bank’s Board is broad-based and consists of eminent individuals from industry, having knowledge or practical experience 

in respect of one or more fields, viz., Accountancy, Banking, Finance, Information Technology, Economics, Agriculture, Business 

Development and Management, etc. The Board is constituted in compliance with the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, Companies 

Act, 2013, Listing Regulations, and in line with the Board Diversity Policy adopted by the Bank.

The Board is entrusted with formulation of policies, implementation of Regulatory guidelines, setting up of directions, planning 

of strategies, evaluation of performance of the Bank, etc. and has been vested with requisite powers. Committees of Board-

level and of Executive-level exercise oversight over the business segments assigned to them.

i. Board Composition

 The composition of the Bank’s Board is in compliance with the requirements of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, 

Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations and all other applicable laws.

 The Board consists of eight Directors, comprising Non-Executive Chairman, five Independent Directors, one Non-

Executive Non-Independent Director, and the Managing Director & CEO. The composition of the Board represents an 

optimal mix of professionalism, knowledge and experience.

 During the year under review:

 Mr. R. Seshasayee (DIN: 00047985): Reserve Bank of India, vide their letter dated July 3, 2017 conveyed their approval 

for re-appointment of Mr. Seshasayee as ‘Non-Executive Part-time Chairman’ for a period of two years, until July 24, 2019.

 Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale (DIN: 00013782): Mr. Kale completed his tenure in the Board on November 3, 2017. Reserve 

Bank of India have, vide their letter dated December 20, 2017, conveyed approval for continuance of Mr. Yashodhan M. 

Kale in the Board upto April 15, 2019.

 The Board of Directors had, in their meeting held on January 11, 2018, accordingly approved the appointment of 

Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale as ‘Additional Director’ in the category of ‘Non-Executive Non-Independent Director’ in the Bank.

 Approval of the shareholders is being requested for the appointment of Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale as Director in the Board 

of the Bank.

 Mr. Romesh Sobti (DIN: 00031034): Reserve Bank of India have, vide their letter dated January 16, 2018, conveyed  

approval for the re-appointment of Mr. Romesh Sobti as ‘Managing Director & CEO’ from February 1, 2018 until  

March 23, 2020.

 Mr. Vijay Vaid (DIN: 00219709): Mr. Vijay Vaid, who had been ‘Non-Executive Independent Director’ in the Board since 

October 18, 2011 completed his tenure in the Board on February 3, 2018. 

 The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the valuable contributions made by Mr. Vijay Vaid towards 

the deliberations in Board Meetings during his tenure as Director of the Bank.

 None of the Directors of the Bank are related to each other.

 Professional information in respect of each of the Directors is furnished below:

Name of Director DIN Nature of 

Directorship

Special Knowledge / 

Practical Experience

Occupation

Mr. R. Seshasayee 00047985 Non-Executive 

Part-time 

Chairman

Finance and General 

Management

Former Vice-Chairman, Ashok 

Leyland Ltd.

Mrs. Kanchan 

Chitale

00007267 Non-Executive 

Independent

Accountancy Practising Chartered Accountant

Mr. T. Anantha 

Narayanan

00007227 Non-Executive 

Independent

Accountancy, Finance 

and Agriculture

Former Executive Director 

(Finance) of Ashok Leyland Ltd.
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Name of Director DIN Nature of 

Directorship

Special Knowledge / 

Practical Experience

Occupation

Mr. Ranbir Singh 

Butola

00145895 Non-Executive 

Independent

Finance and Economics Former CMD of Indian Oil 

Corporation Ltd. Presently Advisor 

to large Corporate Groups on Oil 

and Gas

Mr. Shanker 

Annaswamy

00449634 Non-Executive 

Independent

Information Technology Former Managing Director of IBM 

India Private Limited

Dr. T. T. Ram 

Mohan

00008651 Non-Executive 

Independent

Banking & Finance Professor – Finance & Accounting, 

IIM, Ahmedabad

Mr. Yashodhan M. 

Kale #

00013782 Non-Executive 

Non-Independent

Corporate Governance, 

Accountancy and 

Taxation

Service

Mr. Romesh Sobti 00031034 Managing Director 

& CEO

Banking Managing Director & CEO

Mr. Vijay Vaid * 00219709 Non-Executive 

Independent

SSI Industrialist

 Note: # Mr. Kale completed his tenure in the Board on November 3, 2017. Reserve Bank of India have, vide their letter 

dated December 20, 2017, conveyed approval for continuance of Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale in the Board upto April 15, 2019.

 The Board of Directors had, in their meeting held on January 11, 2018, accordingly approved the appointment of  

Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale as ‘Additional Director’ in the category of ‘Non-Executive Non-Independent Director’ in the Bank.

 * Mr. Vijay Vaid completed his tenure in the Board of the Bank on February 3, 2018.

ii. Attendance of Directors at meetings of the Board and Annual General Meeting

 During the year ended March 31, 2018, ten meetings of the Board were held: On April 19, 2017, May 9, 2017, June 19, 

2017, July 11, 2017, July 26, 2017, October 12, 2017, October 14, 2017, December 4, 2017, January 11, 2018 and March 

26, 2018.

 Details of attendance at the Board Meetings and at the previous Annual General Meeting, other Directorships, and 

Memberships and Chairpersonships of Committees pertaining to each Director as on March 31, 2018 are as follows:

Name of the Director Attendance 

at the Board 

Meetings 

(No. of 

Meetings 

attended #)

Attendance 

at the AGM 

held on July 

26, 2017

Number of other 

Directorships

No. of 

Committees 

of other 

companies 

in which 

Member $ %

No. of 

Committees 

of other 

companies 

in which 

Chairperson $ %

Indian 

Public 

Limited 

Companies

Other 

Companies 

/ LLPs ~

Mr. R. Seshasayee 9/10 3 1 1 -

Mrs. Kanchan Chitale 10/10 8 1 3 5

Mr. Vijay Vaid* 8/9 - 4 - -

Mr. Ranbir Singh Butola 9/10 - 2 - -

Mr. T. Anantha Narayanan 9/10 1 - - 1

Mr. Yashodhan Kale** 9/9 1 1 - -

Mr. Shanker Annaswamy 10/10 2 - 2 -

Dr. T. T. Ram Mohan 10/10 3 - 3 -

Mr. Romesh Sobti 10/10 - - - -
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 Notes:

 * Mr. Vijay Vaid ceased to be Director on February 3, 2018.

 ** Mr. Kale completed his tenure in the Board on November 3, 2017. Reserve Bank of India have, vide their letter 

dated December 20, 2017, conveyed approval for continuance of Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale in the Board upto  

April 15, 2019.

  The Board of Directors had, in their meeting held on January 11, 2018, accordingly approved the appointment of 

Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale as ‘Additional Director’ in the category of ‘Non-Executive Non-Independent Director’ in the 

Bank.

 # Includes attendance through videoconference.

 ~ Includes Directorship held in Foreign Companies, Private Limited Companies and Companies under Section 8 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 in India.

 $ Pursuant to Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations, for the purpose of considering the limit of Committees in 

which Directors are Member / Chairperson, all Public Limited Companies, whether listed or not, are included. 

Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, and Companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Not 

for Profit’) are excluded.

 % For the purpose of determination of the number of Committees of other companies, Chairpersonships and 

Memberships of only ‘Audit Committee’ and the ‘Stakeholders Relations Committee’ have been considered.

iii. Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors

 During the year under review, all the Non-Executive Directors, including the Non-Executive Part-time Chairman received 

remuneration in the form of Profit-related Commission in addition to Sitting Fees.

 No Stock Options were granted to Non-Executive Directors.

 The structure of Sitting Fees payable for participation in the Board and its Committees’ meetings is as under:

Particulars Sitting Fees (in `) Remarks

(a) Board of Directors 1,00,000 For every meeting attended.

(b) Audit Committee of the Board 50,000 For every meeting attended.

(c) For all other Board Committees 20,000 For every meeting attended.

 The details of remuneration in the form of Profit-related Commission and Sitting Fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors 

are as under:

Name of Director Commission (in `) Sitting Fees (in `)

Mr. R. Seshasayee 25,00,000 14,00,000

Mrs. Kanchan Chitale 10,00,000 21,60,000

Mr. Vijay Vaid* 8,40,411 10,60,000

Mr. T. Anantha Narayanan 10,00,000 19,50,000

Mr. Ranbir Singh Butola 10,00,000 15,30,000

Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale** 10,00,000 15,20,000

Mr. Shanker Annaswamy 10,00,000 17,60,000

Dr. T. T. Ram Mohan 10,00,000 14,20,000

 Notes:

 * Mr. Vijay Vaid ceased to be Director with effect from February 3, 2018. Commission has been paid to him on  

pro-rata basis, upto the date of his cessation from the Bank’s Board.

 ** Mr. Kale completed his tenure in the Board on November 3, 2017. Reserve Bank of India have, vide their letter 

dated December 20, 2017, conveyed approval for continuance of Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale in the Board upto April 

15, 2019, and remuneration has been paid to him accordingly.
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  The Board of Directors had, in their meeting held on January 11, 2018, accordingly approved the appointment of 

Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale as ‘Additional Director’ in the category of  ‘Non-Executive Non-Independent Director’ in the 

Bank.

  - The amount of Commission and Sitting Fees mentioned above is inclusive of taxes.

  - None of the Non-Executive Directors have any other pecuniary interest in the Bank.

 Compensation to Whole-time Directors

 Appointment / re-appointment of Whole-time Directors made and compensation paid to them is with the prior approval 

of the Reserve Bank of India.

 Mr. Romesh Sobti, Managing Director & CEO

 Mr. Romesh Sobti has been ‘Managing Director & CEO’ of the Bank since February 1, 2008.

 Reserve Bank of India have approved the appointment of Mr. Romesh Sobti as Managing Director & CEO of the Bank 

upto March 23, 2020.

 For the Financial Year 2017-18, the details of remuneration paid to Mr. Romesh Sobti are as follows:

 Salary INR 189.49 lakhs, Other Allowances INR 229.26 lakhs, facility of company-leased and furnished accommodation, 

Provident Fund at 12% of Salary, Gratuity at one month’s Salary, Pension at two months’ Salary, Medical Expenses 

reimbursement up to INR 1.88 lakhs, Leave Fare Concession of INR 1.88 lakhs, Mediclaim for self and family members, 

Personal Accident Insurance, Performance-based Bonus, Membership of two Clubs and official car with driver.

 During FY 2017-18, Mr. Sobti has exercised an aggregate of 2,00,000 Options.

iv. Directors’ Shareholdings

 The details of Bank’s Equity Shares held by the Directors, including the Managing Director & CEO as on March 31, 2018 

are given below:

 (i) Mr. T. Anantha Narayanan : 580 shares (0.00%)

 (ii) Dr. T. T. Ram Mohan : 3,800 shares (0.00%)

 (iii) Mrs. Kanchan Chitale : 998 shares (0.00%)

 (iv) Mr. Romesh Sobti, MD & CEO : 4,00,000 shares (0.07%)

 None of the Directors of the Bank hold shares in the Bank for other person(s) on a beneficial basis. Further, no Director 

holds any other security issued by the Bank.

v.  Details of Directors seeking Appointment / Re-appointment / Directors retiring by rotation at the 

forthcoming AGM

 Appointment

 Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale, (DIN: 00013782), who had been a member of the Board as  ‘Non-Executive Non-Independent  

Director’ since April 16, 2015, ceased to hold office with effect from November 3, 2017. Reserve Bank of India have, vide 

their letter dated December 20, 2017, conveyed approval for continuance of Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale in the Board upto 

April 15, 2019.

 The Board of Directors had, in their meeting held on January 11, 2018, accordingly approved the appointment of 

Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale as ‘Additional Director’ in the category of ‘Non-Executive Non-Independent Director’ in the Bank.

 Approval of the shareholders is being requested for the appointment of Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale as Director in the Board 

of the Bank.
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 Re-appointment

 Mr. Romesh Sobti (DIN: 00031034) has been the Managing Director & CEO of the Bank since February 1, 2008.

 Shareholders of the Bank had, in the 21st AGM held on August 17, 2015, approved the re-appointment of Mr. Romesh 

Sobti as the Managing Director & CEO for a period of three years with effect from February 1, 2015.

 The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board had recommended to the Board of Directors the  

re-appointment of Mr. Romesh Sobti as Managing Director & CEO with effect from February 1, 2018.

 Reserve Bank of India have conveyed approval for re-appointment of Mr. Romesh Sobti upto March 23, 2020.

 Approval of the shareholders is being requested for re-appointment of Mr. Romesh Sobti as Managing Director & CEO of 

the Bank upto March 23, 2020.

 Retirement by Rotation

 In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, out of the Non-Independent Directors, Mr. R. Seshasayee 

(DIN: 00047985), Non-Executive Part-time Chairman of the Bank, being longest in Office, retires by rotation, and being 

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment at the AGM.

 Approval of the shareholders is being requested for the re-appointment of Mr. R. Seshasayee as Non-Executive Part-time 

Chairman of the Bank.

 As required under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations, particulars of the Directors seeking appointment, 

re-appointment, and retirement by rotation are given in the Explanatory Statement to the Notice of the forthcoming AGM.

vi. Committees of the Board

 The Board has constituted several Committees of Directors to take decisions and monitor the activities falling within 

their terms of reference. Each of these Committees have the requisite expertise to handle issues relevant to their field. 

These Committees spend considerable time and give focused attention to the various issues placed before them and the 

guidance provided by these Committees lends immense value and enhances the decision-making process of the Board. 

The Board reviews the functioning of these Committees from time to time. The Meetings of each of these Committees 

are convened by the respective Chairpersons, who also inform the Board a brief summary of discussions held in the 

Committee Meetings. The Minutes of the Committee Meetings are sent to all Directors individually and are circulated 

before the respective Board / Committee Meetings.

 The constitution, terms of reference and the functioning of the existing Committees of the Board are as follows:

1. Audit Committee of the Board

 Terms of reference:

 (A) Power:

  1. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.

  2. To seek information from any employee.

  3. To obtain outside Legal or other professional advice.

  4. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

 (B) Role:

  1. Oversight of the company’s Financial Reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 

ensure that the Financial Statements are correct, sufficient and credible;

  2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors;

  3. Approval of payments to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by them;

  4. Reviewing with the Management, the annual Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon before 

submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:
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Board’s Report in terms of Clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

  5. Reviewing with the Management, the quarterly Financial Statements before submission to the Board for 

approval;

  6. Reviewing with the Management, the Statement of Uses / Application of Funds raised through an issue 

(Public Issue, Rights Issue, Preferential Issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 

those stated in the Offer Document / Prospectus / Notice and the Report submitted by the monitoring 

agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a Public or Rights Issue, and making appropriate 

recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

  7. Review and monitor the Auditors’ independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

  8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with Related Parties;

  9. Scrutiny of Inter-Corporate Loans and Investments;

  10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

  11. Evaluation of Internal Financial Controls and Risk Management Systems;

  12. Reviewing, with the Management, the performance of Statutory and Internal Auditors, adequacy of the 

Internal Control Systems;

  13. Reviewing the adequacy of Internal Audit function, if any, including the structure of the Internal Audit 

Department, staffing and seniority of the Official heading the department, reporting structure coverage 

and frequency of Internal Audit;

  14. Discussion with Internal Auditors of any significant findings and follow-up thereon;

  15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the Internal Auditors into matters where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of Internal Control Systems of a material nature and reporting the 

matter to the Board;

  16. Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 

well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

  17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture-holders, 

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

  18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism;

  19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the Whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading 

the Finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and 

background, etc. of the candidate;

  20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

 (C) Review of following information (Scope):

  1. Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

  2. Statement of significant Related Party Transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by 

Management;
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  3. Management Letters / Letters of Internal Control weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors;

  4. Internal Audit Reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

  5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor shall be subject to 

review by the Audit Committee.

 Composition : The Committee comprised five members, viz., Mr. T. Anantha Narayanan (Chairman),  

Mrs. Kanchan Chitale, Mr. Ranbir Singh Butola, Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale and Mr. Shanker 

Annaswamy.

 Meetings : The Committee met ten times during the financial year 2017-18: On April 18, 2017, May 9, 

2017, June 20, 2017, July 10, 2017, July 26, 2017, September 26, 2017, October 11, 2017, 

October 13, 2017, January 10, 2018 and March 27, 2018.

   The Audit Committee of the Board is entrusted with the responsibility of supervising the Bank’s internal 

controls and financial reporting process. The composition, quorum and terms of reference of the Committee 

are in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of 

India and the provisions of Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. All members of the Audit Committee 

are financially literate and bring in expertise in the fields of Finance, Taxation, Economics, etc.

   The attendance details of the members are as under:

Members Number of Meetings attended (includes 

attendance through videoconference)

Remarks

Mr. T. Anantha Narayanan 9/10 -

Mrs. Kanchan Chitale 10/10 -

Mr. Ranbir Singh Butola 9/10 -

Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale 10/10 -

Mr. Shanker Annaswamy 10/10 -

2. Committee of Directors

 Terms of Reference : The Committee of Directors exercises powers delegated to it by the Board, for managing the 

affairs of the Bank; for efficient control over operational areas; and for ensuring speedy disposal 

of matters requiring immediate approval.

 Composition : The Committee comprised five members, viz., Mr. R. Seshasayee (Chairman), Mrs. Kanchan Chitale, 

Mr. T. Anantha Narayanan, Dr. T. T. Ram Mohan and Mr. Romesh Sobti.

 Meetings : The Committee met seventeen times during the financial year 2017-18: On May 2, 2017, May 

19, 2017, June 16, 2017, June 29, 2017, August 9, 2017, August 21, 2017, September 7, 2017, 

September 19, 2017, September 26, 2017, November 3, 2017, November 30, 2017, December 15, 

2017, December 27, 2017, January 25, 2018, February 14, 2018, March 1, 2018, and March 22, 2018.

 The attendance details of the members are as under:

Members Number of Meetings attended (includes 

attendance through videoconference)

Remarks

Mr. R. Seshasayee 10/17 -

Mr. T. Anantha Narayanan 16/17 -

Mrs. Kanchan Chitale 14/17 -

Dr. T. T. Ram Mohan 14/17 -

Mr. Romesh Sobti 11/17 -
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3. Compensation Committee

 Terms of reference : The Committee’s role is to make recommendations on the grant of options to Bank’s employees 

under the Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2007.

 Composition : The Committee comprised three members, viz., Mrs. Kanchan Chitale (Chairperson), 

Mr. R. Seshasayee, and Mr. Ranbir Singh Butola.

 Meetings : The Committee met eight times during the financial year 2017-18: On April 19, 2017, May 9, 2017, 

June 19, 2017, July 11, 2017, October 12, 2017, January 11, 2018, March 13, 2018 and March 27, 

2018.

 The attendance details of the members are as under:

Members Number of Meetings attended Remarks

Mrs. Kanchan Chitale 7/8 -

Mr. R. Seshasayee 8/8 -

Mr. Vijay Vaid 5/6 Ceased to be Director with effect from 

February 3, 2018, upon completion of 

tenure.

Mr. Shanker Annaswamy 1/1 Co-opted for the meeting held on 

March 13, 2018 vice Mr. Vijay Vaid.

Mr. Ranbir Singh Butola - Inducted in the Committee by the 

Board on March 26, 2018.

4. Customer Service Committee

 Terms of reference : The Committee’s function is to monitor the quality of customer service extended by the Bank, 

and to review the needs of customers.

 Composition : The Committee comprised three members, viz., Dr. T. T. Ram Mohan (Chairman), Mr. Yashodhan M. 

Kale and Mr. Romesh Sobti.

 Meetings : The Committee met once during the financial year 2017-18: On October 11, 2017.

 The attendance details of the members are as under:

Members Number of Meetings attended Remarks

Dr. T. T. Ram Mohan 1/1 -

Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale 1/1 -

Mr. Romesh Sobti 1/1 -

5. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

 Terms of reference : The Committee’s role is to supervise the expenditure by the Bank, in every financial year, of at 

least 2% of the Average Net Profits made during three immediately preceding financial years in 

pursuance of its CSR Policy.

 Composition : The Committee comprised three members, viz., Mrs. Kanchan Chitale (Chairperson), 

Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale and Mr. Romesh Sobti.

 Meetings : The Committee met once during the financial year 2017-18: On July 10, 2017.

 The composition of CSR Committee is in compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

 The Bank’s CSR Policy is uploaded on the website at the link given below:

 http://www.indusind.com/content/csr-home/our-approach/csr-policy.html
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 The attendance details of the members are as under:

Members Number of Meetings attended Remarks

Mrs. Kanchan Chitale 1/1 -

Mr. Vijay Vaid 1/1 Ceased to be Director with effect from  

February 3, 2018, upon completion of tenure.

Mr. Romesh Sobti 1/1 -

Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale - Inducted in the Committee by the Board on 

March 26, 2018.

6. Finance Committee

 Terms of reference : The Committee’s role is to decide on the appropriate mode of raising of capital; to finalise, 

settle, approve or agree to terms and conditions including the pricing for the said capital-raising 

programme; finalise, settle, approve, and authorise the executing of any document, deed, writing, 

undertaking, guarantee or other papers (including any modification thereof ) in connection with 

the capital-raising programme and authorise the affixing of the Common Seal of the Company, if 

necessary, thereto in accordance with the provisions of Articles of Association of the Company; to 

appoint and to fix terms and conditions of merchant bankers, investment bankers, lead or other 

managers, advisors, solicitors, agents or such other persons or intermediaries as may be deemed 

necessary for the capital-raising programme; to do all such things and deal with all such matters 

and take all such steps as may be necessary to give effect to the resolution for raising of capital and 

to settle / resolve any question or difficulties that may arise with regard to the said programme.

 Composition : The Committee comprised five members, viz., Mr. R. Seshasayee (Chairman), Mr. Ranbir Singh 

Butola, Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale, Mr. T. Anantha Narayanan and Mr. Romesh Sobti.

 Meetings : The Committee met once during the financial year 2017-18: On April 18, 2017.

 The attendance details of the members are as under:

Members Number of Meetings attended Remarks

Mr. R. Seshasayee 0/1 -

Mr. Ranbir Singh Butola 1/1 -

Mr. T. Anantha Narayanan 1/1 -

Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale 1/1 -

Mr. Romesh Sobti 0/1 -

7. I.T. Strategy Committee

 Terms of reference: The Committee conducts Board-level overview of aligning Information Technology with the 

business strategy of the Bank, aimed at offering better service to customers, improved risk 

management, and superior performance.

 Composition:  The Committee comprised three members, viz., Mr. Shanker Annaswamy (Chairman), 

Mr. R. Seshasayee and Mr. Romesh Sobti.

 Meetings: The Committee met four times during the financial year 2017-18: On June 19, 2017, October 13, 

2017, March 13, 2018 and March 27, 2018.

 The attendance details of the members are as under:

Members Number of Meetings attended 

(includes attendance through 

videoconference)

Remarks

Mr. Shanker Annaswamy 4/4 -

Mr. R. Seshasayee 2/4 -

Mr. Romesh Sobti 3/4 -
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8. Nomination & Remuneration Committee

 Pursuant to Section 178 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 19 of the Listing 

Regulations and guidelines issued by RBI, the Terms of Reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee include:

 For ‘Nomination’ matters:

 1. To identify persons who are qualified to be appointed as Directors;

 2. To devise the Policy on Board Diversity;

 3. To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors, the Board and its Committees;

 4. To determine whether to extend the tenure of appointment of the Independent Directors, on the basis of the 

report of Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors;

 5. To conduct due diligence as to the credentials of any Director before his / her appointment, and making 

appropriate recommendations to the Board, in consonance with the Dr. Ganguly Committee recommendations 

and the requirements of RBI.

 For ‘Remuneration and HR’ matters:

 1. To oversee the framing, review and implementation of the Compensation Policy of the Bank for Whole-time 

Directors / Chief Executive Officers / Key Managerial Personnel / Risk-Takers and Control Function Staff towards 

ensuring effective alignment between remuneration and risks;

 2. To determine, on behalf of the Board, the Bank’s Policy on Remuneration packages for Executive Directors, 

including Pension, etc.;

 3. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and 

recommend to the Board the Policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 

other employees;

 4. To review the Talent Management and Succession;

 5. Policy of Top-level Executives, one level below the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (Member of the 

Core Executive Team), and the process for ensuring Business Continuity; and

 6. To review the HR strategy, Performance Appraisal process, fundamental changes in the Organization Structure, 

Training and the overall HR function.

 Composition : The Committee comprised four members, viz., Mr. T. Anantha Narayanan (Chairman), 

Mr. R. Seshasayee, Mr. Ranbir Singh Butola and Mrs. Kanchan Chitale.

 Meetings : The Committee met five times during the financial year 2017-18: On April 19, 2017, May 9, 2017, 

October 12, 2017, January 11, 2018 and March 27, 2018.

 The attendance details of the members are as under:

Members Number of Meetings attended 

(includes attendance through 

videoconference)

Remarks

Mr. T. Anantha Narayanan 5/5 -

Mr. R. Seshasayee 5/5 -

Mr. Vijay Vaid 4/4 Ceased to be Director with effect 

from February 3, 2018, upon 

completion of tenure.

Mr. Ranbir Singh Butola 4/5 -

Mrs. Kanchan Chitale 5/5 -
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9. Risk Management Committee

 Terms of reference : The Committee’s role is to examine risk policies and procedures developed by the Bank and to 

monitor adherence to various risk parameters and prudential limits by the various operating 

departments.

 Composition : The Committee comprised four members, viz., Dr. T. T. Ram Mohan (Chairman), Mr. T. Anantha 

Narayanan, Mr. Shanker Annaswamy and Mr. Romesh Sobti.

 Meetings : The Committee met four times during the financial year 2017-18: On April 18, 2017, June 19, 2017, 

October 11, 2017 and January 10, 2018.

 The attendance details of the members are as under:

Members Number of Meetings attended 

(includes attendance through 

videoconference)

Remarks

Dr. T. T. Ram Mohan 4/4 -

Mr. T. Anantha Narayanan 4/4 -

Mr. Shanker Annaswamy 4/4 -

Mr. Romesh Sobti 2/4 -

10. Review Committee - Non-Cooperative Borrowers and Wilful Defaulters

 Terms of reference : The Committee’s role is to review the decisions taken by the Identification Committee in respect 

of Non-Cooperative / Wilful Defaulters).

 Composition : The Committee comprised three members, viz., Mr. Romesh Sobti (Chairman), Mr. T. Anantha 

Narayanan and Mr. Ranbir Singh Butola.

 Meetings : The Committee met twice during the financial year 2017-18: On June 20, 2017 and December 27, 

2017.

Members Number of Meetings attended 

(includes attendance through 

videoconference)

Remarks

Mr. Romesh Sobti 2/2 -

Mr. T. Anantha Narayanan 2/2 -

Mr. Ranbir Singh Butola 1/2 -

11. Stakeholders’ Relations Committee

 Terms of Reference : The objective of the Committee is monitoring the redressal of stakeholders’ grievances.

 Composition : The Committee comprised two members, viz., Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale (Chairman) and Mr. Romesh 

Sobti.

 Meetings : The Committee met twice during the financial year 2017-18: On October 12, 2017 and March 22, 

2018.

 The Composition and Terms of Reference of the Committee are in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the provisions of Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations.
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 The attendance details of the members are as under:

Members Number of Meetings attended Remarks

Mr. Vijay Vaid 1/1 Ceased to be Director with effect 

from February 3, 2018, upon 

completion of tenure.

Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale 2/2 -

Mr. Romesh Sobti 1/2 -

 Mr. Haresh Gajwani, Company Secretary, discharges the responsibility of the Compliance Officer.

 During the year, 141 complaints were received from investors / shareholders, out of which 3 complaints stood 

“Unresolved”, of which 1 complaint was lodged directly with SEBI and was received by th Bank on March 23, 2018. The 

same has been resolved on April 4, 2018. The other 2 complaints were received on March 27, 2018 and March 29, 2018 

and have been resolved on April 10, 2018 and April 17, 2018 respectively.

12. Special Committee of the Board (for monitoring large value Frauds)

 Terms of Reference : In accordance with the directives of Reserve Bank of India, a Special Committee has been set up 

for monitoring and follow-up of cases of frauds involving amounts of `1 crore and above.

 Composition : The Committee comprised five members, viz., Mrs. Kanchan Chitale (Chairperson), Mr. Yashodhan 

M. Kale, Mr. Shanker Annaswamy, Mr. Ranbir Singh Butola and Mr. Romesh Sobti.

 Meetings : The Committee met twice during the financial year 2017-18: On October 13, 2017 and March 27, 

2018.

 The attendance details of the members are as under:

Members Number of Meetings attended 

(includes attendance through 

videoconference)

Remarks

Mrs. Kanchan Chitale 2/2 -

Mr. Yashodhan M. Kale 2/2 -

Mr. Shanker Annaswamy 2/2 -

Mr. Romesh Sobti 1/2 -

Mr. Ranbir Singh Butola - Inducted in the Committee by 

the Board on March 26, 2018.

13. Vigilance Committee

 Terms of reference : The Committee conducts overview of cases of lapses of a vigilance nature on the part of 

employees of the Bank.

 Composition : The Committee comprised three members, viz., Mr. Ranbir Singh Butola (Chairman), Mrs. Kanchan 

Chitale and Mr. Romesh Sobti.

 Meetings : The Committee met twice during the financial year 2017-18: On October 13, 2017 and March 27, 

2018.

 The attendance details of the members are as under:

Members Number of Meetings attended Remarks

Mr. Ranbir Singh Butola 1/2 -

Mrs. Kanchan Chitale 2/2 -

Mr. Romesh Sobti 1/2 -
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 Separate meeting of Independent Directors

 During the year under review, two separate meetings of Independent Directors, without the attendance of Non-

Independent Directors and members of the Management, were held: On May 9, 2017 and January 11, 2018.

 In terms of Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, at least one meeting of Independent 

Directors is to be held every year.

 In the aforesaid meeting, the Independent Directors:

 (a) Reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;

 (b) Reviewed the performance of the Chairman, taking into account the views of Non-Executive Directors and the 

Whole-time Director; and

 (c) Assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Bank Management and the 

Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

 The attendance details of the Independent Directors are as under:

Members Number of Meetings attended 

(includes attendance through 

videoconference)

Remarks

Mrs. Kanchan Chitale 2/2 -

Mr. Vijay Vaid 2/2 Ceased to be Director with effect 

from February 3, 2018, upon 

completion of tenure.

Mr. T. Anantha Narayanan 2/2 -

Mr. Ranbir Singh Butola 2/2 -

Mr. Shanker Annaswamy 2/2 -

Dr. T. T. Ram Mohan 2/2 -

Terms of appointment of Independent Directors

Non-Executive Independent Directors fulfil the conditions of independence specified in Section 149 of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with Schedule IV and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. A formal Letter of Appointment has been 

addressed to Independent Directors at the time of their appointment, as provided under the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

Listing Regulations.

The Terms and Conditions of appointment of Independent Directors have been hosted on the Bank’s website at the link given 

below:

http://www.indusind.com/important-links/other-useful-information.html

Annual Evaluation of Performance of the Board, Committees of the Board, and of Individual Directors

The Bank has in place a Board Evaluation Framework setting out the process, criteria, frequency, etc., for performance evaluation 

of the Board as a whole, Committees of the Board, Individual Directors including Independent Directors, Non-Independent 

Directors and the Managing Director & CEO, and the Chairman. The Framework had been recommended by the Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee of the Board, and approved by the Board.

The process of Performance Evaluation adopted by the Bank is in line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

SEBI had, vide their Circular dated January 5, 2017, issued the ‘Guidance Note on Board Evaluation’. The Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee of the Board reviewed the criteria and process for Performance Evaluation of the Board and its 

Committees, with a view to align it with SEBI’s Guidance Note and accordingly enhanced the set standards for Performance 

Evaluation, method of Assessment, etc.

Annual Performance Evaluation exercise for FY 2017-18 had been carried out by all the Directors, using a software platform, 

which offered the convenience of mutual evaluation, along with anonymity.
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The Nomination & Remuneration Committee evaluated the performance of the Individual Directors and of the Board as a 

Whole.

Performance of Independent Directors and of the Chairman was evaluated by the entire Board, excluding the Director being 

evaluated.

Performance of the entire Board was evaluated by the Board as a whole based on inputs from Individual Directors on the basis 

of criteria such as Board composition and structure, effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning, and other 

attributes such as discharging of roles and functions, professional conduct, governance, etc.

Performance of the Committees of the Board was evaluated after seeking inputs from the Directors, and evaluation was done 

on the basis of criteria such as composition of the Committee, roles and responsibilities, effectiveness of Committee meetings, 

etc.

Performance of Chairman of the Board was reviewed taking into account the views of the Executive Director and Non-Executive 

Directors, and that of the Non-Independent Directors was reviewed by the Independent Directors in a separate meeting of 

Independent Directors, who had also reviewed the performance of the Board as a whole.

The Chairman of the Board provided feedback to the Directors on individual basis, and significant highlights, learnings and 

action points with respect to the evaluation exercise were discussed among the Board members.

Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

An appropriate Induction Programme for new Directors and ongoing familiarization with respect to the business / working of 

the Bank for all Directors is a major contributor for meaningful Board-level deliberations and sound business decisions.

In compliance with the requirement of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Bank has formulated a Familiarization Programme 

for Independent Directors. The said Programme aims to provide to the Independent Directors an insight into the Bank’s 

functioning, to help them understand its business in depth, roles and responsibilities of Independent Directors, and industry 

overview, so as to help them contribute significantly during the deliberations in the Board / Committee meetings.

Further, on an ongoing basis, as a part of Agenda of Board / Committee Meetings, presentations are made to the Independent 

Directors on various matters covering the Bank’s Business and Operations, Industry and Regulatory updates, Strategy, Finance, 

Risk Management framework, etc.

At the time of appointing a Director, a formal Letter of Appointment is given to him / her, which explains the role, function, 

duties and responsibilities expected of him / her as a Director of the Bank. Inputs include orientation programme upon 

induction of new Directors, as well as other initiatives to update the Directors on an on-going process, including Talks by 

external Domain Experts.

During the year, the Bank had invited external domain experts for making presentations on Goods and Services Tax and on 

Data Protection and Cyber Security Landscape which included topics, such as, Information Technology Act 2000, Aadhaar Data 

Protection, Data Protection Framework, General Data Protection Regulations (EU-GDPR) and Cyber Security Overview. Some of 

the Independent Directors have also attended external Training Programmes conducted by CAFRAL.

Details of the Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors are available on the Bank’s website, at the link mentioned 

below:

http://www.indusind.com/important-links/familiarization-programme-for-independent-directors.html

Policy on Board Diversity

The Bank has, over the years, had eminent persons from diverse fields as Directors on its Board.

The ‘Policy on Board Diversity’ was formulated in 2015 to ensure diversity of experience, knowledge, perspective, background, 

gender, age and culture.

The Bank believes that benefits of a professional Board that possesses balance of skills, experience and expertise enhance the 

decision-making powers of the Board, which in turn will benefit the stakeholders of the Bank.

RBI have, vide their Circular dated November 24, 2016, advised Banks to broaden the fields of specialization of persons who 

could be considered for appointment as ‘Director’, viz., Information Technology, Payment & Settlement Systems, Human 

Resources, Risk Management, and Business Development and Management.
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The Board has reviewed and accordingly revised the ‘Policy on Board Diversity’, and enhanced the set of skills required in the 

Board.

Policy on Related Party Transactions

All transactions with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length pricing basis. Suitable 

disclosure as required under the Accounting Standards (AS 18) has been made in the Notes to the Financial Statements. The 

details of the transactions with related parties, if any, are placed before the Audit Committee from time to time.

In terms of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and requirements of the Listing Regulations, the Bank has formulated, in 

2014-15, the ‘Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions’.

The Policy on Related Party Transactions has been hosted on the Bank’s website at the link mentioned below:

www.indusind.com/important-links/other-useful-information.html

Strictures and Penalties

During the last three years, there were no penalties or strictures imposed on the Bank by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI, or any 

other Statutory authorities on matters relating to Capital Market.

Reserve Bank of India (RBI) had imposed on December 12, 2017 a monetary penalty of `30 million on the Bank for non-

compliance with RBI directions on Income Recognition and Asset Classification (IRAC) norms and contravention of regulatory 

restrictions pertaining to non-fund based facilities.

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

The Bank is committed to high standards of ethics and integrity. The Bank has in place a Whistle Blower Policy, to provide a 

formal mechanism to various stakeholders, viz., employees, customers, suppliers, shareholders, etc., to report their concerns 

about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, violation of the Bank’s Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. The Policy 

provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism, and provides for direct 

access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. None of the Bank’s personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee.

The Whistle Blower Policy has been hosted on the Bank’s website at the link mentioned below:

www.indusind.com/important-links/other-useful-information.html

Dividend Distribution Policy

Declaration of Dividend by Banking Companies is governed by the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 

made thereunder, provisions of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the Guidelines issued by the RBI from time to time. The 

Bank has in place a Dividend Distribution Policy, which specifies eligibility criteria for declaration of dividend and quantum of 

Dividend payable, i.e., criteria for maximum permissible range of Dividend Payout Ratio.

The Dividend Distribution Policy has been hosted on the Bank’s website at  http://www.indusind.com/content/dam/indusind/

PDF/IndusInd-Bank-Limited-Dividend-Distribution-Policy.pdf

Details of the three previous Annual General Meetings:

AGM Day and Date Time Venue Whether Special 

Resolution Passed

23rd Wednesday, July 26, 2017 2.00 p.m. Hotel Sheraton Grand, Raja Bahadur Mill Road, 

Pune – 411001.

Yes

22nd Friday, July 1, 2016 2.00 p.m. Hotel Le Meridien, Raja Bahadur Mill Road, Pune 

– 411001.

Yes

21st Monday, August 17, 2015 2.00 p.m. Hotel Le Meridien, Raja Bahadur Mill Road, Pune 

– 411001.

Yes
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Special Resolutions

Details of Special Resolutions passed at the Annual General Meetings in the last three years are given below:

Annual General Meeting Date Resolutions

23rd Annual General Meeting July 26, 2017 Resolution No. 6: Borrowing of monies pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) 

of the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions.

Resolution No. 7: Issue of Long Term Bonds / Non-Convertible 

Debentures on Private Placement Basis.

22nd Annual General Meeting July 1, 2016 Resolution No. 9: Issue of Long Term Bonds / Non-Convertible 

Debentures on Private Placement Basis

21st Annual General Meeting August 17, 2015 Resolution No. 6: Re-appointment of Mrs. Kanchan Chitale as 

Independent Director.

Resolution No. 7: Re-appointment of Mr. Vijay Vaid as Independent 

Director.

Resolution No. 8: Appointment of Mr. T. Anantha Narayanan as 

Independent Director.

Resolution No. 11: Increase in the Authorized Share Capital and 

alteration of the Capital Clause of the Memorandum of Association 

of the Bank.

Resolution No. 12: Alteration of Article 4 of the Articles of Association 

of the Bank.

Resolution No. 13: Borrowing of monies pursuant to Section 180(1)

(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions.

Resolution No. 14: Issue of Long Term Bonds / Non-Convertible 

Debentures on Private Placement basis.

Extraordinary General Meeting

No Extraordinary General Meeting of the Members was held during the year 2017-18.

Postal Ballot

No Postal Ballot exercise was conducted during the year 2017-18.

Material Disclosures

Related Party Transactions: During the year, there were no materially significant transactions with related parties that could 

have had any potential for conflict with the interests of the Bank at large.

Disqualification of Directors: As on March 31, 2018, none of the Directors of the Bank were disqualified under Section 164(2) 

of the Companies Act, 2013.

Accounting Standards: In the preparation of Financial Statements for the year 2017-18, the treatment prescribed in the 

Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India from time to time has been followed by the 

Bank.

Compliance with mandatory requirements under SEBI Listing Regulations:

The Bank has adhered to all the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance norms as prescribed under Regulations 17 

to 27 and Clause (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations to the extent applicable to the Bank.

During the year under review, the Bank has not identified any non-compliance with requirements of Corporate Governance 

given in sub-paras (2) to (10) of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations.
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Compliance with discretionary / Non-mandatory requirements under SEBI Listing Regulations

The status of compliance with the discretionary / non-mandatory requirements under the SEBI Listing Regulations is as under:

 The Chairman has been provided with an office at the Corporate Office of the Bank. Expenses incurred by the Chairman 

for attending the meetings of the Board and Committees have been reimbursed from time to time. As the Chairman 

is a Non-Executive Director, he is entitled to receive Sitting Fees for attending the meetings of the Board and of the 

Committees of the Board. He is also entitled to receive remuneration in the form of Profit-related Commission effective 

from April 1, 2016.

 The Bank endeavors to remain in a regime of unqualified Financial Statements.

 The Chairman of the Board is a Non-Executive Director and his position is separate from that of the Managing Director & 

CEO.

 The Internal Auditor of the Bank reports directly to the Audit Committee.

www.indusind.com) which is accessible to 

the public at large. Besides this, the Financial Results are published in newspapers, apart from being reported on the 

websites of the Stock Exchanges. The Bank therefore does not find it expedient to send individual communications to 

the shareholders regarding significant events and financial performance every half-year.

 The relevant Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) has been complied with 

by the Bank.

 Besides the above, e-mail messages and SMS messages were sent during the year to shareholders whose e-mail IDs and 

Financial Results.

 The Bank has continued the exercise of collecting the e-mail IDs of shareholders, so as to communicate more regularly 

with them via e-mail about various developments in the Bank.

Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015, the Bank has formulated a comprehensive “Code of Internal Procedures and Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading 

in Securities of the Bank” (Insider Trading Code) and “Code of Practices and Procedures for fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price 

Sensitive Information”.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on May 9, 2017 have revised the ‘Code of Internal Procedures and Conduct for 

Prevention of Insider Trading in Securities of the Bank’, in line with regulatory changes.

The Insider Trading Code shall be applicable to Promoters, Directors, Designated Employees, Connected Persons and to their 

immediate relatives as defined under Clause 2(1)(f ) of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015 and to any 

other person in possession of or having access to the Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI).

The Company Secretary has been designated as “Compliance Officer” under the said Code and is responsible for implementation 

and overseeing compliance with the Code of Conduct across the Bank.

In order to promote e-governance within the Bank, the Bank has launched an Employee Self-Service Module (ESS Module), a 

fully automated web-based portal for enabling compliances prescribed under the Insider Trading Code of the Bank, read with 

SEBI’s (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015.

The ESS Module allows employees to submit Online Disclosures pertaining to transactions in the shares of the Bank, viz., 

acquiring shares by Exercise of Options / Sale of Shares / Invocation of Pledge on Bank Shares / Release of Pledge / Off-Market 

Transactions / Gift, etc.

The ESS Module facilitates reporting of transactions with reduced paper-work and time. It also enables employees to report 

the transactions in Bank’s shares from any place, with the help of the Internet and can also be accessed using Smart Phone.

The Policy has been hosted on the Bank’s website at the link mentioned below:

www.indusind.com/investor/corporate-profile/code-of-conduct.html



132

Annual Report 2017-18

Means of Communication

Besides communicating to the Stock Exchanges where the Bank’s shares are listed, the Financial Results of the Bank are also 

published on a quarterly basis in leading financial publications and a regional newspaper, viz., ‘Economic Times’, ‘Financial 

Express’, ‘Business Standard’ in English and in ‘Maharashtra Times’ in Marathi at the location of the Bank’s Registered Office.

the Shareholding Pattern of the Bank as prescribed under Regulation 31 of the Listing Regulations are also filed through NSE 

Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS) and BSE Listing Centre.

Information relating to the Financial Results is also hosted under the icons “Media Room” and “Investors Corner” on Bank’s 

website (www.indusind.com). The said sections are updated regularly.

issued. Regular interviews with the electronic channels on the awareness of Results and other available opportunities are 

arranged for the Managing Director and the Chief Operating Officer.

Analysts’ Meets and Conference Calls with the Analyst fraternity are also held periodically. A transcript of the calls and copies of 

the presentations made to Institutional Investors and Analysts are hosted on the Bank’s website.

In compliance with the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors have approved a ‘Policy for determining Materiality of Events 

/ Information’ for the purpose of making disclosure to the Stock Exchanges. The Bank had also formulated an “Archival Policy” 

for hosting of Regulatory Information / Disclosures on the website of the Bank and ’Policy for Preservation of Documents and 

other Statutory Records’.

All disclosures made to the Stock Exchanges are also available on the Bank’s website under the heading ‘Corporate 

Announcements’.

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for 2017-18 forms part of this Annual Report.

Subsidiary Company

IndusInd Bank Ltd. does not have a Subsidiary Company

IndusInd Marketing and Financial Services Private Limited (IMFS) is an Associate Company of the Bank and is engaged in the 

business of providing manpower services.

Business Responsibility Report

Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(f ) of Listing Regulations, Annual Reports of Top 500 Listed Entities are required to contain the 

Business Responsibility Report (BRR), describing the initiatives taken by the listed entity from an environmental, social, and 

governance perspective, in the format as specified by SEBI.

Detailed Business Responsibility Report is attached to the Directors’ Report, which forms part of this Annual Report.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Bank has constituted a ‘Corporate Social Responsibility’ (CSR) Committee of the Board in line with the Companies Act, 

2013. In the fourth year of CSR reporting, under the statute of the Companies Act, 2013, the Bank has intensified its efforts on 

community engagement into avenues of Environmental Conservation, Rural development, Preventive Healthcare, Education, 

Women Empowerment, and Sports.

Sustainability-driven Growth

Believing in the ethos of ‘Good Ecology is Good Economics’, the Bank is committed to consistently delivering greater value to 

all our stakeholders in a manner that promotes financial, social and environmental sustainability.

Statutory Reporting

The Business Responsibility Report (BRR) attached as an Annexure to the Directors’ Report is governed by the principles 

prescribed under Annexure II to the SEBI Circular dated November 4, 2015, i.e., “To assess compliance with environmental, 

social and governance norms”. The key principles prescribed by SEBI are as under:

Principle 1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability.

Principle 2: Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life 

cycle.
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Principle 3: Businesses should promote the well-being of all employees.

Principle 4: Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are 

disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

Principle 5: Businesses should respect and promote human rights.

Principle 6: Businesses should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment.

Principle 7: Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner.

Principle 8: Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development.

Principle 9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner.

With the implementation of the Companies Act, 2013, the Bank sends Annual Reports and other communications through 

electronic mode to those shareholders who have registered their e-mail addresses with the Bank or are made available by the 

Depository.

The full text of these Reports is also available in an easily navigable format on the Bank’s website, www.indusind.com

General Information for Shareholders

Registration No. : 11-76333

CIN : L65191PN1994PLC076333

Financial Year : 2017-18

Board meeting for adoption of Audited Financial 

Accounts

: April 19, 2018

Posting of Annual Report 2017-18 : Monday, July 2, 2018

Day, Date and Time of 24th Annual General Meeting : Thursday, July 26, 2018 at 2:00 p.m.

Venue : Hotel Sheraton Grand, Pune (formerly, Hotel Le Meridien)

Financial Calendar : April 1 to March 31

Book Closure : Friday, July 20, 2018 to Thursday, July 26, 2018 

(Both days inclusive)

Date of Dividend Payment : On or after Tuesday, July 31, 2018

Bank’s Website : www.indusind.com

Bank’s Branches : https://www.indusind.com/locate-us.html?q1=&q2=branches

Address for Correspondence : Mr. Haresh Gajwani

Company Secretary

IndusInd Bank Limited

731, Solitaire Corporate Park

167 Guru Hargovindji Marg

Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400093

Tel: 022 - 6641 2485 / 87

Email: companysecretary@indusind.com

Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2018

Range – Shares No. of Folios Percentage of Folios No. of Shares Percentage of Shares

Upto 1,000 1,23,556 94.63 1,71,87,823 2.86

1,001 - 5,000 5,141 3.94 1,05,08,523 1.75

5,001 - 10,000 623 0.48 45,00,200 0.75

10,001 – 50,000 585 0.45 1,35,58,182 2.26

50,001 & above 654 0.50 55,44,68,459 92.38

TOTAL 1,30,559 100.00 60,02,23,187 100.00
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Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any Convertible Debentures, conversion date and likely impact on Equity

The Bank has, in the course of international offering to overseas investors, issued Securities linked to Equity Shares, in the form 

of Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) in 2007 and 2008. Each GDR is equivalent to one Equity Share of the Bank, and the said 

GDRs have been listed on Luxemburg Stock Exchange. As at March 31, 2018, the Bank has 6,46,81,514 GDRs (equivalent to 

6,46,81,514 Equity Shares) outstanding, which constituted 10.78% of the Bank’s total equity capital. In terms of the offering, 

- the GDRs can be converted at the option of the GDR-holders. Such conversion is not likely to have any impact on the Equity 

Share Capital of the Bank.

Disclosure of Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging activities

The Bank has put in place the Board-approved Funds & Investment Policy and Market Risk Management Policy, which prescribes 

comprehensive risk management techniques and risk control limits, such as, Value at Risk (VaR), Aggregate Gap Limit (AGL), 

Stop Loss Limit, Net Overnight Open Position limit (NOOP) to control and manage the foreign exchange risk.

The Bank has not undertaken any Commodity Price Risk during the period.

The Bank hedges the Currency Risk in its Balance Sheet through Derivatives, including forex Forwards and Swaps. The Bank 

manages the Currency Risk on exposures due to client servicing and proprietary trading in compliance with overall risk control 

framework and limits prescribed under Funds & Investment Policy and Market Risk Management Policy, approved by the Board.

Shareholding as on March 31, 2018

i. Distribution of shareholding

Category No. of shares held % of shareholding

A. Promoters’ holding 8,98,27,767 14.97

B. Non-Promoters’ holding 51,03,95,420 85.03

(i) Institutional Investors

 a. Mutual Funds and UTI 5,60,87,325 9.34

 b. Banks, Financial Institutions, Insurance Companies (Central 

/ State Gov. Institutions / Non-government Institutions)

27,75,571 0.46

 c. Alternate Investment Funds 9,43,345 0.16

 d. FIIs / Foreign Portfolio Investor 27,88,10,014 46.45

 Sub Total (B) (i) 33,86,16,255 56.41

(ii) Global Depository Receipts (B) (ii) 6,46,81,514 10.78

(iii) Others

 a. Central Government / State Government 50 0.00

 b. Private Corporate Bodies 5,47,81,840 9.13

 c. Indian Public* 3,80,73,162 6.34

 d. NRIs / OCBs / Foreign Nationals / Foreign Bank 53,60,050 0.89

 e. Clearing Members 22,34,987 0.37

 f. Trusts 49,62,826 0.83

 g. Hindu Undivided Family 6,35,145 0.11

 h. Government Companies (Investor Education Protection 

Fund)**

10,49,591 0.17

 Sub Total (B) (iii) 10,70,97,651 17.84

Grand Total (A + B) (i+ii+iii) 60,02,23,187 100.00

* ‘Indian Public’ includes 4,08,528 shares held by Resident Directors and their relative.

** Shares transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority.
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ii. Major Shareholders (with more than 1 percent shareholding)

Sr. No. Name of Shareholders No. of shares held* % of shareholding

1 IndusInd International Holdings Ltd. 6,60,27,767 11.00

2 The Bank of New York Mellon (GDR-Depository) 6,46,81,514 10.78

3 IndusInd Limited 2,38,00,000 3.97

4 Bridge India Fund 2,10,13,458 3.50

5 ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited 94,38,032 1.57

6 Afrin Dia 90,96,463 1.52

7 Government of Singapore 85,59,149 1.43

8 UTI – Equity Fund 84,21,571 1.40

9 SBI – ETF Nifty 50 76,55,604 1.28

10 Hinduja Ventures Limited 71,68,196 1.19

11 Aditya Birla Sun Life Trustee Private Limited A/C Aditya Birla Sun Life 

Frontline Equity Fund

71,63,544 1.19

12 Kotak Select Focus Fund 68,57,579 1.14

13 Tybourne Equity Master Fund 67,76,128 1.13

14 Aasia Corporation LLP 66,64,250 1.11

15 New Leaina Investments Limited 64,10,000 1.07

* Shareholding is consolidated based on Permanant Account Number (PAN) of the shareholder

iii. Total Foreign Shareholding

No. of shares held % of shareholding

Total foreign shareholding 43,86,79,345 73.09

of which GDRs 6,46,81,514 10.78

Details of complaints received and resolved from April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018

Complaints Received Attended to Pending

Non-Receipt of Share Certificate 25 24 1*

Non-Receipt of Dividend Warrants 67 67 0

Non-Receipt of Annual Report 0 0 0

Non-Receipt of Rejected DRF 7 6 1*

Non-Receipt of Exchanged Certificates 6 6 0

Others 6 6 0

Stock Exchanges 4 4 0

SEBI 26 25 1*

Total 141 138 3*

* During the year, 141 complaints were received from investors / shareholders, out of which 3 complaints are shown as 

“Unresolved”, of which 1 complaint was lodged directly with SEBI SCORES and was received by us on March 23, 2018. The same 

has been resolved on April 4, 2018. The other 2 complaints were received on March 27, 2018 and March 29, 2018 and which 

have been resolved on April 10, 2018 and April 17, 2018 respectively.
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Listing details of the Bank’s Equity Shares / *Bonds / GDRs on Stock Exchanges

Name of the Stock Exchange Address of the Stock Exchange Stock Code No.

BSE Ltd. Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai 

400001.

532187

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 5th Floor, Exchange Plaza, Bandra-Kurla Complex, 

Plot No. C/1, G Block, Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051.

INDUSINDBK

Luxembourg Stock Exchange

(Global Depository Receipts)

Société de la Bourse de Luxembourg

Societe Anonyme

RC Luxembourg B 6222

111202

The Bank has paid Annual Listing Fees on its Capital for the relevant period to BSE Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of India 

Ltd. where its shares are listed and to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange where its Global Depository Receipts are listed.

*Bonds are listed on the National Stock Exchange of India.

Market Price Data of the Bank’s shares

i. National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.

Date Price of Shares Turnover 

in ₹ Lakhs

Nifty Bank Nifty

Open (₹) High (₹) Low (₹) Close (₹)

3-Apr-17 1425.75 1427.95 1400.40 1403.45 11014.89 9237.85 21547.75

2-May-17 1454.00 1455.00 1440.15 1445.80 13820.69 9313.80 22341.35

1-Jun-17 1470.30 1500.00 1470.30 1485.60 8299.84 9616.10 23310.15

3-Jul-17 1482.90 1495.60 1472.75 1490.95 17340.26 9615.00 23272.80

1-Aug-17 1654.60 1674.00 1637.75 1665.70 18970.93 10114.65 25122.80

1-Sep-17 1661.00 1695.80 1654.00 1692.25 10374.25 9974.40 24434.00

3-Oct-17 1693.00 1701.50 1667.90 1692.95 20870.91 9859.50 24103.40

1-Nov-17 1641.00 1645.50 1625.20 1642.55 17210.45 10440.50 25490.45

1-Dec-17 1660.85 1681.40 1651.75 1661.10 15037.08 10121.80 25191.95

1-Jan-18 1652.00 1655.95 1618.10 1623.85 12595.77 10435.55 25318.10

1-Feb-18 1754.00 1817.80 1733.85 1795.45 66581.36 11016.90 27220.70

1-Mar-18 1674.75 1708.95 1673.50 1700.35 12913.48 10458.35 24902.55

28-Mar-18 1772.15 1807.00 1772.15 1796.75 42735.88 10113.70 24263.35

Share Price comparison with Nifty and Bank Nifty Share Price comparison with Turn Over (in Lakhs)
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ii. BSE Ltd.

Date Price of Shares Turnover 

in ₹ Lakhs

SENSEX BANKEX

Open (₹) High (₹) Low (₹) Close (₹)

3-Apr-17 1411.00 1425.55 1400.10 1403.25 1681.91 29910.22 24584.44

2-May-17 1450.00 1455.40 1440.45 1449.40 235.01 29921.18 25341.38

1-Jun-17 1476.90 1486.00 1474.00 1482.80 255.48 31137.59 26420.21

3-Jul-17 1479.70 1493.50 1471.85 1486.10 378.60 31221.62 26342.56

1-Aug-17 1647.10 1673.85 1639.25 1665.00 275.82 32575.17 28403.07

1-Sep-17 1659.15 1695.70 1655.00 1692.30 306.81 31892.23 27625.19

3-Oct-17 1680.00 1700.30 1668.50 1690.65 1242.58 31497.38 27082.00

1-Nov-17 1639.00 1643.90 1626.00 1641.50 587.12 33600.27 28852.76

1-Dec-17 1665.00 1679.50 1652.50 1662.20 1873.16 32832.94 28436.34

1-Jan-18 1650.00 1654.00 1620.10 1626.25 320.86 33812.75 28639.17

1-Feb-18 1754.00 1814.30 1735.00 1797.00 6663.51 35906.66 30788.39

1-Mar-18 1675.00 1707.80 1674.90 1697.25 465.16 34046.94 28072.19

28-Mar-18 1774.00 1806.40 1774.00 1795.60 728.50 32968.68 27197.88

Share Price comparison with SENSEX and BANKEX Share Price comparison with Turn Over (in Lakhs)

Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity

The Bank’s shares are tradable (in electronic form only) at the BSE Ltd. and the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 98.97% of 

the Bank’s shares are in dematerialised form and the rest are in physical form.

Particulars No. of Shares Percentage (%)

In Dematerialised form 59,40,50,442 98.97

In Physical form 61,72,745 1.03

Total 60,02,23,187 100

In view of the numerous advantages offered by the Depository System, members holding shares of the Bank in physical form 

are requested to get the same dematerialised and converted to the electronic form.
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Share Transfer System

The Share Transfer Committee, comprising Bank’s Top Executives, has been constituted to deal with transfer of shares, issue of 

duplicate Share Certificates in lieu of mutilated Share Certificates or those which are misplaced / lost, and other related matters. 

Approvals granted by the Share Transfer Committee are confirmed at subsequent Board meetings. With a view to expediting 

the process of physical share transfers, the Share Transfer Committee meets every Friday.

Trading in the Bank’s shares now takes place compulsorily in dematerialised form. However, members holding Share Certificates 

in physical form are entitled to transfer their shareholding by forwarding the Share Certificates along with duly executed 

and stamped Securities Transfer Form (Form No.SH-4) as per the format prescribed under the Companies (Share Capital and 

Debentures) Rules 2014, signed by the member (or on his / her behalf ) and the transferee to the Bank or to the Registrar & 

Share Transfer Agent, Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

Standardization and simplification of procedure for Transmission of Securities

With reference to the guidelines issued by SEBI regarding standardization and simplification of procedures for transmission 

of securities, the Bank’s Board has empowered the Share Transfer Committee for approving transmission of securities held in 

physical mode, for market value of securities of upto `10,00,000 (Rupees Ten lakhs only), subject to completion of simplified 

documentation procedure prescribed by SEBI.

Share Capital Audit

In compliance with Regulation 40(9) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, M/s 

Bhandari & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries have examined the records relating to Share Transfer Deeds, Registers 

and other related documents on a half-yearly basis and have certified compliance with the provisions of the above Clause. The 

Certificates have been submitted to BSE and NSE where the Bank’s Equity Shares are listed.

As required by SEBI, Share Capital Audit is conducted by Practising Company Secretaries (Independent External Auditor) on a 

quarterly basis, for the purpose of reconciliation of the total admitted Equity Share Capital with the Depositories, viz., National 

Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and in the physical form with the 

total Issued / Paid-Up Equity Capital of the Bank. The Auditors’ Certificate in this regard has been submitted to BSE Ltd. and the 

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.

Consolidation of Folios

Shareholders holding shares in different Folios but in identical name(s) are requested to get their shareholdings consolidated 

into one folio by requesting the Bank / Registrar for the same. The request may please be accompanied with Proof of Identity 

and the Share Certificates.

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

C-101, 247 Park

L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West)

Mumbai – 400083

Contact Person: Mr. Mahesh Masurkar

Tel.: 022 4918 6280 / 022 4918 6000 Fax: 022 4918 6060

Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
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Redressal of Investors’ Grievances

In order to service the investors in an efficient manner and to attend to their grievances, the Bank has constituted an ‘Investor 

Services Cell’ at its undermentioned Office at Mumbai. Members are requested to contact:

Mr. Raghunath Poojary

Secretarial & Investor Services Cell

IndusInd Bank Ltd.

731, Solitaire Corporate Park

167, Guru Hargovindji Marg

Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400093

Tel: 022 6641 2487 / 2359

Email: investor@indusind.com

Dividends

Modes of making payment of Dividend through Electronic mode:

The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 have directed that listed companies shall 

mandatorily make all payments to investors including dividend to shareholders, by using any RBI approved electronic mode of 

payment, viz., National Automated Clearing House (NACH), Direct Credit (in case Bank Account is with IndusInd Bank), RTGS, 

NEFT, etc.

In order to receive the Dividend without loss of time, all the eligible shareholders holding shares in demat mode are requested 

to update with their respective Depository Participants, before Thursday, July 19, 2018, their correct Bank Account Number, 

including 9 Digit MICR Code and 11 digit IFSC Code, e- mail ID and Mobile Number. This will facilitate the remittance of the 

dividend amount directly in the Bank Account of the Shareholder electronically.

Updating of e-mail IDs and Mobile Numbers will enable sending communication relating to credit of dividend, unencashed 

dividend, etc., in a prompt and efficient manner.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form may communicate details relating to their Bank Account, 9 Digit MICR Code, 

11 digit IFSC Code, E- Mail ID and Mobile Numbers to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, viz., Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., 

having address at C 101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai – 400 083, before the Record Date fixed for the purpose 

of payment of dividend, i.e., Thursday, July 19, 2018, by quoting the reference folio number and attaching a photocopy of the 

Cheque leaf of their Active Bank Account and a self-attested copy of their PAN card.

In case dividend payment by electronic mode is not executed for any reason, the Bank shall issue a Demand Draft.

Unclaimed Dividend

As per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Bank is statutorily required to transfer to the Investor Education 

& Protection Fund (IEPF) all Dividends remaining Unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to the Unpaid 

Dividend Account. Once such amounts are transferred to IEPF, no claim of the shareholder shall lie against the Bank. However, 

shareholders are requested to refer to website of the IEPF Authority for the procedure required to be followed to claim the 

refund at http://www.iepf.gov.in/IEPFA/refund.html, or to contact the Secretarial and Investor Services for assistance.

Unclaimed Dividends upto the Financial Year 2009-10 have already been transferred to the IEPF, after giving due notice to the 

shareholders whose names were appearing in the list of unpaid recipients.

Details of Unclaimed Dividends for the Financial Year 2010-11 onwards, and the last date for claiming the dividend for respective 

years, are given in the table below. Members are requested to take note of such due dates and claim the unpaid dividends well 

in advance of the due date (i.e., before the expiry of the seven-year period).
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Year Type of dividend Date of declaration of 

Dividend

Due date for availing 

unclaimed Dividend

2010-11 Final July 15, 2011 August 19, 2018

2011-12 Final July 17, 2012 August 21, 2019

2012-13 Final June 28, 2013 August 2, 2020

2013-14 Final June 27, 2014 August 1, 2021

2014-15 Final August 17, 2015 September 21, 2022

2015-16 Final July 1, 2016 August 5, 2023

2016-17 Final July 26, 2017 August 30, 2024

Transfer of Equity Shares to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

In terms of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, 

Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 made effective by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on September 7, 2016, members are 

requested to note that the shares in respect of which Dividend has remained Unpaid or Unclaimed for seven consecutive years 

or more are required to be transferred to the IEPF Authority.

In this connection, the Bank had sent Intimation Letters to members on December 5, 2016, in respect of the shares on which 

Dividend had remained Unpaid or Unclaimed for seven consecutive years or more, requesting them to claim such dividend so 

as to avoid the corresponding shares being transferred to the IEPF Authority. An advertisement to this effect was published in 

leading English and vernacular newspapers on December 6, 2016.

Additional intimation was also sent to shareholders who had not claimed their dividends for seven consecutive years or more 

on November 8, 2017 after comparing with the data of intimation sent on December 5, 2016, and Notice was also published in 

leading English and vernacular newspapers on November 9, 2017.

Pursuant to MCA Notification dated October 13, 2017,  as regards shareholders who had not claimed their Dividends for seven 

consecutive years or more, their shares have been transferred to Investor Education Protection Fund (4,272 Folios consisting of 

10, 50,182 shares) on November 30, 2017.

The Bank has also issued advertisement in Financial Express (all editions) and Loksatta (Pune region) on April 18, 2018 and sent 

Intimation Letters on April 17, 2018 to shareholders who have not claimed their dividends since 2010-11 for seven consecutive 

years, requesting them to claim the dividends from the Bank by August 19, 2018, failing which the shareholders whose names 

appear in the list on August 19, 2018, their shares shall be transferred to the IEPF Authority within 30 days from ‘Due Date’, viz. 

by August 19, 2018.

The Rules also prescribe the procedure to be followed by an investor to claim the Shares / Dividend amount transferred to IEPF.

Persons whose Dividend / Shares have been transferred to the IEPF Authority, may claim the refund from the IEPF-Authority 

by filing e-form IEPF-5 online, and following the procedure detailed on the website at: http://iepf.gov.in/IEPFA/refund.html.

Members are requested to contact Link Intime India Private Limited (Contact Details and Office Address given elsewhere in this 

Report) / Bank’s Secretarial and Investor Services team for obtaining the unclaimed dividends standing in their names.

The information pertaining to Unpaid or Unclaimed Dividends, and the details of such Members and Shares due for transfer to 

the IEPF Authority are also available on the Bank’s website www.indusind.com.

Details of Shares lying in Unclaimed Suspense Account as on March 31, 2018, are as follows:

Particulars Folios Shares

Opening Balance as on April 1, 2017 801 2,69,976

Add: Transfer during the year 2017-18 0 0

Less: Claim received and shares transferred 15 8,743

Less : Shares transferred to Investor Education Protection Fund 587 1,87,094

Closing Balance as on March 31, 2018 199 74,139

The voting rights on the aforesaid shares shall remain frozen until the rightful owner claims the shares.
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ANNEXURE TO THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Declaration on compliance with the Code of Ethics and Conduct for Directors and Senior Management

In compliance with Regulation 26(3) of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, I hereby confirm that all Directors and Senior Management personnel of the Bank have affirmed compliance 

with the Code of Ethics and Conduct for Directors and Senior Management for the year ended March 31, 2018.

For IndusInd Bank Limited

Romesh Sobti

Place: Mumbai Managing Director & CEO

Date: June 22, 2018 (DIN: 00031034)
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To The Members of IndusInd Bank Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of IndusInd Bank Limited (the “Bank” ), which 

comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018 and the Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for the year 

then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, which we have signed 

under reference to this report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The Board of Directors of the Bank are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 

with respect to preparation of these standalone financial statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position, 

financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read 

with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act,1949 

and circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) from time to time as applicable to banks. This 

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 

for safeguarding of the assets of the Bank and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 

and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 

for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 

the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.

4. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, including the accounting standards, 

provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, circulars and guidelines issued by RBI as applicable to 

banks and matters which are required to be included in the audit report.

5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act 

and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 

Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence, about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 

auditors consider internal control relevant to the Bank’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Board of 

Directors of the Bank, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone financial statements.

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 

on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the accompanying 

standalone financial statements together with the notes thereon give the information required by provisions of Section 

29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as well as the Act and circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of 

India, in the manner so required for banking companies and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Bank as at March 31, 2018 and its profit and its cash 

flow for the year then ended.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report have been 

drawn up in accordance with the provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 read with applicable 

provisions of Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

10. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act and Section 30 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 we report that:

 a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and 

belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

 b) The transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice during the course of our audit, have been within the 

powers of the Bank;

 c) During the course of our audit we have visited 34 branches to examine the books of accounts and other records 

maintained at the branch and performed other relevant audit procedures. Since the key operations of the Bank 

are automated with the key applications integrated to the core banking system, the audit is carried out at Mumbai 

and Chennai as all the necessary records and data required for the purposes of our audit are available therein;

 d) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far as it appears from 

our examination of those books;

 e) The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in 

agreement with the books of account;

 f ) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 to the extent they are not 

inconsistent with the accounting policies prescribed by RBI;

 g) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018 taken on record by the 

Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director 

in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

 h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Bank and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”;

 i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and 

according to the information and explanations given to us:

  i. The Bank has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31, 2018, on its financial 

position in its standalone financial statements – Refer Schedule 12 and Note 9.4 in Schedule 18;

  ii. The Bank has made provision as at March 31, 2018, as required under the applicable law or accounting 

standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts – 

Refer Note 9.5 in Schedule 18;

  iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Bank during the year ended March 31, 2018;

  iv. The reporting on disclosures related to the Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Bank for the year 

ended March 31, 2018.

 For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

 Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

 Chartered Accountants

 Russell I Parera

Mumbai Partner

April 19, 2018 Membership Number: 042190
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 10(h) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of IndusInd Bank Limited on 

the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IndusInd Bank Limited (“the Bank”) as of March 

31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Bank for the year ended on that 

date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Bank considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to Bank’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act).

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Bank’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on 

our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 

143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal 

financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 

material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 

that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 

based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of 

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 

on the Bank’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6. A Bank’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles. A Bank’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 

policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Bank; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
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recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Bank are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 

management and directors of the Bank; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 

of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Bank’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial 

statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 

not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 

periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Bank has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting 

and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on 

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Bank considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

 For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

 Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

 Chartered Accountants

 Russell I Parera

Mumbai Partner

April 19, 2018 Membership Number: 042190
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

As per our report of even date. For INDUSIND BANK LTD.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP R. Seshasayee

Chairman

Romesh Sobti

Managing DirectorChartered Accountants

Firm Registration No : 012754N / N500016

Russell I Parera T. Anantha Narayanan Kanchan Chitale

Partner Director Director

Membership No : 042190

Place  :  Mumbai S. V. Zaregaonkar Haresh Gajwani

Date  :  April 19, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Rupees in ‘000s

Schedule As at 

31.03.2018

As at 

31.03.2017

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

Capital 1 600,22,32 598,14,87

Employee Stock Options Outstanding 18(Note 10.2) 14,57,11 15,20,07

Reserves and Surplus 2 23226,84,85 20032,77,15

Deposits 3 151639,17,43 126572,22,28

Borrowings 4 38289,07,82 22453,69,43

Other Liabilities and Provisions 5 7856,26,52 8976,37,58

TOTAL 221626,16,05 178648,41,38

ASSETS

Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India 6 10962,40,60 7748,74,71

Balances with Banks and Money at Call and Short Notice 7 2253,47,14 10879,50,71

Investments 8 50076,71,74 36702,13,82

Advances 9 144953,65,76 113080,50,76

Fixed Assets 10 1338,75,31 1335,23,28

Other Assets 11 12041,15,50 8902,28,10

TOTAL 221626,16,05 178648,41,38

Contingent Liabilities 12 662099,15,62 406387,19,15

Bills for Collection 37415,47,98 19006,90,91

Significant Accounting Policies 17

Notes to the Financial Statements 18

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.

The Balance Sheet has been prepared in conformity with Form A of the Third Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.
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As per our report of even date. For INDUSIND BANK LTD.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP R. Seshasayee

Chairman

Romesh Sobti

Managing DirectorChartered Accountants

Firm Registration No : 012754N / N500016

Russell I Parera T. Anantha Narayanan Kanchan Chitale

Partner Director Director

Membership No : 042190

Place  :  Mumbai S. V. Zaregaonkar Haresh Gajwani

Date  :  April 19, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2018

Rupees in ‘000s

Schedule Year ended

31.03.2018

Year ended

31.03.2017

I. INCOME

 Interest Earned 13 17280,74,87 14405,67,03

 Other Income 14 4750,10,33 4171,49,22

TOTAL 22030,85,20 18577,16,25

II. EXPENDITURE

 Interest Expended 15 9783,30,45 8343,06,61

 Operating Expenses 16 5591,44,36 4783,07,58

 Provisions and Contingencies 18(Note 12.1) 3050,11,64 2583,12,79

TOTAL 18424,86,45 15709,26,98

III. PROFIT

 Net Profit for the year 3605,98,75 2867,89,27

 Profit brought forward 7118,38,07 5013,45,32

TOTAL 10724,36,82 7881,34,59

IV. APPROPRIATIONS

 a) Transfer to Statutory Reserve 901,49,69 716,97,32

 b) Transfer to Capital Reserve 7,61,93 45,53,66

 c) Transfer to Investment Reserve Account - -

 d) Dividend paid including tax on dividend 

[Refer Schedule 18 (Note 12.4)] 432,24,16 45,54

 e) Deductions during the year 

[Refer Schedule 18 (Note 12.2 (b))] 71,51,62 -

1412,87,40 762,96,52

 Balance carried over to the Balance Sheet 9311,49,42 7118,38,07

TOTAL 10724,36,82 7881,34,59

V. EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE

 (Face value of `10/- per share)

 Basic (`) 18(Note 11.5) 60.19 48.06

 Diluted (`) 18(Note 11.5) 59.57 47.56

 Significant Accounting Policies 17

 Notes to the Financial Statements 18

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit and Loss Account.

The Profit and Loss Account has been prepared in conformity with Form B of the Third Schedule to the Banking Regulation 

Act, 1949.
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

Rupees in ‘000s
Year ended 

31.03.2018

Year ended 

31.03.2017
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before taxation 5480,67,20 4359,68,85
Adjustments for :
Depreciation on Fixed assets 211,64,34 190,69,88
Depreciation on Investments 120,86,12 31,36,39
Employees Stock Option expenses 1,21,34 3,28,93
Loan Loss and Other Provisions 1054,57,07 1059,96,81
Amortisation of premium on HTM investments 179,32,22 78,50,86
(Profit) on sale of fixed assets (8,00,66) (3,14,57)
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 7040,27,63 5720,37,15
Adjustments for :
(Increase) / Decrease in Advances (32927,72,06) (25721,13,37)
(Increase) / Decrease in Investments (13674,76,26) (2757,69,60)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets (3038,10,85) 546,84,11
Increase / (Decrease) in Deposits 25066,95,15 33571,87,67
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Liabilities (1191,62,68) 2093,81,94
Cash generated from / (used in) Operations (18724,99,07) 13454,07,90
Direct Taxes paid (net of refunds) (1975,45,00) (1884,77,71)
Net Cash generated from / (used in) Operating Activities (20700,44,07) 11569,30,19

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets (including WIP) (235,79,27) (287,18,59)
Proceeds from sale of Fixed Assets 16,24,47 13,54,86
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (219,54,80) (273,63,73)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of equity shares (net of issue expenses) 101,96,50 96,62,24
Proceeds from issue of Long Term Infrastructure Bonds - 1500,00,00
Dividends paid (432,24,16) (322,70,55)
Proceeds from Perpetual Debt instruments 1000,00,00 1000,00,00
Redemption of Sub-ordinated Tier II capital - (308,90,00)
Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings 14835,38,38 (4733,27,06)
Net Cash generated from / (used in) Financing Activities 15505,10,72 (2768,25,37)
Effect of exchange fluctuation translation reserve 2,50,47 (11,02,82)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (5412,37,68) 8516,38,27

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 18628,25,42 10111,87,15
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 13215,87,74 18628,25,42

Notes:

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Accounting Standard 3 on 
Cash Flow Statements.

2. Figures in bracket indicate cash outflow.

3. Cash and cash equivalents comprises of Cash in Hand and Balances with RBI (Schedule 6) and Balances with Banks and 
Money at Call and Short Notice (Schedule 7).

As per our report of even date. For INDUSIND BANK LTD.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP R. Seshasayee

Chairman

Romesh Sobti

Managing DirectorChartered Accountants
Firm Registration No : 012754N / N500016

Russell I Parera T. Anantha Narayanan Kanchan Chitale
Partner Director Director
Membership No : 042190

Place  :  Mumbai S. V. Zaregaonkar Haresh Gajwani
Date  :  April 19, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Rupees in ‘000s

As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017

SCHEDULE - 1 CAPITAL

Authorised Capital   

70,00,00,000 (Previous year 70,00,00,000) equity shares of ` 10 each 700,00,00 700,00,00

Issued, Subscribed and Called Up Capital   

60,02,23,187 (Previous year 59,81,48,705) equity shares of ` 10 each 600,22,32 598,14,87

Paid up Capital

60,02,23,187 (Previous year 59,81,48,705) equity shares of ` 10 each 600,22,32 598,14,87

[Refer Schedule 18 (Note 1.1)]   

TOTAL 600,22,32 598,14,87

SCHEDULE - 2 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

I Statutory Reserve

 Opening balance 2922,77,00 2205,79,68

 Additions during the year 901,49,69 716,97,32

3824,26,69 2922,77,00

II Share Premium Account

 Opening balance 9369,42,05 9274,10,55

 Additions during the year 101,73,36 95,31,50

9471,15,41 9369,42,05

III General Reserve

 Balance as at the end of the year 1,35,57 1,35,57

1,35,57 1,35,57

IV Capital Reserve

 Opening balance 215,74,87 170,21,21

 Additions during the year 7,61,93 45,53,66

223,36,80 215,74,87

V Investment Allowance Reserve

 Balance as at the end of the year 1,00,00 1,00,00

1,00,00 1,00,00

VI Investment Reserve Account

 Balance as at the end of the year 40,52,98 40,52,98

40,52,98 40,52,98

VII Revaluation Reserve

 Opening balance 374,59,43 380,76,96

 Deductions during the year (12,39,10) (6,17,53)

362,20,33 374,59,43

VIII Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

 Opening balance (11,02,82) -

 (Debits) / Credits during the year 2,50,47 (11,02,82)

(8,52,35) (11,02,82)

IX Balance in the Profit and Loss Account 9311,49,42 7118,38,07

TOTAL 23226,84,85 20032,77,15

Schedules
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Rupees in ‘000s

As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017

SCHEDULE - 3 DEPOSITS

A I Demand Deposits

  i) From Banks 393,92,35 991,32,40

  ii) From Others 20447,06,25 18617,48,76

 II Savings Bank Deposits 45888,27,30 27037,23,23

 III Term Deposits

  i) From Banks 5287,92,58 7328,65,30

  ii) From Others 79621,98,95 72597,52,59

TOTAL 151639,17,43 126572,22,28

B Deposits of Branches

 I In India 151639,17,43 126572,22,28

 II Outside India - -

TOTAL 151639,17,43 126572,22,28

SCHEDULE - 4 BORROWINGS

I Borrowings in India

 i) Reserve Bank of India - -

 ii) Other Banks 757,67,53 2367,48,93

 iii) Other Institutions and Agencies 21474,02,79 13500,00,00

 iv) Long Term Infrastructure Bonds 2000,00,00 2000,00,00

 v) Unsecured Non-Convertible Perpetual Non-Cumulative Bonds 

(Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital)

2000,00,00 1000,00,00

II Borrowings outside India 12057,37,50 3586,20,50

TOTAL 38289,07,82 22453,69,43

Secured borrowings other than Collaterised Borrowing and Lending Obligation 

and Repo Borrowings included in I above

- -

SCHEDULE - 5 OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

I Inter-office Adjustments (Net) 401,44,70 242,39,32

II Bills Payable 667,65,72 600,34,85

III Interest Accrued 788,20,11 947,61,27

IV Others [Refer Schedule 18 (Note 4.11) for Standard Assets Provisions] 5998,95,99 7186,02,14

TOTAL 7856,26,52 8976,37,58

SCHEDULE - 6 CASH AND BALANCES WITH RESERVE BANK OF INDIA

I Cash in hand (including foreign currency notes) 1069,20,30 1135,52,11

II Balances with Reserve Bank of India

 i) In Current Account 9893,20,30 6613,22,60

 ii) In Other Accounts - -

TOTAL 10962,40,60 7748,74,71

Schedules (Contd.)
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Rupees in ‘000s

As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017

SCHEDULE - 7 BALANCES WITH BANKS AND MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT 

NOTICE

I In India

 i) Balances with Banks

  a) In Current Accounts 618,43,12 323,86,22

  b) In Other Deposit Accounts 310,25,00 2333,96,50

 ii) Money at Call and Short Notice - With Other Institutions - 6300,00,00

TOTAL 928,68,12 8957,82,72

II Outside India

 i) In Current Accounts 493,80,89 467,74,28

 ii) In Other Deposit Accounts 635,45,63 805,43,70

 iii) Money at Call and Short Notice 195,52,50 648,50,01

TOTAL 1324,79,02 1921,67,99

GRAND TOTAL 2253,47,14 10879,50,71

SCHEDULE - 8 INVESTMENTS

I In India

 Gross Value 50285,30,52 36789,86,48

 Less : Aggregate of provision / depreciation 208,58,78 87,72,66

 Net value of Investments in India 50076,71,74 36702,13,82

 Comprising :

 i) Government securities* 40365,98,63 31452,34,18

 ii) Other approved securities - -

 iii) Shares 291,93,76 161,24,61

 iv) Debentures and bonds 4476,41,88 2524,57,26

 v) Subsidiaries and / or Joint Ventures - -

 vi) Others - Security Receipts, Pass Through Certificates, Units of schemes 

of Mutual Funds, Venture Capital Funds and Others

4942,37,47 2563,97,77

II Outside India - -

TOTAL 50076,71,74 36702,13,82

* Includes securities of ` 274.38 crores (Previous year ` 275.02 crores) pledged for 

clearing facility and margin requirements.

SCHEDULE - 9 ADVANCES

A i) Bills Purchased and Discounted 4331,25,05 4031,26,82

 ii) Cash Credits, Overdrafts and Loans Repayable on Demand 43077,06,30 33010,05,62

 iii) Term Loans 97545,34,41 76039,18,32

TOTAL 144953,65,76 113080,50,76

B i) Secured by Tangible Assets (including advances against book debts) 112723,03,02 96573,78,66

 ii) Covered by Bank / Government Guarantees 

(including advances against L/Cs issued by Banks)

2834,42,39 2215,14,18

 iii) Unsecured 29396,20,35 14291,57,92

TOTAL 144953,65,76 113080,50,76
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Rupees in ‘000s

As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017

C I Advances in India

  i) Priority Sector 45314,30,79 34821,02,43

  ii) Public Sector 5090,73,31 1655,03,58

  iii) Banks 64,00 48,08

  iv) Others 90151,67,34 74886,79,76

TOTAL 140557,35,44 111363,33,85

 II Advances Outside India 4396,30,32 1717,16,91

TOTAL 144953,65,76 113080,50,76

SCHEDULE - 10 FIXED ASSETS

I Premises

 i) At cost, as at the beginning of the year 586,58,71 590,01,82

 ii) Additions during the year - -

586,58,71 590,01,82

 iii) Less : Deductions during the year 10,94,40 3,43,11

 iv) Less : Depreciation to date [Refer Schedule No. 18(9.15)] 82,15,41 74,95,41

TOTAL 493,48,90 511,63,30

II Other Fixed Assets (including furniture and fixtures)

 i) At cost, as at the beginning of the year 1735,37,02 1465,63,13

 ii) Additions during the year 238,78,76 296,22,64

1974,15,78 1761,85,77

 iii) Less : Deductions during the year 29,05,97 26,48,75

 iv) Less : Depreciation to date [Refer Schedule No. 18(9.15)] 1125,27,62 940,20,75

TOTAL 819,82,19 795,16,27

III Capital Work in Progress 25,44,22 28,43,71

GRAND TOTAL 1338,75,31 1335,23,28

SCHEDULE - 11 OTHER ASSETS

I Interest Accrued 1377,69,80 917,41,89

II Tax paid in advance / Tax deducted at source (net of provision) 819,08,61 686,69,35

III Stationery and Stamps 56,81 1,54,43

IV Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 372,20,40 29,68,73

V Others [Deferred Tax Assets (Refer Schedule 18 (Note 11.6))] 9471,59,88 7266,93,70

TOTAL 12041,15,50 8902,28,10

SCHEDULE - 12 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

I Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts 476,51,86 522,68,84

II Liability on account of outstanding Forward Exchange Contracts 351440,73,62 215013,20,26

III Liability on account of outstanding Derivative Contracts 245530,75,62 138028,58,33

IV Guarantees given on behalf of constituents

 - In India 45380,96,66 38903,46,44

 - Outside India 559,32,07 60,82,61

V Acceptances, Endorsements and Other Obligations 16587,23,27 12739,47,55

VI Other Items for which the Bank is contingently liable 2123,62,52 1118,95,12

TOTAL 662099,15,62 406387,19,15

Schedules (Contd.)
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Rupees in ‘000s

Year ended

31.03.2018

Year ended

31.03.2017

SCHEDULE - 13 INTEREST EARNED

I Interest / Discount on Advances / Bills 13699,90,54 11479,10,87

II Income on Investments 3074,38,28 2466,88,91

III Interest on Balances with Reserve Bank of India and other inter-bank funds 321,47,51 330,83,18

IV Others 184,98,54 128,84,07

TOTAL 17280,74,87 14405,67,03

SCHEDULE - 14 OTHER INCOME

I Commission, Exchange and Brokerage 3411,91,42 2895,34,09

II Profit / (Loss) on Sale of Investments (Net) 363,78,33 276,91,92

III Profit / (Loss) on Sale of Land, Buildings and Other Assets 8,00,66 3,14,57

IV Profit on exchange transactions / Derivatives (Net) 921,01,58 919,51,71

V Income earned by way of dividend from companies in India 30,02 30,80

VI Miscellaneous Income 45,08,32 76,26,13

TOTAL 4750,10,33 4171,49,22

SCHEDULE - 15 INTEREST EXPENDED

I Interest on Deposits 8045,95,62 6931,27,54

II Interest on Reserve Bank of India / Inter-Bank Borrowings 188,28,69 341,28,83

III Other Interest 1549,06,14 1070,50,24

TOTAL 9783,30,45 8343,06,61

SCHEDULE - 16 OPERATING EXPENSES

I Payments to and Provisions for Employees 1780,68,56 1521,02,16

II Rent, Taxes and Lighting (includes operating lease rentals) 373,02,03 326,56,01

III Printing and Stationery 65,71,65 63,06,99

IV Advertisement and Publicity 32,54,70 50,33,60

V Depreciation on Bank’s Property 211,64,34 190,69,88

VI Directors’ Fees, Allowances and Expenses 2,78,73 2,71,53

VII Auditors’ Fees and Expenses 2,07,36 2,08,63

VIII Law Charges 71,57,65 42,42,54

IX Postage, Telegrams, Telephones, etc. 130,51,15 134,78,55

X Repairs and Maintenance 341,82,56 255,14,69

XI Insurance 167,80,30 137,57,00

XII Service Provider Fees 418,24,15 381,26,30

XIII Other Expenditure 1993,01,18 1675,39,70

TOTAL 5591,44,36 4783,07,58

Schedules (Contd.)
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1. General

 1.1 IndusInd Bank Limited (‘the Bank’) was incorporated in 1994 under the Companies Act, 1956 and is licensed by 

the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) to operate as a commercial bank under the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. The 

Bank is publicly held and provides a wide range of banking products and financial services to corporate and 

retail clients besides undertaking treasury operations. The Bank operates in India including at the International 

Financial Service Centres in India, and does not have a branch in any foreign country.

 1.2 The accompanying financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except where 

otherwise stated, and in accordance with statutory requirements prescribed under the Banking Regulation Act 

1949, circulars and guidelines issued by RBI from time to time (RBI guidelines), accounting standards referred to 

in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and practices prevailing within the banking industry in India.

 1.3 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India 

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 

revenues, expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Management 

believes that the estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and 

reasonable. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

2. Transactions involving Foreign Exchange

 2.1 Monetary assets and liabilities of domestic and integral foreign operations denominated in foreign currency are 

translated at the Balance Sheet date at the closing rates of exchange notified by the Foreign Exchange Dealers’ 

Association of India (‘FEDAI’) and the resulting gains or losses are recognised in the Profit and Loss account.

 2.2 Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported 

using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value 

or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed 

when the values were determined.

 2.3 Both monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities of non-integral foreign operations are translated at the 

Balance Sheet date at the closing rates of exchange notified by the Foreign Exchange Dealers’ Association of 

India (‘FEDAI’) and the resulting gains or losses are accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve until 

disposal of the net investment in the non-integral foreign operation.

 2.4 All foreign exchange contracts outstanding at the Balance Sheet date are re-valued on present value basis and the 

resulting gains or losses are recognised in the Profit and Loss account.

 2.5 Swap Cost arising on account of foreign currency swap contracts to convert foreign currency funded liabilities 

and assets into rupee liabilities and assets is amortised to the Profit and Loss account under the head ‘Interest – 

Others’ over the underlying swap period.

 2.6 Income and expenditure of domestic and integral foreign operations denominated in a foreign currency is 

translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Income and expenditure of non-

integral foreign operations is translated at quarterly average closing rates.

 2.7 Contingent liabilities at the Balance Sheet date on account of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts, 

guarantees, acceptances, endorsements and other obligations denominated in a foreign currency are stated at 

the closing rates of exchange notified by the FEDAI.

Schedule 17 Significant accounting policies
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3. Investments

 Significant accounting policies in accordance with RBI guidelines are as follows:

 3.1 Categorisation of Investments

  The Bank classifies its investment at the time of purchase into one of the following three categories:

  (i) Held to Maturity (HTM) – Securities acquired with the intention to hold till maturity.

  (ii) Held for Trading (HFT) – Securities acquired with the intention to trade.

  (iii) Available for Sale (AFS) – Securities which do not fall within the above two categories.

  Subsequent shifting amongst the categories is done in accordance with RBI guidelines.

 3.2 Classification of Investments

  For the purpose of disclosure in the Balance Sheet, investments are classified under six groups viz., (i) Government 

Securities, (ii) Other Approved Securities, (iii) Shares, (iv) Debentures and Bonds, (v) Investments in Subsidiaries 

and Joint Ventures, and (vi) Other Investments.

 3.3 Acquisition cost

  (i) Broken period interest on debt instruments is treated as a revenue item.

  (ii) Brokerage, commission, etc. pertaining to investments, paid at the time of acquisition is charged to the 

Profit and Loss account.

  (iii) Cost of investments is computed based on the weighted average cost method.

 3.4 Valuation of Investments

  (i) Held to Maturity – Each security in this category is carried at its acquisition cost. Any premium on 

acquisition of the security is amortised over the balance period to maturity. The amortized amount is 

classified under Interest earned – Income on investments (Item II of Schedule 13). The book value of the 

security is reduced to the extent of amount amortized during the relevant accounting period. Diminution, 

other than temporary, is determined and provided for each investment individually.

  (ii) Held for Trading – Securities are valued scrip-wise and depreciation / appreciation is aggregated for each 

classification. Net appreciation in each classification is ignored, while net depreciation is provided for.

  (iii) Available for Sale – Securities are valued scrip-wise and depreciation / appreciation is aggregated for each 

classification. Net appreciation in each classification is ignored, while net depreciation is provided for.

  (iv) Market value of government securities (excluding treasury bills) is determined on the basis of the prices / 

YTM published by Financial Benchmark India Private Limited (FBIL).

  (v) Treasury bills are valued at carrying cost, which includes discount amortised over the period to maturity.

  (vi) Fair value of other debt securities is determined based on the yield curve published by FBIL and credit 

spreads provided by Fixed Income Money Market and Derivatives Association (FIMMDA).

  (vii) Quoted equity shares are valued at lower of cost and the closing price on a recognised stock exchange. 

Unquoted equity shares are valued at their break-up value or at ` 1 per company where the latest Balance 

Sheet is not available.

  (viii) Units of the schemes of mutual funds are valued at the lower of cost and Net Asset Value (NAV) provided by 

the respective schemes of mutual funds.
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  (ix) Investments in equity shares held as long-term investments by erstwhile IndusInd Enterprises & Finance 

Limited and Ashok Leyland Finance Limited (since merged with the Bank) are valued at cost and classified 

as part of HTM category. Provision towards diminution in the value of such long-term investments is made 

only if the diminution in value is not temporary in the opinion of management.

  (x) Security Receipts (SR) are valued at the lower of redemption value and NAV obtained from the Securitisation 

Company (SC) / Reconstruction Company (RC). In respect of significant investment in SRs backed by stressed 

assets sold by the Bank, the value is subject to a prudential floor considering the asset classification of the 

stressed assets, had they remained on the books of the Bank.

  (xi) Purchase and sale transaction in securities are recorded under Settlement Date method of accounting, 

except in the case of the equity shares where Trade Date method of accounting is followed.

  (xii) Provision for non-performing investments is made in conformity with RBI guidelines.

  (xiii) Repurchase (Repo) and Reverse Repurchase (Reverse Repo) transactions (including transactions under 

Liquidity Adjustment Facility (LAF) with RBI) are accounted for as collateralised borrowing and lending 

respectively. On completion of the second leg of the Repo or Reverse Repo transaction, the difference 

between the consideration amounts is reckoned as Interest Expenditure or Income, as the case may be. 

Amounts outstanding in Repo and Reverse Repo account as at the Balance Sheet date is shown as part of 

Borrowings and Money at Call and at Short Notice respectively, and the accrued expenditure and income 

till the Balance Sheet date is recognised in the Profit and Loss account.

  (xiv) In respect of the short sale transactions in Central Government dated securities, the short position is 

covered by outright purchase of an equivalent amount of the same security within a maximum period 

of three months including the day of trade. The short position is reflected as the amount received on sale 

in a separate account and is classified under ‘Other Liabilities’. The short position is marked to market and 

loss, if any, is charged to the Profit and Loss account, while gain, if any, is not recognised. Profit or loss on 

settlement of the short position is recognised in the Profit and Loss account.

  (xv) Profit in respect of investments sold from HTM category is included in the Profit on Sale of Investments and 

an equivalent amount (net of taxes, if any, and net of transfer to Statutory Reserves as applicable to such 

profits) is appropriated from the Profit and Loss Appropriation account to Capital Reserve account.

  (xvi) In the event, provisions created on account of depreciation in the AFS or HFT categories are found to be 

in excess of the required amount in any year, the excess is credited to the Profit and Loss account and an 

equivalent amount (net of taxes, if any, and net of transfer to Statutory Reserves as applicable to such 

excess provisions) is appropriated to an Investment Reserve Account (IRA).

  The balance in IRA account is used to meet provision on account of depreciation in AFS and HFT categories by 

transferring an equivalent amount to the Profit and Loss Appropriation account as and when required.

 3.5 Investments in unquoted units of Venture Capital Funds (VCF) and Alternative Investment Funds (AIF) are 

categorised under HTM category for initial period of three years and valued at cost as per RBI guidelines. Units of 

VCF and AIF held under AFS category, where current quotations are not available, are marked to market based on 

the Net Asset Value (NAV) shown by VCF or AIF as per the latest audited financials of the fund. In case the audited 

financials are not available for a period beyond 18 months, the investments are valued at ` 1 per VCF or AIF, as the 

case may be.

4. Derivatives

 Derivative contracts are designated as hedging or trading and accounted for as follows:

 4.1 The hedging contracts comprise of Forward Rate Agreements, Interest Rate Swaps, and Currency Swaps 

undertaken to hedge interest rate and currency risk on certain assets and liabilities. The net interest receivable or 

payable is accounted on an accrual basis over the life of the swaps. However, where the hedge is designated with 

an asset or liability that is carried at market value or lower of cost and market value, then the hedging instrument is 

also marked to market with the resulting gain or loss recorded as an adjustment to the market value of designated 

assets or liabilities.
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 4.2 The trading contracts comprise of trading in Interest Rate Swaps, Interest Rate Futures and Currency Futures. The 
gain or loss arising on unwinding or termination of the contracts, is accounted for in the Profit and Loss account. 
Trading contracts outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date are re-valued at their fair value and resulting gains or 
losses are recognised in the Profit and Loss account.

 4.3 Gains or losses on the termination of hedge swaps is deferred and recognised over the shorter of the remaining 
life of the hedge swap or the remaining life of the underlying asset or liability.

 4.4 Premium paid and received on currency options is accounted when due in the Profit and Loss Account.

 4.5 Fair value of derivative is determined with reference to bid / asks quoted market price or by using valuation 
models. Where the fair value is calculated using valuation models, the methodology is to calculate the expected 
cash flows under the terms of each specific contract and then discount these values back to the present value. The 
valuation takes into consideration all relevant market factors (e.g. prices, interest rate, currency exchange rates, 
volatility, liquidity etc.). Most market parameters are either are directly observable or are implied from instrument 
prices. The model may perform numerical procedures in the pricing such as interpolation when input values do 
not directly correspond to the most actively traded market trade parameters.

 4.6 Provisioning of overdue customer receivable on derivative contracts is made as per RBI guidelines.

5. Advances

 5.1 Advances are classified as per RBI guidelines into standard, sub-standard, doubtful and loss assets after considering 

subsequent recoveries to date.

 5.2 Specific provisions for non-performing advances and floating provisions are made in conformity with RBI 

guidelines. In addition the Bank considers accelerated provisioning based on past experience, evaluation of 

securities and other related factors.

 5.3 A general provision on standard assets is made in accordance with RBI guidelines. Provision made against 

standard assets is included in ‘Other Liabilities and Provisions’.

 5.4 Advances are disclosed in the Balance Sheet, net of provisions and interest suspended for non-performing 

advances, and floating provisions.

 5.5 Advances exclude derecognised securitised advances, inter-bank participation certificates issued and bills 

rediscounted.

 5.6 Amounts recovered during the year against bad debts written off in earlier years are recognised in the Profit and 

Loss account.

 5.7 Provision no longer considered necessary in the context of the current status of the borrower as a performing 

asset, are written back to the Profit and Loss account to the extent such provisions were charged to the Profit and 

Loss account.

 5.8 For restructured / rescheduled assets, provision is made in accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI, which 

requires the diminution in the fair value of the assets to be provided at the time of restructuring. The restructured 

accounts are classified in accordance with RBI guidelines, including special dispensation wherever allowed.

6. Securitisation transactions and direct assignments

 6.1 The Bank transfers its loan receivables both through Direct Assignment route as well as transfer to Special Purpose 

Vehicles (‘SPV’).

 6.2 The securitisation transactions are without recourse to the Bank. The transferred loans and such securitised 

receivables are de-recognised as and when these are sold (true sale criteria being fully met) and the consideration 

has been received by the Bank. Gains or losses are recognised only if the Bank surrenders the rights to the benefits 

specified in the loan contracts.

 6.3 In terms of RBI guidelines, profit or premium arising on account of sale of standard assets, being the difference 

between the sale consideration and book value, is amortized over the life of the securities issued by the Special 

Purpose Vehicles (SPV). Any loss arising on account of the sale is recognised in the Profit and Loss account in the 

period in which the sale occurs.
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 6.4 In case of sale of non-performing assets through securitisation route to Securitisation Company or Asset 

Reconstruction Company by way of assignment of debt against issuance of Security Receipts (SR), the recognition 

of sale and accounting of profit and loss thereon is done in accordance with applicable RBI guidelines. Generally, 

the sale is recognised at the lower of redemption value of SR and the Net Book Value (NBV) of the financial asset 

sold, and the surplus is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account; shortfall if any, is charged to the Profit and Loss 

account subject to regulatory forbearance, if any, allowed from time to time. Profit or loss realized on ultimate 

redemption of the SR is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account.

7. Property, Plant and Equipment

 7.1 Fixed assets are stated at cost (except in the case of premises which were re-valued based on values determined 

by approved valuers) less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost includes incidental expenditure 

incurred on the assets before they are ready for intended use.

 7.2 The appreciation on account of revaluation is credited to Revaluation Reserve. Depreciation relating to revaluation 

is adjusted against the Revaluation Reserve.

 7.3 Depreciation is provided over the useful life of the assets, pro rata for the period of use, on a straight-line method. 

The useful life estimates prescribed in Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 are generally adhered 

to, except in respect of asset classes where, based on technical evaluation, a different estimate of useful life is 

considered suitable. Pursuant to this policy, the useful life estimates in respect of the following assets are as follows:

  (a) Computers at 3 years

  (b) Application software and perpetual software licences at 5 years

  (c) Printers, Scanners, Routers, Switch at 5 years

  (d) ATMs at 7 years

  (e) Network cabling, Electrical Installations, Furniture and Fixtures, Other Office Machinery at 10 years

  (f ) Vehicles at 5 years

  (g) Buildings at 60 years

  The useful life of an asset class is periodically assessed taking into account various criteria such as changes in 

technology, changes in business environment, utility and efficacy of an asset class to meet with intended user 

needs, etc. Whenever there is a revision in the estimated useful life of an asset, the unamortised depreciable 

amount is charged over the revised remaining useful life of the said asset.

 7.4 The carrying amount of fixed assets is reviewed at the Balance Sheet date to determine if there are any indications 

of impairment based on internal / external factors. In case of impaired assets, the impairment loss i.e. the amount 

by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable value is charged to the Profit and Loss account 

to the extent the carrying amount of assets exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

8. Revenue Recognition

 8.1 Interest and discount income on performing assets is recognised on accrual basis. Interest and discount income 

on non-performing assets is recognised on realisation.

 8.2 Interest on Government securities, debentures and other fixed income securities is recognised on a period 

proportion basis. Income on discounted instruments is recognised over the tenor of the instrument on a Constant 

Yield to Maturity method.

 8.3 Dividend income is accounted on accrual basis when the right to receive dividend is established.

 8.4 Commission (except for commission on Deferred Payment Guarantees which is recognised over the term on a 

straight line basis), Exchange and Brokerage are recognised on a transaction date and net of directly attributable 

expenses.

 8.5 Fees are recognised on an accrual basis when binding obligation to recognise the fees has arisen as per agreement, 

except in cases where the Bank is uncertain of realisation.

 8.6 Income from distribution of third party products is recognised on the basis of business booked.
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9. Operating Leases

 9.1 Lease rental obligations in respect of assets taken on operating lease are charged to the Profit and Loss account 

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

 9.2 Assets given under leases in respect of which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the 

Bank are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals received under operating leases are recognised in the Profit 

and Loss account as per the terms of the contracts.

10. Employee Benefits

 10.1 The Gratuity scheme of the Bank is a defined benefit scheme and the expense for the year is recognised on the 

basis of actuarial valuation at the Balance Sheet date. The present value of the obligation under such benefit 

plan is determined based on independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method which 

recognizes each period of service that gives rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures 

each unit separately to build up the final obligation. Payment obligations under the Group Gratuity scheme are 

managed through purchase of appropriate policies from insurers.

 10.2 Provident Fund contributions are made under trusts separately established for the purpose and the scheme 

administered by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (RPFC), as applicable. The rate at which the annual 

interest is payable to the beneficiaries by the trusts is being administered by the government. The Bank has an 

obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return from the investments of the trusts and the 

notified interest rates. Actuarial valuation of this Provident Fund interest shortfall is done as per the guidance note 

on Valuation of Interest Rate Guarantees on Exempt Provident Funds under AS 15 (Revised) issued by the Institute 

of Actuaries of India, and such shortfall, if any, is provided for.

 10.3 Provision for compensated absences is made on the basis of actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet date. The 

actuarial valuation is carried out using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

 10.4 Intrinsic value method is applied to account for the compensation cost of ESOP granted to the employees of the 

Bank. Intrinsic value is the amount by which the quoted market price of the underlying shares on the grant date 

exceeds the exercise price of the options. Accordingly, such compensation cost is amortized over the vesting 

period.

11. Segment Reporting

 11.1 In accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI, the Bank has adopted Segment Reporting as under:

  (a) Treasury includes all investment portfolios, Profit / Loss on sale of Investments, Profit / Loss on foreign 

exchange transactions, equities, income from derivatives and money market operations. The expenses 

of this segment consist of interest expenses on funds borrowed from external sources as well as internal 

sources and depreciation / amortisation of premium on Held to Maturity category investments.

  (b) Corporate / Wholesale Banking includes lending to and deposits from corporate customers and identified 

earnings and expenses of the segment.

  (c) Retail Banking includes lending to and deposits from retail customers and identified earnings and expenses 

of the segment.

  (d) Other Banking Operations includes all other operations not covered under Treasury, Corporate / Wholesale 

Banking and Retail Banking.

  Unallocated includes Capital and Reserves, Employee Stock Options (Grants) Outstanding and other unallocable 

assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

12. Debit and Credit Card reward points liability

 12.1 The liability towards Credit Card reward points is computed based on an actuarial valuation and the liability 

towards Debit Card reward points is computed on the basis of management estimates considering past trends.
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13. Bullion

 13.1 The Bank imports bullion including precious metal bars on a consignment basis for selling to its customers. The 

imports are on a back-to-back basis and are priced to the customer based on the prevailing price quoted by the 

supplier and the local levies related to the consignment like customs duty, etc. The profit earned is included in 

commission income.

 13.2 The Bank sells gold coins to its customers. The difference between the sale price to customers and purchase price 

is reflected under commission income.

14. Income-tax

 14.1 Tax expenses comprise of current and deferred taxes. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be 

paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred taxes reflect the impact of 

current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of 

timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted 

or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised, in general, only to the 

extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which 

such deferred tax assets can be realized; where there are unabsorbed depreciation and / or carry forward of 

losses under tax laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing 

evidence that such deferred tax asset can be realized against future taxable income. Unrecognised deferred tax 

assets of earlier years are re-assessed and recognised to the extent that it has become reasonably certain that 

future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

15. Earnings per share

 15.1 Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Net Profit or Loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 

by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per equity 

share are computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares 

outstanding as at end of the year.

16. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

 16.1 A provision is recognised when there is an obligation as a result of past event, and it is probable that an outflow 

of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 

Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle 

the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect 

the current best estimates.

 16.2 A disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is:

  (a) A possible obligation arising from a past event, the existence of which will be confirmed by occurrence or 

non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the bank; or

  (b) A present obligation arising from a past event which is not recognised as it is not probable that an outflow 

of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation 

cannot be made.

 16.3 When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of 

resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

 16.4 Contingent assets are not recognised or disclosed in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are 

assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the assets and 

related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

17. Cash and Cash equivalents

 17.1 Cash and cash equivalents comprises of Cash in Hand and Balances with RBI and Balances with Banks and Money 

at Call and Short Notice.
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1. Capital

 1.1 Capital Issue

  During the year ended March 31, 2018, 20,74,482 equity shares (Previous year 31,62,370 equity shares) 

aggregating to ` 101.97 crores (Previous year ` 96.62 crores) were allotted on various dates to the employees 

who exercised their stock options.

 1.2 Capital Adequacy Ratio

  The Bank computes Capital Adequacy Ratio as per Basel III Capital Regulations issued by RBI.

  Under Basel III Capital Regulations, on an on-going basis, the Bank has to maintain a Minimum Total Capital (MTC) 

of 10.875% (Previous year 10.25%) including Capital Conversion Buffer (CCB) at 1.875% (Previous year 1.25%), 

of the total risk weighted assets (RWA). Out of the MTC, at least 7.375% (Previous year 6.75%), including 1.875% 

(Previous year 1.25%) towards CCB, shall be from Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital and at least 7.00% (Previous 

year 7.00%) from Tier 1 capital. The capital adequacy ratio of the Bank is set out below:

(` in crores)

No. Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

1 Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio 13.42% 14.02%

2 Tier 1 capital ratio 14.58% 14.72%

3 Tier 2 capital ratio 0.45% 0.59%

4 Total Capital ratio (CRAR) 15.03% 15.31%

5 Amount of equity capital raised 101.97 96.62

6 Amount of Additional Tier 1 capital raised; 

of which

1,000.00 1,000.00

 Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (PNCPS) - -

 Perpetual Debt Instruments (PDI) 1,000.00 1,000.00

7 Amount of Tier 2 capital raised;

of which

- -

 Debt capital instrument - -

 Preference Share Capital Instruments [Perpetual 

Cumulative Preference Shares (PCPS) / Redeemable Non-

Cumulative Preference Shares (RNCPS) / Redeemable 

Cumulative Preference Shares (RCPS)]

- -

Schedule 18 Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
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2. Investments

 2.1 Details of Investments

(` in crores)

No. Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

1 Value of Investments

(i) Gross value of Investments 50,285.31 36,789.86

 (a) In India 50,285.31 36,789.86

 (b) Outside India - -

(ii) Provisions for Depreciation 208.59 87.72

 (a) In India 208.59 87.72

 (b) Outside India - -

(iii) Net value of Investments 50,076.72 36,702.14

 (a) In India 50,076.72 36,702.14

 (b) Outside India - -

2 Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on 

Investments

(i) Opening balance 87.72 56.36

(ii) Add: Provision made during the year 120.87 31.36

(iii) Less: Write-off / (write-back) of excess provisions during 

the year

- -

(iv) Closing balance 208.59 87.72

 2.2 Category-wise details of Investments (Net of provision for depreciation)

(` in crores)

No. Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

HTM AFS HFT HTM AFS HFT

(i) Government securities 30,438.85 9,927.14 - 26,259.13 5,193.21 -

(ii) Other approved securities - - - - - -

(iii) Shares 4.75 287.19 - 4.75 156.50 -

(iv) Debentures and bonds - 4,476.42 - - 2,524.57 -

(v) Subsidiaries and / or Joint 

Ventures

- - - - - -

(vi) Others - Security Receipts, 

Pass Through Certificates, 

investment in units of 

Mutual Funds, Commercial 

Paper, Venture Capital, etc.

99.42 4,842.95 - 67.50 2,496.48 -

Total 30,543.02 19,533.70 - 26,331.38 10,370.76 -
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 2.3 Details of Repo / Reverse Repo including under Liquidity Adjustment Facility (LAF) transactions (in face value 

terms)

(` in crores)

Particulars Minimum 

outstanding 

during the year

Maximum 

outstanding 

during the year

Daily average 

outstanding 

during the year

Balance as at 

the year end

Year ended March 31, 2018

Securities sold under repo

(i) Government Securities 11.17 1,159.00 18.35 -

(ii) Corporate Debt Securities - - - -

Securities purchased under 

reverse repo

(i) Government Securities 150.00 13,300.00 2,046.83 -

(ii) Corporate Debt Securities - - - -

Year ended March 31, 2017

Securities sold under repo

(i) Government Securities 5.72 5,934.94 2,488.52 -

(ii) Corporate Debt Securities - - - -

Securities purchased under 

reverse repo

(i) Government Securities 100.00 16,900.00 1,754.75 6,300.00

(ii) Corporate Debt Securities - - - -

 2.4 Issuer composition of Non-SLR investments as at March 31, 2018

(` in crores)

No. Issuer Amount(1) Extent of 

private 

placement

Extent of ‘below 

investment 

grade’ securities

Extent of 

‘unrated’ 

securities(2)

Extent of 

‘unlisted’ 

securities(3)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)

1 Public Sector Undertakings 338.16 338.16 - - -

2 Financial Institutions 883.43 883.43 - - -

3 Banks 2,803.28 2,803.28 - - -

4 Private corporates 4,563.09 4,555.84 - - 7.25

5 Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures - - - - -

6 Others 1,331.36 1,331.36 - - -

7 Provision held towards 

depreciation

(208.59)

Total 9,710.73 9,912.07 - - 7.25



164

Annual Report 2017-18

  Issuer composition of Non-SLR investments as at March 31, 2017

(` in crores)

No. Issuer Amount(1) Extent of 

private 

placement

Extent of ‘below 

investment 

grade’ securities

Extent of 

‘unrated’ 

securities(2)

Extent of 

‘unlisted’ 

securities(3)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)

1 Public Sector Undertakings 250.89 250.89 - - -

2 Financial Institutions - - - - -

3 Banks 1,445.98 1,445.98 - - -

4 Private corporates 3,067.61 3,060.36 - - 7.25

5 Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures - - - - -

6 Others 573.05 573.05 - - -

7 Provision held towards 

depreciation

(87.72)

Total 5,249.81 5,330.28 - - 7.25

  Notes:

  (1) Does not include amount of securities pledged with Central Counter Parties, viz., Clearing Corporation of 

India Limited, National Securities Clearing Corporation of India Limited and Multi Commodity Exchange of 

India Limited.

  (2) Excludes investment in equity shares.

  (3) Excludes investment in commercial papers, Certificates of Deposit and preference shares acquired by way 

of conversion of debts.

  (4) Amounts reported under columns 4, 5, 6 and 7 are not mutually exclusive.

 2.5 Non-performing Non-SLR investments

(` in crores)

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2018

Year ended 

March 31, 2017

Opening balance 2.26 2.26

Additions during the year 27.05 11.20

Reductions / Redemption during the year 0.33 11.20

Closing balance 28.98 2.26

Total provisions held 24.32 2.26

 2.6 Sale / transfer from HTM category

  During the year ended March 31, 2018 and year ended March 31, 2017, the value of sales and transfer of securities 

to / from HTM category, excluding one-time transfer of securities from HTM and sale on account of Open Market 

Operation (OMO), has not exceeded 5% of the book value of investments held in HTM category at the beginning 

of the year. As such, in line with RBI guidelines, specific disclosures on book value, market value, and provisions if 

any, relating to such sale and transfers are not required to be made.
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3. Derivatives

 3.1 Interest Rate Swaps, Forward Rate Agreements and Cross Currency Swaps

(` in crores)

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2018

As at 

March 31, 2017

(i) Notional principal of swap agreements 230,162.23 127,836.91

(ii) Losses which would be incurred if counter parties failed to 

fulfill their obligations under the agreements 1,754.93 1,845.19

(iii) Collateral required by the Bank upon entering into swaps - -

(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps – With banks 71.06% 62.90%

(v) Net Fair value of the swap book 372.23 250.86

  The nature and terms of Interest Rate Swaps (IRS) outstanding as on March 31, 2018 are set out below:

(` in crores)

Nature No. Notional 

Principal

Benchmark Terms

Trading 705 51,058.89 MIBOR Fixed Payable vs Floating Receivable

Trading 688 48,885.45 MIBOR Fixed Receivable vs Floating Payable

Trading 402 28,850.00 MIFOR Fixed Payable vs Floating Receivable

Trading 505 31,780.00 MIFOR Fixed Receivable vs Floating Payable

Trading 7 511.76 EURIBOR Fixed Payable vs Floating Receivable

Trading 21 493.77 EURIBOR Fixed Receivable vs Floating Payable

Trading 32 30.14 EURIBOR Floating Payable vs Fixed Receivable

Trading 161 19,233.39 LIBOR Fixed Payable vs Floating Receivable

Trading 366 16,491.10 LIBOR Fixed Receivable vs Floating Payable

  The nature and terms of IRSs outstanding as on March 31, 2017 are set out below:

(` in crores)

Nature No. Notional 

Principal

Benchmark Terms

Trading 163 9,715.50 MIBOR Fixed Payable vs Floating Receivable

Trading 131 7,679.47 MIBOR Fixed Receivable vs Floating Payable

Trading 301 25,922.00 MIFOR Fixed Payable vs Floating Receivable

Trading 352 24,935.00 MIFOR Fixed Receivable vs Floating Payable

Trading 1 48.49 EURIBOR Fixed Payable vs Floating Receivable

Trading 34 80.01 EURIBOR Fixed Receivable vs Floating Payable

Trading 113 14,345.93 LIBOR Fixed Payable vs Floating Receivable

Trading 356 12,784.24 LIBOR Fixed Receivable vs Floating Payable

Trading 1 226.98 LIBOR Floating Payable vs Floating Receivable
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  The nature and terms of Cross Currency Swaps (CCSs) outstanding as on March 31, 2018 are set out below:

(` in crores)

Nature No. Notional 

Principal

Benchmark Terms

Trading 1 9.70 EURIBOR Fixed Payable vs Floating Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 51 8,976.20 LIBOR Fixed Payable vs Floating Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 3 2,854.63 LIBOR Floating Payable vs Fixed Receivable 

(Coupon only Swap)

Trading 178 7,846.01 LIBOR Floating Payable vs Fixed Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 1 153.76 LIBOR Floating Payable vs Fixed Receivable 

(Principal Only Swap)

Trading 3 65.66 MIBOR Floating Payable vs Fixed Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 4 595.40 NA Fixed Payable vs Fixed Receivable 

(Coupon Only Swap)

Trading 130 4,212.64 NA Fixed Payable vs Fixed Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 20 908.26 NA Fixed Payable vs Fixed Receivable 

(Principal Only Swap)

Trading 3 104.99 NA Fixed Payable vs Floating Receivable 

(Principal Only Swap)

Trading 3 63.90 LIBOR / LIBOR Floating Payable vs Floating Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 1 28.82 LIBOR / MIBOR Floating Payable vs Floating Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 6 1,099.32 LIBOR / MIFOR Floating Payable vs Floating Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 15 4,008.26 MIBOR / LIBOR Floating Payable vs Floating Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Merchant and Cover 1 32.81 LIBOR Fixed Payable vs Floating Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Merchant and Cover 1 25.00 LIBOR Floating Payable vs Fixed Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Merchant and Cover 4 980.15 NA Fixed Payable vs Fixed Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 2 244.80 EURIBOR / LIBOR Floating Payable vs Floating Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 1 14.48 LIBOR Fixed Payable vs Fixed Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)
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Nature No. Notional 

Principal

Benchmark Terms

Trading 1 85.91 LIBOR Floating Payable vs Floating Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 1 252.97 LIBOR / SOR Floating Payable vs Floating Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 1 264.06 SOR / LIBOR Floating Payable vs Floating Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

  The nature and terms of CCSs outstanding as on March 31, 2017 are set out below:

(` in crores)

Nature No. Notional 

Principal

Benchmark Terms

Merchant and Cover 2 25.91 LIBOR Floating Payable vs Fixed Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Merchant and Cover 2 33.84 LIBOR Fixed Payable vs Floating Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Merchant and Cover 6 1,301.48 NA Fixed Payable vs Fixed Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Merchant and Cover 4 239.06 NA Fixed Payable vs Fixed Receivable 

(Principal Only Swap)

Trading 242 9,746.70 LIBOR Floating Payable vs Fixed Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 53 8,207.36 LIBOR Fixed Payable vs Floating Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 3 563.83 LIBOR Floating Payable vs Fixed Receivable 

(Principal Only Swap)

Trading 2 1,567.22 LIBOR Floating Payable vs Fixed Receivable 

(Coupon only Swap)

Trading 107 2,537.85 NA Fixed Payable vs Fixed Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 3 520.15 NA Fixed Payable vs Fixed Receivable 

(Coupon only Swap)

Trading 38 2,997.09 NA Fixed Payable vs Fixed Receivable 

(Principal Only Swap)

Trading 2 61.37 LIBOR / LIBOR Floating Payable vs Floating Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 1 40.45 LIBOR / LIBOR Floating Payable vs Floating Receivable 

(Coupon only Swap)

Trading 14 3,157.66 LIBOR / MIBOR Floating Payable vs Floating Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 6 1,099.32 LIBOR / MIFOR Floating Payable vs Floating Receivable 

(Cross Currency Swap)
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 3.2 Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives

  The details of Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives undertaken during the year ended March 31, 2018 are as 

below:

(` in crores)

Sr. No. Particulars Amount

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives undertaken 

during the year (instrument-wise)

a) Future Bond/697GS2026/27/07/2017 0.04

b) Future Bond/697GS2026/31/08/2017 18.30

c) Future Bond/697GS2026/28/09/2017 4.04

d) Future Bond/679GS2027/28/09/2017 56.74

e) Future Bond/679GS2027/26/10/2017 4.00

(ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding 

as on March 31, 2018 (instrument-wise)

-

(iii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding 

and not “highly effective” (instrument-wise)

-

(iv) Marked-to-market value of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding 

and not “highly effective” (instrument-wise)

-

  The details of Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives undertaken during the year ended March 31, 2017 are as 

below:

(` in crores)

Sr. No. Particulars Amount

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives undertaken 

during the year (instrument-wise)

a) Future Bond/759GS2026/23/02/2017 - Feb 2017 0.04

(ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding 

as on March 31, 2017 (instrument-wise)

-

(iii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding 

and not “highly effective” (instrument-wise)

-

(iv) Marked-to-market value of exchange traded interest rate derivatives outstanding 

and not “highly effective” (instrument-wise)

-

 3.3 Risk Exposure in Derivatives

  Derivatives Policy approved by the Board of Directors defines the framework for carrying out derivatives business 

and lays down policies and processes to measure, monitor and report risk arising from derivative transactions. The 

policy provides for (a) appropriate risk limits for different derivative products and (b) authority levels for review 

of limit breaches and to take appropriate actions in such events. As part of the Derivatives Policy, the Bank has a 

Product Suitability and Customer Appropriateness Policy, which is used to classify customers on the basis of their 

need for various derivative products and their competence in understanding such products and the attendant 

risks involved.

  Risk Management Department of the Bank is responsible for measuring, reporting and monitoring risk arising 

from derivatives transactions. It functions independent of Treasury business and undertakes the following 

activities:
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instruments and underlying hedged risk; and

  The Risk Management function applies a host of quantitative tools and methods such as Value at Risk, PV01, 

stop-loss limits, counterparty limits, deal size limits and overnight position limits. The Bank undertakes derivative 

transactions for hedging customers’ exposure, hedging the Bank’s own exposure, as well as for trading purposes, 

wherever permitted by RBI. The customers use these derivative products to hedge their forex and interest rate 

exposures.

  The following table presents quantitative disclosures relating to Derivatives:

(` in crores)

Sr. 

No.

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Currency 

derivatives

Interest rate 

derivatives

Currency 

derivatives

Interest rate 

derivatives

1 Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount) 

(Note 1)

399,637.00 197,334.49 257,304.17 95,737.62

a) For hedging - - - -

b) For trading 399,637.00 197,334.49 257,304.17 95,737.62

2 Marked to Market Positions (Note 2)

a) Asset (+) 3,260.91 1,082.20 4,568.95 692.94

b) Liability (-) (2,687.97) (728.06) (4,020.87) (534.81)

3 Credit Exposure (Note 3) 14,400.55 3,057.53 13,908.57 1,801.55

4 Likely impact of one percentage change in 

interest rate (100*PV01) (Note 4)

a) on hedging derivatives - - - -

b) on trading derivatives 101.56 85.13 24.74 20.71

5 Maximum and Minimum of 100*PV01 

observed during the year (Note 5)

a) on hedging - - - -

b) on trading

 Maximum 102.71 88.28 63.55 73.21

 Minimum 4.82 0.36 2.06 0.09

 Note 1: Outstanding Notional principal amount of exchange traded currency future trades was ̀  85.76 crores as 

at March 31, 2018 (Previous year Nil).

 Note 2: Marked to Market positions include interest accrued on the swaps.

 Note 3: Credit exposure is computed based on the current exposure method.

 Note 4: Based on the absolute value of PV01 of the derivatives outstanding as at the year end.

 Note 5: Based on the PV01 of the outstanding derivatives.

 Note 6: PV01 for Currency Derivatives and Interest Rate Derivatives are presented in absolute terms. However, 

total net PV01 shall remain smaller as Currency Derivatives and Interest Rate Derivatives positions net 

off each other.
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4. Asset Quality

 4.1 Non-Performing Assets

  The details of movement of gross non-performing assets (NPAs), net NPAs and provisions during the year ended 

March 31, 2018 and the year ended March 31, 2017 are given below:

(` in crores)

Sr. 

No.

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.51% 0.39%

(ii) Movement of Gross NPAs

a) Opening balance 1,054.87 776.82

b) Additions during the year 3,324.55 1,429.27

c) Reductions during the year

 (i) Upgradations 292.25 196.59

 (ii) Recoveries (excluding recoveries made from 

upgraded accounts)

1,599.48 489.10

 (iii) Technical / Prudential write-offs - -

 (iv) Write-offs other than those under (iii) above 782.78 465.53

 Sub-total 2,674.51 1,151.22

d) Closing balance 1,704.91 1,054.87

(iii) Movement of Net NPAs

a) Opening balance 438.91 321.75

b) Additions during the year 2,003.70 693.66

c) Reductions during the year 1,696.94 576.50

d) Closing balance 745.67 438.91

(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs 

(excluding provisions on standard assets)

a) Opening balance 615.96 455.07

b) Provisions made during the year 1,320.85 735.61

c) Write-off / write back of excess provisions 977.57 574.72

d) Closing balance 959.24 615.96

  Notes:

  1) Recoveries include sale to SC / RC.

  2) In terms of RBI circular DBOD.BP.BC.No.98/21.04.132/2013-14 dated February 26, 2014, in respect of 

assets sold to SC/RCs, during the year ended March 31, 2015, the loss on sale arrived at by deducting sale 

consideration and provisions held as on the date of sale from the outstanding amount, was amortized over 

a period of two years. Accordingly, the Bank had charged to the Profit and Loss account the remaining 

amount of ` 96.26 crores during the year ended March 31, 2017.

  3) Amounts for the year ended March 31, 2018 includes impact of NPAs and provisions as assessed by RBI 

in their Supervisory Programme for Assessment of Risk and Capital for the year ended March 31, 2017 as 

mentioned under note no 4.4.
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 4.2 Provision coverage ratio

  Provision coverage ratio as at March 31, 2018 is 56.26% (Previous year 58.39%).

 4.3 Details of technical write-offs and recoveries made thereon

(` in crores)

Items March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening balance of technical / prudential written off accounts - -

Add: Technical / prudential write-offs during the year - -

Sub-total - -

Less : Recoveries made from previously technical / prudential written-off 

accounts during the year

- -

Closing balance of technical / prudential written-off accounts - -

 4.4 Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning for NPAs

  Advances are classified into standard, sub-standard, doubtful and loss assets in conformity with RBI guidelines, 

and specific provisions for non-performing advances are made accordingly. NPAs as assessed by RBI in their 

Supervisory Programme for Assessment of Risk and Capital for the year ended March 31, 2017 was higher than 

that reported by the Bank, as shown in the summary below:

(` in crores)

Sr. 

No.

Particulars Amount

1 Gross NPAs as on March 31, 2017 as reported by the Bank 1,054.87

2 Gross NPAs as on March 31, 2017 as assessed by RBI 2,405.07

3 Divergence in Gross NPAs (2-1) (Refer Note 1 and 2 below) 1,350.20

4 Net NPAs as on March 31, 2017 as reported by the Bank 438.91

5 Net NPAs as on March 31, 2017 as assessed by RBI 1,440.03

6 Divergence in Net NPAs (5-4) 1,001.12

7 Provisions for NPAs as on March 31, 2017 as reported by the Bank 615.96

8 Provisions for NPAs as on March 31, 2017 as assessed by RBI 965.04

9 Divergence in provisioning (8-7) 349.08

10 Reported Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March 31, 2017 2,867.89

11 Adjusted (notional) Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March 31, 2017 after 

taking into account the divergence in provisioning

2,639.62

  Note:

  1) Out of  ` 1,350.20 crores identified by RBI as non-performing advances, four accounts amounting to  

` 809.50 crores were fully realised during the year ended March 31, 2018. This includes one large cement 

company account with an exposure of  ` 551.70 crores that was resolved as per the resolution plan arrived 

at the Joint Lenders Forum. Borrower accounts with an exposure of  ` 118.80 crores were resolved by way 

of sale to Asset Reconstruction Companies.

  2) The remaining borrower accounts were classified as non-performing advances during the year ended 

March 31, 2018 and provided for accordingly.
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  Details relating to divergence between the non-performing advances reported by the Bank, and as assessed by 

RBI in their Supervisory Programme for Assessment of Risk and Capital for the year ended March 31, 2016 are as 

below:

(` in crores)

Sr. 

No.

Particulars Amount

1 Gross NPAs as on March 31, 2016 as reported by the Bank 776.82

2 Gross NPAs as on March 31, 2016 as assessed by RBI (Refer Note 1 below) 1,337.03

3 Divergence in Gross NPAs (2-1) 560.21

4 Net NPAs as on March 31, 2016 as reported by the Bank 321.75

5 Net NPAs as on March 31, 2016 as assessed by RBI 637.55

6 Divergence in Net NPAs (5-4) 315.80

7 Provisions for NPAs as on March 31, 2016 as reported by the Bank 455.07

8 Provisions for NPAs as on March 31, 2016 as assessed by RBI 699.48

9 Divergence in provisioning (8-7) 244.41

10 Reported Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March 31, 2016 2,286.45

11 Adjusted (notional) Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March 31, 2016 after 

taking into account the divergence in provisioning (Refer Note 2 below)

2,137.32

  Note:

  1) The above includes one account that had an outstanding balance of ` 356.00 crores as of March 31, 2016, 

which was fully repaid before March 31, 2017. The provision amount computed by RBI on this account 

amounted to ` 142.40 crores.

  2) Sr. No. 11 does not include the impact of additional provision of ` 73.05 crores, towards a standard asset. 

The impact on net profit after tax due to this provision amounts to ` 47.77 crores.

  3) Above divergences pointed out by the RBI have been provided for or repaid in the year ended March 31, 

2017.
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 4.5 Sector-wise advances

(` in crores)

Sr. 

No.

Sector March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Outstanding 

Total 

Advances

Gross 

NPAs

% of Gross 

NPAs 

to Total 

Advances 

in that 

sector

Outstanding 

Total 

Advances

Gross 

NPAs

% of Gross 

NPAs 

to Total 

Advances 

in that 

sector

A Priority Sector

1 Agriculture and allied 

activities

13,011.07 174.09 1.34% 10,260.55 78.99 0.77%

2 Advances to industries 

sector eligible as 

priority sector lending

5,049.12 - - 4,091.50 0.86 0.02%

Of which (refer note 

below):

a) Gems and Jewellery 1,001.99 - - 1,194.12 - -

b) Construction (Other 

than Infrastructure)

21.58 - - 3.94 - -

c) Infrastructure 19.64 - - 9.11 - -

d) Basic Metal and Metal 

Products

- - - 343.08 - -

3 Services 27,212.84 284.79 1.05% 20,451.95 187.45 0.92%

4 Personal loans 233.95 8.72 3.73% 150.68 6.87 4.56%

Sub-total (A) 45,506.98 467.60 1.03% 34,954.68 274.17 0.78%

B Non Priority Sector

1 Agriculture and allied 

activities

- - - - - -

2 Industry 33,654.24 494.66 1.47% 22,984.01 225.45 0.98%

Of which (refer note 

below):

a) Gems and Jewellery 5,885.54 102.33 1.74% 5,761.73 6.98 0.12%

b) Construction (Other 

than Infrastructure)

3,583.03 92.18 2.57% 2,871.67 129.23 4.50%

c) Infrastructure 6,561.89 219. 05 3.34% 3,333.59 - -

d) Basic Metal and Metal 

Products

- - - 2,689.03 2.98 0.11%

3 Services 59,524.12 575.48 0.97% 51,226.69 447.48 0.87%

4 Personal loans 7,227.56 167.17 2.31% 4,531.09 107.77 2.38%

Sub-total (B) 1,00,405.92 1,237.31 1.23% 78,741.79 780.70 0.99%

Total (A+B) 1,45,912.90 1,704.91 1.17% 113,696.47 1,054.87 0.93%

  Note:

  Segments contributing in excess of 10% of the Sector is individually listed; Basic Metal and Metal Products 

constituted less than 10% on March 31, 2018.
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 4.7 In accordance with the Revised Framework on Resolution of Stressed Assets issued by RBI vide a circular dated 

February 12, 2018, the extant instructions on resolution of stressed assets such as Framework for Revitalising 

Distressed Assets, Corporate Debt Restructuring Scheme, Flexible Structuring of Existing Long Term Project Loans, 

Strategic Debt Restructuring Scheme (SDR), Change in Ownership outside SDR, and Scheme for Sustainable 

Structuring of Stressed Assets (S4A) have been withdrawn. The Joint Lenders’ Forum as an institutional mechanism 

for resolution of stressed accounts was also discontinued. However, accounts where the schemes have been 

implemented by then were allowed to continue, and the following details pertain to such accounts where the 

respective schemes have been implemented before the said circular became effective.

  a) Details of cases where scheme for Sustainable Structuring of Stressed Assets (S4A) is implemented

(` in crores)

No. of accounts where S4A has 

been applied

Aggregate amount 

outstanding

Amount outstanding Provision 

HeldIn Part A In Part B

As at March 31, 2018

Classified as Standard 35.47 20.73 14.74 7.09

Classified as NPA - - - -

As at March 31, 2017

Classified as Standard - - - -

Classified as NPA - - - -

  b) Details of cases under Flexible Structuring of Existing Loans

(` in crores)

Year ended No. of 

borrowers 

taken up 

for flexibly 

structuring

Amount of loans taken up for 

flexible structuring

Exposure weighted average 

duration of loans taken up for 

flexible structuring (years)

Classified as 

Standard

Classified as 

NPA

Before applying 

flexible 

structuring

After applying 

flexible 

structuring

March 31, 2018 1 51.85 - 6.25 7.83

March 31, 2017 - - - - -

  c) Details of cases under Strategic Debt Restructuring Scheme (SDR) (accounts which are currently under 

the stand-still period)

   As at March 31, 2018:

(` in crores)

No. of 

accounts 

where SDR 

has been 

invoked

Amount outstanding as at 

March 31, 2018

Amount outstanding as 

at March 31, 2018 with 

respect to accounts where 

conversion of debt to 

equity is pending

Amount outstanding as 

at March 31, 2018 with 

respect to accounts where 

conversion of debt to 

equity has taken place

Classified 

as Standard

Classified 

as NPA

Classified 

as Standard

Classified 

as NPA

Classified 

as Standard

Classified 

as NPA

- - - - - - -
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   As at March 31, 2017:

 (` in crores)

No. of 

accounts 

where SDR 

has been 

invoked

Amount outstanding as at 

March 31, 2017**

Amount outstanding as 

at March 31, 2017 with 

respect to accounts where 

conversion of debt to 

equity is pending

Amount outstanding as 

at March 31, 2017 with 

respect to accounts where 

conversion of debt to 

equity has taken place**

Classified 

as Standard

Classified 

as NPA

Classified 

as Standard

Classified 

as NPA

Classified 

as Standard

Classified 

as NPA

4 267.80 - - - 267.80 -

   ** Includes ` 129.06 crores that is also reported under restructured standard advances (refer Schedule 18 – 

Note 4.6).

  d) Change in Ownership outside SDR Scheme (accounts which are currently under the stand-still period): Nil 

(Previous year Nil).

  e) Change in Ownership of Projects Under Implementation (accounts which are currently under the stand-still 

period): Nil (Previous year Nil).

 4.8 a) Details of financial assets sold to Securitisation Company (SC) / Reconstruction Company (RC) for asset 

reconstruction

(` in crores)

No. Items March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

1 No. of accounts 2,892 1,633

2 Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC / RC 466.56 330.37

3 Aggregate consideration 484.80 268.50

4 Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts 

transferred in earlier years

0.30 -

5 Aggregate gain / (loss) over net book value 18.54 (61.87)

  b) Details of book value of investment in security receipts (SRs)

(` in crores)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Backed by NPAs sold by the Bank as underlying 569.54 353.87

Backed by NPAs sold by the other Banks / Financial Institutions / 

Non-Banking Financial Companies as underlying

19.12 -

Total 588.66 353.87
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  c) Details of Investment in Security Receipts (SRs)

(` in crores)

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

SRs 

issued 

within 

past 5 

years

SRs 

issued 

more 

than 5 

years 

ago but 

within 

past 8 

years

SRs 

issued 

more 

than 8 

years 

ago

SRs 

issued 

within 

past 5 

years

SRs 

issued 

more 

than 5 

years 

ago but 

within 

past 8 

years

SRs 

issued 

more 

than 8 

years 

ago

(i) Book value of SRs backed 

by NPAs sold by the bank as 

underlying

504.55 64.99 - 353.87 - -

Provision held against (i) 112.86 29.50 - 55.90 - -

(ii) Book value of SRs backed by 

NPAs sold by other banks / 

financial institutions / non-

banking financial companies as 

underlying

19.12 - - - - -

Provision held against (ii) - - - - - -

Total (i) + (ii) 523.67 64.99 - 353.87 - -

   (a) This does not include SRs issued by Trusts that were closed and the outstanding SRs were cancelled 

and written off in the books of the Bank.

   (b) During current year, no SRs issued by Trusts more than 8 years ago, were written off in the books of 

the Bank and held in physical form with Nil value (Previous year ` 11.00 crores).

 4.9 During the year, there has been no individual purchase / sale of non-performing financial assets from / to other 

banks (Previous year Nil).

 4.10 During the year, there was no sale of assets through securitisation except sale of assets to SC / RC (Previous year 

Nil).

 4.11 Provision on Standard Assets

  In accordance with RBI guidelines, general provision on standard assets is made at the following rates:

  (a) At 1% on standard advances to Commercial Real Estate Sector;

  (b) At 0.25% on standard direct advances to SME and Agriculture; and

  (c) At 0.40% of the balance outstanding in other standard assets.

  Standard assets provision also includes additional provision made pursuant to RBI instructions including 

provisions towards restructured standard assets.
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  The provision on standard assets is included in ‘Other Liabilities and Provisions – Others’ in Schedule 5, and is not 

netted off from Advances. The amount of provision held on standard assets is as below:

(` in crores)

Items March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Cumulative Provision held for Standard Assets 738.65 801.52

[Including ` 52.00 crores towards Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure 

of clients (Previous year ` 45.69 crores)]

 4.12 Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure (UFCE) of Clients

  Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss arising out of adverse movements in foreign exchange rates affecting both 

on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. The forex positions that are not effectively hedged either by 

way of natural hedge or through derivatives / forward contracts expose a client to the risk of loss due to volatility 

in the forex rates. The Bank assesses the risk arising out of such UFCE of the clients at the time of credit appraisal 

and monitors the same at regular intervals. The provision for standard assets as of March 31, 2018, included an 

amount of ` 52.00 crores (Previous year ` 45.69 crores) towards UFCE. Further, capital held under Basel III Capital 

Regulations, as of March 31, 2018, includes an amount of ` 185.09 crores (Previous year ` 128.57 crores) on 

account of UFCE, computed at the applicable risk weights.

 4.13 Floating provision

(` in crores)

Items March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening balance - -

Provisions made during the year 70.00 -

Draw-down made during the year - -

Closing balance 70.00 -

 4.14 As on March 31, 2018, no resolution plan in respect of accounts wherein aggregate exposure of the lenders 

amounted to ` 2,000 crores or above, has been implemented in accordance with the Revised Framework on 

Resolution of Stressed Assets issued by RBI vide a circular dated February 12, 2018.

5. Business ratios

No. Ratio March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

(i) Interest income as a percentage to working funds 9.10% 9.35%

(ii) Non-interest income as a percentage to working funds 2.50% 2.71%

(iii) Operating profit as a percentage to working funds 3.50% 3.54%

(iv) Return on assets 1.90% 1.86%

(v) Business (deposits plus gross advances) per employee (` in lakhs) 1,154.37 916.29

(vi) Profit per employee (` in lakhs) 14.26 11.33

 Notes:

 (1) Working funds are reckoned as the average of total assets as per the monthly returns in Form X filed with RBI 

during the year.

 (2) Returns on Assets are computed with reference to average working funds.

 (3) Business per employee (deposits plus gross advances) is computed after excluding Inter-bank deposits.
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6. Asset Liability Management

 6.1 Maturity Pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities

  As at March 31, 2018:

(` in crores)

Particulars Deposits Loans & 

Advances*

Investments Borrowings Foreign 

currency 

assets

Foreign 

currency 

liabilities

Day 1 822.35 689.17 - 0.39 1,447.10 310.95

2 to 7 Days 3,765.32 5,475.17 35.56 8,244.25 1,111.70 942.55

8 to 14 Days 5,245.91 5,510.78 1.10 - 541.80 51.52

15 to 30 Days 3,547.53 5,214.22 4.98 814.69 977.27 999.83

31 days to 2 months 9,822.62 5,495.79 282.81 814.69 1,964.65 913.71

Over 2 months to 3 months 10,345.54 6,870.29 2,379.11 - 2,962.65 97.35

Over 3 months to 6 months 9,229.09 11,999.72 2,299.77 3,032.59 1,802.97 519.02

Over 6 months to 1 year 33,352.50 19,651.62 4,716.85 3,387.75 1,245.41 3,488.70

Over 1 year to 3 years 21,765.34 49,134.46 6,652.40 15,601.25 1,492.10 9,164.52

Over 3 years to 5 years 16,017.03 15,675.57 3,665.57 1,878.08 1,962.44 1,867.55

Over 5 years to 7 years 7,838.82 6,677.20 3,958.18 942.08 263.49 998.16

Over 7 years to 10 years 11,409.27 6,674.85 7,327.46 3,573.31 366.15 159.96

Over 10 years to 15 years 11,136.65 2,977.04 9,735.89 - - 81.54

Above 15 years 7,341.20 5,007.78 9,017.04 - - 56.07

Total 1,51,639.17 1,47,053.66 50,076.72 38,289.08 16,137.73 19,651.43

  * Loans & Advances include Bill Re-discounting Scheme of ` 2,100.00 crores.

  As at March 31, 2017:  (` in crores)

Particulars Deposits Loans & 

Advances*

Investments Borrowings Foreign 

currency 

assets

Foreign 

currency 

liabilities

Day 1 503.31 594.29 - 0.04 858.98 440.64

2 to 7 Days 3,745.60 7,243.48 96.54 603.52 1,578.23 792.10

8 to 14 Days 4,308.00 2,415.45 - - 501.30 40.25

15 to 30 Days 4,435.01 1,883.22 - - 762.89 290.17

31 days to 2 months 10,305.05 4,459.32 28.05 1,828.77 1,912.16 1,927.33

Over 2 months to 3 months 7,619.62 8,823.40 520.50 1,290.52 3,648.80 1,336.95

Over 3 months to 6 months 13,072.92 8,883.82 356.48 4,662.32 2,478.61 677.86

Over 6 months to 1 year 25,042.52 15,517.98 1,822.96 3,993.05 1,798.37 1,852.68

Over 1 year to 3 years 18,055.05 38,799.90 5,130.84 2,772.97 2,275.45 4,136.26

Over 3 years to 5 years 12,877.69 11,028.32 2,827.03 4,302.50 1,359.48 1,585.95

Over 5 years to 7 years 5,955.23 4,705.13 3,522.57 500.00 400.57 85.60

Over 7 years to 10 years 7,211.51 4,334.27 7,858.22 2,500.00 45.45 103.94

Over 10 years to 15 years 7,142.17 4,990.65 9,634.62 - - 103.94

Above 15 years 6,298.54 501.28 4,904.33 - - 91.71

Total 1,26,572.22 1,14,180.51 36,702.14 22,453.69 17,620.29 13,465.38

  * Loans & Advances include Bill Re-discounting Scheme of ` 1,100.00 crores.
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 6.2 Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR)

  Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) aims in ensuring the Bank to maintain an adequate level of unencumbered High 

Quality Liquid Assets (HQLAs) to meet its liquidity needs convertible into cash under significantly severe liquidity 

stress scenario lasting for 30 days horizon period. LCR measures the Bank’s potential to stand under combined 

idiosyncratic and market-wide liquidity stress condition, where the Bank experiences accelerated withdrawal of 

deposits from retail as well wholesale depositors, partial loss of secured funding, increase in collateral requirements 

and unscheduled draw down of unused credit lines.

  LCR is the ratio of unencumbered HQLAs to Net Cash Outflows over the next 30 calendar days. From Jan 1, 2017 

onwards, RBI guidelines mandate computation of LCR on daily average basis, which hitherto were measured on 

month-ends. The following table presents the minimum LCR to be maintained, in terms of RBI guidelines.

Effective from Jan 1, 2017 Jan 1, 2018 Jan 1, 2019

Minimum LCR 80% 90% 100%

  The Bank maintains HQLA in terms of Cash, unencumbered excess SLR, proportion of statutory SLR as allowed 

by RBI, excess statutory cash reserve and high rated corporate bonds issued by entities other than financial 

institutions. For the purposes of LCR computation, the Bank has considered all inflows and outflows that may 

have a quantifiable impact under the liquidity stress scenario.
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7. Exposures

 7.1 Exposure to Real Estate Sector:

(` in crores)

No. Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

(a) Direct exposure

(i) Residential Mortgages -of which housing loans eligible for 

inclusion in priority sector advance ` 155.85 crores (Previous year 

` 71.22 crores)

9,367.74 7,735.55

(ii) Commercial Real Estate 12,376.32 11,008.45

(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other 

securitised exposures:

 Residential - -

 Commercial Real Estate - -

(b) Indirect exposure

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing 

Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)

3,187.56 3,167.29

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 24,931.62 21,911.29

  As per RBI circular FIDD.CO.Plan.BC.54/04.09.01/2014-15 dated April 23, 2015, FIDD.CO.Plan.1/04.09.01/2016-17 

dated July 7, 2016 limit for housing loan under priority sector has been changed from ` 25 lakhs to ` 28 lakhs.

 7.2 Exposure to Capital Market:

(` in crores)

No. Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

(i) Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible 

debentures and units of equity oriented mutual funds the corpus 

of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt

340.87 382.93

(ii) Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities 

or on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including 

IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and 

units of equity-oriented mutual funds

- -

(iii) Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible 

bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented 

mutual funds are taken as primary security

203.07 154.53

(iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the 

collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible 

debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds, i.e. where 

the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / 

convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds 

does not fully cover the advances

5,092.19 3,681.92

(v) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees 

issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers

1,716.24 1,789.29
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No. Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

(vi) Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares 

/ bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for 

meeting promoter’s contribution to the equity of new companies 

in anticipation of raising resources

- -

(vii) Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows/issues - -

(viii) Underwriting commitments taken up by the banks in respect 

of primary issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible 

debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds

- -

(ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading - -

(x) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and 

unregistered)

99.42 67.50

(xi) Irrevocable payment commitments issued by custodian banks in 

favour of stock exchanges

- -

Total Exposure to Capital Market 7,451.79 6,076.17

  During the year ended March 31, 2018, no debt has been converted to equity as a part of strategic debt 

restructuring which is exempt from CME limit (Previous year ` 51.29 crores).

 7.3 Risk Category-wise exposure to country risk

(` in crores)

Risk category March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Exposure (net) Provision held Exposure (net) Provision held

Insignificant 3,121.26 6.35 1,482.96 -

Low 5,054.25 - 3,529.42 -

Moderate 208.61 - 111.34 -

High 248.86 - 350.13 -

Very High 376.03 - 289.94 -

Restricted 112.26 - 37.00 -

Off Credit 72.37 - 45.40 -

Total 9,193.64 6.35 5,846.19 -

 7.4 Single borrower limit and Group Borrower Limit

  During the year ended March 31, 2018, the Bank’s credit exposures to single borrowers and group borrowers were 

within the prudential limits prescribed by RBI.

  During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Bank’s credit exposures to single borrowers and group borrowers 

were within the prudential limits prescribed by RBI except in case of Vodafone Mobile Services Limited / Vodafone 

India Limited, where the single borrower limit was exceeded. This exposure has been approved by the Board of 

Directors of the Bank as it was within the prudential limit.

 7.5 Unsecured advances

  The Bank has not extended any project advances where the collateral is an intangible asset such as a charge over 

rights, licenses, authorizations, etc. (Previous year Nil). The Unsecured Advances of ` 29,396.20 crores (Previous 

year ` 14,291.58 crores) as disclosed in Schedule 9B (iii) are without any collateral or security.

 7.6 Details of factoring exposure

  The factoring exposure of the Bank as at March 31, 2018 is ` 46.59 crores (Previous year Nil).
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8. Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

 8.1 Concentration of Deposits

(` in crores)

Particulars As at

March 31, 2018

As at

March 31, 2017

Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 36,058.36 31,611.66

Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to Total Deposits 

of the Bank

23.78% 24.98%

 8.2 Concentration of Advances

(` in crores)

Particulars As at

March 31, 2018

As at

March 31, 2017

Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 37,343.05 31,127.56

Percentage of Advances of twenty largest borrowers to Total  

Advances of the Bank

15.32% 15.26%

  Advances are computed as per the definition of Credit Exposure including derivatives as prescribed in Master 

Circular on Exposure Norms DBR.No.Dir.BC.12/13.03.00/2015-16 dated July 1, 2015.

 8.3 Concentration of Exposures

(` in crores)

Particulars As at

March 31, 2018

As at

March 31, 2017

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 37,343.05 32,538.76

Percentage of Exposure of twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total 

Exposure of the Bank on borrowers / customers

14.79% 15.58%

  Exposures are computed as per the definition in Master Circular on Exposure Norms DBR. No. Dir.

BC.12/13.03.00/2015-16 dated July 1, 2015 and includes credit, derivatives and investment exposure.

 8.4 Concentration of NPAs

(` in crores)

Particulars As at

March 31, 2018

As at

March 31, 2017

Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 417.54 171.25

  Note: Exposure includes Funded Exposure (net of unrealised interest).
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 8.5 Intra-Group Exposure

(` in crores)

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2018

As at 

March 31, 2017

Total amount of intra-group exposure - -

Total amount of top-20 intra-group exposure - -

Percentage of Intra Group Exposure to Total Exposure of the Bank on 

borrower/ Customer

- -

Details of Breach of Limit on Intra Group exposure and Regulatory 

action thereon, if any

- -

 8.6 Priority Sector Lending Certificates (PSLC):

(` in crores)

No. Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

PSLC Sold PSLC Purchase PSLC Sold PSLC Purchase

1 PSLC Agriculture - - - -

2 PSLC Small Farmers / 

Marginal Farmers

- - - -

3 PSLC Micro Enterprises 83.00 - - -

4 PSLC General 900.00 1,000.00 600.25 -

9. Miscellaneous

 9.1 Amount of Provisions for taxation during the year

(` in crores)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Provision for Income Tax 1,900.02 1,681.33

Deferred tax credit (25.33) (189.54)

Total 1,874.69 1,491.79

 9.2 Penalties imposed by RBI

  During the year ended March 31, 2018, RBI imposed a penalty of ` 3.00 crores for non-adherence to Income 

Recognition and Asset Classification norms and regulatory restriction pertaining to non-fund based facilities in 

exercise of powers vested under Section 47(A)(1)(c) read with section 46(4) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. 

This penalty was duly paid by the Bank.

  During the year ended March 31, 2017, RBI imposed a penalty of ̀  2.00 crores for violation of regulatory directions 

/ instructions / guidelines, among other things on KYC norms, in exercise of powers vested under Section 47(A)(1)

(c) read with section 46(4) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. This penalty was duly paid by the Bank.

 9.3 Fixed Assets

 9.3.1 Cost of premises includes ` 4.09 crores (Previous year ` 4.09 crores) in respect of properties for which execution 

of documents and registration formalities are in progress. Of these properties, the Bank has not obtained full 

possession of one property having written down value of ` 1.51 crores (Previous year ` 1.56 crores) and has filed 

a suit for the same.
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 9.3.2 Computer software

  The movement in fixed assets capitalized as computer software is given below:

(` in crores)

Particulars 31 March, 2018 31 March, 2017

At cost at the beginning of the year 338.52 280.48

Addition during the year 51.19 61.10

Deduction during the year - 3.06

Accumulated depreciation as at the end of the year 260.50 207.26

Closing balance as at the end of the year 129.21 131.26

Depreciation charge for the year 53.24 47.20

 9.4 Contingent Liabilities

  The Bank’s pending litigations include claims against the Bank by clients and counterparties and proceedings 

pending with tax authorities. The Bank has reviewed its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately 

provided for where provisions are required, and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its 

financial statements. Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts comprise of tax demands of ` 176.28 

crores (Previous year ` 165.18 crores) in respect of which the Bank is in appeal, and legal cases sub judice of 

` 300.24 crores (Previous year ` 357.50 crores). The Bank carries a provision of ` 4.52 crores (Previous year ` 4.48 

crores) against cases sub judice. The amount of contingent liabilities is based on management’s estimate, and no 

significant liability is expected to arise out of the same.

 9.5 The Bank has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (including derivative contracts) are assessed 

for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Bank has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision 

as required under any law / accounting standards for material foreseeable losses on such long term contracts 

(including derivative contracts) has been made in the books of account.

 9.6 Overseas Asset, NPAs and Revenue

  During the year, the Bank earned a revenue of ` 116.78 crores through overseas assets (Previous year ` 82.01 

crores). The overseas assets as at March 31, 2018 amounted to ` 4,396.30 crores (Previous year ` 1,717.17 crores) 

and there were no NPA (Previous year Nil). Assets for this purpose is defined to include client advances.

 9.7 The Bank does not have any Off-Balance Sheet SPVs (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting 

standards) (Previous year Nil).

 9.8 Transfers to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEAF)

(` in crores)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 18.95 15.59

Add: Amounts transferred to DEAF during the year 5.10 3.71

Less: Amounts reimbursed by DEAF towards claims 0.42 0.35

Closing balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 23.63 18.95

 9.9 There is no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the Bank (Previous year Nil).
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 9.10 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

  The Bank has spent an amount of ` 20.47 crores (Previous year ` 33.81 crores) towards CSR initiatives through 

various projects in the areas of Rural Development and Inclusiveness, Environment Sustainability, Preventive 

Healthcare, Education and Sports. Of the total CSR spends, an amount of ` 0.13 crores (Previous year ` 21.16 

crores) was incurred towards capital expenditure.

 9.11 Drawdown from Reserves

  During the year ended March 31, 2018 and year ended March 31, 2017, the Bank did not draw down from the 

reserves.

 9.12 Credit Default Swaps

  The Bank has not undertaken any transactions in Credit Default Swaps (CDS) during the year ended March 31, 

2018 (Previous year Nil).

 9.13 In March 2017, the Bank made an announcement of entering into an agreement with Infrastructure Leasing 

and Financial Services Ltd., (IL&FS) the Promoter shareholders of IL&FS Securities Services Ltd., (ISSL) to acquire 

100% of ISSL. RBI has granted approval for the proposed acquisition. This transaction is conditional on definitive 

agreements and other regulatory approvals, and thus, does not have any bearing on the current financial results 

or the financial position of the Bank as at March 31, 2018.

 9.14 On October 14, 2017, the Board of Directors of the Bank and Bharat Financial Inclusion Limited (BFIL), at their 

respective meetings, approved a merger of BFIL with the Bank in an all-stock transaction through a Composite 

Scheme of Arrangement. The Competition Commission of India has approved the proposed Scheme and RBI 

has accorded their “No Objection” for the merger. The incorporation of the wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank 

is subject to the approval of the RBI, which is pending. The Scheme is pending approval from the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (SEBI) / stock exchanges, the respective shareholders and creditors of the Bank and BFIL, 

the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), and is subject to compliance with the conditions specified by RBI. As 

such, the proposed transaction does not have any impact on the current financial results or the financial position 

of the Bank as at March 31, 2018.

 9.15 Movement in depreciation of Fixed Assets

(` in crores)

Depreciation 2017-18 2016-17

Premises

At the beginning of the year 74.96 66.72

Transferred from Revaluation Reserve 6.13 6.18

Charge for the year 2.05 2.06

Deduction during the year 0.99 -

Depreciation to date 82.15 74.96

Other Fixed Assets

At the beginning of the year 940.21 771.09

Charge for the year 209.59 188.64

Deduction during the year 24.52 19.52

Depreciation to date 1,125.28 940.21
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 9.16 Bancasurrance business

  Commission, Exchange and Brokerage in Schedule 14 include the following fees earned on Bancassurance 

business:

(` in crores)

Particulars March 2018 March 2017

For selling life insurance policies 93.60 70.56

For selling non-life insurance policies 96.10 58.86

For selling mutual fund products 155.28 82.50

Others - -

Total 344.98 211.92

10. Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS)

 10.1 The shareholders of the Bank approved Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS 2007) on September 18, 2007. 

ESOS enables the Board and the Compensation Committee to grant such number of stock options of the Bank 

not exceeding 7% of the aggregate number of issued and paid up equity shares of the Bank, in line with the 

guidelines issued by the SEBI. The options vest within a maximum period of five years from the date of grant of 

option. The exercise price for each grant is decided by the Compensation Committee, which is normally based on 

the latest available closing price. Upon vesting, the options have to be exercised within a maximum period of five 

years. The stock options are equity settled where the employees will receive one equity share per stock option.

  Pursuant to the ESOS 2007 scheme, the Compensation Committee of the Bank has granted 4,16,33,300 options as 

set out below:

Sr. No. Date of grant No of options Range of exercise price (`)

1 18-Jul-08 1,21,65,000 48.00 - 50.60

2 17-Dec-08 34,56,000 38.95

3 05-May-09 8,15,500 44.00

4 31-Aug-09 3,18,500 100.05

5 28-Jan-10 7,47,000 48.00 - 140.15

6 28-Jun-10 13,57,450 196.50

7 14-Sep-10 73,500 236.20

8 26-Oct-10 1,43,500 274.80

9 17-Jan-11 25,00,000 228.70

10 07-Feb-11 20,49,000 95.45 - 220.45

11 24-Jun-11 21,54,750 253.60

12 16-Aug-11 89,500 254.90

13 30-Sep-11 2,61,000 262.25

14 21-Dec-11 9,20,000 231.95

15 29-Feb-12 1,95,000 304.05

16 19-Apr-12 1,40,500 345.60

17 25-May-12 1,34,500 304.55

18 10-Jul-12 2,67,000 343.25
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Sr. No. Date of grant No of options Range of exercise price (`)

19 29-Aug-12 1,14,000 319.05

20 10-Oct-12 23,500 365.75

21 09-Jan-13 30,000 433.75

22 18-Apr-13 12,500 419.60

23 20-Jun-13 1,75,000 478.45

24 18-Jul-13 18,35,000 453.90

25 23-Sep-13 75,000 411.50

26 29-Oct-13 22,000 412.25

27 29-Jan-14 7,67,500 300.00 - 389.85

28 25-Mar-14 1,76,500 490.30

29 15-May-14 65,500 537.05

30 02-Jun-14 32,69,500 533.95

31 09-Jul-14 33,000 551.10

32 13-Oct-14 74,500 623.25

33 17-Jan-15 47,500 831.85

34 23-Feb-15 48,000 876.80

35 30-Mar-15 11,000 880.75

36 22-May-15 52,600 848.20

37 24-Jul-15 16,30,000 949.80

38 21-Sep-15 1,93,000 918.65

39 04-Nov-15 93,500 911.85

40 12-Jan-16 10,33,500 886.75 – 936.75

41 12-May-16 13,500 1,053.75

42 11-Jul-16 25,000 1,126.70

43 23-Aug-16 2,76,000 1,186.75

44 10-Oct-16 18,51,000 1,220.85

45 16-Nov-16 33,500 1,093.10

46 27-Jan-17 21,500 1,265.40

47 24-Mar-17 49,000 1,383.90

48 19-Apr-17 16,000 1,431.75

49 09-May-17 69,000 1,424.85

50 19-Jun-17 38,500 1,498.90

51 11-Jul-17 35,000 1,560.35

52 12-Oct-17 69,000 1,717.25

53 11-Jan-18 43,000 1,734.10

54 27-Mar-18 15,23,000 1,759.75
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 10.2 Recognition of expense

  The Bank follows the intrinsic value method to recognize employee costs relating to ESOS, in accordance with 

the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments issued by the ICAI. Excess of fair market 

price over the exercise price of an option at the grant date, is recognised as a deferred compensation cost and 

amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of such options. The compensation so recognised in 

respect of which exercise of options is outstanding, is shown as Employee Stock Options Outstanding on the face 

of the Balance Sheet.

  The fair market price is the latest available closing price on the stock exchange on which the shares of the Bank 

are listed, prior to the date of the meeting of the Compensation Committee in which stock options are granted. 

Since shares are listed on more than one stock exchange, the exchange where the Bank’s shares have been traded 

highest on the said date is considered for this purpose.

 10.3 Stock option activity under the scheme during the year

Particulars No. of options Weighted 

average exercise 

price (`)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,17,32,111 657.14

Granted during the year 17,93,500 1,732.20

Forfeited / surrendered during the year 1,31,275 985.11

Exercised during the year 20,74,482 491.52

Expired during the year 2,980 253.41

Outstanding at the end of the year 1,13,16,874 854.18

Options exercisable at the end of the year 71,11,745 548.15

  The weighted average price of options exercised during the year is ` 1,626.08.

  Following table summarizes the information about stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2018:

Sr. 

No.

Date of grant Exercise Price Number of shares 

arising out of options

Weighted average life 

of options (in years)

1 28-Jan-10 A 48.00 4,00,000 0.84

2 28-Jun-10 196.50 18,662 0.24

3 17-Jan-11 228.70 8,40,000 0.82

4 07-Feb-11 A 220.45 1,07,500 0.86

5 24-Jun-11 253.60 61,333 0.88

6 21-Dec-11 231.95 4,03,000 1.36

7 29-Feb-12 304.05 67,000 1.43

8 19-Apr-12 345.60 39,500 1.70

9 25-May-12 304.55 5,675 1.16

10 10-Jul-12 343.25 1,47,400 1.79

11 10-Oct-12 365.75 3,750 1.88

12 20-Jun-13 478.45 28,500 3.12

13 18-Jul-13 453.90 2,50,630 2.60

14 23-Sep-13 411.50 10,000 2.49

15 29-Oct-13 412.25 3,560 3.58

16 29-Jan-14 389.85 9,100 3.40
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Sr. 

No.

Date of grant Exercise Price Number of shares 

arising out of options

Weighted average life 

of options (in years)

17 29-Jan-14 A 300.00 7,00,000 2.84

18 25-Mar-14 490.30 1,25,510 3.00

19 15-May-14 537.05 8,765 3.58

20 02-Jun-14 533.95 18,08,320 3.30

21 09-Jul-14 551.10 1,700 4.28

22 13-Oct-14 623.25 23,865 3.72

23 17-Jan-15 831.85 38,150 3.84

24 23-Feb-15 876.80 1,040 4.56

25 30-Mar-15 880.75 9,000 4.01

26 22-May-15 848.20 41,114 4.27

27 24-Jul-15 949.80 10,97,095 4.50

28 21-Sep-15 918.65 70,760 5.27

29 04-Nov-15 911.85 61,040 4.68

30 12-Jan-16 936.75 3,500 4.80

31 12-Jan-16 886.75 10,00,000 4.80

32 12-May-16 1,053.75 8,510 5.25

33 11-Jul-16 1,126.70 22,420 5.41

34 23-Aug-16 1,186.75 2,04,340 5.65

35 10-Oct-16 1,220.85 18,17,340 5.56

36 16-Nov-16 1,093.10 23,270 6.09

37 27-Jan-17 1,265.40 19,025 5.97

38 24-Mar-17 1,383.90 49,000 6.00

39 19-Apr-17 1,431.75 16,000 6.07

40 09-May-17 1,424.85 69,000 6.12

41 19-Jun-17 1,498.90 38,500 6.23

42 11-Jul-17 1,560.35 35,000 6.29

43 12-Oct-17 1,717.25 69,000 6.55

44 11-Jan-18 1,734.10 43,000 6.80

45 27-Mar-18 1,759.75 15,17,000 7.00

 10.4 Fair value methodology:

  The fair value of options granted during the year has been estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes 

option pricing model with the following assumptions:

Particulars 2017-18

Average dividend yield 0.30 – 0.38%

Expected volatility 25.60 – 28.94%

Risk free interest rates 6.54 – 7.23%

Expected life of options (in years) 4.52

  Expected volatility is a measure of the amount by which the equity share price is expected to fluctuate during a 

period. The measure of volatility used in Black-Scholes option pricing model is the annualized standard deviation 

of the continuously compounded rates of return on the share over a period of time. Expected volatility has been 

computed by considering the historical data on daily volatility in the closing equity share price on the National 

Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE), over a prior period equivalent to the expected life of the options, till the 

date of the grant.
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  The stock-based compensation cost calculated as per the intrinsic value method for the year ended March 31, 2018 

is ` 1.21 crores (Previous year ` 3.29 crores). Had the Bank adopted the Black-Scholes model based fair valuation, 

compensation cost for the year ended March 31, 2018, would have increased by ` 68.81 crores (Previous year 

` 70.05 crores) and the proforma profit after tax would have been lower by ` 44.99 crores (Previous year ` 45.80 

crores). On a proforma basis, the basic and diluted earnings per share would have been as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31,2017

Proforma basis

Basic earnings per share ` 59.44 47.29

Diluted earnings per share ` 58.82 46.80

  The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year 2017-18 is ` 593.37 (Previous year ` 441.07).

11. Disclosures – Accounting Standards

 11.1 Employee Benefits (AS-15)

  Gratuity:

  Gratuity is a defined benefit plan. The Bank has obtained qualifying insurance policies from IRDA approved 

insurance companies. The following table presents a summary of the components of net expenses recognised 

in the Profit and Loss account and funded status and amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet, on the basis of 

actuarial valuation.

(` in crores)

Sr. 

No.

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Changes in the present value of the obligation

1 Opening balance of Present Value of Obligation 75.31 61.67

2 Interest Cost 5.05 4.30

3 Current Service Cost 16.44 12.71

4 Benefits Paid (6.40) (7.44)

5 Actuarial loss / (gain) on Obligation (0.92) 4.07

6 Closing balance of Present Value of Obligation 89.48 75.31

Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of the fair 

value of the Plan Assets

1 Opening balance of Fair value of Plan Assets 81.53 65.34

2 Adjustment to Opening Balance 0.66 0.57

3 Expected Return on Plan assets 6.54 5.10

4 Expenses - (0.33)

5 Contributions 15.51 17.07

6 Benefits Paid (6.40) (7.44)

7 Actuarial gain / (loss) on Plan Assets (4.32) 1.22

8 Closing balance of Fair Value of Plan Assets 93.52 81.53
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Sr. 

No.

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Profit and Loss – Expenses

1 Current Service Cost 16.44 12.71

2 Interest Cost 5.05 4.30

3 Expected Return on Plan assets (6.54) (5.10)

4 Expenses - 0.33

5 Net Actuarial loss recognised in the year 3.40 2.86

6 Expenses recognised in the Profit and Loss account 18.35 15.10

Funded status 100 % insurance 

managed funds

100 % insurance 

managed funds

Actuarial Assumptions

1 Discount Rate 7.55% 7.00%

2 Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets 6.50% 7.60%

3 Expected Rate of Salary Increase 5.00% 5.00%

4 Employee Attrition Rate

- Past Service 0 to 5 years 30.00% 30.00%

- Past Service above 5 years 0.50% 0.50%

  Estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion 

and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

  Experience Adjustment

(` in crores)

Particulars March  

31, 2018

March  

31, 2017

March  

31, 2016

March  

31, 2015

March  

31, 2014

Defined Benefit Obligations 89.48 75.31 61.67 46.38 34.36

Plan Assets 93.52 81.53 65.34 49.58 34.36

Surplus / (Deficit) 4.04 6.21 3.67 3.20 -

Experience Adjustments on Plan Liabilities 0.92 (4.07) (7.60) (4.25) 1.63

Experience Adjustments on Plan Assets (4.32) 1.22 (0.80) (0.35) (1.72)

  Contributions expected to be paid to the plan during the annual period beginning after the Balance Sheet date is 

` 28 crores (Previous year ` 24 crores).

  Provident Fund

  The guidance on implementing AS 15 Employee Benefits (revised 2005) issued by the Accounting Standards Board 

of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India states that employer established provident funds which require 

interest shortfalls to be recompensed are to be considered as defined benefit plans.
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  The details of the fund and plan assets position as at March 31, 2018, are as follows:

(` in crores)

Assets / Liabilities March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Present value of Interest Rate guarantee on Provident Fund 0.99 1.20

Present value of Total Obligation 165.01 143.41

Fair value of Plan Assets 164.86 143.08

Net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet (0.15) (0.33)

Assumptions

Normal Retirement age 60 years 60 years

Expected guaranteed interest on PF in future 8.55% 8.65%

Discount rate 7.55% 7.00%

Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years) 7.02-8.60 6.04-8.07

Benefit on normal retirement Accumulated 

account balance 

with interest rate 

equal to or more 

than EPFO Rate

Accumulated 

account balance 

with interest rate 

equal to or more 

than EPFO Rate

Benefit on early retirement / withdrawal / resignation Same as normal 

retirement 

benefit

Same as normal 

retirement 

benefit

Benefit on death in service Same as normal 

retirement 

benefit

Same as normal 

retirement 

benefit
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  11.2 Segment Reporting (AS - 17)

   The Bank operates in four business segments, viz. Treasury, Corporate / Wholesale Banking, Retail Banking 

and Other Banking Operations. There are no significant residual operations carried by the Bank.

  Business Segments:

(` in crores)

Business Segment Treasury Corporate/ 

Wholesale Banking

Retail Banking Other Banking 

Operation

Total

Particulars 31/03/18 31/03/17 31/03/18 31/03/17 31/03/18 31/03/17 31/03/18 31/03/17 31/03/18 31/03/17

Revenue 4,095.20 3,490.63 7,036.38 6,311.25 11,779.15 9,608.76 72.75 40.81 22,983.48 19,451.45

Inter Segment Revenue (952.63) (874.29)

Total Income 22,030.85 18,577.16

Result 605.79 707.61 2,124.05 1,778.17 4,112.51 3,142.58 25.40 13.35 6,867.75 5,641.71

Unallocated Expenses (211.64) (190.70)

Operating Profit 6,656.11 5,451.01

Provisions and 

Contingencies

(other than tax) (1,175.43) (1,091.33)

Tax Expenses (1,874.69) (1,491.79)

Extraordinary profit/ loss - -

Net Profit 3,605.99 2,867.89

Other Information:

Segment Assets 56,969.78 45,131.28 68,167.50 54,185.90 86,296.31 71,820.77 - - 2,11,433.59 1,71,137.95

Unallocated Assets 10,192.57 7,510.46

Total Assets 2,21,626.16 1,78,648.41

Segment Liabilities 38,717.43 23,001.05 67,234.30 61,913.39 85,833.83 65,901.83 - - 1,91,785.56 1,50,816.27

Unallocated Liabilities 29,840.60 27,832.14

Total Liabilities 2,21,626.16 1,78,648.41

  Note:

  Fixed Assets, tax paid in advance and tax deducted at source (net of provisions), stationery and stamps, non-

banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims, and others which cannot be allocated to any segments, have 

been classified as unallocated assets; Depreciation on Fixed Assets has been classified as unallocated expenses. 

The unallocated liabilities include share capital, employee stock option outstanding, reserves and surplus, 

proposed dividend and others.

  Geographic Segments:

  The business operations of the Bank are largely concentrated in India. Activities outside India are restricted 

to resource mobilization in the international markets and lending to a few overseas entities through the IFSC 

Banking Unit at the GIFT City Gujarat. Since the Bank does not have material earnings emanating from foreign 

operations, the Bank is considered to operate only in domestic segment.
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 11.3 Related party transactions (AS - 18)

  The following is the information on transactions with related parties:

  Key Management Personnel

  Mr. Romesh Sobti, Managing Director

  Associates

  IndusInd Marketing and Financial Services Private Limited

  Subsidiaries

  The Bank does not have any subsidiary. ALF Insurance Services Private Limited was an erstwhile subsidiary that 

went into a voluntary winding up. On February 24, 2016 the liquidator had repaid the entire share capital, and vide 

an order issued by the High Court of Madras on June 14, 2016 it has been liquidated pursuant to the voluntary 

winding up and the name has been struck off the Companies Register.

  In accordance with RBI guidelines, details pertaining to the related party transactions have not been provided as 

there is only one related party in each of the above categories.

 11.4 Operating Leases (AS - 19)

  The Bank has taken a number of premises on operating lease for branches, offices, ATMs and residential premises 

for staff. The Bank has not given any assets on operating lease. The details of maturity profile of future operating 

lease payments are given below:

(` in crores)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Future lease rentals payable as at the end of the year:

- Not later than one year 325.04 277.25

- Later than one year but not later than five years 928.41 950.16

- Later than five years 326.12 349.00

Total of minimum lease payments recognised in the Profit and Loss 

Account for the year

280.11 243.84

Total of future minimum sub-lease payments expected to be received 

under non-cancellable sub-lease

- -

Sub-lease payments recognised in the Profit and Loss account for the 

year

- -

  The Bank has not sub-leased any of the properties taken on lease. There are no provisions relating to contingent 

rent.

  The terms of renewal and escalation clauses are those normally prevalent in similar agreements. There are no 

undue restrictions or onerous clauses in the agreements.
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 11.5 Earnings per share (AS - 20)

  Details pertaining to earnings per share as per AS 20 are as under:

Particulars For the Year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Net Profit after tax (` in crores) 3,605.99 2,867.89

Basic weighted average number of equity shares 59,90,63,006 59,66,99,170

Diluted weighted average number of equity shares 60,53,75,114 60,29,85,746

Nominal value of Equity Shares (`) 10 10

Basic Earnings per Share (`) 60.19 48.06

Diluted Earnings per Share (`) 59.57 47.56

 11.6 Deferred Tax (AS - 22)

  The major components of deferred tax assets / liabilities are as under:

(` in crores)

Particulars March 31, 2018

Deferred Tax

March 31, 2017

Deferred Tax

Timing difference on account of Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Difference between depreciation as per the books of 

account and depreciation under the Income Tax Act, 1961

- 16.68 - 33.35

Difference between Provisions for doubtful debts and 

advances and amount allowable under Section 36(1)(viia) 

of the Income Tax Act, 1961

597.72 - 530.93 -

Difference between income as per the books of account 

and income offered under the Income Tax Act, 1961

- 252.84 - 177.93

Others 49.60 - 32.82 -

Sub-total 647.32 269.52 563.75 211.28

Net closing balance carried to the Balance Sheet 

(included in Sch. 11 – Others)

377.80 352.47

12. Additional Disclosures

 12.1 Provisions and Contingencies charged to the Profit and Loss account for the year consist of:

(` in crores)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Depreciation on Investments 120.87 31.36

Provision for non-performing assets including bad debts written off 

(net of write backs)

900.90 704.76

Income Tax / Deferred Tax (Refer Note 9.1) 1,874.69 1,491.79

Other Provision and Contingencies (includes floating provision, 

provision towards standard assets and others)

153.66 355.22

Total 3,050.12 2,583.13
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 12.2 Movement in provisions

  a) Movement in provision for credit card and debit card reward points

(` in crores)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

Opening provision for Reward Points 22.80 16.07

Provision for Reward Points made during the year 34.52 25.40

Utilisation / write back of provision for Reward Points (26.35) (18.67)

Effect of change in rate for accrual of Reward Points - -

Closing provision for Reward Points 30.97 22.80

  b) Provision pertaining to fraud accounts:

(` in crores)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

Number of frauds reported 32 24

Amount involved in frauds 118.19 2.90

Provisions made during the year 101.42 1.69

Amount of unamortised provision debited from “other reserves” as at 

the end of the year

71.52 -

  In respect of two borrower accounts where fraud was detected, in accordance with the RBI circular DBR.No.BP.

BC.92/21.04.048/2015-16 dated April 18, 2016, the Bank opted to make the provision over four quarters. 

Accordingly, an amount of ` 71.52 crores remaining un-provided at the end of the year has been debited to 

Balance in Profit and Loss Account on March 31, 2018.

 12.3 Disclosure relating to Complaints

  A. (i)  Customer complaints (other than complaints relating to ATM transactions):

No. Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

(a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 2,009 448

(b) No. of complaints received during the year 46,223 36,079

(c) No. of complaints redressed during the year 47,498 34,518

(d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 734 2,009

   (ii)  Customer complaints relating to transactions on the Bank’s ATMs:

No. Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

(a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 20 7

(b) No. of complaints received during the year 1,491 546

(c) No. of complaints redressed during the year 1,497 533

(d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 14 20
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   (iii)  Customer complaints relating to transactions on other banks’ ATMs:

No. Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

(a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 55 -

(b) No. of complaints received during the year 414 353

(c) No. of complaints redressed during the year 465 298

(d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 4 55

   (iv)  Customer complaints [Total of (i)+(ii)+(iii)]:

No. Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

(a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 2,084 455

(b) No. of complaints received during the year 48,128 36,978

(c) No. of complaints redressed during the year 49,460 35,349

(d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 752 2084

  B. Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman:

No. Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

(a) No. of unimplemented Awards at the beginning of the year - -

(b) No. of Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman during the 

year

- -

(c) No. of Awards implemented during the year - -

(d) No. of unimplemented Awards at the end of the year - -

  (Compiled by management and relied upon by auditors)

 12.4 Proposed Dividend

  The Board of Directors, in their meeting held on April 19, 2018, have proposed a final dividend of ` 7.50 per equity 

share amounting to ` 542.70 crores, inclusive of corporate dividend tax. The proposal is subject to the approval of 

shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. This proposed dividend is not recognised as a liability on March 31, 

2018 and accordingly, the said amount of ` 542.70 crores has not been considered as an appropriation from the 

Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2018.

  Dividend for the year ended March 31, 2017, paid during the year pursuant to the approval of the shareholders 

at the 23rd Annual General Meeting, at the rate of ` 6 per equity share amounting to ` 432.24 crores (including 

corporate dividend tax), has been considered as an appropriation from the Profit and Loss Account.

 12.5 Letters of Comfort

  The Bank has not issued any letters of comfort during the year ended March 31, 2018 (Previous year Nil).

 12.6 Disclosure on Remuneration

  Nomination and Remuneration Committee

  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) presently comprises four members, three of whom are 

Independent Directors. On aspects relating to remuneration, the mandate of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee is to establish, implement and maintain remuneration policies, procedures and practices that help 
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to achieve effective alignment between remuneration and risks. The Committee is also mandated to oversee 

framing, implementation and review of the Bank’s Compensation Policy as per RBI guidelines on Compensation 

of Whole Time Directors / Chief Executive Officers / Risk Takers and Control function staff. The Committee is also 

required to ensure that the cost to income ratio of the Bank supports the remuneration expense of the Bank 

consistent with the objective of maintaining sound capital adequacy ratio. The Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee also reviews compensation policies of the Bank with a view to attract, retain and motivate employees.

  Compensation Policy

  The Compensation Policy is formulated by the Board in alignment with the RBI guidelines and covers all 

components of compensation including fixed pay, variable pay, perquisites, retirement benefits as Provident 

Fund and Gratuity, Long term incentive plans and Employee Stock Options.

  The key objectives of the policy are:

  (i) Benchmark employee compensation for various job positions and skills with that of the market.

  (ii) Maintain an optimal balance between fixed and variable pay.

  (iii) Pay for ‘Position, Performance and Person’.

  (iv) Build employee ownership and long term association through long term incentive plans (ESOPs).

  Some of the important features of the Compensation Policy are as follows:

  (i) The Bank has identified “Risk Takers and Risk Controllers” separately. Risk Takers includes all employees in 

Grades Senior Vice President 3 (SVP3) and above belonging to the business line functions of Corporate 

& Commercial Banking Group, Global Markets Group, Transaction Banking Group, Gems and Jewellery 

business, Consumer Banking and Consumer Finance Division, whose functioning and decisioning 

impacts the Bank materially on tangible financial performance aspects of revenues, costs, and profits. 

Risk Controllers are employees in Grades SVP3 and above belonging to the business support functions of 

Operations, Finance & Accounts, Information Technology, Secretarial, Credit, Risk, Financial Restructuring 

& Reconstruction Group, Credit Quality Loan Assurance Review, Human Resources, Inspection and Audit, 

Investor Relations, Marketing, Client Experience and Quality etc., who support the business line functions 

through back office processes and activities and their functioning does not have a revenue impact through 

business generation on the Bank’s financial performance.

  (ii) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will oversee the framing, implementation and review of the 

Compensation Policy.

  (iii) In respect of WTDs / CEO / Risk Takers / Control function staff of the Bank, the Compensation policy provides 

for a reasonable annual increase in fixed pay in line with the market benchmarks. Their individual increments 

are linked to their annual performance rating and increment percentages at various performance rating 

levels, are decided on the basis of the financial performance of the Bank. Exceptions are restricted to a 

select few high performers to reward performance, motivate and retain critical employees.
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  (iv) The quantum of overall variable pay to be disbursed in a year for all eligible employees including the Risk 

Takers and Risk Controllers as defined above would vary from year to year on the basis of the financial 

performance of the Bank measured through various parameters such as Net Interest Margin, Net Interest 

Income, Return on Assets, Profit After Tax and Return on Equity.

  (v) Employee Compensation is linked to performance. Increments and variable pay are linked to their annual 

performance rating. Annual Performance Rating for an employee is arrived on the basis of tangible 

performance against pre–set Key Results Areas (KRAs) / measurable objectives set at the beginning of the 

financial year.

  (vi) The individual variable pay is linked to the annual performance rating, and based on variable pay grids 

that outline variable pay as a percentage of Annual Guaranteed cash at various rating levels for a grade 

band. Exceptional increments and variable pay may be paid to select high performers, but in no case they 

would violate the stipulated RBI guidelines. The Bank also makes a distinction between Risk Takers and Risk 

Controllers and incorporates separate parameters on variable pay for these segments in its Compensation 

Policy.

  (vii) The individual variable pay would not exceed 70% of the fixed pay. Wherever variable pay exceeds a 

substantial portion of fixed pay as defined by the Bank, (currently set at 65% of fixed pay), the variable pay 

will be deferred over a period of 3 years in a ratio to be decided by the management in accordance with the 

RBI guidelines.

  (viii) The Bank will implement malus / claw-back arrangements with the concerned employees in case of 

deferred variable pay as defined above. The criteria would be negative contributions to the bank and/or 

relevant line of business in any year. As applicable, malus arrangement would lay down policies to adjust 

deferred remuneration before vesting and claw-back arrangement would lay down policies to adjust 

deferred remuneration after vesting.

  (ix) The Compensation Policy does not provide for guaranteed bonus or sign on bonus in cash. However, in case 

of select critical hires, sign on bonus can be granted in form of pre-hiring ESOPs (a one-time grant made at 

the time of joining). The Compensation Policy does not provide for severance pay for any employee of the 

Bank, irrespective of the reasons for severance.

  (x) Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Gratuity are as per the Bank’s HR policies which are 

in line with the statutory norms.

  (xi) Perquisites are laid down in HR Policies of the Bank.

  (xii) At present, the Bank uses cash based form of variable compensation. Cash based form of variable 

compensation is easy to administer and leads to an instant reward to the concerned employees.

  (xiii) ESOPs do not form a part of the variable pay and are kept outside the computation of total compensation 

of an employee. They are very selectively granted to attract and retain talent. ESOPs are not granted with a 

defined periodicity. ESOP grant criteria include grade of the employee, criticality of the position in terms of 

business contribution, market value of the position, and performance and behavioural track record of the 

employee.
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 Other Disclosures

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended March 31, 2017

Number of meetings held by 

NRC during the financial year and 

remuneration paid to its members

During the year, five meetings of 

the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee were held. The members 

of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee were paid aggregate 

sitting fees of ` 4,60,000 for the five 

meetings.

During the year, one meeting of the 

HR and Remuneration Committee 

and two meetings of the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee were 

held. The members of the HR and 

Remuneration Committee were paid 

aggregate sitting fees of ` 60,000 

for one meeting. The members of 

the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee were paid aggregate 

sitting fees of ` 1,80,000 for the two 

meetings.

Number of employees having 

received a variable remuneration 

award during the financial year

102 employees belonging to the 

category of WTD / CEO / Risk Takers/

Other Control function staff had 

received a variable remuneration 

award

87 employees belonging to the 

category of WTD / CEO / Risk Takers/

Other Control function staff had 

received a variable remuneration 

award.

Number and total amount of ‘sign 

on’ awards made during the financial 

year

- -

Details of guaranteed bonus if any 

paid as sign on bonus

- -

Details of severance pay in addition 

to the accrued benefits

- -

Total amount of outstanding deferred 

remuneration split into cash, shares 

and share linked instruments and 

other forms

The outstanding deferred 

remuneration is ` 1.86 crores to 

be paid as cash in FY 2018-19 and  

FY 2019-20

The outstanding deferred 

remuneration is ` 1.57 crores to 

be paid as cash in FY 2017-18 and  

FY 2018-19

Total amount of deferred 

remuneration paid out in the financial 

year

The deferred remuneration paid in 

FY18 was ` 1.47 crores

The deferred remuneration paid in 

FY17 was ` 1.29 crores

Breakdown of amount of 

remuneration awards for the financial 

year

Breakup of remuneration awards for 

the 111 employees defined as WTD 

/ CEO / Risk Takers/ Other control 

function staff

Breakup of remuneration awards for 

the 92 employees defined as WTD 

/ CEO / Risk Takers/ Other control 

function staff

(a) Fixed pay -  ` 140.20 crores (a) Fixed pay -  ` 112.78 crores

(b) Variable pay - ` 55.49 crores for  

FY 2016–17

(b) Variable pay - ` 43.64 crores for  

FY 2015–16

(c) Deferred remuneration - ` 1.86 

crores

(c) Deferred remuneration - ` 1.57 

crores

(d)  Non-deferred remuneration -  

` 53.63 crores

(d) Non-deferred remuneration - 

` 42.07 crores
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Particulars Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended March 31, 2017

Total amount of outstanding 

deferred remuneration and retained 

remuneration exposed to ex-post 

explicit and implicit adjustments.

- -

Total amount of reductions during 

the FY due to ex – post explicit 

adjustments

- -

Total amount of reductions during 

the FY due to ex – post implicit 

adjustments

- -

 Disclosure on remuneration to Non-Executive Directors:

 The Non-Executive Directors are paid Sitting Fees for attending meetings of the Board and its Committees at the rate of 

` 1,00,000/- per Board meeting, at the rate of ̀  50,000/- per meeting of the Audit Committee of the Board, and at the rate 

of ` 20,000/- per meeting in respect of all the other Committees. An amount of ` 1.28 crores was paid as sitting fees to 

the Non-Executive Directors during the year ended March 31, 2018 (Previous year ` 1.11 crores). In accordance with RBI 

guidelines and the approval accorded at the 22nd Annual General Meeting, an amount of ` 0.93 crores (Previous year 

` 0.84) has been paid as remuneration to Non-Executive Directors during the year ended March 31, 2018.

13. The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 that came into force from October 2, 2006, provides 

for certain disclosures in respect of Micro, Small and Medium enterprises. There have been no reported cases of delays 

in payments to micro and small enterprises or interest payments due to delays in such payments.

14. In terms of the clarification received from the Reserve Bank of India, the disclosure of details relating to Specified Bank 

Notes (SBNs) as per Notification No. G.S.R. 308(E) dated March 30, 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) 

is not applicable to the banking companies.

15. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date. For INDUSIND BANK LTD.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP R. Seshasayee

Chairman

Romesh Sobti

Managing DirectorChartered Accountants

Firm Registration No : 012754N / N500016

Russell I Parera T. Anantha Narayanan Kanchan Chitale

Partner Director Director

Membership No : 042190

Place  :  Mumbai S. V. Zaregaonkar Haresh Gajwani

Date  :  April 19, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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DISCLOSURES UNDER BASEL III CAPITAL  

REGULATIONS – March 31, 2018

DF-1: Scope of Application

Name of the head of the banking group to which the framework applies: INDUSIND BANK LTD.

(i) Qualitative Disclosures:

 IndusInd Bank Limited (‘the Bank’) is a commercial bank, incorporated on January 31, 1994. The Bank does not have any 

subsidiary as on March 31, 2018 and the CRAR is computed based on the financial position of the Bank as a standalone 

entity.

 a) List of group entities considered for consolidation:

Name of 

the entity/

Country of 

incorporation

Whether 

the entity is 

included under 

accounting 

scope of 

consolidation 

(Yes/No)

Explain the 

method of 

consolidation

Whether 

the entity is 

included under 

regulatory 

scope of 

consolidation 

(Yes/No)

Explain the 

method of 

consolidation

Explain the 

reasons for 

difference in 

the method of 

consolidation

Explain the 

reason if 

consolidated 

under only one 

of the scopes of 

consolidation

IndusInd 

Marketing 

and Financial 

Services 

Private 

Limited, India

Yes Equity 

method 

(under AS 23)

No NA NA The group 

entity, IndusInd 

Marketing 

and Financial 

Services Private 

Limited, is 

an associate 

where the Bank 

holds 30% 

of the equity 

share capital. 

This entity is 

not a financial 

services 

company, 

and hence 

consolidation 

is only for 

accounting 

purposes.

 b) List of group entities not considered for consolidation both under the accounting and regulatory scope of 

consolidation:

Name of 

the entity/

Country of 

incorporation

Principle 

activity of the 

entity

Total balance 

sheet equity 

% of banks 

holding in the 

total equity

Regulatory treatment 

of bank’s investments in 

the capital instruments 

of the entity

Total balance sheet 

assets (as stated in the 

accounting balance 

sheet of the legal entity)

None / NA NA NA NA NA NA

(ii) Quantitative Disclosures:

 c) List of group entities considered for consolidation:

  As mentioned above in Para (i) above, the Bank does not have any subsidiary. However, for the purposes of 

accounting, the Bank prepares Consolidated Financial Statements wherein the financial statements of the Bank 

are consolidated with an associate company, IndusInd Marketing and Financial Services Private Limited.
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 d) There is no capital deficiency in any subsidiary, which is not included in the regulatory scope of consolidation.

 e) The Bank does not have investment in any insurance entities as on March 31, 2018.

 f ) There are no restrictions or impediments on transfer of funds or regulatory capital within the banking group as on 

March 31, 2018.

DF-2 Capital Adequacy

Applicable Regulations:

The Basel III capital regulation has been implemented from April 1, 2013 in India in phases and it will be fully implemented as on 

March 31, 2019. The Basel III Capital Regulations have been consolidated in Master Circular – Basel III Capital Regulations vide 

circular No. DBR.No.BP.BC.1/21.06.201/2015-16 dated July 1, 2015 and revised circular No. DBR.No.BP.BC.83/21.06.201/2015-16 

dated March 1, 2016.

Basel III Capital Regulations:

Basel III Capital regulations continue to be based on three-mutually reinforcing pillars, viz., minimum capital requirements, 

supervisory review of capital adequacy, and market discipline. This circular also prescribes the risk weights for the balance 

sheet assets, non-funded items and other off-balance sheet exposures and the minimum capital funds to be maintained as 

ratio to the aggregate of the risk weighted assets and other exposures, as also, capital requirements in the trading book, on an 

ongoing basis and operational risk.

These guidelines also incorporate instructions regarding the components of capital and capital charge required to be provided 

for by the banks for credit, market and operational risks. It deals with providing explicit capital charge for credit and market 

risk and addresses the issues involved in computing capital charges for interest rate related instruments in the trading book, 

equities in the trading book and foreign exchange risk (including gold and other precious metals) in both trading and banking 

books. Trading book for the purpose of these guidelines includes securities under the Held for Trading category, Available For 

Sale category, open gold position limits, open foreign exchange position limits, trading positions in derivatives, and derivatives 

entered into for hedging trading book exposures.

Basel III capital regulations are being implemented in India with effect from April 1, 2013. In order to ensure smooth migration 

to Basel III without aggravating any near term stress, appropriate transitional arrangements have been made. The transitional 

arrangements for capital ratios began as on April 01, 2013. However, the phasing out of non-Basel III compliant regulatory 

capital instruments began as on January 1, 2013. Capital ratios and deductions from Common Equity will be fully phased-in 

and implemented as on March 31, 2019.

Minimum capital requirements:

The Bank is subject to the capital adequacy guidelines laid down by Reserve Bank of India, which are based on the framework 

of the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision. As per Basel III Capital Regulations, the Bank is required to maintain a 

minimum Capital to Risk Weighted Assets (CRAR) of 10.875% (including Capital Conversion Buffer of 1.875%). The Basel III 

Capital Regulations are implemented effective from April 1, 2013 in a phased manner. The minimum capital required to be 

maintained by the Bank for the period ended March 31, 2018 is 10.875% with minimum Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) of 

7.375% (including CCB).

Besides computing CRAR under the Pillar I requirement, the Bank also periodically undertakes stress testing in various risk 

areas to assess the impact of stressed scenario or plausible events on asset quality, liquidity, interest rate, derivatives and forex 

on its profitability and capital adequacy.

The assessment of future capital needs is effectively done based on the business projections, asset mix, operating environment, 

growth outlook, new business avenues, regulatory changes and risk and return profile of the business segments. The future 

capital requirement is assessed by taking cognizance of all the risk elements viz. Credit, Market and Operational risk and 

mapping these to the respective business segments.



210

Annual Report 2017-18

The Summary of Capital requirements for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk as on March 31, 2018 is 

mentioned below:

Risk Type ` in millions

Capital requirements for Credit Risk 1,30,094

Portfolio Subject to Standardised approach 1,30,094

Securitisation exposures -

Capital requirements for Market Risk 8,790

Standardised Duration Approach

Interest Rate Risk 7078

Foreign Exchange Risk (including gold) 304

Equity Risk 1408

Capital requirements for Operational Risk 16,956

Basic Indicator Approach 16,956

Minimum Capital requirements at 9% 155,840

Minimum CRAR + CCB at 10.875% 1,88,307

Total Capital Funds 260,215

CRAR # 15.03%

# including exposure at IFSC Banking Unit (GIFT City)

Organisation Structure:

Integrated Risk Management: Objectives and Organisation Structure

The Bank has established an Enterprise-wide Risk Management Department, independent of the Business segments, responsible 

for Bank-wide risk management covering Credit risk, Market risk (including ALM) and Operational risk. The Risk Management 

Department focuses on identification, measurement, monitoring and controlling of risks across various segments. The Bank 

has been progressively adopting the best International practices so as to continually reinforce its Risk Management functions.

Organisation Structure: 

The set-up of Risk Management Department is hereunder:

Managing Director

Chief Risk Officer

Head – Risk Mgmt

Credit Risk 

Management

Market Risk 

Management

Operational Risk 

Management

Asset Liability 

Management
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Separate Committees, as specified below, are set up to manage and control various risks:

Bank has articulated various risk policies which specify the risks, controls and measurement techniques. The policies are framed 

keeping risk appetite as the central objective. Against this background, the Bank identifies a number of key risk components. For 

each of these components, the Bank determines a target that represents the Bank’s perception of the component in question.

The risk policies are vetted by the sub-committees, viz. CRMC, MRMC, ALCO, ORMC, etc. and are put forth to RMC, which is 

a sub-committee of the Board. Upon vetting of the policies by RMC, the same are placed for the approval of the Board and 

implemented.

Bank has put in place a comprehensive policy on ICAAP, which presents a holistic view of the material risks faced, control 

environment, risk management processes, risk measurement techniques, capital adequacy and capital planning.

Policies are periodically reviewed and revised to address the changes in the economy / banking sector and Bank’s risk profile. 

Monitoring of various risks is undertaken at periodic intervals and a report is submitted to Top Management / Board.

Credit Risk

Bank manages credit risk comprehensively; both at Transaction level and at Portfolio level. Some of the major initiatives taken 

are listed below :

rating models that are aligned to target segment of the borrowers.

governed by country risk exposure limits in case of international trades.

risk.

  Retail and schematic exposures (which provide wider diversification benefits) account for as much as 45% of the 

total fund-based advances.

  Bank’s corporate exposure is fully diversified over 85 industries, thus insulated/minimised from individual industry 

cycles.

Above initiatives support qualitative business growth while managing inherent risks within the risk appetite.

Market Risk

Key sources of Market risk are Liquidity Risk, Interest Rate Risk, Price Risk and Foreign Exchange Risk. Bank has implemented 

state-of-the-art Treasury and Market Risk Management systems that support robust risk management capabilities and 

facilitates Straight-through Processing.

Market Risk is effectively managed through comprehensive framework which supports various measures such as Mark-to-

Market, Sensitivity analysis, Value-at-Risk and monitoring through operational limits such as stop-loss limits, exposure limits, 

deal-size limits, maturity ladder, etc. Market risk measurement and monitoring is governed through a comprehensive Market 

Risk Management Policy.
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Asset Liability Management (ALM)

Bank’s ALM system supports effective management of liquidity risk and interest rate risk, covering 100% of its assets and 

liabilities.

Liquidity Ratios analysis and Behavioural analysis, with prudential limits for negative gaps in various time buckets.

for Rate Sensitive Gaps, Modified Duration and other risk parameters.

Optimum risk is assumed through duration, to balance between risk containment and profit generation from market 

movements.

ALCO meetings are convened frequently wherein detailed analysis are presented on liquidity position, interest rate risks, 

product mix, business growth v/s budgets, interest rate outlook, which helps to review the business strategies regularly and 

undertake new initiatives.

Operational Risk

Operational Risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems or external events. The 

Operational Risk Management Policy documents the Bank’s approach towards management of operational risk and defines 

roles and responsibilities of various stakeholders within the Bank. Based on this Policy, the Bank has initiated several measures 

to manage Operational Risk. The Bank has put in place a structure to effectively manage operational risk through the formation 

of several internal committees viz. Operational Risk Management Committee, Sub-ORMC, Fraud Risk Management Committee, 

BCP Steering Committee.

Bank has implemented various Operational Risk management tools such as Risk and Control Self-Assessment (RCSA), KRIs 

monitoring and Loss Data collection (Basel 8X7 matrix) including Near Miss Events. Bank weighs each new Product and Process 

enhancements under Operational Risk Assessment Process (ORAP) framework.

The Bank has adopted Business Continuity Policy wherein critical activities, system applications have been identified, recovery 

plan has been put in place for these critical activities and applications to ensure timely recovery of the Bank’s critical operations 

and services in the event of any crisis. Regular tests are carried out to ascertain BCP preparedness. Business Continuity Steering 

Committee comprising of senior functionaries of the Bank monitors BCM framework implementation in the Bank.

As per the RBI guidelines, the Bank is following the Basic Indicator Approach for computing capital for Operational Risk.

Systems Risk

Bank’s Information Security Policy provides security framework upon which all subsequent security efforts are based and 

to guide the development and maintenance of a comprehensive information security program. It deals with security of 

information in various forms like spoken, written, printed and electronic or any other medium and handling of information 

in terms of creation, viewing, transportation, storage or destruction. It contains the principles that direct managerial decision 

making and facilitate secure business operations. It is designed to enable management of the Bank to ensure the security 

of information assets and maintain accountability. It also defines the appropriate and authorized behavior for personnel 

approved to use the Bank’s information assets. The policies and procedures are built around the following principles:

and customers;
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analytics, enterprise BI. Bank has also started aggregating unstructured data like customer IPs, devices ID, and various social/

media in its repository to increase risk management capabilities.

DF-3: Credit Risk: General Disclosures

 “Credit Risk” is defined as the probability / potential that the borrower or counter-party may fail to meet its obligations in 

accordance with agreed terms. It involves inability or unwillingness of a borrower or counter-party to meet commitments 

in relation to lending, trading, hedging, settlement and other financial transactions.

 Credit Risk is made up of two components:

 1. Transaction Risk (or Default Risk), which represents the risk arising from individual credit exposures and

 2. Portfolio Risk, which represents the risk inherent in the portfolio of credit assets (concentration of assets, 

correlation among portfolios, etc.).

 Credit risk is found in a variety of transactions across Bank’s portfolio including not only loans, off balance sheet 

exposures, investments and financial guarantees, but also the risk of a counterparty in a derivative transaction becoming 

unable to meet its obligations. Credit risk constitutes the largest risk to which the Bank is exposed. Bank has adequate 

system support which facilitates credit risk management and measurement across its portfolio. The system support is 

strengthened and expanded as and when new exposures are added to the Bank’s portfolio.

 Bank has articulated comprehensive guidelines for managing credit risk as a part of Credit Risk Policy and related policies 

framework, Bank Risk Policy, Country Risk Policy, Loan Review Policy and Recovery Policy. Credit risk management 

systems used at the Bank have been implemented in accordance with these guidelines and best market practices. Credit 

risk management process focuses on both specific transactions and on groups of specific exposures as portfolios.

Bank’s Credit Risk Policy and related policies and systems are framed to achieve the following key objectives:

 Monitoring concentration risk in particular products, segments, geographies etc., thereby avoiding concentration risk 

from excessive exposures to any particular products, segments, geographies etc.;

 Assisting in building quality credit portfolio and balancing risks and returns in line with Bank’s risk appetite;

 Tracking Credit quality migration;

 Determining how much capital to hold against each class of assets;

 Undertaking Stress testing to evaluate credit portfolio strength;

 To develop greater ability to recognize and avoid potential problems;

 Alignment of Risk Strategy with Business Strategy;

 Adherence to regulatory guidelines.

Credit Risk Management at specific transaction level

The central objective for managing credit risk at each transaction level is development of risk measurement and monitoring 

systems that cover the entire life cycle of the exposure, i.e. opportunity for transaction, assessing the credit risk, granting of 

credit, disbursement and subsequent monitoring, identifying the obligors with emerging credit problems, remedial action in 

the event of credit quality deterioration and repayment or termination of the obligation.

The Credit Policies of the Bank stipulates applicability of various norms for managing credit risk at a specific transaction level 

and more relevant to the target segment of the obligors. It covers all the types of obligors, viz. Corporate, SME, Trader and 

Schematic Loans such as Loan against Property, Business Loan, Retail Agri, LAS, Gold Loan, Home Loan, Personal Loan, etc.
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Major components of Credit Risk and related Policies are mentioned below:

 Transaction with customer/ prospective customer is undertaken with an aim to build long term relationship.

 All the related internal and regulatory guidelines such as KYC norms, RBI prudential norms, etc. are adhered to while 

assessing the credit request of the borrower.

 Credit is granted with due diligence and detailed insight into the customer’s circumstances and of specific assessments 

that provide a context for such credits.

 Facility is granted based on customer’s creditworthiness, capital base or assets to assure that the customer is able to 

substantiate the repayment. Due regard is also placed to the industry in which the customer is operating, the business 

specific risks and management capability and their risk appetite.

 Regular follow-up of overall health of the borrower is undertaken to assess whether the basis of granting credit has 

changed.

 When loans and credits are granted to borrowers falling outside preferred credit rating, the Bank normally obtains 

sufficient collateral. However, collaterals are not the sole criterion for lending, which is generally done based on assessing 

the business viability of the borrower and the adequacy of the expected cash flows.

 Bank has defined exposures limit on the basis of internal risk rating of the borrower.

 Bank is particularly cautious while granting credits to businesses in affected or seasonal industries.

 Bank also grants unsecured credit to borrowers with high standing and low credit risk profile based on detailed financial 

 In terms of Bank’s Country risk Policy, due caution is exercised when assuming risk in countries with an unstable 

economic or political scenario.

Beside the acceptability norms defined in the policies/manual for an individual transaction, Bank has also implemented various 

credit related product programmes which enables efficient appraisal, assessment, delivery, supervision and control of tailor 

made loan products targeted at specific customer segments. Customers covered under Business Banking product programme 

are evaluated using a scoring/rating model developed based on segment specific risk profile.

Consumer Finance Division appraises loan application based on robust set criteria defined in the respective product 

programmes. Further as a mechanism to assess the credit quality, customers are also evaluated through application scoring 

models which are segment specific. Further, post disbursement, the quality of the account is tracked by means of a Behavioral 

score.

Customers under Credit Cards segment are evaluated by means of robust customer selection criteria that include variety of 

factors.

Bank has also put in place a detailed policy for portfolio acquisition which stipulates various criteria for asset selection including 

due diligence, transfer of risks and rewards of the underlying portfolio, credit enhancements, portfolio risk management and 

monitoring in accordance with RBI guidelines.

Credit Approval Committee

In general, the Bank has put in place the principle of ‘Committee’ or ‘Approval Grids’ approach while according sanctions to 

credit proposals. This provides for an unbiased, objective assessment/evaluation of credit proposals. Such Committees include 

atleast one official from an independent department, which has no volume or profits targets to achieve. The official of the 

independent department is a mandatory member of the Credit Committee. The spirit of the credit approving system is that no 

credit proposals are approved or recommended to higher authorities unless all the members of the ‘Committee’ or ‘Approval 

Grids’ agree on the acceptability of the proposal in all respects. In case of disagreement the proposal is referred to next higher 

Committee whose decision to approve or decline with conditions is final.

Individual Powers for small value proposals have been given to senior officials in the Credit Department, who do not have 

volume/ profit targets to achieve. The “Four-eyes” principle is followed in all such cases.
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Following ‘Approval Grids’ are constituted:

 Corporate & Commercial Banking Segment :

  Individual powers (small exposures) to Zonal Heads of Credit, Segment heads of Credit and Head (Corporate 

Credit)

  Corporate Office Credit Committee (COCC)

  Executive Credit Committee (ECC)

 Consumer Banking (CB) Segment (A):

 Scheme of delegation under Consumer Banking Segment includes Vehicle financing, personal loans, housing loans and 

other schematic loans under multi-tier Committee based approach as under:

  Branch Credit Committee – Consumer Banking (BCC – CB)

  Regional Credit Committee – Consumer Banking (RCC - CB)

 

  Executive Credit Committee

 Consumer Banking (CB) Segment (B):

 The scheme of delegation under Consumer Banking Segment includes Business Banking, Loan against Property, 

Business loans, Retail Agri (KCC), Supply Chain Finance and other schematic loans under multi-tier Committee based 

approach as under:

  Joint Sanction on Four Eye Principle

  Zonal Credit Committee ( ZCC)

 

  Executive Credit Committee

defined limit of exposure under the respective product program. These are relatively smaller loans and fully secured by liquid 

collaterals.

Scheme of delegation of power applicable for all business segments are approved by Board of Directors.

The credit proposals which are beyond the delegated powers of ECC are placed to Committee of Directors (COD) for approval.

Risk Classification

Bank monitors the overall health of its customers on an on-going basis to ensure that any signal of weakening of a customer’s 

earnings or liquidity is detected as early as possible. As part of the credit process, customers are classified according to the 

credit quality in terms of internal rating, and the classification is regularly updated on receipt of new information/ changes in 

the factors affecting the position of the customer.

Bank has operationalized following risk rating/ scoring models basis on the target segment of the borrower:



216

Annual Report 2017-18

Customers under Business Banking segment, Retail Agri, Loan against credit card receivables are assessed for credit quality 

using a scoring/rating model. The score serves a measure to categorise the customers into various risk classes which are further 

calibrated to different risk grades. Bank has also implemented rating models for assessing risk under Lease Rental Discounting 

and Warehouse Receipts Financing products.

Rating grades in each rating model, other than the segments driven by product programmes, is on a scale of 1 to 8, which 

are further categorised by assigning +/- modifiers to reflect the relative standing of the borrower within the specific risk 

grade. Model-specific rating grades are named distinctly. Each model-specific rating grade reflects the relative ratings of the 

borrowers under that particular segment. For instance, L4 indicates a superior risk profile of a Large Corporate, when compared 

to another Large Corporate rated L5.

In order to have a common risk yardstick across the Bank, these model specific ratings are mapped to common scale ratings 

which facilitate measurement of risk profile of different segments of borrower by means of common risk ladder.

Various purposes for which the rating/scoring models are used are mentioned hereunder:

 Portfolio Management.

 Efficiency in lending decision.

 To assess the quality of the borrower – single point reference of credit risk of the borrower.

 Preferred rating norms for assuming exposures.

 Prudential ceiling for single borrower exposures – linked to rating.

 Frequency of review of exposures.

 Frequency of internal auditing of exposures.

 To measure the portfolio quality.

 Target for quality of advances portfolio is monitored by way of Weighted Average Credit Rating (WACR).

 Pricing credit.

 Capital allocation (under IRB approaches).

Credit Quality Assurance:

Bank has also adopted Loan Review Mechanism (LRM), which involves independent assessment of quality of an advance, 

effectiveness of loan administration, compliance with internal policies of Bank and regulatory framework and portfolio quality. 

It also helps in tracking weaknesses developing in the account for initiating corrective measures in time. LRM is carried out by 

Credit Quality Assurance team, which is independent of Credit and Business functions.

Credit Risk Management at Portfolio level:

Accumulation of individual exposures leads to portfolio, which creates the possibility of concentration risk. Concentration 

risk, on account of borrowers/ products with similar risk profile, may arise in various forms such as Single Borrower, Group of 

Borrowers, Sensitive Sector, Industry–wise exposure, Unsecured exposure, Rating wise exposure, Off Balance sheet exposure, 

Product wise exposure, etc. Credit risk concentration is addressed by means of structural and prudential limits stipulated in the 

Credit Risk Policy and other related policies.

Concentration risk on account of exposures to counter-parties (both single borrower and group of borrowers), Industry-wise, 

Rating-wise, Product-wise, etc., is being monitored by Risk Management Dept (RMD). For the purpose, exposures in all business 

units, viz. branches, treasury, investment banking, etc., by way of all instruments (loans, equity/debt investments, derivative 

exposures, etc.) are considered. Such monitoring is carried out at monthly intervals. Besides this, respective business units are 

monitoring the exposure on continuous real-time basis.

Concentration risk is further evaluated in terms of statistical measures and benchmarks. Detail analysis of portfolio risk and 

control measures is carried out on a monthly basis on various parameters. Further, a comprehensive Stress Testing framework 
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based on several factors and risk drivers assessing the impact of stressed scenario on Credit quality, its impact on Bank’s 

profitability and capital adequacy is placed to Top Management /Board every quarter. The framework highlights the Bank’s 

credit portfolio under 3 different levels of intensity across default, i.e. mild, medium and severe, and analyses its impact on the 

portfolio quality and solvency level.

Impaired credit - Non Performing Assets (NPAs):

Bank has an independent Credit Administration Department that constantly monitors accounts for irregularities, identifies 

accounts for early warning signals for potential problems and identifies individual NPA accounts systematically.

Bank has also set up Financial Restructuring and Reconstruction (FRR) Dept for managing and monitoring defaulted accounts, 

carrying out restructuring, wherever feasible and following up for recoveries of dues.

Bank follows applicable RBI guidelines while classifying Non-performing Assets (NPAs). The guidelines are as under:

a) An asset, including a leased asset, becomes non-performing when it ceases to generate income for the bank;

b) A Non Performing Asset (NPA) is a loan or an advance where:

 i. interest and / or installment of principal remains overdue for a period of more than 90 days in respect of a term 

loan.

 ii. the account remains ‘out of order’, in respect of an Overdraft / Cash Credit (OD/ CC).

 iii. the bill remains overdue for a period of more than 90 days in the case of bills purchased and discounted.

 iv. installment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for two crop seasons for short duration crops.

 v. installment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for one crop season for long duration crops.

 vi. amount of liquidity facility remains outstanding for more than 90 days, in respect of a securitisation transaction 

undertaken in terms of RBI guidelines on Securitisation dated February 1, 2006.

 vii. in respect of derivative transactions, the overdue receivables representing positive mark-to-market value of a 

derivative contract, if these remain unpaid for a period of 90 days from the specified due date for payment.

Out of Order status: An account should be treated as ‘out of order’ if the outstanding balance remains continuously in excess 

of the sanctioned limit / drawing power. In cases where the outstanding balance in the principal operating account is less 

than the sanctioned limit / drawing power, but there are no credits continuously for 90 days as on the date of Balance Sheet or 

credits are not enough to cover the interest debited during the same period, these accounts should be treated as ‘out of order’.

Overdue: Any amount due to the bank under any credit facility is ‘overdue’ if it is not paid on the due date fixed by the bank.

Credit Risk Exposures

(a) Total Gross Credit Risk Exposures as on March 31, 2018

(` in millions)

Fund Based* 1,993,382

Non-Fund Based** 835,600

Total Exposures 2,828,982

 * Includes all exposures such as Cash Credit, Overdrafts, Term Loan, Cash, SLR securities etc., which are held in 

banking book.

 ** Off-Balance items such as Letter of Credit, Bank Guarantee and credit exposure equivalent of Inter-bank forwards, 

merchant forward contracts and derivatives, etc.
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(b) Geographic Distribution of Exposures as on March 31, 2018

(` in millions)

Domestic Overseas

Fund Based 1,993,382 -

Non-Fund Based 835,600 -

Total Exposures 2,828,982 -

(c) Industry-Wise Distribution of Exposures as on March 31, 2018

(` in millions)

Industry Name Fund Based Non-Fund Based

NBFCs

NBFCs (other than HFCs) 35,408 12,295

NBFC – AFC (Asset Finance Company) 4,017 23

NBFCs (Micro Finance Institution) 15,700 92

Construction

Constn related to infra.- EPC 39,909 12,610

Roads/other infra project 7,898 17,878

Contract Construction -  Civil 15,503 26,036

Real Estate

Real Estate Developers 48,837 8,340

Lease Rental Discounting - Real Estate 43,618 -

Housing Finance Companies 1,901 44

Loans against Property (Corporate) 3,741 -

Power

Power Generation 59,803 68,834

Power Transmission 13,602 9,143

Power Distribution 11,233 797

Power Trading - 3,115

Cables

Telecom Cables 550 1,468

Power Cables 857 1,075

Steel

Steel-Long Products 2,202 814

Steel Flats-CR,GP/GC 7,070 1,907

Steel Flats- HR 249 6,459

Steel – Alloy 1,145 342

Steel Pipes 3,471 1,981

Sponge Iron - 51

3,319 961

Stainless Steel 4,585 288

Pig Iron 1,034 202
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(` in millions)

Industry Name Fund Based Non-Fund Based

Textiles

Textiles - Readymade Garments 4,506 516

Textiles - Cotton fabrics 1,868 1,318

Textiles -Cotton fibre / yarn 6,649 395

Textiles - Manmade fibres / yarn 3,736 350

Textiles-Texturising 278 33

Textile-Blended Yarn 569 10

Textile – Jute 243 -

Textiles -  Synthetic Fabrics 1,558 24

Textile – Silk 145 10

Textile – Machinery 55 1

Cotton ginning, Cleaning, Baling 1,237 -

Telecom

Telecom – Cellular 9,950 93,624

Telecom Equipments 517 1,259

Pharmaceuticals

Pharmaceuticals - Bulk Drugs 5,645 4,638

Pharmaceuticals – Formulations 4,678 831

Chemicals

Chemicals – Organic 3,140 2,360

Chemicals – Inorganic 1,934 785

Fertilisers

Fertilisers – Phosphatic 1,361 1

Fertilizers – Nitrogenous 7,028 2,536

Paper

Paper - Writing and Printing 2,354 3,870

Paper – Industrial 4,553 4,060

Paper Newsprint 92 75

16,766 38,073

Gas Distribution - 46,529

11,318 33,694

Gems and Jewellery 75,104 5,041

Edible Oils 2,210 1,397

Auto Ancillaries 7,848 3,798

Diversified 13,449 8,702

8,795 1,264

Food Credit 13,737 338

Aluminium 1,499 3,338

Capital Market Brokers 2,326 11,952

2,056 417
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(` in millions)

Industry Name Fund Based Non-Fund Based

Lease Rental Discounting - Others 7,748 -

5,729 1,892

20,327 1,441

Sugar 1,080 895

SME - Miscellaneous-Mfg. 6,992 1,481

Electronic components 785 531

Commodity Market Brokers 320 2,635

Beverage, Breweries, Distilleries - -

5,673 3,114

351 419

Shipping 1,429 5,406

Educational Institutions 6,759 568

Computers - Hardware 600 144

Coal 83 224

IT Enabled Services 10,262 3,823

Electrical fittings 2,277 1,193

Petrochemicals - 3,461

Banks 61,224 83,193

Animal Husbandry 112 -

4,470 1,725

Construction Equipment 1,153 410

Airlines 10,053 0

Wood and Wood Product 444 30

1,826 478

Tiles / Sanitaryware 956 593

Transport Services - -

Oil and Gas Exploration 38 17,325

Electric Equipment 3,461 3,572

10,990 2,352

Organised Retailing 8,980 4,641

Trading – Wholesale 60,974 15,423

Trading – Retail 42,622 3,727

Services 32,465 26,843

Credit Cards 26,959 -

Other Retail Assets 36,921 -

Consumer Finance 5,01,972 -

Other Industries 53,173 95,929

Residual Assets 5,21,317 1,06,137

Total Exposure 19,93,382 8,35,600

 Exposures to industries (other than Consumer Finance) in excess of 5% of total exposure

(` in millions)

Industry Fund Based Non-Fund Based

Banks 61,224 83,193
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(d) Residual Contractual Maturity breakdown of assets

(` in millions)

Assets 1D 2 - 7D 8 - 14D 15 - 

30D

31D - 

2M

>2M 

-3M

> 3M 

-6M

> 6 M - 

1 Y

>1Y - 3Y > 3Y - 5Y > 5Y - 7Y > 7Y - 

10Y

> 10Y - 

15Y

>15Y Total

Cash 10,692 - - - - - - - - - - - - - 10,692

Balances with 

RBI

36,284 - - 6,966 1,339 3,873 4,082 3,535 12,708 7,575 6,258 3,101 5,905 7,307 98,932

Balances with 

other Banks

11,043 9,865 - - - - - - 1,627 - - - - - 22,535

Investments - 356 11 50 2,828 23,791 22,998 47,168 66,524 36,656 39,582 73,275 97,359 90,170 5,00,767

Advances 6,892 54,752 55,108 52,142 54,958 68,703 1,19,997 1,96,516 4,91,345 1,56,756 66,772 66,749 29,770 50,078 14,70,537

Fixed Assets - - - - - - - - - - - - - 13,388 13,388

Other Assets 13,340 1,424 16,607 2,549 447 2,480 19,386 20,403 22,120 8,322 9,639 3,722 - - 1,20,438

 Note: Advances inclusive of BRDS ` 2,100 crores.

(e) Movement of NPAs and Provision for NPAs as on March 31, 2018

(` in millions)

A. Amount of NPAs (Gross) 17,049

Sub-standard 7,072

Doubtful 1 4,546

Doubtful 2 3,133

Doubtful 3 1,448

Loss 850

B. Net NPAs 7,457

C. NPA ratios

Gross NPA to Gross advances (%) 1.17%

Net NPA to Net advances (%) 0.51%

D. Movement of NPAs (Gross)

Opening Balance as on 01.04.17 10,549

Additions during the period 33,246

Reductions during the period 26,745

Closing Balance as on 31.03.2018 17,049

E. Movement of provision for NPAs

Opening as on 01.04.17 6,160

Provision made till 31.03.2018 13,209

Write off 7,828

Write back of excess provisions 1,949

Any other adjustments, including transfers between provisions 0

Closing as on 31.03.2018 9,592

Particulars Amount (` in millions)

Write offs booked directly to income statement Refer to E above

Recoveries booked directly to income statement 450
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(f) Non Performing Investments and Movement of provision for depreciation on Non Performing Investments

(` in millions)

A Amount of Non-Performing Investments 290

B Amount of provisions held for non-performing investments 243

C Movement of provisions for depreciation on investments

Opening as on 01.04.17 877

Add: Provisions made till 31.03.18 1209

Less: Write-off/ write-back of excess provisions -

Closing Balance as on 31.03.18 2,086

(g) Major Industry Break up of NPA and Provision

(` in millions)

Industry Gross NPA Specific Provision

NPA in Top 5 Industry 1,023 1,023 

(h) Geography wise Distribution of NPA and Provision

(` in millions)

Geography Gross NPA Specific Provision

Domestic 17,049 9,592

Overseas - -

Total 17,049 9,592

DF-4: Credit risk: Disclosures for Portfolios Subject to the Standardised Approach

 As per the Basel II guidelines on Standardised approach, the risk weight on certain categories of domestic counter 

parties is determined based on the external rating assigned by any one of the accredited rating agencies, i.e., CRISIL, 

ICRA, CARE, India Rating Pvt. Ltd, Brickworks Ratings India Pvt. Ltd and SMERA. For Foreign counterparties and banks, 

 Bank computes risk weight on the basis of external rating assigned, both Long Term and Short Term, for the facilities 

availed by the borrower. The external ratings assigned are generally facility specific. Bank follow below mentioned 

procedures as laid down in Basel II guidelines for usage of external ratings:

generally applied for facilities with contractual maturity of less than one year.

assigns uniform risk weight of 150% on all the unrated claims, both short term and long term unless the exposure 

is subjected to credit risk mitigation.

rating that maps to higher risk weight is used. In case of three or more ratings, the ratings corresponding to the 

two lowest risk weights is referred to and the higher of those two risk weights is be applied. i.e., the second lowest 

risk weight.

the risk weights.
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 Risk Weight-wise distribution of Gross Credit Exposures:

Category (` in millions)

Below 100% Risk Weights 2,019,189

100% Risk Weights 520,562

More than 100% Risk Weights 289,231

Deducted -

DF-5: Credit risk mitigation: Disclosures for standardised approach

 Bank mitigates credit exposure with eligible collaterals and guarantees to reduce the credit risk of obligors as 

stipulated under Basel II. In principle with mitigating credit risk, Bank has put in place a comprehensive Policy on 

Credit Risk Mitigants and Collaterals for recognizing the eligible collaterals and guarantors for netting the exposures 

and reducing the credit risk of obligors. Basic procedures and descriptions of controls as well as types of standard/

acceptable collaterals, guarantees necessary in granting credit, evaluation methods for different types of credit and 

collateral, applicable “haircuts” to collateral, frequency of revaluation and release of collateral are stipulated in the Bank’s 

credit policy, policy on collateral management and credit risk mitigant policy. The Bank uses net exposure for capital 

calculations after taking cognizance of eligible financial collaterals. All collaterals and guarantees are recorded and the 

details are linked to individual accounts. Perfection of security interest, date, currency and correlation between collateral 

and counterparty are also considered.

 As lending is subject to default risk, Bank accepts collateral securities to minimize the impact of loss and consequently 

reducing the credit risk. The type of collaterals is determined based on the nature of facility, product type, counter party 

risk and its credit quality. However, as explained earlier, collateral is not the sole criteria for granting credit. For Corporate 

and SME clients, working capital facility is generally secured by charge on current assets and Term loan is secured by 

charge on fixed assets. In case of project financing, Bank generally stipulates escrow of receivables/project cash flows 

along with the charge on underlying project assets. The credit risk policy clearly defines the types of secondary securities 

and minimum percentage in relation to the total exposures that is required to be obtained in case of credit granted 

to obligors falling outside the preferred rating grade. Credit facilities are also granted against the security of assets 

such as cash deposits, NSC, guarantee, mortgages, pledge of shares and commodities, bank guarantees, accepted 

bills of exchange, assignment of receivables etc. The credit facilities, in terms of risk policies, are secured by secondary 

collaterals such as cash deposits, NSC, guarantee, mortgages, fixed assets etc. Bank also grants unsecured credit to 

the borrowers with high standing and low credit risk profile. Customers under Credit card programme are assessed by 

means of comprehensive customer selection parameters.

 For Business Banking clients, who are driven by product programmes and templated scoring models, the facilities 

are ordinarily secured by adequate collaterals. The programmes have a robust mechanism for collateral acceptance, 

valuation and monitoring.

 In case of schematic products such as Home Loan, LAP, Auto Loan, etc., Loan to value ratio, margin and valuation/

revaluation of collaterals is defined in the respective product programme. The valuation is generally carried out by the 

empanelled valuer of the Bank. Bank has also put in place approved product paper on loan against warehouse receipts, 

shares and other securities. The margin, valuation and revaluation of the assets are specified in the product note.

 The credit approving authorities also decides on the type and amount of collaterals for each type of facility on a case-

to-case basis. For schematic loans and facilities offered under product programme, securities are obtained as defined in 

the product notes.

 Eligible financial asset collateral and guarantor

 For the purpose of credit risk mitigation, i.e. offsetting the amount of collateral/ basket of collaterals against the 

individual/ pool of exposures to which the collaterals are assigned, financial asset collateral types are defined by the 

Bank as per the Capital Adequacy Framework to include Fixed deposits, KVP, IVP, NSC, Life Insurance Policies, Gold, 

Securities issued by Central and State Governments and units of Mutual Fund. On a similar note, the eligible guarantors 

are classified into the following categories:
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  Sovereigns, Sovereign entities, Banks and Primary Dealers with lower risk weights than the counterparty

  Other entities including guarantee cover provided by parent, subsidiary and affiliate companies when they have 

lower risk weight than the obligor.

(` in millions)

Particulars Eligible Financial Collaterals Supported by guarantee

Exposure before applying eligible mitigants 338,399 10053
Exposure after applying eligible mitigants 152,389 -

DF-6: Securitisation Exposures: Disclosure for standardised approach

 Securitisation “means a process by which a single performing asset or a pool of performing assets are sold to a bankruptcy 

remote Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) and transferred from the balance sheet of the originator to the SPV in return for an 

immediate cash payment.

 SPV” means any company, trust, or other entity constituted or established for a specific purpose - (a) activities of which 

are limited to those for accomplishing the purpose of the company, trust or other entity as the case may be; and (b) 

which is structured in a manner intended to isolate the corporation, trust or entity as the case may be, from the credit 

risk of an originator to make it bankruptcy remote.

 Bank had neither originated any securitization transactions by way of sale of securitised assets, nor retained any exposure 

on such assets, actual conditional, or contingent, during the period ended March 31, 2018.

 The Bank, in the past, had carried out securitization transaction and such deals were done on the basis of ‘True Sale’, 

which provides 100% protection to the Bank from the default in case of assets originated by it. All risks in the securitised 

portfolio were transferred to the Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV). Post-securitisation, Bank continued to service the loans 

transferred under securitization. Bank had also provided for credit enhancements in the form of cash collaterals to a 

minimum extent.

 The Bank, in the past, had securitized its assets with the objectives of managing its funding requirements, improving 

liquidity, reducing credit risk and diversifying the portfolio risk, managing interest rate risk, and capital adequacy. The 

Bank has not securitised any of its portfolios for the past 9 years.

 Apart from managing credit risk, Bank also considers different types of risks viz. interest rate risk and liquidity risk 

for the retained assets or acquired portfolio and ensure its adequate assessment and mechanism for mitigating the 

same. The securitized portfolio, both the retained part and acquired assets are monitored regularly in terms of various 

risk parameters such as repayment, cash flows to service the interest, principal and other charges, counterparty risk, 

servicer’s capability, underlying asset risk profile and interest rate risk.

 Exposure details on account of securitization transactions

 (a) Securitisation exposures in Banking Book

  There are no outstanding under the securitization exposures as on 31st March 2108. No securitization activities 

were undertaken by the Bank during the period ended 31st March 2018.

 (b) Amount of Assets intended to be securitized within a year:

  For the time being Bank does not have any plans to undertake securitization of its assets. However, for the purpose 

of balance sheet management and if the opportunities arises, securitization of exposure may be explored.

 (c) Securitisation exposures in Trading Book:

  Aggregate amount of on-balance sheet securitisation exposures retained or purchased broken down by 

exposure type

Exposure Type Amount (` in millions) 

Agriculture Loans 5542
SME and others 1432
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  Aggregate amount of securitisation exposures retained or purchased subject to Comprehensive Risk 

Measure for specific risk

Exposure Type Amount (` in millions)

Agriculture Loans 5542

SME and others 1432

  Aggregate amount of securitisation exposures retained or purchased subject to securitisation framework 

for specific risk broken down into different risk weight bands

Risk Weight band Amount (` in millions)

<100% risk weight 5,419

100% risk weight  1,555

>100% risk weight -

Total 6,974

  Aggregate amount of the capital requirements for the securitisation exposures, subject to the securitisation 

framework broken down into different risk weight bands:

Risk Weight band Capital Charge Amount (` in millions)

<100% risk weight 266

100% risk weight 145

>100% risk weight -

Total 411

  Securitisation exposures deducted from capital

Exposure Type Exposures deducted 

entirely from Tier-1 

capital

Credit enhancing interest-

only strips deducted from 

total capital

Other exposures deducted 

from total capital

NA

DF-7: Market risk in Trading book

 Market Risk may be defined as the possibility of loss to a bank caused by changes in the market variables. The market 

risk for the Bank is governed by the Market Risk Policy and Funds and Investment policy which are approved by the 

Board. These policies serve to outline the Bank’s risk appetite and risk philosophy in respect of Treasury / Forex / Equity / 

Derivatives / Bullion operations, and the controls that are considered essential for the management of market risks. The 

policies are reviewed periodically to update it with changed business requirements, economic environment and revised 

regulatory guidelines.

 Sources of market risk:

 Market risks arise from the following risk factors:

  Price risk for bonds, forex, equities and bullion

  Interest rate risk for investments, derivatives, etc.

  Exchange rate risk for currencies; and

  Trading / liquidity risk.

 Objectives of Market risk management:

 The broad objectives of Market Risk management are:

  Management of interest rate risk and currency risk of the trading portfolio.

  Adequate control and suitable reporting of investments, Forex, Equity and Derivative portfolios
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  Compliance with regulatory and internal guidelines.

  Monitoring and Control of transactions of market related instruments.

Scope and nature of risk reporting and measurement systems:

Reporting

Market Risk group reports various investments, Foreign exchange positions and derivatives position with their related risk 

measures to top management daily and to Committees of the Board on a periodic basis. Bank periodically reports the related 

positions to regulators in compliance with regulatory requirements.

Measurement

Bank monitoring its risks through risk management tools and techniques such as are Value-at-Risk, Modified Duration, PV01, 

Stop Loss, amongst others. Based on risk appetite of the Bank, various risk limits are placed which are monitored on a daily 

basis.

Capital requirements for Market risks @ 9%.

(` in millions)

Market Risk elements Amount of capital required

Interest Rate Risk 7078

Foreign Exchange Risk (including gold) 304

Equity Risk 1408

DF-8: Operational Risk

 Bank has framed Operational Risk Management Policy duly approved by the Board. Other policies adopted by the 

Board that deals with management of operational risk are (a) Information System Security Policy (b) Policy on Know 

Your Customer (KYC) and Anti Money Laundering Policy (AML) process (c) IT business continuity and Disaster Recovery 

Plan and (d) Business Continuity Plan (BCP) (e) New Product Programme Policy (f ) Framework for Risk and Control Self-

Assessment (RCSA) and (g) Risk Event Reporting Framework.

 Operational Risk Management Policy adopted by the Bank outlines organization structure and detailed process for 

management of Operational Risk. Basic objective of the policy is to closely integrate operational management system 

to risk management processes of the Bank by clearly assigning roles for effectively identifying, assessing, monitoring 

and controlling / mitigating operational risk exposures, including material operational losses. Operational risks in the 

Bank are managed through comprehensive and well-articulated internal control frameworks. Bank has implemented 

the process of capturing, reporting and assessing risk events at the process level using RCSA framework.

DF-9: Interest rate risk in the banking book (IRRBB)

 Interest Rate Risk is the risk of loss in the Bank’s net income and net equity value arising out of a change in level of 

interest rates and / or their implied volatility. Interest rate risk arises from holding assets and liabilities with different 

principal amounts, maturity dates and re-pricing dates. The Bank holds assets, liabilities and off balance sheet items 

across various markets with different maturity or re-pricing dates and linked to different benchmark rates, thus creating 

exposure to unexpected changes in the level of interest rates in such markets. Interest rate risk in the banking book 

refers to the risk associated with interest rate sensitive instruments that are not held in the trading book of the Bank.

 Risk management framework

 The Board of the Bank has overall responsibility for management of risks and it decides the risk management policy of 

the Bank and set limits for liquidity, interest rate, foreign exchange and equity price risks. The Asset Liability Management 

Committee (ALCO) consisting of Bank’s senior management including Managing Director is responsible for ensuring 

adherence to the limits set by the Board as well as for deciding the business strategy of the Bank (for the assets and 

liabilities) in line with the Bank’s budget and decided risk management objectives. ALCO decides strategies and specifies 

prudential limits for management of interest rate risk in the banking book within the broad parameters laid down by 

Board of Directors. These limits are monitored periodically and the breaches, if any, are reported to ALCO.
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 Monitoring and Control

 The Board of Directors has approved the Asset-Liability Management policy. The policy is intended to be flexible to 

deal with rapidly changing conditions; any variations from policy should be reported to the Board of Directors with 

recommendations and approval from the ALCO.

 The Bank has put in place a mechanism for regular computation and monitoring of prudential limits and ratios for 

liquidity and interest rate risk management. The Bank uses its system capability for limits and ratio monitoring. The ALCO 

support group generates periodic reports for reporting these to ALCO and senior management of the Bank. The ALM 

support group carries out various analyses related to assets and liabilities, forecast financial market outlook, compute 

liquidity ratios and interest rate risk values based on the earnings and economic value perspective.

 Risk measurement and reporting framework:

 The estimation of interest rate risk involves interest rate sensitive assets (RSAs) and interest rate sensitive liabilities (RSLs).

 The techniques for managing interest rate risk include:

  Interest rate sensitivity gap Analysis

  Earning at Risk Analysis

  Stress Testing

 Interest rate sensitivity gap: The gap or mismatch risk as at a given date, is measured by calculating gaps over different 

time intervals. Gap analysis measures mismatches between rate sensitive liabilities (RSL) and rate sensitive assets (RSA) 

(including off-balance sheet positions). The report is prepared by grouping liabilities, assets and off-balance sheet 

positions into time buckets according to residual maturity or next re-pricing period, whichever is earlier. The difference 

between RSA and RSL for each time bucket signifies the gap in that time bucket. The gap report provides a good 

framework for determining the earnings impact.

 Earning at Risk: Any change in interest rate would impact Bank’s net interest income (NII) and the value of its fixed 

income portfolio (price risk). The interest rate risk is measured by EaR that is the sensitivity of the NII to a 100 basis points 

adverse change in the level of interest rates.

 Stress Testing: The Bank measures the impact on net interest margin (NIM) / EaR after taking into account various 

possible movement in interest rates across tenor and their impact on the earnings and economic value of the Bank is 

calculated for each of these scenarios. These reports are prepared on a monthly basis for measurement of interest rate 

risk.

 With an upward rate shock of 1% across the curve, as per Rate Sensitive Gaps in INR as on 31.03.2018, the earning shows 

a decrease of ` 818.1 million.

 The impact of change in interest rate by 100 bps and 50 bps has been computed on open positions (as on March 31, 

2018) and shown hereunder against the respective currencies.

Change in interest rates (in bps)

Impact on NII (` in millions)

Currency -100 -50 50 100

INR 818.10 409.05 (409.05) (818.10)

USD 38.21 19.10 (19.10) (38.21)

Others 77.09 38.54 (38.54) (77.09)

Total 933.40 466.70 (466.70) (933.40)
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DF-10: General Disclosures for Exposures Related to Counterparty Credit Risk

 Counterparty Credit Risk (CCR) is the risk that the counterparty to a transaction could default before the final settlement 

of the transaction’s cash flows. An economic loss would occur if the transactions or portfolio of transactions with the 

counterparty has a positive economic value for the Bank at the time of default. Unlike exposure to credit risk through a 

loan, where the exposure to credit risk is unilateral and only the lending bank faces the risk of loss, CCR creates a bilateral 

risk of loss whereby the market value for many different types of transactions can be positive or negative to either 

counterparty. The market value is uncertain and can vary over time with the movement of underlying market factors.

 Capital is allocated to CCR exposures taking into consideration the regulatory guidelines on Basel – III capital adequacy 

computation.

 Counterparty credit risk is managed and controlled through variety of risk policies and monitoring procedures including, 

but not limited, to the following:

 It is possible for the counterparty’s credit quality to be co-dependent with the level of exposure. This effect is called 

wrong-way risk if the exposure tends to increase when the counterparty credit quality gets worse. Wrong way risk is 

controlled through policies that manage industry, country and individual counterparty concentrations.

 Exposure on account of Counterparty Credit Risk

(` in millions)

Particulars Amount

Gross positive value of contracts 29,361

Netting Benefits -

Netted current credit exposure 95,599

Collateral held 4,021

Net derivative credit exposure 91,578

DF-11 to DF-14: Capital Disclosures

 Detailed disclosures with respect to (i) Composition of Capital, (ii) Composition of Capital –Reconciliation Requirements, 

(iii) Main features of Regulatory Capital Instruments and (iv) Full terms and conditions of Regulatory Capital Instruments 

are enclosed as per Tables under DF-11, DF-12 and DF-13 respectively. DF-14 has been disclosed separately on the 

Bank’s website under ‘Regulatory Disclosures Section’. The link to this section is http://www.indusind.com/important-

links/regulatory-disclosures-section.html

(` in millions)

At March 31, 2018

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: Instruments and reserves 

1 Directly issued qualifying common share capital plus related 

stock surplus (share premium)

100,713.77 A=a1+a2

2 Retained earnings 89,649.61 B=b1-b2

3 Accumulated other comprehensive income (and other reserves) 42,190.30 C=c1+c2+c3+ 

c4+c5+c6 

+c8-c9

4 Directly issued capital subject to phase out from CET1 (only 

applicable to non-joint stock companies 1)

-  
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(` in millions)

At March 31, 2018

5 Common share capital issued by subsidiaries and held by third 

parties (amount allowed in group CET1)

-  

6 Common Equity Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustments 232,553.68

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments

7 Prudential valuation adjustments 130.20

8 Goodwill (net of related tax liability) -

9 Intangibles (net of related tax liability) -

10 Deferred tax assets 2  -

11 Cash-flow hedge reserve -

12 Shortfall of provisions to expected losses -

13 Securitisation gain on sale -

14 Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk on fair valued 

liabilities

-

15 Defined-benefit pension fund net assets -

16 Investments in own shares (if not already netted off paid-in 

capital on reported balance sheet)

-

17 Reciprocal cross-holdings in common equity -

18 Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance 

entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, 

net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own 

more than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10% 

threshold)

-

19 Significant investments in the common stock of banking, 

financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of 

regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions (amount 

above 10% threshold)3

-

20 Mortgage servicing rights 4 (amount above 10% threshold) -

21 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences5 

(amount above 10% threshold, net of related tax liability)

-

22 Amount exceeding the 15% threshold6 -

23  of which: significant investments in the common stock of 

financial entities

-

24  of which: mortgage servicing rights -

25  of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences -

26 National specific regulatory adjustments7 (26a+26b+26c+26d) -

26a of which: Investments in the equity capital of the unconsolidated 

insurance subsidiaries

-

26b of which: Investments in the equity capital of unconsolidated 

non-financial subsidiaries8

-

26c of which: Shortfall in the equity capital of majority owned 

financial entities which have not been consolidated with the 

bank9

-

26d of which: Unamortised pension funds expenditures -
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(` in millions)

At March 31, 2018

27 Regulatory adjustments applied to Common Equity Tier 1 due 

to insufficient Additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 to cover deductions

-

28 Total regulatory adjustments to Common equity Tier 1 130.20

29 Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) 232,423.48

Additional Tier 1 capital: instruments

30 Directly issued qualifying Additional Tier 1 instruments plus 

related stock surplus (31+32)

20,000.00  

31 of which: classified as equity under applicable accounting 

standards (Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Shares)

-  

32 of which: classified as liabilities under applicable accounting 

standards (Perpetual debt Instruments)

20,000.00 D=d1

33 Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase out from 

Additional Tier 1

-  

34 Additional Tier 1 instruments (and CET1 instruments not 

included in row 5) issued by subsidiaries and held by third 

parties (amount allowed in group AT1)

-  

35 of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase 

out

-

36 Additional Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustments 20,000.00  

Additional Tier 1 capital: regulatory instruments  

37 Investments in own Additional Tier 1 instruments -

38 Reciprocal cross-holdings in Additional Tier 1 instruments -  

39 Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance 

entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, 

net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own 

more than 10% of the issued common share capital of the entity 

(amount above 10% threshold)

-  

40 Significant investments in the capital of banking, financial and 

insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory 

consolidation (net of eligible short positions)10

-

41 National specific regulatory adjustments (41a+41b) -

41a Of which: Investments in the Additional Tier 1 capital of 

unconsolidated insurance subsidiaries

-

41b  Of which: Shortfall in the Additional Tier 1 capital of majority 

owned financial entities which have not been consolidated 

with the bank

-

42 Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 due to 

insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions

-

43 Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1 capital -

44 Additional Tier 1 capital (AT1) 20,000.00

45 Tier 1 capital (T1 = CET1 + AT1) (29 + 44) 252,423.48

Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions

46 Directly issued qualifying Tier 2 instruments plus related stock 

surplus

-  
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(` in millions)

At March 31, 2018

47 Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase out from 

Tier 2

-

48 Tier 2 instruments (and CET1 and AT1 instruments not included 

in rows 5 or 34) issued by subsidiaries and held by third parties 

(amount allowed in group Tier 2)

-  

49 of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase 

out

-  

50 Provisions12 7,791.78 E=c7+e1

51 Tier 2 capital before regulatory adjustments 7,791.78  

Tier 2 capital: regulatory adjustments  

52 Investments in own Tier 2 instruments -  

53 Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 instruments -  

54 Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance 

entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, 

net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own 

more than 10% of the issued common share capital of the entity 

(amount above the 10% threshold)

-  

55 Significant investments13 in the capital banking, financial and 

insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory 

consolidation (net of eligible short positions)

-  

56 National specific regulatory adjustments (56a+56b) -  

56a of which: Investments in the Tier 2 capital of unconsolidated 

subsidiaries

-  

56b of which: Shortfall in the Tier 2 capital of majority owned 

financial entities which have not been consolidated with the 

bank

-

57 Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital -

58 Tier 2 capital (T2) 7,791.78

59 Total capital (TC = T1 + T2) (45 + 58) 260,215.26

60 Total risk weighted assets (60a + 60b + 60c) 1,731,555.09

60a of which: total credit risk weighted assets 1,445,488.63

60b of which: total market risk weighted assets 97,669.80

60c of which: total operational risk weighted assets 188,396.66

Capital ratios and buffers

61 Common Equity Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 13.42

62 Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 14.58

63 Total capital (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 15.03

64 Institution specific buffer requirement (minimum CET1 

requirement plus capital conservation plus countercyclical 

buffer requirements plus G-SIB buffer requirement, expressed 

as a percentage of risk weighted assets)

7.375

65 of which: capital conservation buffer requirement 1.875

66 of which: bank specific countercyclical buffer requirement -
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(` in millions)

At March 31, 2018

67 of which: G-SIB buffer requirement -

68 Common Equity Tier 1 available to meet buffers (as a percentage 

of risk weighted assets)

-

National minima (if different from Basel III)

69 National Common Equity Tier 1 minimum ratio (if different from 

Basel III minimum)

5.500%

70 National Tier 1 minimum ratio (if different from Basel III 

minimum)

7.000%

71 National total capital minimum ratio (if different from Basel III 

minimum)

9.000%

Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk 

weighting)

72 Non-significant investments in the capital of other financial 

entities

-

73 Significant investments in the common stock of financial 

entities

-

74 Mortgage servicing rights (net of related tax liability) -

75 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (net of 

related tax liability)

-

Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier 2

76 Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures 

subject to standardised approach (prior to application of cap)

-

77 Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under standardised 

approach

-

78 Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures 

subject to internal ratings-based approach (prior to application 

of cap)

-

79 Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under internal ratings-

based approach

-

Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements 

(only applicable between March 31, 2017 and  

March 31, 2022)

80 Current cap on CET1 instruments subject to phase out 

arrangements

-

81 Amount excluded from CET1 due to cap (excess over cap after 

redemptions and maturities)

-

82 Current cap on AT1 instruments subject to phase out 

arrangements

-

83 Amount excluded from AT1 due to cap (excess over cap after 

redemptions and maturities)

-

84 Current cap on T2 instruments subject to phase out 

arrangements

-

85 Amount excluded from T2 due to cap (excess over cap after 

redemptions and maturities)

-
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 Notes to the Template

Row No. 

of the 

template 

Particulars (` in millions)

10 Deferred tax assets associated with accumulated losses -
Deferred tax assets (excluding those associated with accumulated losses) net of 

Deferred tax liability

-

Total as indicated in row 10 -
19 If investments in insurance subsidiaries are not deducted fully from capital and instead 

considered under 10% threshold for deduction, the resultant increase in the capital of 

bank

-

of which: Increase in Common Equity Tier 1 capital -
of which: Increase in Additional Tier 1 capital -
of which: Increase in Tier 2 capital -

26b If investments in the equity capital of unconsolidated non-financial subsidiaries are not 

deducted and hence, risk weighted then:

-

 (i) Increase in Common Equity Tier 1 capital -
 (ii) Increase in risk weighted assets -

50 Eligible Provisions included in Tier 2 capital 7,791.78
Eligible Revaluation Reserves included in Tier 2 capital -
Total of row 50 7,791.78

DF-12: Composition of Capital- Reconciliation Requirements

 Step 1

(` in millions)

 Balance Sheet 

as in Financial 

Statements 

As on 

March 31, 2018

Balance 

sheet under 

Regulatory 

scope of 

consolidation 

As on 

March 31, 2018

A Capital & Liabilities  

i Paid-up Capital 6,002.23

232,268.49

Employees’ Stock Option Outstanding 145.71

Minority Interest -

Total Capital 238,416.43

ii Deposits 1,516,391.74

of which: Deposits from banks 56,818.49

of which: Customer deposits 1,459,573.25

of which: Other deposits (pl. specify) -

iii Borrowings 382,890.78

of which: From RBI -

of which: From banks 7,576.75

 234,740.28

of which: Others (pl. specify) Borrowings from outside India 120,573.75

of which: Capital instruments 20,000.00

iv 78,562.66

 Total 2,216,261.61
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(` in millions)

 Balance Sheet 

as in Financial 

Statements 

As on 

March 31, 2018

Balance 

sheet under 

Regulatory 

scope of 

consolidation 

As on 

March 31, 2018

B Assets

i Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India 109,624.06

Balance with banks and money at call and short notice 22,534.71

ii Investments: 500,767.17

of which: Government securities 403,659.86

of which: Other approved securities -

of which: Shares 2,919.38

44,764.19

of which: Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures / Associates -

Of which: Others (Commercial Papers, Mutual Funds etc.) 49,423.74

iii Loans and advances 1,449,536.58

of which: Loans and advances to banks 6.40

of which: Loans and advances to customers 1,149,530.18

iv Fixed assets 13,387.53

v Other assets 120,411.56

 of which: Goodwill and intangible assets -

 of which: Deferred tax assets 3,777.96

vi Good will on consolidation -

vii -

Total Assets 2,216,261.61

 Step 2

(` in millions)
Balance Sheet 

as in Financial 

Statements 

As on 

March 31, 2018

Balance 

Sheet under 

Regulatory 

scope of 

consolidation 

As on 

March 31, 2018

Ref No.

A Capital & Liabilities    
i Paid-up Capital 6,002.23  a1

Reserves & Surplus 232,414.20   
of which :   
Share Premium 94,711.54  a2
Balance in P/L a/c. 93,114.94  b1
of which   
Unallocated Surplus 71,183.81   
Current period profits not reckoned for Capital Adequacy 

purposes

3,465.33  b2

Statutory Reserve 38,242.67  c1
General Reserve 13.56  c2
Capital Reserve 2,233.68  c3
Investment Allowance Reserve 10.00  c4
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(` in millions)
Balance Sheet 

as in Financial 

Statements 

As on 

March 31, 2018

Balance 

Sheet under 

Regulatory 

scope of 

consolidation 

As on 

March 31, 2018

Ref No.

Employee Stock Options Outstanding 145.71  c5
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (85.24) c6
Investment Reserve Account 405.30  c7
Revaluation Reserve 3,622.04  c8
of which   
Not reckoned for Capital Adequacy purposes 1,992.12  c9
Minority Interest -  -
Total Capital 238,416.43   

ii Deposits 1,516,391.74  
of which: Deposits from banks 56,818.49  
of which: Customer deposits 1,459,573.25  
of which: Other deposits (pl. specify) -  

iii Borrowings 382,890.78   
of which: From RBI -   
of which: From banks 7,576.75   

234,740.28   
of which: Others (pl. specify) Borrowings from outside 

India

120,573.75   

of which: Capital instruments 20,000.00   
Eligible AT1 Capital 20,000.00 d1

iv Other liabilities & provisions 78,562.66   
 of which: Provision for Standard Advances 7,386.48  e1
 of which : DTLs related to goodwill -   
 of which : Details related to intangible assets -   
 Total 2,216,261.61   

B Assets
i Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India 109,624.06

Balance with banks and money at call and short notice 22,534.71
ii Investments: 500,767.17

of which: Government securities 403,659.86
of which: Other approved securities -
of which: Shares 2,919.38

44,764.19
of which: Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures / Associates -
of which: Others ( Commercial Papers, Mutual Funds 

etc.)

49,423.74

iii Loans and advances 1,449,536.58
of which: Loans and advances to banks 6.40
of which: Loans and advances to customers 1,449,530.18

iv Fixed assets 13,387.53
v Other assets 120,411.56
 of which: Goodwill and intangible assets -
 Out of which :
 Goodwill

Other Intangibles (excluding MSRs) -
Deferred tax assets 3,777.96

vi Good will on consolidation -
vii -
 Total Assets 2,216,261.61
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 Step 3

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital : Instruments and Reserves

Component of 

regulator capital 

reported by bank

Source based 

on reference 

number / letters 

of the balance 

sheet under the 

regulatory scope 

of consolidation 

from step 2

1 Directly issued qualifying common share (and equivalent for 

non-joint stock companies) capital plus related stock surplus 

(share Premium)

100,713.77 A=a1+a2

2 Retained earnings 89,649.61 B=b1– b2

3 Accumulated other comprehensive income (and other reserves) 42,190.30 C=c1+ c2+ c3+ c4+ 

c5+c6+c8-c9

4 Directly issued capital subject to phase out from CET1 (only 

applicable to non-joint stock companies)

-  

5 Common share capital issued by subsidiaries and held by third 

parties (amount allowed in group CET1)

-  

6 Common Equity Tier I capital before Regulatory adjustments 232,553.68

7 Prudential valuation adjustments -

8 Goodwill (net of related tax liability) -

Table DF-13:  Main Features of Regulatory Capital Instruments

Sr. 

No

Particulars Equity Shares Additional Tier 1 

Bond 

(Series I)

Additional Tier 1 

Bond 

(Series II)

1 Issuer INDUSIND BANK 

LTD

INDUSIND BANK LTD INDUSIND BANK LTD

2 Unique identifier (e.g. CUSIP, ISIN or 

Bloomberg identifier for private placement) 

INE095A01012 INE095A08066 INE095A08074

3 Governing law(s) of the instrument Indian Law Indian Law Indian Law

Regulatory treatment    

4  Transitional Basel III rules Common Equity 

Tier I

Additional Tier 1 Additional Tier 1 

5  Post-transitional Basel III rules Common Equity 

Tier I

Additional Tier 1 Additional Tier 1 

6 Group and  Solo Group and  Solo Group and  Solo

7   Instrument type Common Shares Perpetual Debt 

Instrument

Perpetual Debt 

Instrument

8 Amount recognised in regulatory capital  

(` in million, as of most recent reporting 

date) 

` 6,002 Millions ` 10,000 Million ` 10,000 Million

9 Par value of instrument ` 10 per share ` 1 Million per Bond ` 1 Million per Bond

10 Accounting classification Shareholder's 

Equity

Borrowings Borrowings

11 Original date of issuance Various 22.03.2017 18.04.2017

12 Perpetual or dated Perpetual Perpetual Perpetual 
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Sr. 

No

Particulars Equity Shares Additional Tier 1 

Bond 

(Series I)

Additional Tier 1 

Bond 

(Series II)

13 Original maturity date No Maturity No Maturity No Maturity

14 Issuer call subject to prior supervisory 

approval 

No Yes Yes

15 Optional call date, contingent call dates 

and redemption amount 

NA 5 years from the 

deemed date of 

allotment or any 

date thereafter, at 

the sole discretion of 

the Bank with a prior 

approval of RBI but 

subject always to the 

"condition for exercise 

of call option"; the call 

will be for the whole 

amount of the Bond 

and not in part.

5 years from the 

deemed date of 

allotment or any 

date thereafter, at 

the sole discretion of 

the Bank with a prior 

approval of RBI but 

subject always to the 

“condition for exercise 

of call option”; the call 

will be for the whole 

amount of the Bond 

and not in part.

16 Subsequent call dates, if applicable NA Any date after 

22.03.2022, with the 

prior approval of RBI.

Any date after 

18.04.2022, with the 

prior approval of RBI.

Coupons / dividends    

17 Fixed or floating dividend/coupon NA Fixed Fixed

18 Coupon rate and any related index NA 9.50% p.a. 9.50% p.a. 

19 Existence of a dividend stopper NA Yes Yes

20 Fully discretionary, partially discretionary 

or mandatory 

Fully 

Discretionary

Fully Discretionary Fully Discretionary

21 Existence of step up or other incentive to 

redeem 

No No No

22 Noncumulative or cumulative Non-Cumulative Non-Cumulative Non-Cumulative

23 Convertible or non-convertible NA Non-convertible Non-convertible

24 If convertible, conversion trigger(s) NA NA NA

25 If convertible, fully or partially NA NA NA

26 If convertible, conversion rate NA NA NA

27 If convertible, mandatory or optional 

conversion 

NA NA NA

28 If convertible, specify instrument type 

convertible into 

NA NA NA

29 If convertible, specify issuer of instrument 

it converts into 

NA NA NA

30 Write-down feature No Yes Yes
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Sr. 

No

Particulars Equity Shares Additional Tier 1 

Bond 

(Series I)

Additional Tier 1 

Bond 

(Series II)

31 If write-down, write-down trigger(s) NA Temporary write 

down at Pre-Specified 

Trigger Event, which 

is Common Equity 

Tier 1 capital falling 

below the regulatory 

level.

Permanent write 

down at a Point of 

Non-Viability (PONV) 

Trigger Event.  The 

PONV Trigger Event 

is the earlier of (1) 

a decision that full 

permanent write off 

/ other adjustment 

stipulated by RBI 

without which 

the Bank would 

become non-viable 

as determined by 

the RBI, and (2) the 

decision to make 

a public sector 

injection of capital or 

equivalent support 

without which the 

Bank would become 

non-viable as 

determined by the 

relevant authority.

Temporary write 

down at Pre-Specified 

Trigger Event, which 

is Common Equity 

Tier 1 capital falling 

below the regulatory 

level.

Permanent write 

down at a Point of 

Non-Viability (PONV) 

Trigger Event.  The 

PONV Trigger Event 

is the earlier of (1) 

a decision that full 

permanent write off 

/ other adjustment 

stipulated by RBI 

without which 

the Bank would 

become non-viable 

as determined by 

the RBI, and (2) the 

decision to make 

a public sector 

injection of capital or 

equivalent support 

without which the 

Bank would become 

non-viable as 

determined by the 

relevant authority.

32 If write-down, full or partial NA Fully or Partially Fully or Partially

33 If write-down, permanent or temporary NA Temporary or 

Permanent

Temporary or 

Permanent

34 If temporary write-down, description of 

write-up mechanism 

NA In case of temporary 

write down, 

outstanding principal 

amount of the Bond 

can be increased 

in accordance with 

RBI guidelines. The 

Bonds may be subject 

to more than one 

reinstatement.

In case of temporary 

write down, 

outstanding principal 

amount of the Bond 

can be increased 

in accordance with 

RBI guidelines. The 

Bonds may be subject 

to more than one 

reinstatement.
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Sr. 

No

Particulars Equity Shares Additional Tier 1 

Bond 

(Series I)

Additional Tier 1 

Bond 

(Series II)

35 Position in subordination hierarchy in 

liquidation (specify instrument type 

immediately senior to instrument)

NA The Bonds are senior 

/ superior to claims 

of investors in equity 

shares and perpetual 

n o n - c u m u l a t i v e 

preference shares 

issued by the Bank.

The Bonds are senior 

/ superior to claims 

of investors in equity 

shares and perpetual 

n o n - c u m u l a t i v e 

preference shares 

issued by the Bank.

36 Non-compliant transitioned features No No No

37 If yes, specify non-compliant features NA - -

DF-16: Equities – Disclosure for Banking Book Positions 

 Investments are classified at the time of purchase into Held for trade (HFT), Available for Sale (AFS) and Held to Maturity 

(HTM) categories in line with the RBI master circular- Prudential Norms for classification, valuation and operation of 

investments portfolio by Banks. In accordance with the RBI guidelines, investments in equity of subsidiaries and joint 

ventures (a joint venture will be one where the bank, along with its subsidiaries, holds more than 25 percent of the 

equity) are required to be classified under HTM category. For capital adequacy purpose, as per the RBI guidelines, equity 

securities held under HTM category are classified under banking book. Investments that are held principally for sale 

within a short period are classified as HFT securities. As per the RBI guidelines, HFT securities, which remain unsold for a 

period of 90 days are reclassified as AFS securities. 

 The amount of equity held in banking book is insignificant as on March 31, 2018.

DF-17: Summary comparison of accounting assets vs. leverage ratio exposure measure

 Leverage Ratio:

 Leverage ratio is a non-risk based measure of exposure over capital. The leverage ratio is calibrated to act as a credible 

supplementary measure to the risk based capital requirements.

 The Basel III leverage ratio is defined as the capital measure (the numerator) divided by the exposure measure (the 

denominator), with this ratio expressed as a percentage.

 Leverage Ratio = 
Capital Measure (Tier I Capital)

Exposure Measure

Summary comparison of accounting assets vs. leverage ratio exposure measure

 Item (` in millions)

1 Total consolidated assets as per published financial statements 2,131,721

2 Adjustment for investments in banking, financial, insurance or commercial entities that are 

consolidated for accounting purposes but outside the scope of regulatory consolidation

-

3 Adjustment for fiduciary assets recognised on the balance sheet pursuant to the operative 

accounting framework but excluded from the leverage ratio exposure measure

(3,778)

4 Adjustments for derivative financial instruments 91,578

5 Adjustment for securities financing transactions (i.e. repos and similar secured lending) 84,540

6 Adjustment for off-balance sheet items (i.e. conversion to credit equivalent amounts of  

off- balance sheet exposures)

493,264

7 Other adjustments -

8 Leverage ratio exposure 2,797,325
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DF-18: Leverage ratio

Leverage ratio

Item
Leverage ratio framework

(` in millions)

On balance sheet exposure

1 On-balance sheet items (excluding derivatives and SFTs, but including collateral) 2,131,721

2 (Asset amounts deducted in determining Basel III Tier 1 capital) (3,778)

3
Total on-balance sheet exposures (excluding derivatives and SFTs) (sum of lines 

1 and 2)
2,127,943

4
Replacement cost associated with all derivatives transactions (i.e. net of eligible 

cash variation margin)
25,340

5 Add-on amounts for PFE associated with all derivatives transactions 66,238

6
Gross-up for derivatives collateral provided where deducted from the balance 

sheet assets pursuant to the operative accounting framework
-

7
(Deductions of receivables assets for cash variation margin provided in derivatives 

transactions)
-

8 (Exempted CCP leg of client-cleared trade exposures) -

9 Adjusted effective notional amount of written credit derivatives -

10
(Adjusted effective notional offsets and add-on deductions for written credit 

derivatives)
-

11 Total derivative exposures (sum of lines 4 to 10) 91,578

12
Gross SFT assets (with no recognition of netting), after adjusting for sale accounting 

transactions
84,540

13 (Netted amounts of cash payables and cash receivables of gross SFT assets) -

14 CCR exposure for SFT assets -

15 Agent transaction exposures -

16 Total securities financing transaction exposures (sum of lines 12 to 15) 84,540

Other off-balance sheet exposures

17 Off-balance sheet exposure at gross notional amount 1,271,105

18 (Adjustments for conversion to credit equivalent amounts) (777,841)

19 Off-balance sheet items (sum of lines 17 and 18) 493,264

Capital and total exposures

20 Tier 1 capital 252,423

21 Total exposures (sum of lines 3, 11, 16 and 19) 2,797,325

Leverage ratio

22 Basel III leverage ratio 9.02%
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To The Members of IndusInd Bank Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of IndusInd Bank Limited (the “Bank”) and 

its associate company (refer Schedule 17(1) to the attached Consolidated financial statements), comprising of the 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, the Consolidated Cash Flow 

Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 

prepared based on the relevant records (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”). 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. The Board of Directors of the Bank is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in terms 

of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of 

the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Bank and 

its associate company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the 

requirements of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 ( B R Act) and other applicable Reserve Bank of India (RBI) 

directions in so far as it relates to the financial statements of the Bank. The Bank’s Board of Directors is also responsible for 

ensuring accuracy of records including financial information considered necessary for the preparation of consolidated 

financial statements. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Bank and its associate company 

are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Bank and its associate company respectively and for preventing and detecting frauds and 

other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates 

that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 

to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which has been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 

financial statements by the Directors of the Bank, as aforesaid.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. While 

conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including 

the accounting standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report.

4. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act 

and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 

Standards and pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 

those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the Bank’s preparation of the 

consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Bank’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

6. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms 

of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph 8 of the Other Matters paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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Opinion

7. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated 

financial statements give the information required by the Act and the provisions of section 29 of the B R Act and other 

applicable RBI directions insofar it relates to the financial statements of the Bank included in these consolidated financial 

statements, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Bank and its associate company as at March 31, 

2018 and their consolidated profit and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

8. The Consolidated financial statements also include the Bank’s share of net profit of ` 1,333,209 for the year ended March 

31, 2018 as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of one associate company whose financial 

statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditor whose report 

has been furnished to us by the Management, and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as it 

relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of associate company and our report in terms of sub-sections 

(3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act insofar as it relates to the aforesaid associate company, is based solely on the 

reports of the other auditor.

 Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of 

the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9. In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report have been drawn up in accordance 

with applicable provisions of section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and 

the provisions of section 29 of the B R Act insofar as it relates to the financial statements of the Bank included in these 

consolidated financial statements.

10. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act and Section 30 of the B R Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

 (b) The transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice during the course of our audit, have been within the 

powers of the Bank.

 (c) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Bank and its associate company 

incorporated in India including relevant records relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial 

statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and records of the Bank and 

the reports of the other auditor.

 (d) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and the Consolidated Cash Flow 

Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained by the Bank 

and its associate company incorporated in India including relevant records relating to the preparation of the 

consolidated financial statements.

 (e) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the requirements of 

Section 29 of the B R Act, and other applicable RBI directions in so far as it relates to the financial statements of the 

Bank included in these consolidated financial statements.

 (f ) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Bank as on March 31, 2018 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors of the Bank and the report of the statutory auditor of its associate company 

incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Bank and its associate company incorporated in India is 

disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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 (g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Bank and its associate 

company incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

Annexure A.

 (h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 

the explanations given to us:

  i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31, 

2018 on the consolidated financial position of the Bank and its associate company– Refer Schedule 12 and 

Note 3 of Schedule 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

  ii. Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the applicable law or 

accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative 

contracts as at March 31, 2018 – Refer (a) Note 4 of Schedule 18 to the consolidated financial statements 

in respect of such items as it relates to the Bank and its associate company and (b) the Bank’s share of net 

profit in respect of its associate company.

  iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Bank and its associate company, incorporated in India, during the year ended March 

31, 2018.

  iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Bank and its associate 

company, incorporated in India, for the year ended March 31, 2018.

 For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

 Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

 Chartered Accountants

 Russell I Parera

Mumbai Partner

April 19, 2018 Membership Number: 042190
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 10(g) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of IndusInd Bank 

Limited on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Bank of and for the year ended March 

31, 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IndusInd Bank Limited (hereinafter 

referred to as “the Bank”) and its associate company, which is company incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Bank and its associate company, which is company incorporated in India, 

are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on “internal control over financial 

reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (ICAI)”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 

including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 

of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based 

on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed 

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 

both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance 

Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such 

controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 

that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 

based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of 

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms of 

their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the Bank’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 

detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
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accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 

could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 

not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 

periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Bank and its associate company, which is company incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, 

an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 

reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

9. Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal 

financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to one associate company, which is company incorporated 

in India, is based on the corresponding report of the auditor of such company incorporated in India. Our opinion is not 

qualified in respect of this matter.

 For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

 Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

 Chartered Accountants

 Russell I Parera

Mumbai Partner

April 19, 2018 Membership Number: 042190
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

As per our report of even date. For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP R. Seshasayee

Chairman

Romesh Sobti

Managing DirectorChartered Accountants

Firm Registration No : 012754N/N500016

Russell I Parera T. Anantha Narayanan Kanchan Chitale

Partner Director Director

Membership No : 042190

Place  :  Mumbai S. V. Zaregaonkar Haresh Gajwani

Date  :  April 19, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Rupees in ‘000s

Schedule As at 

31.03.2018

As at 

31.03.2017

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

Capital 1 600,22,32 598,14,87

Employee Stock Options Outstanding 18 (Note 9.2) 14,57,11 15,20,07

Reserves and Surplus 2 23228,46,50 20034,25,47

Deposits 3 151639,17,43 126572,22,28

Borrowings 4 38289,07,82 22453,69,43

Other Liabilities and Provisions 5 7856,26,52 8976,37,58

TOTAL 221627,77,70 178649,89,70

ASSETS

Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India 6 10962,40,60 7748,74,71

Balances with Banks and Money at Call and Short Notice 7 2253,47,14 10879,50,71

Investments 8 50078,33,39 36703,62,14

Advances 9 144953,65,76 113080,50,76

Fixed Assets 10 1338,75,31 1335,23,28

Other Assets 11 12041,15,50 8902,28,10

TOTAL 221627,77,70 178649,89,70

Contingent Liabilities 12 662099,15,62 406387,19,15

Bills for Collection 37415,47,98 19006,90,91

Significant Accounting Policies 17

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 18

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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As per our report of even date. For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP R. Seshasayee

Chairman

Romesh Sobti

Managing DirectorChartered Accountants

Firm Registration No : 012754N/N500016

Russell I Parera T. Anantha Narayanan Kanchan Chitale

Partner Director Director

Membership No : 042190

Place  :  Mumbai S. V. Zaregaonkar Haresh Gajwani

Date  :  April 19, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the year ended  

March 31, 2018
Rupees in ‘000s

Schedule Year ended

31.03.2018

Year ended

31.03.2017

I. INCOME

 Interest Earned 13 17280,74,87 14405,67,03

 Other Income 14 4750,10,33 4171,49,22

TOTAL 22030,85,20 18577,16,25

II. EXPENDITURE

 Interest Expended 15 9783,30,45 8343,06,61

 Operating Expenses 16 5591,44,36 4783,07,58

 Provisions and Contingencies 3050,11,64 2583,12,79

TOTAL 18424,86,45 15709,26,98

III. PROFIT

 Net Profit for the year 3605,98,75 2867,89,27

 Add : Share in profit/(loss) of Associate 13,33 27,81

 Profit brought forward 7119,86,04 5014,65,48

TOTAL 10725,98,12 7882,82,56

IV. APPROPRIATIONS

 a) Transfer to Statutory Reserve 901,49,69 716,97,32

 b) Transfer to Capital Reserve 7,61,93 45,53,66

 c) Transfer to Investment Reserve Account  -  - 

 d) Proposed dividend (includes tax on dividend)

  [Refer Schedule 18 (Note 15.1)] 432,24,16 45,54

 e) Deductions during the year 71,51,62  

1412,87,40 762,96,52

 Balance carried over to the Balance Sheet 9313,10,72 7119,86,04

TOTAL 10725,98,12 7882,82,56

V. EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE

 (Face value of ` 10/- per share)

 Basic (`) 18 (Note 13) 60.20  48.07 

 Diluted (`) 18 (Note 13) 59.58  47.57 

 Significant Accounting Policies 17

 Notes to the Financial Statements 18

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended  

March 31, 2018
Rupees in ‘000s

Year ended 

31.03.2018

Year ended 

31.03.2017
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before taxation 5480,67,20 4359,68,85
Adjustments for :
Depreciation on Fixed assets 211,64,34 190,69,88 
(Appreciation) / Depreciation on Investments 120,86,12 31,36,39 
Employees Stock Option expenses 1,21,34 3,28,93 
Loan Loss and Other Provisions 1054,57,07 1059,96,81 
Amortisation of premium on HTM investments 179,32,22 78,50,86 
 Loss / (Profit) on sale of fixed assets (8,00,66) (3,14,57)
Share in Current Year profit of Associate 13,33 27,81 
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 7040,40,96 5720,64,96 
Adjustments for :
(Increase) / Decrease in Advances (32927,72,06) (25721,13,37)
(Increase) / Decrease in Investments (13674,89,59) (2757,97,41)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets (3038,10,85) 546,84,11 
Increase / (Decrease) in Deposits 25066,95,15 33571,87,67 
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Liabilities (1191,62,68) 2093,81,94 
Cash generated from/(used in) Operations (18724,99,07) 13454,07,90 
Direct Taxes paid (net of refunds) (1975,45,00) (1884,77,71)
Net Cash from/(used in) Operating Activities (20700,44,07) 11569,30,19 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets (including WIP) (235,79,27) (287,18,59)
Proceeds from sale of Fixed Assets 16,24,47 13,54,86 
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (219,54,80) (273,63,73)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of equity shares (net of issue expenses) 101,96,50 96,62,24 
Proceeds from issue of Long Term Infrastructure Bonds  - 1500,00,00 
Dividends paid (432,24,16) (322,70,55)
Proceeds from Perpetual Debt instruments 1000,00,00 1000,00,00 
Redemption of Sub-ordinated Tier 2 capital  - (308,90,00)
Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings 14835,38,38 (4733,27,06)
Net Cash generated from / (used in )Financing Activities 15505,10,72 (2768,25,37)
Effect of exchange fluctuation translation reserve 2,50,47 (11,02,82)
Net Increase /( Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (5412,37,68) 8516,38,27 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 18628,25,42 10111,87,15 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 13215,87,74 18628,25,42 

Notes:

1. The above Consolidated Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Accounting 
Standard 3 on Cash Flow Statements.

2. Figures in bracket indicate cash outflow.

3. Cash and cash equivalents comprise of Cash in Hand and Balances with RBI (Schedule 6) and Balances with Banks and 
Money at Call and Short Notice (Schedule 7). 

As per our report of even date. For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP R. Seshasayee

Chairman

Romesh Sobti

Managing DirectorChartered Accountants
Firm Registration No : 012754N/N500016

Russell I Parera T. Anantha Narayanan Kanchan Chitale
Partner Director Director
Membership No : 042190

Place  :  Mumbai S. V. Zaregaonkar Haresh Gajwani
Date  :  April 19, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Rupees in ‘000s

As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017

SCHEDULE - 1 CAPITAL

Authorised Capital   

70,00,00,000 (Previous year 70,00,00,000) equity shares of ` 10 each 700,00,00 700,00,00

Issued, Subscribed and Called Up Capital   

60,02,23,187 (Previous year 59,81,48,705) equity shares of ` 10 each 600,22,32 598,14,87

Paid up Capital   

60,02,23,187 (Previous year 59,81,48,705) equity shares of ` 10 each 600,22,32 598,14,87

Refer Schedule 18 (Note 1)   

TOTAL 600,22,32 598,14,87

SCHEDULE - 2 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

I Statutory Reserve

 Opening balance 2922,77,00 2205,79,68

 Additions during the year 901,49,69 716,97,32

3824,26,69 2922,77,00

II Share Premium Account

 Opening balance 9369,42,05 9274,10,55

 Additions during the year 101,73,36 95,31,50

9471,15,41 9369,42,05

III General Reserve

 Balance as at the end of the year 1,35,57 1,35,57

1,35,57 1,35,57

IV Capital Reserve

 Opening balance 215,74,87 170,21,21

 Additions during the year 7,61,93 45,53,66

223,36,80 215,74,87

V Capital Reserve on Consolidation 

 Opening Balance 35 35

 Addition during the Year - -

 Balance as at the end of the year 35 35

VI Investment Allowance Reserve

 Balance as at the end of the year 1,00,00 1,00,00

1,00,00 1,00,00

VII Investment Reserve Account

 Balance as at the end of the year 40,52,98 40,52,98

40,52,98 40,52,98

VIII Revaluation Reserve

 Opening balance 374,59,43 380,76,96

 Deductions during the year (12,39,10) (6,17,53)

 Balance as at the end of the year 362,20,33 374,59,43

Schedules to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Rupees in ‘000s

As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017

IX Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

 Opening balance (11,02,82)  - 

 Debits during the year 2,50,47 (11,02,82)

 Balance as at the end of the year (8,52,35) (11,02,82)

X Balance in the Profit and Loss Account 9313,10,72 7119,86,04

TOTAL 23228,46,50 20034,25,47

SCHEDULE - 3 DEPOSITS

A I Demand Deposits

  i) From Banks 393,92,35 991,32,40

  ii) From Others 20447,06,25 18617,48,76

 II Savings Bank Deposits 45888,27,30 27037,23,23

 III Term Deposits

  i) From Banks 5287,92,58 7328,65,30

  ii) From Others 79621,98,95 72597,52,59

TOTAL 151639,17,43 126572,22,28

B Deposits of Branches

 I In India 151639,17,43 126572,22,28

 II Outside India  -  - 

TOTAL 151639,17,43 126572,22,28

SCHEDULE - 4 BORROWINGS

I Borrowings in India

 i) Reserve Bank of India  -  - 

 ii) Other Banks 757,67,53 2367,48,93

 iii) Other Institutions and Agencies 21474,02,79 13500,00,00

 iv) Long Term Infrastructure Bonds 2000,00,00 2000,00,00

 v) Unsecured Non-Convertible Perpetual Non-Cumulative Bonds

  (Subordinated Debt qualifying as Additional Tier 1 Capital)

2000,00,00 1000,00,00

II Borrowings outside India 12057,37,50 3586,20,50

TOTAL 38289,07,82 22453,69,43

Secured borrowings other than Collaterised Borrowing and Lending Obligation 

and Repo Borrowings included in I above

- -

SCHEDULE - 5 OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

I Inter-office Adjustments (Net) 401,44,70 242,39,32

II Bills Payable 667,65,72 600,34,85

III Interest Accrued 788,20,11 947,61,27

IV Others 5998,95,99 7186,02,14

TOTAL 7856,26,52 8976,37,58

Schedules to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)
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Rupees in ‘000s

As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017

SCHEDULE - 6 CASH AND BALANCES WITH RESERVE BANK OF INDIA

I Cash in hand (including foreign currency notes) 1069,20,30 1135,52,11

II Balances with Reserve Bank of India

 i) In Current Account 9893,20,30 6613,22,60

 ii) In Other Accounts  -  - 

TOTAL 10962,40,60 7748,74,71

SCHEDULE - 7 BALANCES WITH BANKS AND MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT 

NOTICE

I In India

 i) Balances with Banks

  a) In Current Accounts 618,43,12 323,86,22

  b) In Other Deposit Accounts 310,25,00 2333,96,50

 ii) Money at Call and Short Notice - With Other Institutions  - 6300,00,00

TOTAL 928,68,12 8957,82,72

II Outside India

 i) In Current Accounts 493,80,89 467,74,28

 ii) In Other Deposit Accounts 635,45,63 805,43,70

 iii) Money at Call and Short Notice 195,52,50 648,50,01

TOTAL 1324,79,02 1921,67,99

GRAND TOTAL 2253,47,14 10879,50,71

SCHEDULE - 8 INVESTMENTS

I In India

 Gross Value 50286,92,17 36791,34,80

 Less : Aggregate of provision/depreciation 208,58,78 87,72,66

Net value of Investments in India 50078,33,39 36703,62,14

 Comprising :

 i) Government securities* 40365,98,63 31452,34,18

 ii) Other approved securities - - 

 iii) Shares 291,93,46 161,24,31

 iv) Debentures and bonds 4476,41,88 2524,57,26

 v) Subsidiaries and/or Joint Ventures - - 

 vi) Others - Security Receipt, Units of schemes of Mutual Funds and 

Others

4942,37,47 2563,97,77

 vii) Associate (1) 16,195 1,48,62

II Outside India - - 

TOTAL 50078,33,39 36703,62,14

Schedules to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)
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Rupees in ‘000s

As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
 (1) Investment in Associate

 Investment at Cost 30 30

 Add : Capital Reserve on the date of Acquisition 35 35

 Equity Investment in Associate 65 65

 Add : Post-acquisition profit/loss of Associate (Equity method) 1,61,30 1,47,97

 Less : Share of Unrealised Profit in Associate - - 

TOTAL 1,61,95 1,48,62

*Includes securities of ` 274.38 crores (previous year ` 275.02 crores) pledged for 

clearing facility and margin requirements.

SCHEDULE - 9 ADVANCES

A i) Bills Purchased and Discounted 4331,25,05 4031,26,82

 ii) Cash Credits, Overdrafts and Loans Repayable on Demand 43077,06,30 33010,05,62

 iii) Term Loans 97545,34,41 76039,18,32

TOTAL 144953,65,76 113080,50,76

B i) Secured by Tangible Assets (includes advances against book debts) 112723,03,02 96573,78,66

 ii) Covered by Bank/Government Guarantees (includes advances against 

L/Cs. issued by Banks)

2834,42,39 2215,14,18

 iii) Unsecured 29396,20,35 14291,57,92

TOTAL 144953,65,76 113080,50,76

C I Advances in India

  i) Priority Sector 45314,30,79 34821,02,43

  ii) Public Sector 5090,73,31 1655,03,58

  iii) Banks 64,00 48,08

  iv) Others 90151,67,34 74886,79,76

TOTAL 140557,35,44 111363,33,85

 II Advances Outside India 4396,30,32 1717,16,91

TOTAL 144953,65,76 113080,50,76

SCHEDULE - 10 FIXED ASSETS

I Premises

 i) At cost, as at the beginning of the year 586,58,71 590,01,82

 ii) Additions during the year - - 

 586,58,71 590,01,82

 iii) Less : Deductions during the year 10,94,40 3,43,11

 iv) Less : Depreciation to date [Refer Schedule 18 (Note 2.3)] 82,15,41 74,95,41

TOTAL 493,48,90 511,63,30

Schedules to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)
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Rupees in ‘000s

As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017

II Other Fixed Assets (including furniture and fixtures)

 i) At cost, as at the beginning of the year 1735,37,02 1465,63,13

 ii) Additions during the year 238,78,76 296,22,64

1974,15,78 1761,85,77

 iii) Less : Deductions during the year 29,05,97 26,48,75

 iv) Less : Depreciation to date [(Refer Schedule 18 (Note 2.3)] 1125,27,62 940,20,75

TOTAL 819,82,19 795,16,27

III Capital Work in Progress 25,44,22 28,43,71

GRAND TOTAL 1338,75,31 1335,23,28

SCHEDULE - 11 OTHER ASSETS

I Interest Accrued 1377,69,80 917,41,89

II Tax Paid in Advance/tax deducted at source (net of provision) 819,08,61 686,69,35

III Stationery and Stamps 56,81 1,54,43

IV Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 372,20,40 29,68,73

V Others [Deferred Tax Assets (Refer Schedule 18 (Note 14))] 9471,59,88 7266,93,70

TOTAL 12041,15,50 8902,28,10

SCHEDULE - 12 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

I Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts 476,51,86 522,68,84

II Liability on account of outstanding Forward Exchange Contracts 351440,73,62 215013,20,26

III Liability on account of outstanding Derivative Contracts 245530,75,62 138028,58,33

IV Guarantees given on behalf of constituents

 - In India 45380,96,66 38903,46,44

 - Outside India 559,32,07 60,82,61

V Acceptances, Endorsements and Other Obligations 16587,23,27 12739,47,55

VI Other Items for which the Bank is contingently liable 2123,62,52 1118,95,12

TOTAL 662099,15,62 406387,19,15

Rupees in ‘000s

Year ended

31.03.2018

Year ended

31.03.2017

SCHEDULE - 13 INTEREST EARNED

I Interest/Discount on Advances/Bills 13699,90,54 11479,10,87

II Income on Investments 3074,38,28 2466,88,91

III Interest on Balances with RBI and Other Inter-Bank Funds 321,47,51 330,83,18

IV Others 184,98,54 128,84,07

TOTAL 17280,74,87 14405,67,03

SCHEDULE - 14 OTHER INCOME

I Commission, Exchange and Brokerage 3411,91,42 2895,34,09

II Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Investments 363,78,33 276,91,92

III Profit/(Loss) on Sale of Land, Buildings and Other Assets (Net) 8,00,66 3,14,57

IV Profit on exchange transactions/Derivatives (Net) 921,01,58 919,51,71

V Income earned by way of dividend from companies in India 30,02 30,80

VI Miscellaneous Income 45,08,32 76,26,13

TOTAL 4750,10,33 4171,49,22

Schedules to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)
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Rupees in ‘000s

Year ended

31.03.2018

Year ended

31.03.2017

SCHEDULE - 15 INTEREST EXPENDED

I Interest on Deposits 8045,95,62 6931,27,54

II Interest on Reserve Bank of India/Inter-Bank Borrowings 188,28,69 341,28,83

III Other Interest 1549,06,14 1070,50,24

TOTAL 9783,30,45 8343,06,61

SCHEDULE - 16 OPERATING EXPENSES

I Payments to and Provisions for Employees 1780,68,56 1521,02,16

II Rent, Taxes and Lighting (includes operating lease rentals) 373,02,03 326,56,01

III Printing and Stationery 65,71,65 63,06,99

IV Advertisement and Publicity 32,54,70 50,33,60

V Depreciation on Bank's Property 211,64,34 190,69,88

VI Directors' Fees, Allowances and Expenses 2,78,73 2,71,53

VII Auditors' Fees and Expenses 2,07,36 2,08,63

VIII Law Charges 71,57,65 42,42,54

IX Postage, Telegrams, Telephones, etc. 130,51,15 134,78,55

X Repairs and Maintenance 341,82,56 255,14,69

XI Insurance 167,80,30 137,57,00

XII Service Provider Fees 418,24,15 381,26,30

XIII Other Expenditure 1993,01,18 1675,39,70

TOTAL 5591,44,36 4783,07,58

Schedules to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd.)
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1. General

 1.1 IndusInd Bank Limited (‘the Bank’) was incorporated in 1994 under the Companies Act, 1956 and is licensed by 

the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) to operate as a commercial bank under the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. The 

Bank is publicly held and provides a wide range of banking products and financial services to corporate and 

retail clients besides undertaking treasury operations. The Bank operates in India including at the International 

Financial Service Centres in India, and does not have a branch in any foreign country.

 1.2 Principles of Consolidation

  The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of IndusInd Bank Limited (‘the Bank’) 

and its Associate, which together constitute ‘the Group’.

  The Bank consolidates investments in associates in accordance with AS-23, “Accounting for Investments” in 

Associates in “consolidated financial statements” notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read 

together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, using the equity method of accounting.

  The difference between the cost of investment in the associate and the share of net asset at the time of acquisition 

of share in the associate, is identified in the consolidated financial statements as goodwill or capital reserve, as the 

case may be.

 1.3 Basis of preparation

  The accompanying financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except where 

otherwise stated, and in accordance with statutory requirements prescribed under the Banking Regulation Act, 

1949, circulars and guidelines issued by RBI from time to time (RBI guidelines), accounting standards referred to in 

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the Act) and practices prevailing within the banking industry in India.

  The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India 

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 

revenues, expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Management 

believes that the estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and 

reasonable. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

  The consolidated financial statements present the accounts of IndusInd Bank Limited with its Associate IndusInd 

Marketing & Financial Services Private Limited.

  As per AS-23, the Consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the audited results of the following associate:

Name of the Associate Country of Origin % Shareholding of 

Group as at 

March 31, 2018

% Shareholding of 

Group as at 

March 31, 2017

IndusInd Marketing & Financial 

Services Private Limited

India 30% 30%

2. Transactions involving Foreign Exchange

 2.1 Monetary assets and liabilities of domestic and integral foreign operations denominated in foreign currency are 

translated at the Balance Sheet date at the closing rates of exchange notified by the Foreign Exchange Dealers’ 

Association of India (‘FEDAI’) and the resulting gains or losses are recognised in the Profit and Loss account.

 2.2 Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported 

using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value 

or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed 

when the values were determined.

Schedule 17 Significant accounting policies
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 2.3 Both monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities of non-integral foreign operations are translated at the 

Balance Sheet date at the closing rates of exchange notified by the Foreign Exchange Dealers’ Association of 

India (‘FEDAI’) and the resulting gains or losses are accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve until 

disposal of the net investment in the non-integral foreign operation.

 2.4 All foreign exchange contracts outstanding at the Balance Sheet date are re-valued on present value basis and the 

resulting gains or losses are recognised in the Profit and Loss account.

 2.5 Swap Cost arising on account of foreign currency swap contracts to convert foreign currency funded liabilities 

and assets into rupee liabilities and assets is amortised to the Profit and Loss account under the head ‘Interest – 

Others’ over the underlying swap period.

 2.6 Income and expenditure of domestic and integral foreign operations denominated in a foreign currency is 

translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Income and expenditure of non-

integral foreign operations is translated at quarterly average closing rates.

 2.7 Contingent liabilities at the Balance Sheet date on account of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts, 

guarantees, acceptances, endorsements and other obligations denominated in a foreign currency are stated at 

the closing rates of exchange notified by the FEDAI.

3. Investments

 Significant accounting policies in accordance with RBI guidelines are as follows:

 3.1 Categorisation of Investments

  The Bank classifies its investment at the time of purchase into one of the following three categories:

  (i) Held to Maturity (HTM) – Securities acquired with the intention to hold till maturity.

  (ii) Held for Trading (HFT) – Securities acquired with the intention to trade.

  (iii) Available for Sale (AFS) – Securities which do not fall within the above two categories.

  Subsequent shifting amongst the categories is done in accordance with RBI guidelines.

 3.2 Classification of Investments

  For the purpose of disclosure in the Balance Sheet, investments are classified under six groups viz., (i) Government 

Securities, (ii) Other Approved Securities, (iii) Shares, (iv) Debentures and Bonds, (v) Investments in Subsidiaries 

and Joint Ventures, and (vi) Other Investments.

 3.3 Acquisition cost

  (i) Broken period interest on debt instruments is treated as a revenue item.

  (ii) Brokerage, commission, etc. pertaining to investments, paid at the time of acquisition is charged to the 

Profit and Loss account.

  (iii) Cost of investments is computed based on the weighted average cost method.

 3.4 Valuation of Investments

  (i) Held to Maturity – Each security in this category is carried at its acquisition cost. Any premium on 

acquisition of the security is amortised over the balance period to maturity. The amortized amount is 

classified under Interest earned – Income on investments (Item II of Schedule 13). The book value of the 

security is reduced to the extent of amount amortized during the relevant accounting period. Diminution, 

other than temporary, is determined and provided for each investment individually.

  (ii) Held for Trading – Securities are valued scrip-wise and depreciation/appreciation is aggregated for each 

classification. Net appreciation in each classification is ignored, while net depreciation is provided for.
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  (iii) Available for Sale – Securities are valued scrip-wise and depreciation/appreciation is aggregated for each 

classification. Net appreciation in each classification is ignored, while net depreciation is provided for.

  (iv) Market value of government securities (excluding treasury bills) is determined on the basis of the prices/

YTM published by Financial Benchmark India Private Limited (FBIL).

  (v) Treasury bills are valued at carrying cost, which includes discount amortised over the period to maturity.

  (vi) Fair value of other debt securities is determined based on the yield curve published by FBIL and credit 

spreads provided by Fixed Income Money Market and Derivatives Association (FIMMDA).

  (vii) Quoted equity shares are valued at lower of cost and the closing price on a recognised stock exchange. 

Unquoted equity shares are valued at their break-up value or at Re. 1 per company where the latest Balance 

Sheet is not available.

  (viii) Units of the schemes of mutual funds are valued at the lower of cost and Net Asset Value (NAV) provided by 

the respective schemes of mutual funds.

  (ix) Investments in equity shares held as long-term investments by erstwhile IndusInd Enterprises & Finance 

Limited and Ashok Leyland Finance Limited (since merged with the Bank) are valued at cost and classified 

as part of HTM category. Provision towards diminution in the value of such long-term investments is made 

only if the diminution in value is not temporary in the opinion of management.

  (x) Security Receipts (SR) are valued at the lower of redemption value and NAV obtained from the Securitisation 

Company (SC)/Reconstruction Company (RC).

  (xi) Purchase and sale transaction in securities are recorded under Settlement Date method of accounting, 

except in the case of the equity shares where Trade Date method of accounting is followed.

  (xii) Provision for non-performing investments is made in conformity with RBI guidelines.

  (xiii) Repurchase (Repo) and Reverse Repurchase (Reverse Repo) transactions (including transactions under 

Liquidity Adjustment Facility (LAF) with RBI) are accounted for as collateralised borrowing and lending 

respectively. On completion of the second leg of the Repo or Reverse Repo transaction, the difference 

between the consideration amounts is reckoned as Interest Expenditure or Income, as the case may be. 

Amounts outstanding in Repo and Reverse Repo account as at the Balance Sheet date is shown as part of 

Borrowings and Money at Call and at Short Notice respectively, and the accrued expenditure and income 

till the Balance Sheet date is recognised in the Profit and Loss account.

  (xiv) In respect of the short sale transactions in Central Government dated securities, the short position is 

covered by outright purchase of an equivalent amount of the same security within a maximum period 

of three months including the day of trade. The short position is reflected as the amount received on sale 

in a separate account and is classified under ‘Other Liabilities’. The short position is marked to market and 

loss, if any, is charged to the Profit and Loss account, while gain, if any, is not recognised. Profit or loss on 

settlement of the short position is recognised in the Profit and Loss account.

  (xv) Profit in respect of investments sold from HTM category is included in the Profit on Sale of Investments and 

an equivalent amount (net of taxes, if any, and net of transfer to Statutory Reserves as applicable to such 

profits) is appropriated from the Profit and Loss Appropriation account to Capital Reserve account.

  (xvi) In the event, provisions created on account of depreciation in the AFS or HFT categories are found to be 

in excess of the required amount in any year, the excess is credited to the Profit and Loss account and an 

equivalent amount (net of taxes, if any, and net of transfer to Statutory Reserves as applicable to such 

excess provisions) is appropriated to an Investment Reserve Account (IRA).

   The balance in IRA account is used to meet provision on account of depreciation in AFS and HFT categories 

by transferring an equivalent amount to the Profit and Loss Appropriation account as and when required.
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 3.5 Investments in unquoted units of Venture Capital Funds (VCF) and Alternative Investment Funds (AIF) are 

categorised under HTM category for initial period of three years and valued at cost as per RBI guidelines. Units of 

VCF and AIF held under AFS category, where current quotations are not available, are marked to market based on 

the Net Asset Value (NAV) shown by VCF or AIF as per the latest audited financials of the fund. In case the audited 

financials are not available for a period beyond 18 months, the investments are valued at Re. 1 per VCF or AIF, as 

the case may be.

4. Derivatives

 Derivative contracts are designated as hedging or trading and accounted for as follows:

 4.1 The hedging contracts comprise of Forward Rate Agreements, Interest Rate Swaps and Currency Swaps undertaken 

to hedge interest rate and currency risk on certain assets and liabilities. The net interest receivable or payable is 

accounted on an accrual basis over the life of the swaps. However, where the hedge is designated with an asset 

or liability that is carried at market value or lower of cost and market value, then the hedging instrument is also 

marked to market with the resulting gain or loss recorded as an adjustment to the market value of designated 

assets or liabilities.

 4.2 The trading contracts comprise of trading in Interest Rate Swaps, Interest Rate Futures and Currency Futures. The 

gain or loss arising on unwinding or termination of the contracts, is accounted for in the Profit and Loss account. 

Trading contracts outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date are re-valued at their fair value and resulting gains or 

losses are recognised in the Profit and Loss account.

 4.3 Gains or losses on the termination of hedge swaps is deferred and recognised over the shorter of the remaining 

life of the hedge swap or the remaining life of the underlying asset or liability.

 4.4 Premium paid and received on currency options is accounted when due in the Profit and Loss Account.

 4.5 Fair value of derivative is determined with reference to bid/asks quoted market price or by using valuation 

models. Where the fair value is calculated using valuation models, the methodology is to calculate the expected 

cash flows under the terms of each specific contract and then discount these values back to the present value. The 

valuation takes into consideration all relevant market factors (e.g. prices, interest rate, currency exchange rates, 

volatility, liquidity etc.). Most market parameters are either are directly observable or are implied from instrument 

prices. The model may perform numerical procedures in the pricing such as interpolation when input values do 

not directly correspond to the most actively traded market trade parameters.

 4.6 Provisioning of overdue customer receivable on derivative contracts is made as per RBI guidelines.

5. Advances

 5.1 Advances are classified as per RBI guidelines into standard, sub-standard, doubtful and loss assets after considering 

subsequent recoveries to date.

 5.2 Specific provisions for non-performing advances and floating provisions are made in conformity with RBI 

guidelines. In addition the Bank considers accelerated provisioning based on past experience, evaluation of 

securities and other related factors.

 5.3 A general provision on standard assets is made in accordance with RBI guidelines. Provision made against 

standard assets is included in ‘Other Liabilities and Provisions’.

 5.4 Advances are disclosed in the Balance Sheet, net of provisions and interest suspended for non-performing 

advances, and floating provisions.

 5.5 Advances exclude derecognised securitised advances, inter-bank participation certificates issued and bills 

rediscounted.

 5.6 Amounts recovered during the year against bad debts written off in earlier years are recognised in the Profit and 

Loss account.



259

 5.7 Provision no longer considered necessary in the context of the current status of the borrower as a performing 

asset, are written back to the Profit and Loss account to the extent such provisions were charged to the Profit and 

Loss account.

 5.8 For restructured/rescheduled assets, provision is made in accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI, which 

requires the diminution in the fair value of the assets to be provided at the time of restructuring. The restructured 

accounts are classified in accordance with RBI guidelines, including special dispensation wherever allowed.

6. Securitisation transactions and direct assignments

 6.1 The Bank transfers its loan receivables both through Direct Assignment route as well as transfer to Special Purpose 

Vehicles (‘SPV’).

 6.2 The securitisation transactions are without recourse to the Bank. The transferred loans and such securitised 

receivables are de-recognised as and when these are sold (true sale criteria being fully met) and the consideration 

has been received by the Bank. Gains or losses are recognised only if the Bank surrenders the rights to the benefits 

specified in the loan contracts.

 6.3 In terms of RBI guidelines, profit or premium arising on account of sale of standard assets, being the difference 

between the sale consideration and book value, is amortized over the life of the securities issued by the Special 

Purpose Vehicles (SPV). Any loss arising on account of the sale is recognised in the Profit and Loss account in the 

period in which the sale occurs.

 6.4 In case of sale of non-performing assets through securitisation route to Securitisation Company or Asset 

Reconstruction Company by way of assignment of debt against issuance of Security Receipts (SR), the recognition 

of sale and accounting of profit and loss thereon is done in accordance with applicable RBI guidelines. Generally, 

the sale is recognised at the lower of redemption value of SR and the Net Book Value (NBV) of the financial asset 

sold, and the surplus is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account; shortfall if any, is charged to the Profit and Loss 

account subject to regulatory forbearance, if any, allowed from time to time. Profit or loss realized on ultimate 

redemption of the SR is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account.

7. Property, Plant and Equipment

 7.1 Fixed assets are stated at cost (except in the case of premises which were re-valued based on values determined 

by approved valuers) less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost includes incidental expenditure 

incurred on the assets before they are ready for intended use.

 7.2 The appreciation on account of revaluation is credited to Revaluation Reserve. Depreciation relating to revaluation 

is adjusted against the Revaluation Reserve.

 7.3 Depreciation is provided over the useful life of the assets, pro rata for the period of use, on a straight-line method. 

The useful life estimates prescribed in Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 are generally adhered 

to, except in respect of asset classes where, based on technical evaluation, a different estimate of useful life is 

considered suitable. Pursuant to this policy, the useful life estimates in respect of the following assets are as 

follows:

  (a) Computers at 3 years

  (b) Application software and perpetual software licences at 5 years

  (c) Printers, Scanners, Routers, Switch at 5 years

  (d) ATMs at 7 years

  (e) Network cabling, Electrical Installations, Furniture and Fixtures, Other Office Machinery at 10 years.

  (f ) Vehicles at 5 years

  (g) Buildings at 60 years.
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  The useful life of an asset class is periodically assessed taking into account various criteria such as changes in 

technology, changes in business environment, utility and efficacy of an asset class to meet with intended user 

needs, etc. Whenever there is a revision in the estimated useful life of an asset, the unamortised depreciable 

amount is charged over the revised remaining useful life of the said asset.

 7.4 The carrying amount of fixed assets is reviewed at the Balance Sheet date to determine if there are any indications 

of impairment based on internal/external factors. In case of impaired assets, the impairment loss i.e. the amount 

by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable value is charged to the Profit and Loss account 

to the extent the carrying amount of assets exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

8. Revenue Recognition

 8.1 Interest and discount income on performing assets is recognised on accrual basis. Interest and discount income 

on non-performing assets is recognised on realisation.

 8.2 Interest on Government securities, debentures and other fixed income securities is recognised on a period 

proportion basis. Income on discounted instruments is recognised over the tenor of the instrument on a Constant 

Yield to Maturity method.

 8.3 Dividend income is accounted on accrual basis when the right to receive dividend is established.

 8.4 Commission (except for commission on Deferred Payment Guarantees which is recognised over the term on a 

straight line basis), Exchange and Brokerage are recognised on a transaction date and net of directly attributable 

expenses.

 8.5 Fees are recognised on an accrual basis when binding obligation to recognise the fees has arisen as per agreement, 

except in cases where the Bank is uncertain of realisation.

 8.6 Income from distribution of third party products is recognised on the basis of business booked.

 8.7 For Associate, Service Charges are accounted on accrual basis

9. Operating Leases

 9.1 Lease rental obligations in respect of assets taken on operating lease are charged to the Profit and Loss account 

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

 9.2 Assets given under leases in respect of which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the 

Bank are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals received under operating leases are recognised in the Profit 

and Loss account as per the terms of the contracts.

10. Employee Benefits

 10.1 The Gratuity scheme of the Bank is a defined benefit scheme and the expense for the year is recognised on the 

basis of actuarial valuation at the Balance Sheet date. The present value of the obligation under such benefit 

plan is determined based on independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method which 

recognizes each period of service that gives rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures 

each unit separately to build up the final obligation. Payment obligations under the Group Gratuity scheme are 

managed through purchase of appropriate policies from insurers.

 10.2 Provident Fund contributions are made under trusts separately established for the purpose and the scheme 

administered by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (RPFC), as applicable. The rate at which the annual 

interest is payable to the beneficiaries by the trusts is being administered by the government. The Bank has an 

obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return from the investments of the trusts and the 

notified interest rates. Actuarial valuation of this Provident Fund interest shortfall is done as per the guidance note 

on Valuation of Interest Rate Guarantees on Exempt Provident Funds under AS 15 (Revised) issued by the Institute 

of Actuaries of India, and such shortfall, if any, is provided for.
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 10.3 Provision for compensated absences is made on the basis of actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet date. The 

actuarial valuation is carried out using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

 10.4 Intrinsic value method is applied to account for the compensation cost of ESOP granted to the employees of the 

Bank. Intrinsic value is the amount by which the quoted market price of the underlying shares on the grant date 

exceeds the exercise price of the options. Accordingly, such compensation cost is amortized over the vesting 

period.

11. Segment Reporting

 11.1 In accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI, the Bank has adopted Segment Reporting as under:

  (a) Treasury includes all investment portfolios, Profit/Loss on sale of Investments, Profit/Loss on foreign 

exchange transactions, equities, income from derivatives and money market operations. The expenses 

of this segment consist of interest expenses on funds borrowed from external sources as well as internal 

sources and depreciation/amortisation of premium on Held to Maturity category investments.

  (b) Corporate/Wholesale Banking includes lending to and deposits from corporate customers and identified 

earnings and expenses of the segment.

  (c) Retail Banking includes lending to and deposits from retail customers and identified earnings and 

expenses of the segment.

  (d) Other Banking Operations includes all other operations not covered under Treasury, Corporate/Wholesale 

Banking and Retail Banking.

  Unallocated includes Capital and Reserves, Employee Stock Options (Grants) Outstanding and other unallocable 

assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

12. Debit and Credit Card reward points liability

 12.1 The liability towards Credit Card reward points is computed based on an actuarial valuation and the liability 

towards Debit Card reward points is computed on the basis of management estimates considering past trends.

13. Bullion

 13.1 The Bank imports bullion including precious metal bars on a consignment basis for selling to its customers. The 

imports are on a back-to-back basis and are priced to the customer based on the prevailing price quoted by the 

supplier and the local levies related to the consignment like customs duty, etc. The profit earned is included in 

commission income.

 13.2 The Bank sells gold coins to its customers. The difference between the sale price to customers and purchase price 

is reflected under commission income.

14. Income-tax

 14.1 Tax expenses comprise of current and deferred taxes. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be 

paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred taxes reflect the impact of 

current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of 

timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted 

or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised, in general, only to the 

extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such 

deferred tax assets can be realized; where there are unabsorbed depreciation and/or carry forward of losses under 

tax laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that 

such deferred tax asset can be realized against future taxable income. Unrecognised deferred tax assets of earlier 

years are re-assessed and recognised to the extent that it has become reasonably certain that future taxable 

income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.
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15. Earnings per share

 15.1 Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Net Profit or Loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 

by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per equity 

share are computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares 

outstanding as at end of the year.

16. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

 16.1 A provision is recognised when there is an obligation as a result of past event, and it is probable that an outflow 

of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 

Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle 

the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect 

the current best estimates.

 16.2 A disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is:

  (a) A possible obligation arising from a past event, the existence of which will be confirmed by occurrence or 

non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the bank; or

  (b) A present obligation arising from a past event which is not recognised as it is not probable that an outflow 

of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation 

cannot be made.

 16.3 When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of 

resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

 16.4 Contingent assets are not recognised or disclosed in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are 

assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the assets and 

related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

17. Cash and Cash equivalents

 17.1 Cash and cash equivalents comprises of Cash in Hand and Balances with RBI and Balances with Banks and Money 

at Call and Short Notice.
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1. Capital

 During the year ended March 31, 2018, 20,74,482 equity shares (Previous year 31,62,370 equity shares) aggregating to  

` 101.97 crores (Previous year ` 96.62 crores) were allotted on various dates to the employees who exercised their stock 

options.

2. Fixed Assets

 2.1 Cost of premises includes ` 4.09 crores (Previous year ` 4.09 crores) in respect of properties for which execution 

of documents and registration formalities are in progress. Of these properties, the Bank has not obtained full 

possession of one property having written down value of ` 1.51 crores (Previous year ` 1.56 crores) and has filed 

a suit for the same.

 2.2 Computer software

  The movement in fixed assets capitalized as computer software is given below:

(` in crores)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

At cost at the beginning of the year 338.52 280.48

Addition during the year 51.19 61.10

Deduction during the year - 3.06

Accumulated depreciation as at the end of the year 260.50 207.26

Closing balance as at the end of the year 129.21 131.26

Depreciation charge for the year 53.24 47.20

 2.3 Movement in depreciation of Fixed Assets

(` in crores)

Depreciation 2017-18 2016-17

Premises

At the beginning of the year 74.96 66.72

Transferred from Revaluation Reserve 6.13 6.18

Charge for the year 2.05 2.06

Deduction during the year 0.99 -

Depreciation to date 82.15 74.96

Other Fixed Assets 

At the beginning of the year 940.21 771.09

Charge for the year 209.59 188.64

Deduction during the year 24.52 19.52

Depreciation to date 1,125.28 940.21

3. Contingent Liabilities

 The Bank’s pending litigations include claims against the Bank by clients and counterparties and proceedings pending 

with tax authorities. The Bank has reviewed its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for 

where provisions are required, and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. Claims 

against the Bank not acknowledged as debts comprise of tax demands of ` 176.28 crores (Previous year ` 165.18 crores) 

Schedule 18 
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements



264

Annual Report 2017-18

in respect of which the Bank is in appeal, and legal cases sub judice of ` 300.24 crores (Previous year ` 357.50 crores). The 

Bank carries a provision of ` 4.52 crores (Previous year ` 4.48 crores) against cases sub judice. The amount of contingent 

liabilities is based on management’s estimate, and no significant liability is expected to arise out of the same.

4. The Bank has a process whereby all long term contracts (including derivative contracts) are assessed for material 

foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Bank has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under any 

law/accounting standards for material foreseeable losses on such long term contracts (including derivative contracts) 

has been made in the books of account.

5. There is no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by 

the Bank (Previous year Nil).

6. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

 The Bank has spent an amount of ` 20.47 crores (Previous year ` 33.81 crores) towards CSR initiatives through various 

projects in the areas of Rural Development and Inclusiveness, Environment Sustainability, Preventive Healthcare, 

Education and Sports. Of the total CSR spends, an amount of ` 0.13 crores (Previous year ` 21.16 crores) was incurred 

towards capital expenditure.

 The Bank does not have any Off-Balance Sheet SPVs (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting standards) 

(Previous Year Nil).

7. In March 2017, the Bank made an announcement of entering into an agreement with Infrastructure Leasing and 

Financial Services Ltd., (IL&FS) the Promoter shareholders of IL&FS Securities Services Ltd., (ISSL) to acquire 100% of 

ISSL. RBI has granted approval for the proposed acquisition. This transaction is conditional on definitive agreements and 

other regulatory approvals, and thus, does not have any bearing on the current financial results or the financial position 

of the Bank as at March 31, 2018.

8. On October 14, 2017, the Board of Directors of the Bank and Bharat Financial Inclusion Limited (BFIL), at their respective 

meetings, approved a merger of BFIL with the Bank in an all-stock transaction through a Composite Scheme of 

Arrangement. The Competition Commission of India has approved the proposed Scheme and RBI has accorded their 

“No Objection” for the merger. The incorporation of the wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank is subject to the approval of 

the RBI, which is pending. The Scheme is pending approval from the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)/stock 

exchanges, the respective shareholders and creditors of the Bank and BFIL, the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), 

and is subject to compliance with the conditions specified by RBI. As such, the proposed transaction does not have any 

impact on the current financial results or the financial position of the Bank as at March 31, 2018.

9. Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS)

 9.1 The shareholders of the Bank approved Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS 2007) on September 18, 2007. 

ESOS enables the Board and the Compensation Committee to grant such number of stock options of the Bank 

not exceeding 7% of the aggregate number of issued and paid up equity shares of the Bank, in line with the 

guidelines issued by the SEBI. The options vest within a maximum period of five years from the date of grant of 

option. The exercise price for each grant is decided by the Compensation Committee, which is normally based on 

the latest available closing price. Upon vesting, the options have to be exercised within a maximum period of five 

years. The stock options are equity settled where the employees will receive one equity share per stock option.
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  Pursuant to the ESOS 2007 scheme, the Compensation Committee of the Bank has granted 4,16,33,300 options as 

set out below:

Sr. No. Date of grant No of options Range of exercise price (`)

1. 18-Jul-08 1,21,65,000 48.00 - 50.60

2. 17-Dec-08 34,56,000 38.95

3. 05-May-09 8,15,500 44.00

4. 31-Aug-09 3,18,500 100.05

5. 28-Jan-10 7,47,000 48.00 - 140.15

6. 28-Jun-10 13,57,450 196.50

7. 14-Sep-10 73,500 236.20

8. 26-Oct-10 1,43,500 274.80

9. 17-Jan-11 25,00,000 228.70

10. 07-Feb-11 20,49,000 95.45 - 220.45

11. 24-Jun-11 21,54,750 253.60

12. 16-Aug-11 89,500 254.90

13. 30-Sep-11 2,61,000 262.25

14. 21-Dec-11 9,20,000 231.95

15. 29-Feb-12 1,95,000 304.05

16. 19-Apr-12 1,40,500 345.60

17. 25-May-12 1,34,500 304.55

18. 10-Jul-12 2,67,000 343.25

19. 29-Aug-12 1,14,000 319.05

20. 10-Oct-12 23,500 365.75

21. 09-Jan-13 30,000 433.75

22. 18-Apr-13 12,500 419.60

23. 20-Jun-13 1,75,000 478.45

24. 18-Jul-13 18,35,000 453.90

25. 23-Sep-13 75,000 411.50

26. 29-Oct-13 22,000 412.25

27. 29-Jan-14 7,67,500 300.00-389.85

28. 25-Mar-14 1,76,500 490.30

29. 15-May-14 65,500 537.05

30. 02-Jun-14 32,69,500 533.95

31. 09-Jul-14 33,000 551.10

32. 13-Oct-14 74,500 623.25

33. 17-Jan-15 47,500 831.85

34. 23-Feb-15 48,000 876.80
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Sr. No. Date of grant No of options Range of exercise price (`)

35. 30-Mar-15 11,000 880.75

36. 22-May-15 52,600 848.20

37. 24-Jul-15 16,30,000 949.80

38. 21-Sep-15 1,93,000 918.65

39. 04-Nov-15 93,500 911.85

40. 12-Jan-16 10,33,500 886.75 – 936.75

41. 12-May-16 13,500 1053.75

42. 11-Jul-16 25,000 1126.70

43. 23-Aug-16 2,76,000 1186.75

44. 10-Oct-16 18,51,000 1220.85

45. 16-Nov-16 33,500 1093.10

46. 27-Jan-17 21,500 1265.40

47. 24-Mar-17 49,000 1383.90

48. 19-Apr-17 16,000 1431.75

49. 09-May-17 69,000 1424.85

50. 19-Jun-17 38,500 1498.90

51. 11-Jul-17 35,000 1560.35

52. 12-Oct-17 69,000 1717.25

53. 11-Jan-18 43,000 1734.10

54. 27-Mar-18 15,23,000 1759.75

 9.2 Recognition of expense

  The Bank follows the intrinsic value method to recognize employee costs relating to ESOS, in accordance with 

the Guidance Note on “Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments” issued by the ICAI. Excess of fair market 

price over the exercise price of an option at the grant date, is recognised as a deferred compensation cost and 

amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of such options. The compensation so recognised in 

respect of which exercise of options is outstanding, is shown as Employee Stock Options Outstanding on the face 

of the Balance Sheet. 

  The fair market price is the latest available closing price on the stock exchange on which the shares of the Bank 

are listed, prior to the date of the meeting of the Compensation Committee in which stock options are granted. 

Since shares are listed on more than one stock exchange, the exchange where the Bank’s shares have been traded 

highest on the said date is considered for this purpose.
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 9.3 Stock option activity under the scheme during the year

Particulars No. of options Weighted 

average 

exercise price (`)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,17,32,111 657.14

Granted during the year 17,93,500 1,732.20

Forfeited/surrendered during the year 1,31,275 985.11

Exercised during the year 20,74,482 491.52

Expired during the year 2,980 253.41

Outstanding at the end of the year 1,13,16,874 854.18

Options exercisable at the end of the year 71,11,745 548.15

  The weighted average price of options exercised during the year is ` 1,626.08.

  Following table summarizes the information about stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2018:

Date of grant Exercise Price Number of shares arising out 

of options

Weighted average life of 

options (in years)

28-Jan-10 A 48.00 4,00,000  0.84 

28-Jun-10 196.50 18,662  0.24 

17-Jan-11 228.70 8,40,000  0.82 

07-Feb-11 A 220.45 1,07,500  0.86 

24-Jun-11 253.60 61,333  0.88 

21-Dec-11 231.95 4,03,000  1.36 

29-Feb-12 304.05 67,000  1.43 

19-Apr-12 345.60 39,500  1.70 

25-May-12 304.55 5,675  1.16 

10-Jul-12 343.25 1,47,400  1.79 

10-Oct-12 365.75 3,750  1.88 

20-Jun-13 478.45 28,500  3.12 

18-Jul-13 453.90 2,50,630  2.60 

23-Sep-13 411.50 10,000  2.49 

29-Oct-13 412.25 3,560  3.58 

29-Jan-14 389.85 9,100  3.40 

29-Jan-14 A 300.00 7,00,000  2.84 

25-Mar-14 490.30 1,25,510  3.00 

15-May-14 537.05 8,765  3.58 

02-Jun-14 533.95 18,08,320  3.30 

09-Jul-14 551.10 1,700  4.28 

13-Oct-14 623.25 23,865  3.72 



268

Annual Report 2017-18

Date of grant Exercise Price Number of shares arising out 

of options

Weighted average life of 

options (in years)

17-Jan-15 831.85 38,150  3.84 

23-Feb-15 876.80 1,040  4.56 

30-Mar-15 880.75 9,000  4.01 

22-May-15 848.20 41,114  4.27 

24-Jul-15 949.80 10,97,095  4.50 

21-Sep-15 918.65 70,760  5.27 

04-Nov-15 911.85 61,040  4.68 

12-Jan-16 936.75 3,500  4.80 

12-Jan-16 886.75 10,00,000  4.80 

12-May-16 1,053.75 8,510  5.25 

11-Jul-16 1,126.70 22,420  5.41 

23-Aug-16 1,186.75 2,04,340  5.65 

10-Oct-16 1,220.85 18,17,340  5.56 

16-Nov-16 1,093.10 23,270  6.09 

27-Jan-17 1,265.40 19,025  5.97 

24-Mar-17 1,383.90 49,000  6.00 

19-Apr-17 1,431.75 16,000  6.07 

09-May-17 1,424.85 69,000  6.12 

19-Jun-17 1,498.90 38,500  6.23 

11-Jul-17 1,560.35 35,000  6.29 

12-Oct-17 1,717.25 69,000  6.55 

11-Jan-18 1,734.10 43,000  6.80 

27-Mar-18 1,759.75 15,17,000  7.00 

 9.4 Fair value methodology

  The fair value of options granted during the year has been estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes 

option pricing model with the following assumptions:

Particulars 2017-18

Average dividend yield 0.30 – 0.38%

Expected volatility 25.60 – 28.94%

Risk free interest rates 6.54 – 7.23%

Expected life of options (in years) 4.52

  Expected volatility is a measure of the amount by which the equity share price is expected to fluctuate during a 

period. The measure of volatility used in Black -Scholes option pricing model is the annualised standard deviation 

of the continuously compounded rates of return on the share over a period of time. Expected volatility has been 

computed by considering the historical data on daily volatility in the closing equity share price on the National 
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Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE), over a prior period equivalent to the expected life of the options, till the 

date of the grant.

  The stock-based compensation cost calculated as per the intrinsic value method for the year ended  

March 31, 2018 is ` 1.21 crores (Previous year ` 3.29 crores). Had the Bank adopted the Black - Scholes model 

based fair valuation, compensation cost for the year ended March 31, 2018, would have increased by ` 68.81 

crores (Previous year ` 70.05 crores) and the proforma profit after tax would have been lower by ` 44.99 crores 

(Previous year ` 45.80 crores). On a proforma basis, the basic and diluted earnings per share would have been as 

follows:

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Proforma basis 

Basic earnings per share ` 59.44 47.29

Diluted earnings per share ` 58.82 46.80

  The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year 2017-18 is ` 593.37 (Previous year ` 441.07).

 9.5 Gratuity

  Gratuity is a defined benefit plan. The Bank has obtained qualifying insurance policies from IRDA approved 

insurance companies. The following table summarises the components of net expenses recognised in the Profit 

and Loss account and funded status and amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet, on the basis of actuarial 

valuation.

(` in crores)

Sr. 

No.

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Changes in the present value of the obligation

1 Opening balance of Present Value of Obligation 75.31 61.67

2 Interest Cost 5.05 4.30

3 Current Service Cost 16.44 12.71

4 Benefits Paid (6.40) (7.44)

5 Actuarial loss/(gain) on Obligation (0.92) 4.07

6 Closing balance of Present Value of Obligation 89.48 75.31

Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of the fair 

value of the Plan Assets

1 Opening balance of Fair value of Plan Assets 81.53 65.34

2 Adjustment to Opening Balance 0.66 0.57

3 Expected Return on Plan assets 6.54 5.10

4 Expenses - (0.33)

5 Contributions 15.51 17.07

6 Benefits Paid (6.40) (7.44)

7 Actuarial gain/(loss) on Plan Assets (4.32) 1.22

8 Closing balance of Fair Value of Plan Assets 93.52 81.53
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(` in crores)

Sr. 

No.

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Profit and Loss – Expenses

1 Current Service Cost 16.44 12.71

2 Interest Cost 5.05 4.30

3 Expected Return on Plan assets (6.54) (5.10)

4 Expenses - 0.33

5 Net Actuarial loss recognised in the year 3.40 2.86

6 Expenses recognised in the Profit and Loss account 18.35 15.10

Funded status 100 % insurance 

managed funds

100 % insurance 

managed funds

Actuarial Assumptions

1 Discount Rate 7.55% 7.00%

2 Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets 6.50% 7.60%

3 Expected Rate of Salary Increase 5.00% 5.00%

4 Employee Attrition Rate

- Past Service 0 to 5 years 30.00% 30.00%

- Past Service above 5 years 0.50% 0.50%

  Estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion 

and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

  Experience Adjustment

(` in crores)

Particulars March 31, 

2018

March 31, 

2017

March 31, 

2016

March 31, 

2015

March 31, 

2014

Defined Benefit Obligations 89.48 75.31 61.67 46.38 34.36

Plan Assets 93.52 81.53 65.34 49.58 34.36

Surplus/(Deficit) 4.04 6.21 3.67 3.20 -

Experience Adjustments on Plan Liabilities 0.92 (4.07) (7.60) (4.25) 1.63

Experience Adjustments on Plan Assets (4.32) 1.22 (0.80) (0.35) (1.72)

  Contributions expected to be paid to the plan during the annual period beginning after the Balance Sheet date is 

` 28 crores.

 9.6 Provident Fund

  The guidance on implementing AS 15 Employee Benefits (revised 2005) issued by the Accounting Standards 

Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India states that employer established provident funds which 

require interest shortfalls to be recompensed are to be considered as defined benefit plans. 
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  The details of the fund and plan assets position as at March 31, 2018, are as follows:

(` in crores)

Assets/Liabilities March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Present value of Interest Rate guarantee on Provident Fund 0.99 1.20

Present value of Total Obligation 165.01 143.41

Fair value of Plan Assets 164.86 143.08

Net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet (0.15) (0.33)

Assumptions 

Normal Retirement age 60 years 60 years

Expected guaranteed interest on PF in future 8.55% 8.65%

Discount rate 7.55% 7.00%

Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years) 7.02-8.60 6.04-8.07

Benefit on normal retirement Accumulated 

account balance 

with interest rate 

equal to or more 

than EPFO Rate

Accumulated 

account balance 

with interest rate 

equal to or more 

than EPFO Rate

Benefit on early retirement/withdrawal/resignation Same as normal 

retirement 

benefit

Same as normal 

retirement 

benefit

Benefit on death in service Same as normal 

retirement 

benefit

Same as normal 

retirement 

benefit
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10. Segment Reporting (AS - 17)

 The Bank operates in four business segments, viz. Treasury, Corporate/Wholesale Banking, Retail Banking and Other 

Banking Operations. There are no significant residual operations carried by the Bank.

Business Segments

(` in crores)

Business Segment Treasury Corporate/Wholesale 

Banking

Retail Banking Other Banking 

Operation

Total

Particulars 31/03/18 31/03/17 31/03/18 31/03/17 31/03/18 31/03/17 31/03/18 31/03/17 31/03/18 31/03/17

Revenue 4,095.20 3,490.63 7,036.38 6,311.25 11,779.15 9,608.76 72.75 40.81 22,983.48 19,451.45

Inter Segment 

Revenue

(952.63) (874.29)

Total Income 22,030.85 18,577.16

Result 605.79 707.61 2,124.05 1,778.17 4,112.51 3,142.58 25.40 13.35 6,867.75 5,641.71

Unallocated 

Expenses

(211.64) (190.70)

Operating Profit 6,656.11 5,451.01

Provisions and 

Contingencies  

(other than tax)

(1,175.43) (1,091.33)

Tax Expenses (1,874.69) (1,491.79)

Extraordinary profit/

loss

  - -

Net Profit 3,605.99 2,867.89

Other Information: - -

Add: Share of Profit 

in Associate

0.13 0.28

Net Profit 3,606.12 2,868.17

Segment Assets 56,969.78 45,131.28 68,167.50 54,185.90 86,296.31 71,820.77 - - 2,11,433.59 1,71,137.95

Unallocated Assets 10,194.19 7,511.95

Total Assets 2,21,627.77 1,78,649.90

Segment Liabilities 38,717.43 23,001.05 67,234.30 61,913.39 85,833.83 65,901.83 - - 1,91,785.56 1,50,816.27

Unallocated 

Liabilities

29,842.22 27,833.63

Total Liabilities 2,21,627.77 1,78,649.90

Note: 

Fixed Assets, tax paid in advance and tax deducted at source (net of provisions), stationery and stamps, non-banking assets 

acquired in satisfaction of claims, and others which cannot be allocated to any segments, have been classified as unallocated 

assets; Depreciation on Fixed Assets has been classified as unallocated expenses. The unallocated liabilities include share 

capital, employee stock option outstanding, reserves and surplus, proposed dividend and others.
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 Geographic Segments:

 The business operations of the Bank are largely concentrated in India. Activities outside India are restricted to resource 

mobilization in the international markets and lending to a few overseas entities through the IFSC Banking Unit at the 

GIFT City Gujarat. Since the Bank does not have material earnings emanating from foreign operations, the Bank is 

considered to operate only in domestic segment.

11. Related party transactions (AS - 18)

 The following is the information on transactions with related parties: 

 Key Management Personnel

 Mr. Romesh Sobti, Managing Director

 Associates

 IndusInd Marketing and Financial Services Private Limited

 Subsidiaries

 ALF Insurance Services Private Limited (till February 24, 2016 on which date the liquidator had repaid the entire share 

capital; vide an order issued by the High Court of Madras on June 14, 2016, the subsidiary has been liquidated pursuant 

to a voluntary winding up and the name has been struck off the Companies Register).

 In accordance with RBI guidelines, details pertaining to the related party transactions have not been provided as there 

is only one related party in each of the above categories. 

12. Operating Leases (AS - 19)

 The Bank has taken a number of premises on operating lease for branches, offices, ATMs and residential premises for 

staff. The Bank has not given any assets on operating lease. The details of maturity profile of future operating lease 

payments are given below:

(` in crores)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Future lease rentals payable as at the end of the year:

- Not later than one year 325.04 277.25

- Later than one year but not later than five years 928.41 950.16

- Later than five years 326.12 349.00

Total of minimum lease payments recognised in the Profit and Loss Account 

for the year

280.11 243.84

Total of future minimum sub-lease payments expected to be received under 

non-cancellable sub-lease

- -

Sub-lease payments recognised in the Profit and Loss account for the year - -

 The Bank has not sub-leased any of the properties taken on lease. There are no provisions relating to contingent rent.

 The terms of renewal and escalation clauses are those normally prevalent in similar agreements. There are no undue 

restrictions or onerous clauses in the agreements.
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13. Details pertaining to earnings per share as per (AS - 20) are as under:

Particulars For the Year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Net Profit [including associates’ share of profit (` in crores)] 3,606.12 2,868.17

Basic weighted average number of equity shares 59,90,63,006 59,66,99,170

Diluted weighted average number of equity shares 60,53,75,114 60,29,85,746

Nominal value of Equity Shares (`) 10 10

Basic Earnings per Share (`) 60.20 48.07

Diluted Earnings per Share (`) 59.58 47.57

14. Deferred Tax (AS - 22)

 The major components of deferred tax assets/liabilities are as under:

(` in crores)

Particulars March 31, 2018

Deferred Tax

March 31, 2017

Deferred Tax

Timing difference on account of Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Difference between depreciation as per 

the books of account and depreciation 

under the Income Tax Act, 1961

- 16.68 - 33.35

Difference between Provisions for 

doubtful debts and advances and 

amount allowable under Section 36(1)

(viia) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

597.72 - 530.93 -

Difference between income as per the 

books of account and income offered 

under the Income Tax Act, 1961

- 252.84 - 177.93

Others 49.60 - 32.82 -

Sub-total 647.32 269.52 563.75 211.28

Net closing balance carried to the 

Balance Sheet  

(included in Sch. 11 – Others)

377.80 352.47

15. Additional Disclosures

 15.1 Proposed Dividend

  The Board of Directors, in their meeting held on April 19, 2018, have proposed a final dividend of ` 7.50 per equity 

share amounting to ` 542.70 crores, inclusive of corporate dividend tax. The proposal is subject to the approval of 

shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. This proposed dividend is not recognised as a liability on March 31, 

2018 and accordingly, the said amount of ` 542.70 crores has not been considered as an appropriation from the 

Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2018.

  Dividend for the year ended March 31, 2017, paid during the year pursuant to the approval of the shareholders 

at the 23rd Annual General Meeting, at the rate of ` 6 per equity share amounting to ` 432.24 crores (including 

corporate dividend tax), has been considered as an appropriation from the Profit and Loss Account.
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 15.2 Additional information for consolidated accounts (Pursuant to Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013)

(` in crores)

Name of the 

Subsidiary

Net Assets* Share in Profit or Loss

2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17

As a % of 

Consolidated 

Net Assets

Amount As a % of 

Consolidated 

Net Assets

Amount As a % of 

Consolidated 

Profit or Loss

Amount As a % of 

Consolidated 

Profit or Loss

Amount

IndusInd Bank Limited 100.00% 23,843.26 100.00% 20,647.60 100.00% 3,605.99 99.99% 2,867.89

Associate

IndusInd Marketing 

and Financial Services 

Pvt Ltd

- - - 0.00% 0.13 0.01% 0.28

Total 100.00% 23,843.26 100.00% 20,647.60 100.00% 3,606.12 100.00% 2,868.17

  * Total assets – Total Liability

 15.3 Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes

  Pursuant to Notification No. G.S.R. 308(E) dated March 30, 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) 

and as per Schedule III of Companies Act 2013, IMFS (Associate Entity) has reported NIL (Previous Year : NIL) as a 

submission in their Notes to the financial statement in respect of disclosure related to Specified Bank Notes (SBN). 

The said notification on Specified Bank Notes (SBN) was not applicable to the Bank in current year and previous 

year.

 15.4 The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 that came into force from October 2, 2006, 

provides for certain disclosures in respect of Micro, Small and Medium enterprises. There have been no reported 

cases of delays in payments to micro and small enterprises or interest payments due to delays in such payments.

 15.5 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP R. Seshasayee

Chairman

Romesh Sobti

Managing DirectorChartered Accountants

Firm Registration No : 012754N/N500016

Russell I Parera T. Anantha Narayanan Kanchan Chitale

Partner Director Director

Membership No : 042190

Place  :  Mumbai S. V. Zaregaonkar Haresh Gajwani

Date  :  April 19, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Statement pursuant to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013

Form AOC-1 : (Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with Rule 5 of 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

 Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries / Associate Companies / Joint 

Ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

The Bank did not have any subsidiary , in operation , during the year ended March 31, 2018. Hence , information in this regards 

is Nil.

Notes :

1 Names of the Subsidiary which are yet to commence operation  : Nil

2 Names of the Subsidiary which have been liquidated or sold during the year: : Nil

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Sr. 

No.

Name of Associate Companies / Joint Ventures IndusInd Marketing and Financial 

Services Private Limited (IMFS)

1 Latest Audited Balance Sheet March 31, 2018

2 Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated or acquired June 11, 2004

3 Shares of Associate Company / Joint Venture held by the company on the 

year end:

No. of Shares 3,000

Amount of Investment in associate / joint venture ` 30,000

Extend of Holding % 30%

4 Description of how there is significant influence Extent of Equity holding in the 

Associate company exceeds 20%

5 Reason why the Associate / Joint Venture is not consolidated Not applicable

6 Net worth attributable to the Banks’s share holding ( ` in crores) ` 1.62 crores

7 Profit / Loss for the year:

i.  Considered in Consolidated Financial Statement (` in crores) ` 0.13 crores

ii. Not Considered in Consolidated Financial Statement Nil

Notes  

1 Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which are yet to commence operations. : Nil 

2 Names of the Associates which have been liquidated or sold during the year. : Nil 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

R. Seshasayee

Chairman

Romesh Sobti

Managing Director

T. Anantha Narayanan Kanchan Chitale

Director Director

Place  :  Mumbai S. V. Zaregaonkar Haresh Gajwani

Date  :  April 19, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018
(Millions of US$)

1 USD = ` 65.175 As at 

31.03.2018

As at 

31.03.2017

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

Capital 92.09 91.78

Employee Stock Option Outstanding 2.24 2.33

Reserves and Surplus 3,563.77 3,073.69

Deposits 23,266.46 19,420.36

Borrowings 5,874.81 3,445.14

Other Liabilities & Provisions 1,205.41 1,377.27

TOTAL 34,004.78 27,410.57

ASSETS

Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India 1,682.00 1,188.91

Balances with Banks & Money at Call and Short Notice 345.76 1,669.28

Investments 7,683.42 5,631.32

Advances 22,240.68 17,350.29

Fixed Assets 205.41 204.87

Other Assets 1,847.51 1,365.90

TOTAL 34,004.78 27,410.57

Contingent Liabilities 101,587.90 62,353.23

Bills for Collection 5,740.77 2,916.29

Standalone Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Millions of US$)

1 USD = ` 65.175

Year ended 

31.03.2018

Year ended 

31.03.2017

I INCOME

 Interest Earned 2,651.44 2,210.31

 Other Income 728.82 640.04

TOTAL 3,380.26 2,850.35

II EXPENDITURE

 Interest Expended 1,501.08 1,280.10

 Operating Expenses 857.91 733.88

 Provisions and Contingencies 467.99 396.34

TOTAL 2,826.98 2,410.32

III PROFIT 553.28 440.03

 Profit brought forward 1,092.19 769.23

 AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 1,645.47 1,209.26

IV. APPROPRIATIONS

 a) Transfer to Statutory Reserves 138.32 110.01

 b) Transfer to Capital Reserves 1.17 6.99

 c) Transfer to Investment Reserve Account - -

 d) Dividend paid including tax on dividend 66.32 0.07

 e) Deductions during the year 10.97 -

216.78 117.07

 Balance carried over to the Balance Sheet 1,428.69 1,092.19

TOTAL 1,645.47 1,209.26
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Bank’s Branches

Details of branches are accessible on the Bank’s website at:

https://www.indusind.com/locate-us.html?q1=&q2=branches
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